PORTRAYAL OF TOPOGRAPHIES OF BEGUILING NUMBER PATTERNS AND RESTRICTED CATEGORIES OF DIOPHANTINE EQUATIONS



Thesis submitted to the Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the award of the degree of **DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY IN MATHEMATICS**

By P. SANDHYA

(Ref. No. 25216/Ph.D.K1/Mathematics/PT (3-5)/Prov.Regn./January 2019)

Under the Guidance of Dr. V. PANDICHELVI, M.Sc., M.Phil., Ph.D.,



PG & RESEARCH DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS URUMU DHANALAKSHMI COLLEGE

Affiliated to Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli
TIRUCHIRAPPALLI - 620 019, TAMIL NADU, INDIA

Dr. V. PANDICHELVI

Assistant Professor,

PG and Research Department of Mathematics,

Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Kattur, Trichy – 620 019.

CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that this thesis entitled "PORTRAYAL OF

TOPOGRAPHIES OF BEGUILING NUMBER PATTERNS AND

RESTRICTED CATEGORIES OF DIOPHANTINE EQUATIONS" in partial

fulfillment of the requirements for the award of the degree of DOCTOR OF

PHILOSOPHY in MATHEMATICS is a record of original research work carried out by

Ms. SANDHYA P, (Ref.No.25216/Ph.D.K1/Mathematics/PT(3-5)/Prov.Regn./January

2019) during her period of study from 2019 to 2022 under the Part-Time Programme at

Urumu Dhanalakshmi College affiliated to Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli,

Tamil Nadu, India under my supervision and guidance and the thesis has not been

submitted for the award of any other degree / Associationship / Fellowship or similar title

of this or any other University.

Place: Tiruchirappalli

(Dr. V. Pandichelvi)

Date:

Research Supervisor

DECLARATION

TOPOGRAPHIES OF BEGUILING NUMBER PATTERNS AND RESTRICTED CATEGORIES OF DIOPHANTINE EQUATIONS" has been originally carried out by me during the period of my study from 2019 – 2022 in the department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College affiliated to Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli, Tamil Nadu under the guidance of Dr. V. Pandichelvi, M. Sc., M. Phil., Ph. D., Research Supervisor, Assistant Professor, PG and Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli and this work has not been submitted elsewhere for any other Degree or Diploma or any other University.

Tiruchirappalli SANDHYA P

Dr. V. PANDICHELVI

Assistant Professor,

PG and Research Department of Mathematics,

Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Kattur, Trichy – 620 019.

CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that this thesis entitled "PORTRAYAL OF

TOPOGRAPHIES OF BEGUILING NUMBER PATTERNS AND

RESTRICTED CATEGORIES OF DIOPHANTINE EQUATIONS" of

Ms. SANDHYA P, Part-time Ph.D. Research Scholar,

(Ref.No.25216/Ph.D.K1/Mathematics/PT(3-5)/Prov.Regn./January 2019), Department

of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli – 19, has been examined.

No sentence, equation, table, paragraph or section has been copied verbatim from previous

work unless it is placed under quotation marks and duly referenced. The work presented is

original and own work of the author. The thesis has been checked using Ouriginal

Plagiarism Checker (copy of originality report attached) and found within limits as per

the Ph. D. Regulations of the Bharathidasan University.

Place: Tiruchirappalli

(Dr. V. Pandichelvi)

Date:

Research Supervisor



Document Information

Analyzed document Sandhya-plagiarism checking-1-169.pdf (D137346173)

Submitted 2022-05-20T14:52:00.0000000

Submitted by Srinivasa ragavan S

Submitter email bdulib@gmail.com

Similarity 1%

Analysis address bdulib.bdu@analysis.urkund.com

Sources included in the report

W	URL: https://www.toppr.com/ask/question/for-the-matrixabeginbmatrix-1-1-1-1/Fetched: 2021-05-24T11:52:24.1430000	88	1
W	URL: https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fermat_number Fetched: 2020-04-05T05:07:44.8600000		1
W	URL: https://www.math.ucdavis.edu/~linear/linear-guest.pdf Fetched: 2020-03-21T17:02:05.8870000		4

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In the name of God, the most benevolent, gracious and merciful

With great pleasure and heartfelt gratitude, I express my gratitude to my research supervisor, Dr. V. Pandichelvi, M. Sc., M. Phil., Ph. D., Assistant Professor, PG and Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli, for her motivation with a spirit of enthusiasm, for inspiring me gracefully throughout the course of the work, suggesting relevant and enlightening solutions for problems with all versatility and her valuable guidance and intellectual discussions throughout the duration of my research execution.

To the **Management** of Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli, I would like to express my deepest gratitude for providing me the great opportunity to pursue my Doctoral research at the PG and Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli.

My warmest thanks to **Dr. E. R. Ravichandran, M.A., M.Phil., Ph.D.,** Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, and **Dr. R. Krishnakumar,** Head and Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli, for their earnest encouragement in the pursuit of the research.

I share great pleasure in extending my profound gratitude to my Doctoral Committee members, **Dr. R. Krishnakumar**, Head and Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli and **Dr. G. Janaki**,

Associate Professor of Mathematics, Cauvery College for Women, Tiruchirappalli, for their valuable insights that have helped to make this research a success.

My sincere thanks to **Dr. D. Francis Xavier Christopher**, Principal, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy for his valuable advice and encouragement.

My thanks are due to **all my colleagues** of Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy for their co-operation extended to complete my research.

I express my sincere thanks to **all staff members** of PG and Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli for their help in all possible ways for completing my work successfully.

I am happy to express my cordial and sincere thanks to the **authorities of Bharathidasan University**, for granting me the necessary academic sanctions to pursue my research under its aegis leading to Doctoral Degree.

My cordial thanks are due to the **Library Authorities** of Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli.

I owe special thanks to her family members for their kindness, acceptance, and cooperation. May God bless them mightily and extend their boundaries in this life.

I am thankful to the office staff members of Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Tiruchirappalli, for their help in all possible ways for completing my research successfully. I express my thanks to all my friends, for their help, encouragement, motivation and valuable suggestions during the course of study.

My sincere and heartfelt thanks to my beloved parents, my brother Mr. P. Sajeesh, my cousin Mr. M. M. Gowthaman, my in-laws and my family members especially my husband Mr. S. Satheeshkumar, who is the driving force behind my decision to enroll in a Ph.D. programme and my children S. Dharshith Sundaram and S. Charvina for their love, patience, support and willingness to develop me to the fullest of my potentials in all ways for their fullest cooperation, financial support, and encouragement for successful completion of my thesis.

I once again plead God Almighty to bestow all of his blessings on my Research Supervisor, wishing her a happy and prosperous life in the years to come, and I thank him for his generosity.

P. Sandhya

CONTENTS

Chapter No.	Introduction		Page No	
I			1	
II	Exploration of New Sequences and their Characteristics			
	2.1	Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences	18	
	2.2	Invention of Four Novel Sequences and their Properties	29	
III	Diop	hantine Triples involving Special Sequences	37	
	3.1	The Patterns of Diophantine Triples Engross Cheldhiya Companion Sequence with Inspiring Properties	38	
	3.2	Demonstration of Two Disparate Structures of Integer Triples Concerning Pan-San and Pan-San Comrade Numbers	46	
IV		vork of Integer Quadruple and Quintuple with ue Properties	55	
	4.1	Fabrication of Gorgeous Integer Quadruple	56	
	4.2	Incomparable Integer Quintuple in Arithmetic Progression with Prominent Condition	68	
V		ate of the-Art of Sums, Congruence Relations and sibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers	78	
	5.1	Sums and Congruences of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers	79	
	5.2	Divisibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers	83	

VI	Quadratic Diophantine Equations with Solutions as Familiar Numbers		
	6.1	Assessment of solutions in Pell and Pell – Lucas numbers to Disparate Polynomial Equations of degree two	93
	6.2	Conception of positive integer solutions relating Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal – Lucas numbers to restricted number of quadratic equations with double variables	102
VII	Mordell Type Diophantine Equations		
	7.1	Methodology of Proving no Solutions to three Categories of Mordell Type Diophantine Equations	113
	7.2	Attesting Finite Number of Integer Solutions or No Integer Solutions to Four Mordell Kind Equations	116
VIII	Exponential Diophantine Equations		
	8.1	Exploration of Solutions for an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$	127
	8.2	Tactics of achieving Non-Negative Integer Solutions to an Exponential Equation with the base as Natural Numbers	134
	8.3	Investigation of Solutions to an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^2 = M^2$	143
IX	Application of Linear Diophantine Equation in Chemistry		
	9.1	Usage of Linear Diophantine Equation in the Resolution of Molecular Formulae for Various Chemical Substances	155
	Conc	lusion	162
	Bibli	ography	B 1
	Appe	endix	

Chapter - I

Introduction

CHAPTER - I

Introduction

State of the art of the research topic:

The exploration of natural numbers and integers is the emphasis of the pure Mathematics discipline known as Number Theory. "The Queen of Mathematics" refers to Number Theory's position as the discipline's linchpin. The study of numbers [6, 27, 30, 32, 35, 38, 43, 52] provides a framework for identifying patterns and establishing the veracity of those patterns through the use of Number Theory. Number Theory is a mixture of both experimental and theoretical aspects. Issues are raised and viable solutions are proposed in the experimental component of the course. It is the objective of the theoretical part of the research to provide an argument that satisfies all of the issues raised [66, 67, 110, 111, 113, 129, 132, 136, 150, 151, 152].

Diophantus of Alexandria, the creator of Arithmetica and one of the most prominent later Greek Mathematicians, deserves particular mention. Diophantine equations, the most important of the many problems in this book, have been considered the most significant [8, 68]. These are equations in which the answers must be integers [3, 4, 10, 13, 18, 31, 34, 42, 48, 50, 60, 64, 81, 94, 98, 100]. As an illustration, Diophantus requested for two numbers, one of which was a square and the other a cube, such that the total of their squares was also a square itself. In contemporary symbols, he hunted numbers x, y, and z such that $(x^2)^2 + (y^3)^2 = z^2$. Generating real numbers that meet this condition is straightforward (e.g., $x = \sqrt{2}$, y = 1, and $z = \sqrt{5}$), but the constraint that solutions be integers brands the task more complex. Work of Diophantus

1

was incredibly influential on subsequent Mathematics [105, 107, 112, 120, 121, 128, 131, 133, 147, 155].

Due to the wide range of Diophantine equations, there exists a plethora of them [71, 74, 80, 82, 99, 154]. Diophantine equations have no uniform mechanism for determining whether a solution exists or finding all of them if they do. One of the most well-known and renowned Diophantine equations is the Fermat equation $x^d + y^d - z^d = 0$ [126, 142, 143]. d = 2 yields an infinite number of integer solutions, but d = 3 yields no positive integer solutions.

The equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$ for $k \in \mathbb{Z}$ is alluded to as Mordell's equation due to Mordell's deep passion in it [56, 137]. Mordell [109] established in 1920 that the equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$ has an infinite number of integral solutions for any $k \in \mathbb{Z}$. Michael A. Bennett and Amir Ghadermarzi [11] cast-off the traditional link between Mordell and cubic Thue equations to solve the Diophantine problem $y^2 = x^3 + k$ for all non-zero integers k with $|k| \le 10^7$.

Since prehistoric days, mastering the equations with variables as exponents has glinted the inquisitiveness of countless Mathematicians [1,7,17, 19, 20-25, 44, 55, 63, 65, 90, 91, 97]. J. L. Brenner and Lorraine L. Foster [14] explored several Diophantine exponential equations and derived conclusions. Maohua Le, Reese Scott, and Robert Styer [93] discussed many unresolved problems and related studies involving positive integer solutions to the ternary exponential Diophantine equation [106, 127, 130, 134, 135, 138-141, 144, 145, 146].

A Diophantine l-tuple is a set of l unique positive integers that has the feature that the product of any two of its distinct members plus 1 is a square. Fermat discovered

the world's first Diophantine quadruple in the integers (1,3,8,120). Diophantus discovered the first example of a rational Diophantine quadruple: $\left\{\frac{1}{16},\frac{33}{16},\frac{17}{4},\frac{105}{16}\right\}$ [9, 16, 40, 41, 45, 47, 49, 53, 54, 57]. Certain of the most prominent Mathematicians of the history, such as Diophantus, Fermat, and Euler, as well as some contemporary Mathematicians, such as Fields Medalist Alan Baker, have made significant contributions to issues involving Diophantine *l*-tuples [58, 59, 61, 62, 102, 115, 118, 119, 123, 149], yet many of these problems remain unsolved.

A Number pattern is a form of arithmetic pattern that is often seen. Number patterns are a series of numbers that are sorted in a certain way according to a set of rules. Mathematics is extremely significant when it can assist you in making predictions, and Number patterns are all about making predictions. In Mathematics, dealing with Number patterns leads straight to the notion of functions, which is a structured representation of the interactions between multiple variables. It is also crucial to be able to recognize patterns in numbers while problem-solving [76, 104].

Until recently, the importance of Fibonacci's work in Mathematics was generally unnoticed. Modern Mathematicians are familiar with his work mostly because of the Fibonacci sequence he devised. The first recursive number series is made up of the numbers 1, 1, 2, 3, 5, 8, 13, 21, 34, and 55, where each number is the sum of its two previous counterparts. Robert Simson, a Mathematician in 1753 at Glasgow University, discovered that when numbers became larger, the ratio between them neared the golden number, which is 1.6180 ... or $(1 + \sqrt{5})/2$. As early as the 19th century, Edouard Lucas coined the term "Fibonacci sequence" and scientists began to discover such

sequences across the natural world, such as the spirals of sunflower heads, pine cones and the male bee [33, 39, 46, 69, 70, 78, 79, 88, 96, 103, 122, 148].

As a result of the investigation of Pell's equation $x^2 - dy^2 = (-1)^n$, where d is a positive non-square integer, Pell numbers were called after the English Mathematician John Pell (1611–1685). On the other hand, Pell–Lucas numbers are called after him and Lucas, despite the fact that neither of them was involved with them in any way. Pell and Pell–Lucas numbers are Mathematical twins, much as Fibonacci and Lucas numbers are; they are both widespread and have a number of characteristics in common with one another [15, 26, 28, 29, 37, 51, 72, 73, 75, 85, 89, 95, 101, 114, 116, 117, 125, 153].

Congruence techniques are a valuable tool for calculating the number of solutions to a Diophantine equation. When applied to the simplest Diophantine equation, ax + by = c, where a, b, and c are nonzero integers, these approaches demonstrate that the equation has either no solutions or infinitely many solutions, depending on whether the greatest common divisor (GCD) of a and b divides c: if it does not, there are no solutions; if it does, there are infinitely many solutions, which constitute a one-parameter family of solutions [77, 86].

In the 20th century, there was a surge in the field of Number Theory. In addition to classical and analytic Number Theory, researchers are currently exploring specific subdisciplines such as algebraic Number Theory, geometric Number Theory, and combinatorial Number Theory [2, 5]. Concepts got increasingly abstract, while the methodologies used to implement them because it was more sophisticated.

Undoubtedly, Fermat's greatest ambitions have been surpassed by the scope of the topic [108].

In the mid-twentieth century, Number Theory was regarded as the purest area of study in Mathematics, with no concrete applications in the real world. The emergence of digital communication and digital computers emphasized that Number Theory may bring surprising solutions to real-world issues [83, 87]. Factoring big numbers, finding primes, testing hypotheses, and resolving numerical problems previously believed impossible have all been made possible by breakthroughs in computer technology during the last several decades.

Furthermore, practical issues involving splicing of telephone lines have been resolved by using techniques of basic Number Theory [92]. Many more fascinating applications may be found in the book Number Theory and the Periodicity of Matter [12], which has a large number of additional examples. Finally, new and interesting applications of Number Theory include cryptography [84], coding theory, chemistry [36, 124] and random number generation among other things. These areas are developing at a breakneck pace as a result of the widespread use of computers, and their significance is growing all the time.

Since the theory of numbers has existed since the dawn of Mathematics, it is both timeless and up-to-the-minute. Because of its apparent (sometimes deceptive) simplicity and seductive beauty, it retains its interest. Because it has such a long and glorious history, Number Theory has rightfully been referred to as "The Queen of Mathematics," in the words of Gauss.

Objective and scope of research work:

The novel variations of patterns of special numbers, as well as fascinating relationships among them by using congruences and divisibility, are being investigated. Aside from that, processes for obtaining infinitely large number of non-zero integer solutions in Pell, Pell-Lucas, Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers to some quadratic Diophantine equations are discussed.

Also, it is proved that there exists finite number of integer solutions or no solutions to some Mordell type Diophantine equations and exponential Diophantine equations that include Prime numbers and natural numbers are being explored as well. Furthermore, the application of linear Diophantine equations with certain restrictions for finding molecular formulae of chemical substances are investigated.

Results and discussion:

This doctoral thesis has nine Chapters. **Chapter I** delivers an overview of the history and literature required to analyze the different types of problems and their integral solutions in Chapters II through IX, which include number patterns and their related properties.

In **Chapter II**, new sequences and their characteristics are explored in two sections.

Section 2.1

Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences

Section 2.2

Invention of Four Novel Sequences and their Properties

Section 2.1 deals with the general solution to the Pell equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for some particular positive values of d and are developed as Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion sequences. Based on these sequences some interesting results are provided.

In Section 2.2, four disparate sequences and their recurrence relations named as Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are established by utilizing the generalized solutions (x, y) to the universal equation called as Pell equation for two non-zero square-free integers $d = k^2 + 2$, $d = k^2 - 2$ where $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$. Also, the general formulae and few theorems are proved involving such sequences for distinct values of d and can analyze the corresponding results.

Chapter III comprehends certain patterns of Diophantine Triples, incorporating some of the sequences that were developed in the previous chapter.

Section 3.1

The Patterns of Diophantine Triples Engross Cheldhiya Companion Sequence with Inspiring Properties.

Section 3.2

Demonstration of Two Disparate Structures of Integer Triples Concerning Pan-San and Pan-San Comrade Numbers.

In **Section 3.1**, the following patterns of Diophantine triples

$$\{x_{2m}, x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},\$$

 $\{x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, 3x_{2m} + (2 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}\},\$
 $\{x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, 3x_{2m} + (2 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, 6x_{2m} + (10 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},\$

$$\{3x_{2m} + (2 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, 6x_{2m} + (10 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 7x_{2m+2}, 13x_{2m} + (26 + 4P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 21x_{2m+2}\} \dots$$

comprising the Cheldhiya companion sequence with the property $D(-(k^2 + 1))$ is studied.

Also, a pattern of Diophantine triples

$$\{x_{2m-1}, \ x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}, 9x_{2m-1} + 30x_{2m} + 25x_{2m+1}\}, \dots$$
 involving Cheldhiya companion sequence with the property $D(k^2 + 1)$ is obtained.

In **Section 3.2**, two different patterns of triples

$$\left\{ C_{n-,k}, \ C_{n+1,k}, 2k^2C_{n,k} \right\}, \left\{ C_{n+1,k}, 2k^2C_{n,k}, 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2 - 1) \right\},$$

$$\left\{ 2k^2C_{n,k}, 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2 - 1), 2C_{n-1,k} + 7C_{n+1,k} + 4C_{n,k}(k^2 - 2) \right\},$$

$$\left\{ 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2 - 1), 2C_{n-1,k} + 7C_{n+1,k} + 4C_{n,k}(k^2 - 2), 6C_{n-1,k} + 2C_{n+1,k} + 6C_{n,k}(k^2 - 4) \right\}, etc$$

and

$$\left\{ R_{n-,k}, \ R_{n+1,k}, 2k^2R_{n,k} \right\}, \quad \left\{ R_{n+1,k}, 2k^2R_{n,k}, 3R_{n+1,k} + 2R_{n,k}(k^2+1) \right\},$$

$$\left\{ 2k^2R_{n,k}, 3R_{n+1,k} + 2R_{n,k}(k^2+1), 2R_{n-1,k} + 7R_{n+1,k} + 4R_{n,k}(k^2+2) \right\},$$

$$\left\{ 3R_{n+1,k} + 2R_{n,k}(k^2+1), 2R_{n-1,k} + 7R_{n+1,k} + 4R_{n,k}(k^2+2), \right\},$$

$$\left\{ 6R_{n-1,k} + 22R_{n+1,k} + 6R_{n,k}(k^2+4) \right\}, etc$$

entailing Pan-San and Pan-San Comrade sequences respectively whereas the multiplication of two basics raised by k^2 is a perfect square where $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$ are engendered.

Chapter IV enlightens the artwork of some integer quadruples and quintuples with exclusive properties.

Section 4.1

Fabrication of Gorgeous Integer Quadruple.

Section 4.2

Incomparable Integer Quintuple in Arithmetic Progression with Prominent Condition.

In **Section 4.1**, Three alternative processes are used to examine the quadruple (a, b, c, d) in order to confirm that the total of any three of them is a cubical integer. These approaches are outlined below.

(i)
$$a = 8(6m^3 - 9mn^2)^3 + 6(18m^2n - 3n^3)^2(6m^3 - 9mn^2) + 5(18m^2n - 3n^3)^3$$

 $b = (6m^3 - 9mn^2)^3 + 6(6m^3 - 9mn^2)^2(18m^2n - 3n^3)$
 $+12(6m^3 - 9mn^2) \times (18m^2n - 3n^3)^2 - 2(18m^2n - 3n^3)^3$
 $c = -8(6m^3 - 9mn^2)^3 - 6(6m^3 - 9mn^2)(18m^2n - 3n^3)^2 + 5(18m^2n - 3n^3)^3$
 $d = -(6m^3 - 9mn^2)^3 + 6(6m^3 - 9mn^2)^2(18m^2n - 3n^3)$
 $-12(6m^3 - 9mn^2) \times (18m^2n - 3n^3)^2 - 2(18m^2n - 3n^3)^3$
(ii) $a = 8(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 + 5(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$
 $b = (2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^2 \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3) + 12(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 - 2(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$
 $c = -8(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 - 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3 + 5(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$

$$d = -(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^2 \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3) - 12(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 - 2(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$$
(iii)
$$a = 1728m^9 + 3888m^7n^2 + 1080m^6n^3 + 3240m^5n^4 + 1620m^4n^5 + 1188m^3n^6 + 810m^2n^7 + 162mn^8 + 135n^9$$

$$b = 216m^9 + 1296m^8n + 2916m^7n^2 + 1512m^6n^3 + 4050m^5n^4 + 324m^4n^5 + 1971m^3n^6 - 162m^2n^7 + 324mn^8 - 54n^9$$

$$c = -1728m^9 - 3888m^7n^2 + 1080m^6n^3 - 3240m^5n^4 + 1620m^4n^5 - 1188m^3n^6 + 810m^2n^7 - 162mn^8 + 135n^9$$

$$d = -216m^9 + 1296m^8n - 2916m^7n^2 + 1512m^6n^3 - 4050m^5n^4 + 324m^4n^5 - 1971m^3n^6 - 162m^2n^7 - 324mn^8 - 54n^9$$

In **Section 4.2**, an elegant integer quintuple (p, q, r, s, t) in three different ways where the components make ensure in arithmetic progression with the conjecture that the sum of any three consecutive elements designates a perfect square is recognized.

- (i) $(p,q,r,s,t) = \{48(U^2 + V^2)^2 384UV(V^2 U^2), 48(U^2 + V^2)^2 192UV(V^2 U^2), 48(U^2 + V^2)^2, 48(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 192UV(V^2 U^2), 48(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 384UV(V^2 U^2)\}$
- (ii) $(p,q,r,s,t) = \{30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 9600(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V 7UV^3 36U^2V^2), 30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 4800(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V 7UV^3 36U^2V^2), 30000(U^2 + V^2)^2, 30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 4800(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V 7UV^3 36U^2V^2), 30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 9600(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V 7UV^3 36U^2V^2)\}$

(iii)
$$(p,q,r,s,t) = \{12(m^2+n^2)^2 - 96mn(n^2-m^2), 12(m^2+n^2)^2 - 48mn(n^2-m^2), 12(m^2+n^2)^2, 12(m^2+n^2)^2 + 48mn(n^2-m^2), 2(m^2+n^2)^2 + 96mn(n^2-m^2)\}$$

Chapter V establishes the art of sums, congruence relations and divisibility properties of Pell and Pell Lucas Numbers

Section 5.1

Sums and Congruences of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

Section 5.2

Divisibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

In **Section 5.1**, numerous innovative identities about Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers empower to deliver certain congruence relations for the above stated numbers are reflected in the following theorems.

Theorem 5.2

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{\ i} Q_{mi+k}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i P_{mi+k}$$

Corollary 5.2.1

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} Q_k \; (mod \; Q_m)$$
 (5.6)

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} P_k \pmod{Q_m}$$
 (5.7)

for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$.

Theorem 5.3

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$\begin{split} Q_{2mn+k} &= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} \, 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i} Q_{2mi+k} \, + \right. \\ & \left. \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i+1} P_{2mi+m+k} \right\} \text{ and } \\ P_{2mn+k} &= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} \, 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i} P_{2mi+k} \, + \right. \\ & \left. \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i+1} Q_{2mi+m+k} \right\} \end{split}$$

Corollary 5.3.1

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} Q_k \pmod{P_m} \tag{5.8}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} P_k \pmod{P_m}$$
 (5.9)

In **Section 5.2**, divisibility properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are revealed by means of the derived congruence relations in Section 5.1.

Theorem 5.4

The necessary and sufficient conditions for $Q_m|Q_n$ are

- i. $m \mid n$ and
- ii. $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer

for all $m, n \in N$ and $m \ge 2$.

Theorem 5.5

Let $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \ge 2$. Then $Q_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an even integer.

Theorem 5.6:

For all $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \ge 3$, $P_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n.

Chapter VI deals with several Quadratic Diophantine equation with solutions as familiar Pell, Pell-Lucas, Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers.

Section 6.1

Assessment of Solutions in Pell and Pell – Lucas Numbers to Disparate Polynomial Equations of Degree Two

Section 6.2

Conception of Positive Integer Solutions Relating Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal –

Lucas Numbers to Restricted Number of Quadratic Equations with Double Variables

In **Section 6.1**, the solutions in Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers for the following explicit polynomial equations of degree two in two variables are derived.

(i)
$$x^2 - 2xy - y^2 = \pm k$$
 when $k = 1, 8$

(ii)
$$x^2 - 6xy + y^2 = \pm l$$
 when $l = 4,32$

(iii)
$$x^2 - 2xy - y^2 \pm x = 0$$

(iv)
$$x^2 - 2xy - y^2 + y = 0$$

(v)
$$x^2 - 2xy - y^2 \pm 8x = 0$$

(vi)
$$x^2 - 6xy + y^2 \pm 4x = 0$$
 and

(vii)
$$x^2 - 6xy + y^2 \pm 32x = 0$$

In **Section 6.2**, sequences of non-negative integer solutions encircling Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers for restricted number of quadratic equations with double variables by utilizing the appropriate erections connecting these two numbers and the concepts of divisibility are investigated.

(i)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = +C$$

(ii)
$$X^2 - 5XY \pm 4Y^2 = \pm C$$

(iii)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 \pm CX = 0$$

(iv)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 + CY = 0$$

(v)
$$X^2 - 5XY - 4Y^2 \pm CX = 0$$

(vi)
$$X^2 - 5XY - 4Y^2 \pm CY = 0$$

(vii)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = +9C$$

(viii)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 \pm 9CX = 0$$

(ix)
$$X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 \pm 9CY = 0$$

(x)
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = +9C$$

(xi)
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 \pm 9CX = 0$$
 and

(xii)
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 + 9CY = 0$$

where C is a constant denoting some powers of the number 2.

Chapter VII discovers solutions to certain Mordell Type Diophantine Equations.

Section 7.1

Methodology of Proving No Solutions to Three Categories of Mordell Diophantine Equations $B^2 = A^3 + K$, $K = U^3 - V^2$, $U^3 - 2V^2 2V^2 + U^3$, $U, V \in \mathcal{Z}$.

Section 7.2

Attesting finite number of integer solutions or no integer solutions to four Mordell Kinds Equations $Y^2 = X^3 + C$, $C = \pm 9,36,-16$.

In **Section 7.1**, an unsurpassed Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ for three distinct values of K is studied and it is exposed that no integer solution arises by using some classical congruence relations and Legendre symbols.

In **Section 7.2**, four groups of Mordell equations $Y^2 = X^3 + C$, $C = \pm 9, -16,36$ are preferred and exposed that two of the equations

 $Y^2 = X^3 - 9$, $Y^2 = X^3 - 16$ among them have no integer solutions and the lingering two equations $Y^2 = X^3 + 9$, $Y^2 = X^3 + 36$ have partial integer solutions by mostly focused on the ideas of properties of congruences.

Chapter VIII deals with Exponential Diophantine Equations in three sections 8.1, 8.2 and 8.3.

Section 8.1

Exploration of solutions for an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$

Section 8.2

Tactics of achieving non-negative integer solutions to an Exponential Equation with Base as Natural Numbers $n^x + (n+1)^y = z^2$.

Section 8.3

Investigation of Solutions to an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$

Section 8.1 lists the infinite numbers of integer solutions of the equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ where p is a prime number by using the basic concept of Mathematics and the theory of divisibility.

In **Section 8.2**, an exclusive exponential Diophantine equation $n^x + (n+1)^y = z^2$ where $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the set of all-natural numbers are examined for all choices of two exponents x and y such that their sum x + y = 1,2,3,4 in order to discover integral solutions by using inspiring fundamental concepts of Mathematics.

In **Section 8.3**, the Diophantine equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ is established and results are analyzed for the prime triplets where p is of the form 4n + 1 or 4n + 3 and the powers of primes are either 1 or 2.

In **Chapter IX**, the application of linear Diophantine equation in chemistry is displayed.

Section 9.1

Usage of Linear Diophantine Equation in the Resolution of Molecular Formulae for Various Chemical Substances.

Section 9.1 examines the application of the linear Diophantine equation with certain constraints in the determination of the chemical molecular formulas for three distinct compounds and its effectiveness.

Chapter - II

Exploration of New Sequences and their Characteristics

CHAPTER - II

Exploration of New Sequences and their Characteristics

This chapter consists of two sections 2.1 and 2.2

In Section 2.1, two peculiar sequences named as Cheldhiya sequence and Cheldhiya Companion sequence are discovered. General formula for Cheldhiya sequence is enumerated by using the special property called as normalization of the matrix. Also, few theorems involving these sequences are elucidated.

In Section 2.2, four novel sequences named as Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are discovered by employing the general solutions (x, y) to the worldwide equation called as Pell equation for two discrete non-zero square-free integers $d = k^2 + 2$, $d = k^2 - 2$ where $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$. Also, the recurrence relations, the general formulae for all sequences and some theorems interrelated to all these sequences are invented by exploiting basic perceptions of matrices.

2.1 Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences

The Pell Equation is a quadratic Diophantine equation of the form $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ where d is a positive square-free integer. The equation $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ has infinitely many solutions whereas the negative Pell equation $x^2 - dy^2 = -1$ does not always have a solution. In this section, the process of developing new sequences named as Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion sequences by using sequence of solutions to the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for certain d and few theorems based on these sequences are explained as follows.

The y values of the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer d can be generally sequenced as $0, 1, 2k, 4k^2 + 1, 8k^3 + 4k$, etc called as **Cheldhiya** sequence. The nth term of this sequence is generalized by the recurrence relation

$$y_n = 2ky_{n-1} + y_{n-2}, k = 1,2,3,..., n \ge 1.$$

with initial values $y_0 = 0$, $y_1 = 1$.

The x values of the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer d can be generally sequenced as $1, k, 2k^2 + 1, 4k^3 + 3k$, etc called as **Cheldhiya Companion Sequence.** The nth term of this sequence is generalized by the recurrence relation

$$x_n = 2kx_{n-1} + x_{n-2}, k = 1, 2, 3, ..., n \ge 1$$

with initial values $x_0 = 1$, $x_1 = k$.

Here k and d can be related as $d = k^2 + 1$ where k indicates the order of the sequence while n indicates the number of terms in the kth order sequence.

Define the Cheldhiya sequence matrix as

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$y \begin{pmatrix} y_1 \\ y_0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 1 \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_2 \\ y_1 \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

$$\mathbf{y} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_2 \\ \mathbf{y}_1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2k \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 4k^2 + 1 \\ 2k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_3 \\ \mathbf{y}_2 \end{pmatrix}$$

In general,

$$y \begin{pmatrix} y_n \\ y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} \\ y_n \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem 2.1

If $y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Cheldhiya sequence matrix, then

(i)
$$y^n = \begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} & y_n \\ y_n & y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix}$$
 for all $n \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

(ii)
$$y^n \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+n} \\ y_{k+n-1} \end{pmatrix}$$
 for all $n, k \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

Proof:

This theorem can be proved by using the principle of mathematical induction on n.

(i) Since $y_0 = 0$, $y_1 = 1$, $y_2 = 2k$, the exclusive Cheldhiya sequence matrix is interpreted by

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} y_2 & y_1 \\ y_1 & y_0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Therefore, the theorem is valid for n = 1.

Assume that the result is true for n = k.

That is

$$\mathbf{y}^k = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} & y_k \\ y_k & y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathbf{y}^{k+1} = \mathbf{y}^k \mathbf{y} = \begin{pmatrix} 2ky_{k+1} + y_k & y_{k+1} \\ 2ky_k + y_{k-1} & y_k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+2} & y_{k+1} \\ y_{k+1} & y_k \end{pmatrix}$$

Thus, the theorem is valid for n = k + 1.

Hence, the conclusion of the theorem is perceived by $y^n = \begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} & y_n \\ y_n & y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix}$

(ii) Since,

$$y \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} \\ y_k \end{pmatrix}$$

the theorem is valid for n = 1.

Assume that the theorem is true for n = t.

That is,

$$\mathbf{y}^t \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_k \\ \mathbf{y}_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_{k+t} \\ \mathbf{y}_{k+t-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now, consider

$$\mathbf{y}^{t+1} \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \mathbf{y} \cdot \mathbf{y}^t \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix}$$
$$= \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_{t+1} & y_t \\ y_t & y_{t-1} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} \\ y_k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+t+1} \\ y_{k+t} \end{pmatrix}$$

Hence,

$$\mathbf{y}^n \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_k \\ \mathbf{y}_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_{k+n} \\ \mathbf{y}_{k+n-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem 2.2 Generalization of Cheldhiya sequence

If $y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Cheldhiya sequence matrix, then the nth term of the Cheldhiya

Sequence is generalized by

$$y_n = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+1}} \left[\left(k + \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n - \left(k - \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n \right]$$
 where $n = 0,1,2,3,...$

Proof:

Given

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

The two eigenvalues of the above matrix can be derived from the characteristic equation

$$|y - \lambda I| = 0$$

as
$$\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$$
 and $\lambda_2 = k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$.

The eigenvectors of y are given by

$$(\nabla - \lambda I)V = 0$$

which implies that

$$\begin{pmatrix} 2k - \lambda & 1 \\ 1 & -\lambda \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} v_1 \\ v_2 \end{pmatrix} = 0 \tag{2.1}$$

Case 1: If $\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$, then one of the eigen vector of y is performed from (2.1)

by

$$V_1 = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix}$$

Case 2: If $\lambda_2 = k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$, then the other eigen vector of y is computed from (2.1)

by

$$V_2 = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_2 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix}$$

If the Diagonal matrix of y is given by

$$D = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1 & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_2 \end{pmatrix}, \text{ then } D^n = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1^n & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_2^n \end{pmatrix}$$

Let the Normalized eigenvector matrix be

$$N = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_1}^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_2}^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_1}^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_2}^2}} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now, by applying theorem (2.1) the orthogonal transformation of the symmetric matrices

$$y^n = ND^nN^T$$

can be established by

$$\begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} & y_n \\ y_n & y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_1^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_2^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_1^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_2^2}} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1^n & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_2^n \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_1^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_2^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_1^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1+\lambda_2^2}} \end{pmatrix}^T$$

Simplifying the right-hand side of the equation and equating the (1,2)th entry on both sides, the generalized form of Cheldhiya sequence is estimated by

$$y_n = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+1}} \left[\left(k + \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n - \left(k - \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n \right]$$
 where $n = 0,1,2,3,...$

Remark:

The above identity can also be written as $y_n = \frac{{\lambda_1}^n - {\lambda_2}^n}{{\lambda_1} - {\lambda_2}}$ where n = 0,1,2,3,...

Theorem 2.3

If $\{y_n\}$ is the Cheldhiya sequence, then the sum of its first n terms is given by

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

Proof:

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \sum_{m=0}^{n-1} \left(\frac{\lambda_1^m - \lambda_2^m}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \sum_{m=0}^{n-1} (\lambda_1^m - \lambda_2^m)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\frac{1 - \lambda_1^n}{1 - \lambda_1} - \frac{1 - \lambda_2^n}{1 - \lambda_2} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\frac{-(\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n) - (\lambda_1 \lambda_2^n - \lambda_1^n \lambda_2) + (\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}{(1 - \lambda_1)(1 - \lambda_2)} \right)$$

$$= \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

Hence,

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

Theorem 2.4

If $G(x) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} y_n x^n$ is the Generating function, then the corresponding function for Cheldhiya Sequence is $G(x) = \frac{x}{1-2kx-x^2}$

Proof:

$$G(x) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} y_n x^n$$

$$= y_0 x^0 + y_1 x + \sum_{n=2}^{\infty} y_n x^n$$

$$= x + \sum_{n=2}^{\infty} (2ky_{n-1} + y_{n-2}) x^n$$

$$= x + 2kx G(x) + x^2 G(x)$$

Hence,

$$G(x) = \frac{x}{1 - 2kx - 2}$$

Theorem 2.5

If y_n is the nth term of the Cheldhiya sequence, then $y_n^2 - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = (-1)^{n-r}y_r^2$

Proof:

$$y_{n}^{2} - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right)^{2} - \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n-r} - \lambda_{2}^{n-r}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right) \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n+r} - \lambda_{2}^{n+r}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(-2(\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2}}\right)^{r} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{2}}{\lambda_{1}}\right)^{r}\right)$$

$$= \frac{(-1)^{n}}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(-2 + \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2}}\right)^{r} + \left(\frac{\lambda_{2}}{\lambda_{1}}\right)^{r}\right)$$

$$= \frac{(-1)^{n}}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left[\frac{(\lambda_{1}^{r} - \lambda_{2}^{r})^{2}}{(\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{r}}\right]$$

$$= (-1)^{n-r}y_{r}^{2}$$

Hence,

$$y_n^2 - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = (-1)^{n-r}y_r^2$$

Theorem 2.6

If $\{x_n\}$ and $\{y_n\}$ are Cheldhiya Companion sequence and Cheldhiya sequence respectively, then

(i)
$$x_n = y_{n-1} + ky_n, n \ge 1$$

(ii)
$$x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2(k^2+1)} (x_{2n-1} + k x_{2n})$$

(iii)
$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{x_n}{y_n} = \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$$

$$(iv) x_n + ky_n = y_{n+1}$$

(v)
$$y_{n+1} + y_{n-1} = 2x_n$$

(vi)
$$\frac{1}{k^2+1}(x_{n+1}+x_{n-1})=2y_n$$

Proof:

(i) Define the Cheldhiya Companion sequence matrix as

$$x = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Then, the characteristic roots of x are determined by $\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$,

$$\lambda_2 = k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1}.$$

Note that, $\lambda_1 \lambda_2 = -1$.

The closed form of the Cheldhiya Companion sequence is given by

$$x_n = c_1 \lambda_1^n + c_2 \lambda_2^n \tag{2.2}$$

By applying the initial values $x_0 = 1$, $x_1 = k$, the linear system of equations is evaluated by $c_1 + c_2 = 1$ and $c_1\lambda_1 + c_2\lambda_2 = k$.

Thus,
$$c_1 = \frac{\lambda_2 - k}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1}$$
 and $c_2 = \frac{k - \lambda_1}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1}$

Then, (2.2) becomes

$$x_{n} = \frac{\lambda_{2} - k}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \lambda_{1}^{n} + \frac{k - \lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \lambda_{2}^{n}$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \left[\lambda_{1} \lambda_{2} (\lambda_{1}^{n-1} - \lambda_{2}^{n-1}) - k(\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}) \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}} \left[(\lambda_{1}^{n-1} - \lambda_{2}^{n-1}) + k(\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}) \right]$$

$$\therefore x_n = y_{n-1} + ky_n$$

(ii)
$$x_n y_n = (y_{n-1} + k y_n) y_n$$

 $= y_{n-1} y_n + k y_n^2$
 $= \frac{\lambda_1^{n-1} - \lambda_2^{n-1}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \cdot \frac{\lambda_1^{n} - \lambda_2^{n}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} + k \left(\frac{\lambda_1^{n} - \lambda_2^{n}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}\right)^2$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)^2} \left(\lambda_1^{2n-1} + \lambda_2^{2n-1} + (\lambda_1 \lambda_2)^n \left(\frac{1}{\lambda_1} + \frac{1}{\lambda_2} \right) + k \left(\lambda_1^{2n} + \lambda_2^{2n} - 2(\lambda_1 \lambda_2)^n \right) \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)^2} \left(2x_{2n-1} - 2k(-1)^n + k(2x_{2n} - 2(-1)^n) \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4(k^2 + 1)} \left(2x_{2n-1} + 2kx_{2n} \right)$$

$$\therefore x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2(k^2 + 1)} (x_{2n-1} + kx_{2n})$$

(iii)
$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{x_n}{y_n} = \lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n}{2} \cdot \frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}$$
$$= \left(\frac{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}{2}\right) \lim_{n \to \infty} \left[\frac{1 + \left(\frac{\lambda_2}{\lambda_1}\right)^n}{1 - \left(\frac{\lambda_2}{\lambda_1}\right)^n}\right]$$

Since $\lambda_2 < \lambda_1$, $\left| \frac{\lambda_2}{\lambda_1} \right| < 1$. Therefore, $\lim_{n \to \infty} \left(\frac{\lambda_2}{\lambda_1} \right)^n \to 0$.

Hence,

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{x_n}{y_n} = \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$$

(iv)
$$x_n + ky_n = \frac{\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n}{2} + k \frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$$

$$= \frac{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)(\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n) + 2k(\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n)}{2(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}$$

$$= \frac{(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1})}{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}$$

$$\therefore x_n + ky_n = y_{n+1}$$

$$(v) y_{n+1} + y_{n-1} = \frac{\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} + \frac{\lambda_1^{n-1} - \lambda_2^{n-1}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} + \lambda_1^{n-1} - \lambda_2^{n-1} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} + \frac{\lambda_1^{n} \lambda_2 - \lambda_2^{n} \lambda_1}{\lambda_1 \lambda_2} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} - \lambda_1^{n} \lambda_2 + \lambda_1 \lambda_2^{n} \right)$$

$$= \lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n$$

$$\therefore y_{n+1} + y_{n-1} = 2x_n$$
(vi)
$$\frac{1}{k^2 + 1} (x_{n+1} + x_{n-1}) = \frac{1}{2(k^2 + 1)} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} + \lambda_1^{n-1} + \lambda_2^{n-1} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(k^2 + 1)} \left[\lambda_1^n \left(\frac{\lambda_1^2 + 1}{\lambda_1} \right) + \lambda_2^n \left(\frac{\lambda_2^2 + 1}{\lambda_2} \right) \right]$$

$$= \frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\sqrt{k^2 + 1}}$$

$$= 2 \frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$$

Hence,

$$\frac{1}{k^2+1}(x_{n+1}+x_{n-1})=2y_n$$

Remark:

In the above result, it is observed that

(i)
$$c_1 = \frac{\lambda_2 - k}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1} = \frac{-\sqrt{k^2 + 1}}{-2\sqrt{k^2 + 1}} = \frac{1}{2}$$

$$c_2 = 1 - c_1 = \frac{1}{2}$$

Hence,

$$x_n = \frac{1}{2} (\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n)$$

(ii)
$$x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2} (\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n) \cdot \left(\frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}\right)$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\lambda_1^{2n} - \lambda_2^{2n}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}\right)$$
$$x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2} y_{2n}$$

Theorem 2.7

If $\{x_n\}$ is a Cheldhiya Companion sequence, then for $m \ge 1$

(i)
$$x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m})^2$$

(ii)
$$x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m+1})^2$$

Proof:

(i)
$$x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^2 + 1) = \frac{(\lambda_1^{2m-1} + \lambda_2^{2m-1})}{2} \frac{(\lambda_1^{2m+1} + \lambda_2^{2m+1})}{2} + (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{4m} + \frac{\lambda_1}{\lambda_2} + \frac{\lambda_2}{\lambda_1} + \lambda_2^{4m} \right) + (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{4m} - \left(\lambda_1^2 + \lambda_2^2 \right) + \lambda_2^{4m} \right) + (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{4m} + 2 + \lambda_2^{4m} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{2m} + \lambda_2^{2m} \right)^2$$

Hence,

$$x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m})^2$$

(ii)
$$x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{(\lambda_1^{2m} + \lambda_2^{2m})}{2} \frac{(\lambda_1^{2m+2} + \lambda_2^{2m+2})}{2} - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} (\lambda_1^{4m+2} + (\lambda_1^2 + \lambda_2^2) + \lambda_2^{4m+2}) - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} (\lambda_1^{4m+2} - 2 + \lambda_2^{4m+2})$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} (\lambda_1^{2m+1} + \lambda_2^{2m+1})^2$$

Hence,

$$x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m+1})^2$$

2.2 Invention of Four Novel Sequences and their Properties

In this section, four novel sequences named as Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are discovered. Also, the recurrence relations, the general formulae for all sequences and some theorems are invented by exploiting basic concepts of matrices.

2.2.1 Pan-San and Pan-San Buddy Sequences

The values of C and D in the universal equation $D^2 - dC^2 = 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer $d = k^2 + 2$, $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$ where \mathcal{N} is the set of all-natural numbers propagate two fresh sequences $0, k, 2k(k^2 + 1), 4k(k^2 + 1) - k, 8k(k^2 + 1)^2 - 4k(k^2 + 1)$, etc and $1, k^2 + 1, 2(k^2 + 1)^2 - 1, 4(k^2 + 1)^3 - 3(k^2 + 1)$, etc named as Pan-San sequence and Pan-San Buddy sequence respectively. The n^{th} term of the first sequence is interpreted by the recurrence relation

$$C_{n,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)C_{n-1,k} - C_{n-2,k}, \qquad k, n \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$$

where $C_{0,k} = 0$, $C_{1,k} = k$.

The nth term of the second sequence is standardized by the recurrence relation

$$D_{n,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)D_{n-1,k} - D_{n-2,k}, \quad k, n \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$$

where $D_{0,k} = 1$, $D_{1,k} = k^2 + 1$.

Define the Pan-San sequence matrix as

$$\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 + 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{1,k} \\ C_{0,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} k \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k(k^2+1) \\ k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{2,k} \\ C_{1,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{2,k} \\ C_{1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2k(k^2+1) \\ k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 4k(k^2+1)^2 - k \\ 2k(k^2+1) \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{3,k} \\ C_{2,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

More generally,

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{n,k} \\ C_{n-1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{n+1,k} \\ C_{n,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem 2.8

If $\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Pan-San sequence matrix, then the nth term of the Pan-

San sequence is generalized by

$$C_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+2}} \left[\left((k^2+1) + k\sqrt{k^2+2} \right)^n - \left((k^2+1) - k\sqrt{k^2+2} \right)^n \right] \text{ where } n \in \mathcal{W},$$

the set of all whole numbers.

Proof:

Given

$$\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 + 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

The characteristic equation $\lambda^2 - 2(k^2 + 1)\lambda + 1 = 0$ of \mathcal{M} reveals two distinct eigen

values
$$\sigma = (k^2 + 1) + k\sqrt{k^2 + 2}$$
 and $\tau = (k^2 + 1) - k\sqrt{k^2 + 2}$.

Also,
$$\lambda^2 = 2(k^2 + 1)\lambda - 1$$

$$\lambda^3 = \lambda^2 \cdot \lambda$$

$$= (4(k^{2} + 1)^{2} - 1)\lambda - 2(k^{2} + 1) = \frac{1}{k} (C_{3,k}\lambda - C_{2,k})$$

$$\Rightarrow k\lambda^{3} = C_{3,k}\lambda - C_{2,k}$$

$$\lambda^{4} = [8(k^{2} + 1)^{3} - 4(k^{2} + 1)]\lambda - [4(k^{2} + 1) - 1] = \frac{1}{k} (C_{4,k}\lambda - C_{3,k})$$

$$\Rightarrow k\lambda^{4} = C_{4,k}\lambda - C_{3,k}$$
In general, $k\lambda^{n} = C_{n,k}\lambda - C_{n-1,k}$ (2.3)

Since both σ and τ are the characteristic values, they must satisfy (2.3). Hence

$$k\sigma^{n} = (C_{n,k}\sigma - C_{n-1,k})$$
 and $k\tau^{n} = (C_{n,k}\tau - C_{n-1,k})$

The above equations provide the following expression

$$k(\sigma^n - \tau^n) = C_{n,k}(\sigma - \tau)$$

 $\Rightarrow C_{n,k} = \frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)}$

Consequently,
$$C_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+2}} \left[\left((k^2+1) + k\sqrt{k^2+2} \right)^n - \left((k^2+1) - k\sqrt{k^2+2} \right)^n \right]$$

where $n \in W$, the set of all whole numbers.

Theorem 2.9

If $\{D_{n,k}\}$ and $\{C_{n,k}\}$ are Pan-San Buddy sequence and Pan-San sequence respectively, then

(i)
$$kD_{n,k} = (k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k}$$

(ii)
$$2D_{n,k}C_{n,k} = C_{2n,k}$$

(iii)
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

(iv)
$$(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k})^2 + 1 = D_{2n-1,k}$$

(v)
$$C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2kD_{n,k}$$

(vi)
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

Proof:

(i) By using the characteristic values of the Pan-San sequence as delivered in theorem 2.7, their product is given by $\sigma\tau = 1$.

The closed form of the Pan-San Buddy sequence is specified by

$$D_{n,k} = A\sigma^n + B\tau^n \tag{2.4}$$

The fundamental values $D_{0,k}=1$, $D_{1,k}=k^2+1$ provides the subsequent system of linear equations

$$A + B = 1$$

$$A\sigma + B\tau = k^2 + 1.$$

Precisely,
$$A = \frac{(k^2+1)-\tau}{\sigma-\tau}$$
 and $B = \frac{\sigma-(k^2+1)}{\sigma-\tau}$

Thus, the specific value of $D_{n,k}$ is pointed out by

$$D_{n,k} = \frac{(k^2+1)^{-\tau}}{\sigma^{-\tau}} \sigma^n + \frac{\sigma^{-}(k^2+1)}{\sigma^{-\tau}} \tau^n$$

$$= \frac{1}{\sigma^{-\tau}} [(k^2+1)(\sigma^n - \tau^n) + \sigma \tau (\tau^{n-1} - \sigma^{n-1})]$$

$$= \frac{(k^2+1)}{k} C_{n,k} - \frac{1}{k} C_{n-1,k}$$

Consequently, $kD_{n,k} = (k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k}$

(ii) The alternative forms of the above values of A and B are epitomized by

$$A = \frac{(k^2+1)-\tau}{\sigma-\tau} = \frac{k\sqrt{k^2+2}}{2k\sqrt{k^2+2}} = \frac{1}{2}$$

$$B = 1 - A = \frac{1}{2}$$

The equivalent values of the general term of the Pan-San Buddy sequence are noted as

$$D_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2}(\sigma^n + \tau^n)$$

Hence,

$$\begin{split} D_{n,k}C_{n,k} &= \left(\frac{\sigma^n + \tau^n}{2}\right) \left(\frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)}\right) \\ &= \frac{k}{2(\sigma - \tau)} (\sigma^{2n} - \tau^{2n}) = \frac{1}{2}C_{2n,k} \end{split}$$

Hence,

$$2D_{n,k}C_{n,k} = C_{2n,k}$$

(iii)
$$\frac{D_{n+1,k}-D_{n-1,k}}{C_{n,k}} = \frac{\frac{1}{2}(\sigma^{n+1}+\tau^{n+1})-\frac{1}{2}(\sigma^{n-1}+\tau^{n-1})}{\frac{k(\sigma^{n}-\tau^{n})}{(\sigma-\tau)}}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma-\tau)}{2k} \frac{(\sigma^{n+1}+\tau^{n+1}-\sigma^{n-1}-\tau^{n-1})}{(\sigma^{n}-\tau^{n})}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma-\tau)}{2k} \frac{(\sigma^{n+1}+\tau^{n+1}-\sigma^{n}\tau-\sigma\tau^{n})}{(\sigma^{n}-\tau^{n})}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma-\tau)}{2k} (\sigma-\tau)$$
$$= 2k(k^{2}+2)$$

This implies that $D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$

(iv)
$$(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k})^2 + 1 = \left[\frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)} + \frac{k(\sigma^{n-1} - \tau^{n-1})}{(\sigma - \tau)} \right]^2 + 1$$

$$= \left\{ \frac{k}{(\sigma - \tau)} \left[\sigma^n - \tau^n + \sigma^n \tau - \sigma \tau^n \right] \right\}^2 + 1$$

$$= \left\{ \frac{k}{(\sigma - \tau)} \left[\sigma^n (1 + \tau) - \tau^n (1 + \sigma) \right] \right\}^2 + 1$$

$$= \frac{k^2}{(\sigma - \tau)^2} \left[\sigma^{2n} (1 + \tau)^2 + \tau^{2n} (1 + \sigma)^2 - 2\sigma^n \tau^n (1 + \tau) (1 + \sigma) \right] + 1$$

$$= \frac{k^2}{(\sigma - \tau)^2} \left[\sigma^{2n} + \tau^{2n} + \sigma^2 \tau^2 (\sigma^{2n-2} + \tau^{2n-2}) + 2\sigma \tau (\sigma^{2n-1} + \tau^{2n-1}) - 4(k^2 + 2) \right] + 1$$

$$= \frac{1}{4(k^2 + 2)} \left[2D_{2n,k} + 2D_{2n-2,k} + 4D_{2n-1,k} \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{4(k^2+2)} 4(k^2+2) D_{2n-1,k}$$

Hence,
$$(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k})^2 + 1 = D_{2n-1,k}$$

(v)
$$C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k} - C_{n-1,k}$$

= $2(k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - 2C_{n-1,k}$

Therefore, $C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2kD_{n,k}$

(vi)
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = \frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1}) - \frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n-1} + \tau^{n-1})$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1} - \sigma^n \tau - \sigma \tau^n]$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [\sigma^n (\sigma - \tau) - \tau^n (\sigma - \tau)]$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [(\sigma^n - \tau^n)(\sigma - \tau)]$$
$$= \frac{(2k\sqrt{k^2 + 2})^2}{2k} C_{n,k}$$

Subsequently, $D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$

2.2.2 Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate Sequences

The values of R and S in the world-wide equation $S^2 - dR^2 = 1$ for an appropriate non-zero square-free integer $d = k^2 - 2$, $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$, \mathcal{N} is the set of all natural numbers create two handsome sequences $0, k, 2k(k^2 - 1), 4k(k^2 - 1)^2 - k, 8k(k^2 - 1)^3 - 4k(k^2 - 1)$, etc and $1, k^2 - 1, 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1, 4(k^2 - 1)^3 - 3(k^2 - 1)$, etc called as Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate Sequences.

The nth term of the earlier sequence is construed by the relation

$$R_{n,k} = 2(k^2 - 1)R_{n-1,k} - R_{n-2,k}$$
, where $R_{0,k} = 0$, $R_{1,k} = k$, $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$

The nth term of the later sequence is inferred by the relation

$$S_{n,k} = 2(k^2-1)S_{n-1,k} - S_{n-2,k}, \text{ where } S_{0,k} = 1, S_{1,k} = k^2-1, \, k \in \mathcal{N}-\{1\}$$

and $n \in \mathcal{W}$.

Define the Pan-San Comrade sequence matrix as

$$\mathfrak{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathfrak{M}\begin{pmatrix} R_{1,k} \\ R_{0,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} k^2 - 1 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \\ k^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} R_{2,k} \\ R_{1,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

$$\begin{split} \mathfrak{M} \begin{pmatrix} R_{2,k} \\ R_{1,k} \end{pmatrix} &= \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \\ k^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} \\ &= \begin{pmatrix} 4(k^2 - 1)^3 - 3(k^2 - 1) \\ 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} \\ &= \begin{pmatrix} R_{3,k} \\ R_{2,k} \end{pmatrix} \end{split}$$

In general,
$$\mathfrak{M}\begin{pmatrix} R_{n,k} \\ R_{n-1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} R_{n+1,k} \\ R_{n,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

As in section 2.1, it is enabled to prove the following theorems.

Theorem 2.10

If $\mathfrak{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Pan-San Comrade sequence matrix, then the nth term of

the Pan-San Comrade Sequence is hypothesized by

$$R_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2 - 2}} \left[\left((k^2 - 1) + k\sqrt{k^2 - 2} \right)^n - \left((k^2 - 1) - k\sqrt{k^2 - 2} \right)^n \right]$$

where n = 0,1,2,3,...

Theorem 2.11

If $\{R_{n,k}\}$ and $\{S_{n,k}\}$ are Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences respectively,

then

(i)
$$kS_{n,k} = (k^2 - 1)R_{n,k} - R_{n-1,k}$$

(ii)
$$S_{n,k}R_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2}R_{2n,k}$$

(iii)
$$S_{n+1,k} - S_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 - 2)R_{n,k}$$

(iv)
$$(R_{n,k} - R_{n-1,k})^2 - 1 = S_{2n-1,k}$$

(v)
$$R_{n+1,k} - R_{n-1,k} = 2kS_{n,k}$$

(vi)
$$S_{n+1,k} - S_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 - 2)$$

Chapter - III

Diophantine Triples involving Special Sequences

CHAPTER - III

Diophantine Triples involving Special Sequences

This chapter is divided into two sections, 3.1 and 3.2.

In Section 3.1, the patterns of Diophantine triples $\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \{a_2, a_3, a_4\}, \{a_3, a_4, a_5\},$ etc reside in Cheldhiya companion sequence with splendid properties $D(\pm(k^2+1)), k \in \mathcal{N}$ are investigated.

In Section 3.2, two disparate arrangements of triples $\{\alpha, \beta, \gamma\}, \{\beta, \gamma, \delta\}, \{\gamma, \delta, \varepsilon\}$ etc where in one of each module is a Pan-San number and in the other it is a Pan-San Comrade number composed with the condition that the multiplication of any two modules added with k^2 , $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$ is again a square of an integer are explored.

3.1 The Patterns of Diophantine Triples Engross Cheldhiya Companion Sequence with Inspiring Properties

Presume that

$$a_1 = x_{2m}, a_2 = x_{2m+2}, m \in \mathcal{N}$$
 where

$$x_n = \frac{1}{2} \left(\left(k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n + \left(k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n \right), k \in \mathcal{N}$$

be any two integers such that $a_1a_2 - (k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square.

Let a_3 be another positive integer which satisfy the consequent provision

$$a_1 a_3 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi^2 \tag{3.1}$$

$$a_2 a_3 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi^2 \tag{3.2}$$

Resolving (3.1) and (3.2), the value of a_3 is attained by

$$a_3 = \frac{\phi^2 - \psi^2}{a_1 - a_2} \tag{3.3}$$

By utilizing (3.3) in (3.2), the relation to be perceived is

$$a_2\phi^2 - a_1\psi^2 = (k^2 + 1)(a_1 - a_2) \tag{3.4}$$

Create the succeeding linear alterations

$$\phi = X + a_1 T \tag{3.5}$$

$$\psi = X + a_2 T \tag{3.6}$$

Restoring the above values of ϕ and ψ in (3.4), the quadratic equation with two unknowns is estimated by

$$X^{2} - (a_{1}a_{2})T^{2} = -(k^{2} + 1)$$
(3.7)

Selecting the least solution to (3.7) as

$$X_0 = x_{2m+1}, T_0 = 1$$

and the implementation this solution in (3.5) and (3.6) endow with the relations that

$$\phi = x_{2m+1} + a_1$$

$$\psi = x_{2m+1} + a_2$$

Exchanging the above said suitable modifications in (3.3), the third element in an essential pattern which assure the postulation is specified by

$$a_3 = x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}$$

Hence,

 $\{x_{2m}, x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\}$ is a Diophantine triple with the property $D(-(k^2+1)), k \in \mathcal{N}$

Let a_4 be a new-fangled positive integer such that

$$a_2 a_4 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi_1^2 \tag{3.8}$$

$$a_3 a_4 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_1^2 \tag{3.9}$$

Subtracting (3.9) from (3.8) and make a simple computation, the significant value of a_4 is determined by

$$a_4 = \frac{{\phi_1}^2 - {\psi_1}^2}{a_2 - a_3} \tag{3.10}$$

Now, choose a_5 be a positive integer which satisfies the conditions that

$$a_3 a_5 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi_2^2 \tag{3.11}$$

$$a_4 a_5 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_2^2 \tag{3.12}$$

By exploiting a plain numerical calculation in (3.11) and (3.12), it is to be noticed that

$$a_5 = \frac{{\phi_2}^2 - {\psi_2}^2}{{a_3} - {a_4}} \tag{3.13}$$

Suppose that

$$a_4 a_6 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi_3^2 \tag{3.14}$$

$$a_5 a_6 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_3^2 \tag{3.15}$$

where $a_6 \in \mathbb{Z} - \{0\}$

Following the prior process in (3.14) and (3.15), the equivalent value of the factor a_6 in the sequence is established by

$$a_6 = \frac{{\phi_3}^2 - {\psi_3}^2}{a_4 - a_5} \tag{3.16}$$

Since the objective is to accomplish appropriate integer values for the parameters in the crucial patterns, make use of the subsequent transformations

$$\phi_1 = P_{k+1}x_{2m+1} + x_{2m} + a_2$$

$$\psi_1 = P_{k+1}x_{2m+1} + x_{2m} + a_3$$

$$\phi_2 = x_{2m} + 3x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2} + a_3$$

$$\psi_2 = x_{2m} + 3x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2} + a_4$$

$$\phi_3 = 2x_{2m} + 7x_{2m+1} + 6x_{2m+2} + a_4$$

$$\psi_3 = 2x_{2m} + 7x_{2m+1} + 6x_{2m+2} + a_5$$

where $\{P_n\} = \{2n-1\}, n \in \mathcal{N}$ is the sequence of odd numbers.

Proceeding the same mechanism as explained above from (3.8) to (3.16), the elements in the necessary patterns with the suitable property are studied by

$$a_4 = 3x_{2m} + (2 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}$$

$$a_5 = 6x_{2m} + (10 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 7x_{2m+2}$$

$$a_6 = 13x_{2m} + (26 + 4P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 21x_{2m+2}$$

Thus,

$$\{x_{2m}, x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, 3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, 3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, 6x_{2m} + (10+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},$$

$$\{3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, 6x_{2m} + (10+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 7x_{2m+2}, 13x_{2m} + (26+4P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 21x_{2m+2}\} \dots$$

are patterns of Diophantine triples concerning Cheldhiya companion sequence such that the product of any two of them decreased by $(k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square where k is a natural number.

Hence, the patterns of Diophantine triples $\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \{a_2, a_3, a_4\}, \{a_3, a_4, a_5\}$, etc in which the factors are Cheldhiya companion sequence with the property $D(-(k^2+1))$ where $k \in \mathcal{N}$ are evaluated.

Examples for the numerical replacement of the above patterns of Diophantine triples with the property $D\left(-(k^2+1)\right)$ are specified in table 3.1.

Table 3.1

k	m	$k^2 + 1$	$\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}$	$\{a_2, a_3, a_4\}$	$\{a_3, a_4, a_5\}$	$\{a_4,a_5,a_6\}$	
1	1	2	{3,17,34}	{17,34,99}	{34,99,249}	{99,249,662}	
2	1	5	{9,161,246}	{161,246,805}	{246,805,1941}	{805,1941,5246}	
3	3	10	${27379, \\ 1039681, \\ 1404494}$	${1039681, \atop 1404494, \atop 4860971}$	$ \begin{cases} 1404494, \\ 4860971, \\ 11491249 \end{cases} $	\begin{cases} 4860971, \\ 11491249, \\ 31299946 \end{cases}	

Remark:

Applying the similar procedure as enlightened above, it is pointed out the consequent patterns of Diophantine triples in which every element is a Cheldhiya companion sequence such that the product of any two of them increased by $(k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square.

$$\{x_{2m-1}, x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}\},\$$
 $\{x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}\},\$
 $\{x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}\},\$
 $\{x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}, 9x_{2m-1} + 30x_{2m} + 25x_{2m+1}\},\dots$

A small number of numerical cases for the above sequences of Diophantine triples with the property $D(k^2 + 1)$ are stated in table 3.2.

Table 3.2

k	m	$k^2 + 1$	$\{a_1,a_2,a_3\}$	$\{a_2,a_3,a_4\}$	$\{a_3,a_4,a_5\}$	$\{a_4, a_5, a_6\}$
1	1	2	{1,7,14}	{7,14,41}	{14,41,103}	{41,103,274}
2	1	5	{2,38,58}	{38,58,190}	{58,190,458}	{190,458,1238}
3	2	10	{\begin{align*} 117,4443, \\ 6002 \end{align*}	{4443,6002,} 20773	{6002,20773,} 49107	{20773,49107,} 133758

Verification of the numerical examples for all values of m is displayed by the ensuing C program.

```
#include < stdio.h >
#include < conio.h >
#include < math.h >

void main()
{
int m, ca, k, n, p;
char ch;
long long int x(int n, int k), a, b, c, d, e, f, A;
clrscr();
do
{
printf("\nEnter the value of k and m\n");
```

```
scanf("%d%d", \& k, \& m);
printf("\nEnter\ your\ choice\ 1\ or\ 2\ for\ D(-(k^2+1))\ or\ D(k^2+1)\n");
scanf("\%d", \&ca);
switch (ca)
{
case 1:
a = x(2 * m, k);
b = x(2 * m + 2, k);
A = x(2 * m + 1, k);
p = 2 * k + 1;
c = a + 2 * A + b;
d = 3 * a + (2 + 2 * p) * A + 2 * b;
e = 6 * a + (10 + 2 * p) * A + 7 * b;
f = 13 * a + (26 + 4 * p) * A + 21 * b;
break;
case 2:
a = x(2 * m - 1, k);
b = x(2 * m + 1, k);
A = x(2 * m, k);
c = a + 2 * A + b;
d = a + 4 * A + 4 * b;
e = 4 * a + 12 * A + 9 * b;
f = 9 * a + 30 * A + 25 * b;
```

```
break;
}
printf(\n(%lld,%lld,%lld),(%lld,%lld,%lld),(%lld,%lld,%lld),
       (\%lld, \%lld, \%lld), ..., a, b, c, b, c, d, c, d, e, d, e, f);
printf("\nDo\ you\ want\ to\ continue\ for\ different\ m\ and\ k\ (y/n)?\n");
ch = getche();
\{while (ch == 'y'||ch == 'Y');
getch();
}
long long int x(int n, int k)
{
long long int x[50], y;
x[0] = 1;
x[1] = k;
int i;
for (i = 2; i \le n; i + +)
x[i] = 2 * k * x[i-1] + x[i-2];
y = x[i-1];
return y;
}
```

3.2 Demonstration of Two Disparate Structures of Integer Triples Concerning Pan-San and Pan-San Comrade Numbers

Hypothesize that

$$\alpha = C_{n-1,k}, \beta = C_{n+1,k}, n \in \mathcal{N} \text{ where } C_{n,k} = 2(k^2+1)C_{n-1,k} - C_{n-2,k}, k, n \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$$

be two conflicting Pan-San numbers such that $\alpha\beta+k^2$ is a number with power raised to two.

Let γ be an additional positive integer that accomplishes the ensuing consequences

$$\alpha \gamma + k^2 = a^2 \tag{3.17}$$

$$\beta \gamma + k^2 = b^2 \tag{3.18}$$

The resolution of (3.17) and (3.18) provides the possibility of γ by

$$\gamma = \frac{a^2 - b^2}{\alpha - \beta} \tag{3.19}$$

The collaboration of (3.19) in (3.18) interprets the relationship in terms of α and β as

$$\beta a^2 - \alpha b^2 = -k^2 (\alpha - \beta) \tag{3.20}$$

To achieve the necessary condition, let us generate the following linear expansions

$$a = X - \alpha T \tag{3.21}$$

$$b = X - \beta T \tag{3.22}$$

The standard quadratic equation in X and T is projected by restoring the overhead values of a and b in (3.20) as below

$$X^2 - \alpha \beta T^2 = k^2 \tag{3.23}$$

Making a choice for the necessity of establishing (3.23) in the codes

$$X_0 = C_{n,k}, T_0 = 1$$

and enforcing these cryptographs in the previous held equations (3.21) and (3.22) vintages that

$$a = C_{n,k} - \alpha$$

$$b = C_{n,k} - \beta$$

The third element of conventional triple which pledge the assertion by swap the above appropriate outcomes of a and b in (3.19) is identified by

$$\gamma = 2k^2C_{nk}$$

Hence, it is clinched that

$$\left\{C_{n-1,k},\ C_{n+1,k},2k^2C_{n,k}\right\}$$
 is an integer triple with the property $D(k^2),k\in N-\{1\}$

Let δ be the next positive integer together with the statements that

$$\beta \delta + k^2 = c^2 \tag{3.24}$$

$$\gamma \delta + k^2 = d^2 \tag{3.25}$$

Deducting (3.25) from (3.24), the substantial value of δ is determined by

$$\delta = \frac{c^2 - d^2}{\beta - \gamma} \tag{3.26}$$

The partnership of (3.25) and (3.26) construes the succeeding bond as

$$\gamma c^2 - \beta d^2 = -k^2 (\gamma - \delta) \tag{3.27}$$

Contemplate the fresh rectilinear modifications for c and d as

$$c = X + \beta T \tag{3.28}$$

$$d = X + \gamma T \tag{3.29}$$

Reestablishing the above values of c and d in (3.27), the orthodox second- degree equation is appraised by

$$X^2 - \gamma \delta T^2 = k^2 \tag{3.30}$$

Captivating $X_0 = C_{n+1,k} - C_{n,k}$, $T_0 = 1$ and imposing them in the expressions (3.28) and (3.29) produces the selections of c and d as

$$c = C_{n+1,k} - C_{n,k} + \beta$$

$$d = C_{n+1,k} - C_{n,k} + \gamma$$

In sight of (3.26), an essential option of δ is calculated by

$$\delta = 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2 - 1)$$

Hence, $\{C_{n+1,k}, 2k^2C_{n,k}, 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2 - 1)\}$ is a required triple in Pan-San numbers in which the product of two elements in the set added with a square other than 1 is a number with exponent two.

Now, pick ε to be some other integer that meets the following requirements

$$\gamma \varepsilon + k^2 = e^2 \tag{3.31}$$

$$\delta\varepsilon + k^2 = f^2 \tag{3.32}$$

By implementing a simple analysis in (3.31) and (3.32), it is interesting to emphasize that

$$\varepsilon = \frac{e^2 - f^2}{\gamma - \delta} \tag{3.33}$$

Suppose that

$$\delta \zeta + k^2 = g^2 \tag{3.34}$$

$$\varepsilon \zeta + k^2 = h^2 \tag{3.35}$$

where $\zeta \in Z - \{0\}$

Ensuing the erstwhile course in (3.34) and (3.35), the corresponding value of the factor ζ in the sequence is predicted by

$$\zeta = \frac{g^2 - h^2}{\delta - \varepsilon} \tag{3.36}$$

Since the mission is to deliver the exact integer values for the criteria in the vital patterns, let us use the following conversions

$$e = C_{n-1,k} + 2C_{n+1,k} - 3C_{n,k} - \gamma$$

$$f = C_{n-1,k} + 2C_{n+1,k} - 3C_{n,k} - \delta$$

$$g = 2C_{n-1,k} + 6C_{n+1,k} - 7C_{n,k} + \delta$$

$$h = 2C_{n-1,k} + 6C_{n+1,k} - 7C_{n,k} + \varepsilon$$

and subsequently the elements with the requisite forms of triples by the relevant resource in the same structure as outlined above are analyzed by

$$\varepsilon = 2C_{n-1,k} + 7C_{n+1,k} + 4C_{n,k}(k^2 - 2)$$

$$\zeta = 6C_{n-1,k} + 22C_{n+1,k} + 6C_{n,k}(k^2 - 4)$$

Accordingly,

$$\begin{split} & \big\{ C_{n-,k}, \ C_{n+1,k}, 2k^2C_{n,k} \big\}, \big\{ C_{n+1,k}, 2k^2C_{n,k}, 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2-1) \big\}, \\ & \big\{ 2k^2C_{n,k}, 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2-1), 2C_{n-1,k} + 7C_{n+1,k} + 4C_{n,k}(k^2-2) \big\}, \\ & \big\{ 3C_{n+1,k} + 2C_{n,k}(k^2-1), 2C_{n-1,k} + 7C_{n+1,k} + 4C_{n,k}(k^2-2), 6C_{n-1,k} + 2C_{n+1,k} + 6C_{n,k}(k^2-4) \big\}, \text{ etc} \end{split}$$

are shapes of triples concerning Pan-San sequence whereas the multiplication of two barebones upgraded by k^2 is a perfect square where k is a natural number other than 1. Hence, the patterns of integer triples $\{\alpha, \beta, \gamma\}, \{\beta, \gamma, \delta\}, \{\gamma, \delta, \varepsilon\}$ etc in which the factors filling the above proclamation are assessed.

Elucidations for the numerical replacements of the above patterns of triples are demarcated in table 3.3.

Table 3.3

k	n	$\{lpha,oldsymbol{eta},oldsymbol{\gamma}\}$	$\{oldsymbol{eta},oldsymbol{\gamma},oldsymbol{\delta}\}$	$\{\gamma, \delta, \varepsilon\}$	$\{oldsymbol{\delta}, oldsymbol{arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\zeta}\}$
2	2	{20,1960,1584}	{1960,1584,7068}	{1584,7068,15344}	{7068,15344,43240}
3	1	{3,1197,1080}	{1197,1080,4551}	{1080,4551,10065}	{4551,10065,28152}
4	1	{4,4620,4352}	{4620,4352,17940}	{4352,17940,39964}	{17940,39964,111456}

Remark:

By smearing the identical technique as above, the following proposals of triples in which every component belong to Pan-San Comrade sequence such that the product of any two components enlarged by k^2 is a number with exponent two are designated.

$$\big\{R_{n-,k},\;R_{n+1,k},2k^2R_{n,k}\big\},\quad \big\{R_{n+1,k},2k^2R_{n,k},3R_{n+1,k}+2R_{n,k}(k^2+1)\big\},$$

$$\begin{split} & \big\{ 2k^2R_{n,k}, 3R_{n+1,k} + 2R_{n,k}(k^2+1), 2R_{n-1,k} + 7R_{n+1,k} + 4R_{n,k}(k^2+2) \big\}, \\ & \big\{ 3R_{n+1,k} + 2R_{n,k}(k^2+1), 2R_{n-1,k} + 7R_{n+1,k} + 4R_{n,k}(k^2+2), \\ & \qquad \qquad 6R_{n-1,k} + 22R_{n+1,k} + 6R_{n,k}(k^2+4) \big\} \end{split}$$
 where $R_{n,k} = 2(k^2-1)R_{n-1,k} - R_{n-2,k}$ and $R_{0,k} = 0, R_{1,k} = k$, $k \in \mathcal{N} - \{1\}$.

A limited number of numerical cases for the above sequences of triples are offered in table 3.4.

Table 3.4

k	n	$\{lpha,oldsymbol{eta},oldsymbol{\gamma}\}$	$\{oldsymbol{eta}, oldsymbol{\gamma}, oldsymbol{\delta}\}$	$\{\gamma, \delta, \varepsilon\}$	$\{oldsymbol{\delta}, oldsymbol{arepsilon}, oldsymbol{\zeta}\}$	
2	2	{12,408,560}	{408,560,1924}	{560,1924,4560}	{1924,4560,12408}	
3	1	{3,765,864}	{765,864,3255}	{864,3255,7473}	{3255,7473,20592}	
4	1	{4,3596,3840}	{3596,3840,14868}	{3840,14868,33820}	{14868,33820,93536}	

Substantiation of the numerical examples is unveiled by the subsequent C program.

```
#include < stdio.h >
#include < conio.h >
#include < math.h >

void main()
{
int ca, n, k;
char ch;
long long int C(int n, int k), a, b, c, d, e, f, int R(int n, int k);
```

```
clrscr();
do
{
printf("\nEnter the value of k and n\n");
scanf("%d%d", &k, &n);
printf("\nEnter your choice 1 or 2 for Pan − San or Pan −
   San Comrade Sequence\n");
scanf("\%d", \&ca);
switch (ca)
{
case 1:
a = C(n - 1, k);
b = C(n+1,k);
c = 2 * k * k * C(n, k);
d = 3 * b + 2 * C(n, k) * (k * k - 1);
e = 7 * b + 2 * a + 4 * C(n, k) * (k * k * -2);
f = 6 * a + 22 * b + 6 * C(n,k) * (k * k - 4);
break;
case 2:
a = R(n-1,k);
b = R(n+1,k);
c = 2 * k * k * R(n, k);
d = 3 * b + 2 * R(n, k) * (k * k + 1);
```

```
e = 7 * b + 2 * a + 4 * R(n,k) * (k * k + 2);
f = 6 * a + 22 * b + 6 * R(n, k) * (k * k * +4);
break;
}
printf("\n(%lld,%lld,%lld),(%lld,%lld,%lld),(%lld,%lld),
       (\%lld, \%lld, \%lld), ..., a, b, c, b, c, d, c, d, e, d, e, f);
printf("\nDo\ you\ want\ to\ continue\ for\ different\ n\ and\ k\ (y/n)?\n");
ch = getche();
\{while (ch == 'y'||ch == 'Y');
getch();
}
long long int C(int n, int k)
{
long long C[50], y;
C[0] = 0;
C[1] = k;
int i;
for(i = 2; i \le n; i + +)
C[i] = 2 * (k * k + 1) * C[i - 1] - C[i - 2];
y = C[i-1];
return y;
}
long long R(int n, int k)
```

```
{
long long R[50], y;
R[0] = 0;
R[1] = k;
int i;
for(i = 2, i <= n; i + +)
R[i] = 2 * (k * k - 1) * R[i - 1] - R[i - 2];
y = R[i - 1];
return y;
}
```

Chapter - IV

Artwork of Integer Quadruple and Quintuple with Unique Properties

CHAPTER - IV

Artwork of Integer Quadruple and Quintuple with Unique Properties

This chapter comprises two sections, section 4.1 and 4.2.

In Section 4.1, an elegant non-zero distinct integer quadruple (a, b, c, d) in which addition of any three of them is a cubical integer is determined by exploiting the general solutions to a meticulous cubic Diophantine equation.

In Section 4.2, an incomparable integer quintuple (p, q, r, s, t) in such a way that the components with the renowned property in algebra named as arithmetic progression with the postulation that the addition of three consecutive terms shows a perfect square is established.

4.1 Fabrication of Gorgeous Integer Quadruple

Let a, b, c, d be four non-zero distinct integers such that addition of any three of them is a perfect cube.

Consider

$$a+b+c=p^3 (4.1)$$

$$a+b+d=q^3 (4.2)$$

$$a + c + d = r^3 \tag{4.3}$$

$$b + c + d = s^3 \tag{4.4}$$

together with the following condition

$$3(a+b+c+d) = (p+q+r+s)z^{3}$$
(4.5)

Solving the system of equations from (4.1) to (4.4), the corresponding values of a, b, c, d are pointed out by

$$a = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + q^3 + r^3 - 2s^3) \tag{4.6}$$

$$b = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + q^3 + s^3 - 2r^3) \tag{4.7}$$

$$c = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + r^3 + s^3 - 2q^3) \tag{4.8}$$

$$d = \frac{1}{3}(q^3 + r^3 + s^3 - 2p^3) \tag{4.9}$$

Adding (4.6), (4.7), (4.8) and (4.9), an interesting combination is enumerated by

$$3(a+b+c+d) = p^3 + q^3 + r^3 + s^3$$
(4.10)

Comparison of (4.5) and (4.10) provides that

$$(p+q+r+s)z^3 = p^3 + q^3 + r^3 + s^3$$
(4.11)

Employing the following linear transformations

$$p = x + 2y, q = 2x + y, r = 2y - x, s = y - 2x$$

where x and y are non-zero integers, from (4.6) to (4.9) gives

$$a = 8x^3 + 6xy^2 + 5y^3 (4.12)$$

$$b = x^3 + 6x^2y + 12xy^2 - 2y^3 (4.13)$$

$$c = -8x^3 - 6xy^2 + 5y^3 (4.14)$$

$$d = -x^3 + 6x^2y - 12xy^2 - 2y^3 (4.15)$$

Substitution of the same transformations reduce (4.11) to the quadratic equation with three unknowns as

$$6x^2 + 3y^2 = z^3 (4.16)$$

Applying three different procedures of solving (4.16), the determination of an attractive integer quadruple satisfying the condition that the sum of any three quantities is a cubical integer is explained as follows.

Procedure (i):

The choice of $z = 6m^2 + 3n^2$ where $m, n \in \mathbb{Z} - \{0\}$ leads (4.16) to

$$(\sqrt{6}x)^2 + (\sqrt{3}y)^2 = ((\sqrt{6}m)^2 + (\sqrt{3}n)^2)^3$$

which implies that

$$(\sqrt{6}x + i\sqrt{3}y)(\sqrt{6}x - i\sqrt{3}y) = ((\sqrt{6}m + i\sqrt{3}n)(\sqrt{6}m - i\sqrt{3}n))^3$$

Escalating the right-hand side of the above equation and equating real and imaginary parts on both the sides, it is to be noted that

$$x = 6m^3 - 9mn^2$$
$$y = 18m^2n - 3n^3$$
$$z = 6m^2 + 3n^2$$

Substituting the above values of x, y, z in (4.12), (4.13), (4.14) and (4.15), the values of a, b, c, d satisfying our assumption are deliberated by

$$a = 8(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2}(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})$$

$$+5(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$b = (6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{2}(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})$$

$$+12(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2}) \times (18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2} - 2(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$c = -8(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} - 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2}$$

$$+5(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$d = -(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{2}(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})$$

$$-12(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2}) \times (18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2} - 2(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

Some numerical examples satisfying the hypothesis are specified in table 4.1.

Table 4.1

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	1	12609	-14067	21141	2187	27 ³	93	333	213
2	1	2715525	1456542	569565	-2025378	168 ³	129 ³	108 ³	93
3	2	165419721	9726264	104580288	-107228664	654 ³	408³	546 ³	192 ³

Procedure (ii):

Treating (4.16) as

$$6x^2 + 3y^2 = 1^2 \cdot z^3 (4.17)$$

Assuming that

$$z = \left(\sqrt{6}m\right)^2 + \left(\sqrt{3}n\right)^2$$

and re-establish 1 by

$$1 = \frac{(\sqrt{6} + i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6} - i\sqrt{3})}{9}$$

in (4.17), it becomes

$$(\sqrt{6}x)^{2} + (\sqrt{3}y)^{2} = \left(\frac{(\sqrt{6} + i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6} - i\sqrt{3})}{9}\right)^{2} \cdot \left((\sqrt{6}m)^{2} + (\sqrt{3}n)^{2}\right)^{3}$$

which is equivalent to

$$\left(\sqrt{6}x + i\sqrt{3}y\right)\left(\sqrt{6}x - i\sqrt{3}y\right) = \left(\frac{(\sqrt{6} + i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6} - i\sqrt{3})}{9}\right)^{2} \cdot \left(\left(\sqrt{6}m + i\sqrt{3}n\right)\left(\sqrt{6}m - i\sqrt{3}n\right)\right)^{3}$$

$$(4.18)$$

Equating the positive parts on both sides of (4.18) and comparing the like terms, it is examined that

$$x = 2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3$$

$$y = 8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3$$

In view of (4.12), (4.13), (4.14) and (4.15), the options of a, b, c, d are estimated by

$$a = 8(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times \\$$

$$(8m^3+6m^2n-12mn^2-n^3)^2+5(8m^3+6m^2n-12mn^2-n^3)^3$$

$$b = (2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3})^{3} + 6(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3})^{2} \times$$

$$(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3}) + 12(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3}) \times$$

$$(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{2} - 2(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{3}$$

$$c = -8(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3})^{3} - 6(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3}) \times$$

$$(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{2} + 5(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{3}$$

$$d = -(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3})^{3} + 6(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3})^{2} \times$$

$$(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3}) - 12(2m^{3} - 12m^{2}n - 3mn^{2} + 2n^{3}) \times$$

$$(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{2} - 2(8m^{3} + 6m^{2}n - 12mn^{2} - n^{3})^{3}$$

Some numerical examples satisfying the propositions are specified in table 4.2.

Table 4.2

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	1	-10709	-739	10719	2187	(-9) ³	(-21) ³	13 ³	233
2	1	19683	-1771470	2480787	1751058	90 ³	(-9) ³	162 ³	135 ³
3	2	-55002032	-46632952	105976512	94647096	162 ³	(-192) ³	526 ³	536 ³

Procedure (iii):

Consider an alternative solution to (4.16) as

$$x = \frac{1}{\sqrt{6}}(k^3 + kl^2)$$

$$y = \frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}(l^3 + lk^2)$$

$$z = k^2 + l^2$$

Case (i):

Since the target is to evaluate integral values for the variables, it is observed that the subsequent two parametric choices of $k = \sqrt{6}m$ and $l = \sqrt{3}n$ provides the values of x and y in integers.

Then, the integral solutions to (4.16) are calculated by

$$x = 6m^3 + 3mn^2$$

$$y = 3n^3 + 6nm^2$$

$$z = 6m^2 + 3n^2$$

Substituting the above quantities in (4.12), (4.13), (4.14) and (4.15), the appropriate values of a, b, c, d are discovered by

$$a = 1728m^{9} + 3888m^{7}n^{2} + 1080m^{6}n^{3} + 3240m^{5}n^{4} + 1620m^{4}n^{5}$$
$$+1188m^{3}n^{6} + 810m^{2}n^{7} + 162mn^{8} + 135n^{9}$$

$$b = 216m^{9} + 1296m^{8}n + 2916m^{7}n^{2} + 1512m^{6}n^{3} + 4050m^{5}n^{4}$$
$$+324m^{4}n^{5} + 1971m^{3}n^{6} - 162m^{2}n^{7} + 324mn^{8} - 54n^{9}$$

$$c = -1728m^9 - 3888m^7n^2 + 1080m^6n^3 - 3240m^5n^4 + 1620m^4n^5$$
$$-1188m^3n^6 + 810m^2n^7 - 162mn^8 + 135n^9$$

$$d = -216m^{9} + 1296m^{8}n - 2916m^{7}n^{2} + 1512m^{6}n^{3} - 4050m^{5}n^{4}$$
$$+324m^{4}n^{5} - 1971m^{3}n^{6} - 162m^{2}n^{7} - 324mn^{8} - 54n^{9}$$

Some numerical examples satisfying our assumption are précised in table 4.3.

Table 4.3

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	1	13851	12393	-6561	-6561	27 ³	27 ³	93	93
2	1	1594323	1062882	-1397493	-196830	108 ³	135 ³	0^3	(-81) ³
3	2	94298688	75611448	-71299008	-22712184	462 ³	528 ³	66 ³	(-264) ³

Case (ii):

As in case (i), the single parametric choices of $k = \sqrt{6}t$ and $l = \sqrt{3}t$ offers the values of x and y in integers.

Thus,

$$x = 9t^{3}$$

$$y = 9t^3$$

$$z = 9t^2$$

Substituting the above magnitudes in (4.12), (4.13), (4.14) and (4.15), it is determined by

$$a = 13851 t^9$$

$$b = 12393 t^9$$

$$c = -6561 t^9$$

$$d = -6561 t^9$$

Some numerical examples satisfying the hypothesis are exemplified in table 4.4.

Table 4.4

k	а	b	с	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	13851	12393	-6561	-6561	27³	27³	93	(-9) ³
2	7091712	6345216	-3359232	-3359232	216 ³	216 ³	723	(-72) ³
3	272629233	243931419	-129140163	-129140163	729 ³	729 ³	243³	(-243) ³

The C Program for numerical examples satisfying our hypotheses are illustrated below.

```
\label{eq:linear_conion} \begin{split} &\#include < stdio.\,h > \\ &\#include < math.\,h > \\ &void\ main() \\ &\{ & char\ ch; \\ & int\ m,n,ca; \\ & signed\ long\ int\ x,y,a,b,c,d,cup,cuq,cur,cus,cup1,cuq1,cur1,cus1,p,q,r,s; \\ & clrscr(); \\ & do \\ &\{ & printf("\nEnter\ m\ and\ n\ values\n"); \\ & scanf("\%d\%d",\&m,\&n); \\ & printf("\nEnter\ your\ choice\ case\ 1\ or\ 2\ or\ 3\ or\ 4\n"); \end{split}
```

```
scanf("\%d", \&ca);
switch(ca)
{
case 1:
x = (6 * m * m * m) - (9 * m * n * n);
y = (18 * m * m * n) - (3 * n * n * n);
break;
case 2:
x = (2 * m * m * m) - (12 * m * m * n) - (3 * m * n * n) + (2 * n * n * n);
y = (8 * m * m * m) + (6 * m * m * n) - (12 * m * n * n) - (n * n * n);
break;
case 3:
x = (6 * m * m * m) + (3 * m * n * n);
y = (3 * n * n * n) + (6 * n * m * m);
break;
case 4:
x = 9 * m * m * m;
y = 9 * m * m * m;
break;
}
a = (8 * x * x * x) + (6 * x * y * y) + (5 * y * y * y);
b = (x * x * x) + (6 * x * x * y) + (12 * x * y * y) - (2 * y * y * y);
c = (-8 * x * x * x) - (6 * x * y * y) + (5 * y * y * y);
```

```
d = -(x * x * x) + (6 * x * x * y) - (12 * x * y * y) - (2 * y * y * y);
cup = a + b + c;
cuq = a + b + d;
cur = a + c + d;
cus = b + c + d;
if(cup < 0)
{
cup1 = -1 * cup;
p = pow(cup1,1.0/3.0);
}
else
{
p = pow(cup, 1.0/3.0);
}
If(p == 0)
p = 0;
else
p + +;
if(cup < 0)
p = -p;
if(cuq < 0)
{
cuq1 = -1 * cuq;
```

```
q = pow(cuq1,1.0/3.0);
}
else
{
q = pow(cuq, 1.0/3.0);
}
If(q == 0)
q = 0;
else
q + +;
if(cuq < 0)
q = -q;
if(cur < 0)
{
cur1 = -1 * cur;
p = pow(cur1, 1.0/3.0);
}
else
{
r = pow(cur, 1.0/3.0);
}
If(r == 0)
r = 0;
```

```
else
r + +;
if(cur < 0)
r = -r;
if(cus < 0)
{
cus1 = -1 * cus;
s = pow(cus1, 1.0/3.0);
}
else
{
s = pow(cus, 1.0/3.0);
}
if(s == 0)
s = 0;
else
s + +;
if(cus < 0)
s = -s;
printf("\n = \%d, n = \%d, a = \%ld, b = \%ld, b = \%ld, c = \%ld,
       d = %ld \setminus n", m, n, a, b, c, d);
printf("\na + b + c = (\%ld)^3, a + b + d = (\%ld)^3, a + c + d = (\%ld)^3,"
       "b + c + d = (%ld)^3", p, q, r, s);
```

```
printf("Do\ you\ want\ to\ continue\ (y/n)?"); ch = getche(); while\ (ch == 'Y' \mid\mid ch == 'y'); getch();
```

4.2 Incomparable Integer Quintuple in Arithmetic Progression with Prominent Condition

Presume that p, q, r, s, t be five non-zero separate integers such that the elements in the quintuple (p, q, r, s, t) materialize in Arithmetic Progression.

To symbolize this proclamation, let a and d be two non-zero integers such that

$$p = a - 2d$$
, $q = a - d$, $r = a$, $s = a + d$, $t = a + 2d$

Consider that the sum of three consecutive elements in the already assumed quintuple is a square of an integer.

The above declaration is replicated by the subsequent equations

$$p + q + r = 3a - 3d = \varphi^2 \tag{4.19}$$

$$q + r + s = 3a = \eta^2 \tag{4.20}$$

$$r + s + t = 3a + 3d = \chi^2 \tag{4.21}$$

Addition of (4.19) and (4.21) endow with the proportion that

$$a = \frac{\varphi^2 + \chi^2}{6} \tag{4.22}$$

Similarly, subtraction of (4.19) from (4.21) bestow as in the succeeding fraction

$$d = \frac{\chi^2 - \varphi^2}{6} \tag{4.23}$$

Elucidation of (4.20) and (4.22) yields the following equation

$$\eta^2 = \frac{\varphi^2 + \chi^2}{2} \tag{4.24}$$

To convert the above said value of η as in integer, launch the novel conversions

$$\eta = 3\lambda, \varphi = 6\mu, \chi = 6\omega \tag{4.25}$$

These translations imitate (4.23) and (4.24) as follows

$$d = 6(\omega^2 - \mu^2) \tag{4.26}$$

$$\lambda^2 = 2(\mu^2 + \omega^2) \tag{4.27}$$

The elements in the required quintuple are making into integers with the property looking for is portrayed by the three procedures as below.

Procedure (i):

Decode the parameter λ as

$$\lambda = u^2 + v^2$$

Then, the equation (4.27) can be altered by

$$(u^{2} + v^{2})^{2} = 2(\mu^{2} + \omega^{2})$$

$$\Rightarrow (u + iv)^{2}(u - iv)^{2} = (1 + i)(1 - i)(\mu + i\omega)(\mu - i\omega)$$

Then equating real and imaginary parts after escalating and balancing positive terms on both sides, the resulting equations are revealed by

$$\mu - \omega = u^2 - v^2$$

$$\mu + \omega = 2uv$$

Resolving the above equations, the most plausible values of μ and ω are demonstrated by

$$\mu = \frac{1}{2}(u^2 - v^2 + 2uv)$$

$$\omega = \frac{1}{2}(v^2 - u^2 + 2uv)$$

The parametric values of λ , μ and ω in integers are created by selecting the options of u=2U and and v=2V as follows

$$\lambda = 4(U^{2} + V^{2})$$

$$\mu = 2(U^{2} - V^{2} + 2UV)$$

$$\omega = 2(V^{2} - U^{2} + 2UV)$$

The replacement of the above value of λ in (4.25), endow with the value of η as

$$\eta = 12(U^2 + V^2)$$

According to (4.20) and (4.26), the components in an essential quintuple are offered by

$$a = 48(U^2 + V^2)^2$$

$$d = 192UV(V^2 - U^2)$$

Subsequently, the necessary quintuple in which the elements form an Arithmetic progression is discovered by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = (48(U^2 + V^2)^2 - 384UV(V^2 - U^2),$$

$$48(U^2 + V^2)^2 - 192UV(V^2 - U^2), 48(U^2 + V^2)^2,$$

$$48(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 192UV(V^2 - U^2),$$

$$48(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 384UV(V^2 - U^2))$$

Logical postulation is checked for certain values of U and V as in table 4.5.

Table 4.5

U	V	(p,q,r,s,t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t
2	1	(3504, 2352, 1200,48, -1104)	842	60^{2}	122
5	7	(-59712, 101568, 262848, 424128, 585408)	552 ²	8882	11282
1	3	(-4416, 192, 4800, 9408, 14016)	242	120 ²	168²

Procedure (ii):

The same conversion of $\lambda = u^2 + v^2$ supplies the alternative appearance of (4.27) as

$$(u+iv)^2(u-iv)^2 = \frac{(7+i)(7-i)}{25}(\mu+i\omega)(\mu-i\omega)$$

Replicate the same course of action as mentioned in procedure (i), the corresponding values of μ and ω satisfying the double equations $7\mu - \omega = 5(u^2 - v^2)$, $\mu + 7\omega = 10uv$ are appraised by

$$\mu = \frac{1}{10} (7(u^2 - v^2) + 2uv)$$

$$\omega = \frac{1}{10}(v^2 - u^2 + 14uv)$$

The chances of λ , μ and ω in integers by picking u=10U and v=10V are produced by

$$\lambda = 100(U^{2} + V^{2})$$

$$\mu = 10(7U^{2} - 7V^{2} + 2UV)$$

$$\omega = 10(V^{2} - U^{2} + 14UV)$$

Renovate the value of λ in (4.25), the value of η is calculated by

$$\eta=300(U^2+V^2)$$

In sight of (4.20) and (4.26), the equivalent choices of a and d are pointed out by

$$a = 30000(U^{2} + V^{2})^{2}$$

$$d = -4800(6U^{4} + 6V^{4} + 7U^{3}V - 7UV^{3} - 36U^{2}V^{2})$$

Hence, the needed quintuple with desired property is exposed by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = (30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 9600(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2),$$

$$30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 + 4800(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2),$$

$$30000(U^2 + V^2)^2,$$

$$30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 - 4800(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2),$$

$$30000(U^2 + V^2)^2 - 9600(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2))$$

Presumption is verified for definite values of U and V in table 4.6.

Table 4.6

U	V	(p,q,r,s,t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t
0	1	(87600, 58800, 30000, 1200, -27600)	420 ²	300 ²	60 ²
1	2	(-56400, 346800, 750000, 1153200, 1556400)	1020 ²	1500²	1860²
1	1	(-110400, 4800, 120000, 235200, 350400)	120 ²	600 ²	8402

Procedure (iii):

Commencement of the fresh renovation $\lambda = 2A$ in (4.27) declare the same equation as

$$2A^{2} = \mu^{2} + \omega^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow A^{2} - \mu^{2} = \omega^{2} - A^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (A + \mu)(A - \mu) = (\omega + A)(\omega - A)$$

$$\Rightarrow \left(1 + \frac{\mu}{A}\right)\left(1 - \frac{\mu}{A}\right) = \left(\frac{\omega}{A} + 1\right)\left(\frac{\omega}{A} - 1\right)$$
(4.28)

Again, make use of the transformations $\frac{\mu}{A} = \theta$, $\frac{\omega}{A} = \rho$ in (4.28) produces the proportion

as

$$\frac{(1+\theta)}{(1+\rho)} = \frac{(\rho-1)}{(1-\theta)} = \frac{m}{n}, n \neq 0$$
 (4.29)

Hereafter, calculate the values of θ and ρ from (4.29) by the process of cross multiplication and then substituting these values in the ultimate transformation, it is determined by

$$A = m^2 + n^2 \Longrightarrow \lambda = 2(m^2 + n^2)$$

$$\mu = m^2 + 2mn - n^2$$

$$\omega = n^2 + 2mn - m^2$$

$$(4.30)$$

Interpretation of (4.20) and (4.26) offers the relevant values of a and d as presented in the equations scripted below.

$$a = 12(m^2 + n^2)^2$$
$$d = 48mn(n^2 - m^2)$$

Hence, the necessary quintuple in which the elements in Arithmetic progression is rendered by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = \{12(m^2 + n^2)^2 - 96mn(n^2 - m^2), 12(m^2 + n^2)^2 - 48mn(n^2 - m^2),$$

$$12(m^2 + n^2)^2, 12(m^2 + n^2)^2 + 48mn(n^2 - m^2),$$

$$2(m^2 + n^2)^2 + 96mn(n^2 - m^2)\}$$

4.7.

Supposition is authenticated for specific values of m and n in the following table

Table 4.7

m	n	(p,q,r,s,t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t
2	1	(-276, 12, 300, 588, 876)	6 ²	30^{2}	422
5	7	(-14928, 25392, 65712, 106032, 146352)	276²	4442	564 ²
1	3	(-1104, 48, 1200, 2352, 3504)	12 ²	60 ²	842

The emerging C software shows verification of the numerical samples:

```
#include < stdio.h >
#include < conio.h >
#include < math.h >
void main()
{
    char ch;
    clrscr();
    do
    {
    long long int x, u, v, m, n;
    long long int U, V, M, N, a, d, p, q, r, s, t, A, B, C, E, F, G;
    printf("\nEnter the case 1 or 2 or 3\n");
    scanf("%lld",&x);
```

```
switch(x)
{
case 1:
printf("\nEnter\ integer\ values\ for\ u\ and\ v\n");
scanf ("%lld%lld", &u, &v);
U = u * u;
V = v * v;
a = 48 * (U + V) * (U + V);
d = 192 * u * v * (V - U);
p = a - 2 * d;
q = a - d;
r = a;
s = a + d;
t = a + 2 * d;
break;
case 2:
printf("\n Enter integer values for u and v\n");
scanf ("%lld%lld",&u,&v);
U = u * u;
V = v * v;
a = 30000 * (U + V) * (U + V);
d = -4800 * (6 * U * U + 6 * V * V + 7 * U * u * v - 7 * u * v * V - 36 * U * V);
p = a - 2 * d;
```

```
q = a - d;
r = a;
s=a+d;
t = a + 2 * d;
break;
case 3:
printf("\n interger values for m and n\n");
scanf ("%lld%lld", &m, &n);
M = m * m;
N = n * n;
a = 12 * (M + N) * (M + N);
d = 48 * m * n * (N - M);
p = a - 2 * d;
q = a - d;
r = a;
s = a + d;
t=a+2*d;
break;
}
A = p + q + r;
B = q + r + s;
C = r + s + t;
E = sqrt(A);
```

```
F = sqrt(B);
G = sqrt(C);
printf("\np + q + r = \%lld = \%lld^2\nq + r + s = \%lld = \%lld^2\n
r + s + t = \%lld = \%lld^2\n, A, E, B, F, C, G);
printf("\nDo\ you\ want\ to\ continue\ for\ different\ cases\ (y/n)?");
ch = getche();
\}while\ (ch == 'y'||ch == 'Y');
getch();
```

Chapter - V

A State of the-Art of Sums, Congruence Relations and Divisibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

CHAPTER - V

A State of the-Art of Sums, Congruence Relations and Divisibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

This chapter encompasses two sections, 5.1 and 5.2.

In Section 5.1, several new-fangled identities regarding Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers enable to provide certain congruence relations for those numbers are deliberated.

In Section 5.2, divisibility properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are revealed by means of the derived congruence relations detailed in section 5.1.

5.1 Sums and Congruences of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

In this section, some novel identities concerning Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers allow to offer certain congruence relations for such numbers are reflected.

Theorem 5.1

If X is a square matrix with $X^2 = 2X + I$, then $X^n = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$ for every integer n.

Proof:

Let
$$Z[\alpha] = \{A\alpha + B; A, B \in Z\}$$
 and $Z[X] = \{AX + BI; A, B \in Z\}$

Define a function $f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[X]$ by $f(A\alpha + B) = AX + BI$.

Then f is a ring isomorphism. Moreover, it is clear that $f(\alpha) = X$ and $f(Q_m) = Q_m I$.

Therefore,
$$X^n = (f(\alpha))^n = f(\alpha^n) = f(P_n\alpha + P_{n-1}) = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$$

Corollary 5.1.1

If
$$M = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 4 \\ 1/2 & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
, then $M^n = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_n}{2} & 4P_n \\ \frac{P_n}{2} & \frac{Q_n}{2} \end{bmatrix}$.

Proof:

Since, $M^2 = 2M + I$, it follows from theorem (5.1) that

$$M^n = P_n M + P_{n-1} I$$

$$M^{n} = \begin{bmatrix} P_{n} + P_{n-1} & 4Pn \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & P_{n} + P_{n-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_{n}}{2} & 4P_{n} \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & \frac{Q_{n}}{2} \end{bmatrix}.$$

Remark:

From the fact that $f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[M]$, defined by $f(A\alpha + B) = AM + BI$ is a ring isomorphism, it is observed that

$$\alpha^{2m} - Q_m \alpha^m + (-1)^m = 0 (5.1)$$

and
$$\alpha^{2m} - 2\sqrt{2}P_m\alpha^m - (-1)^m = 0$$
 (5.2)

Applying the function f on each side of (5.1) and (5.2), the relations in matrix as mentioned in the theorem discovered are pointed out by

$$M^{2m} - Q_m M^m + (-1)^m I = 0 (5.3)$$

and
$$M^{2m} - KP_m M^m - (-1)^m I = 0$$
 (5.4)

where
$$K = f(2\sqrt{2}) = f(2\alpha - 2) = 2M - 2I = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
.

Theorem 5.2

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{i} Q_{mi+k}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i P_{mi+k}$$

Proof:

From (5.3), it is noted that

$$M^{2m} = Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I (5.5)$$

Raising n^{th} power on both sides of (5.5).

Then,
$$M^{2mn} = (Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I)^n = (Q_m M^m + (-1)^{m+1} I)^n$$

$$= \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} ((-1)^{m+1} I)^{n-i} (Q_m M^m)^i$$

$$= (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i M^{mi}$$

Therefore,
$$M^{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i M^{mi+k}$$

It comprehends from corollary 5.1.1 that

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{\ i} Q_{mi+k}$$

and $P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i P_{mi+k}$

Corollary 5.2.1

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} Q_k \ (mod \ Q_m) \tag{5.6}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} P_k \pmod{Q_m}$$
 (5.7)

for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$.

Remark:

(i) Since
$$K = 2M - 2I = M + M^{-1}$$
, $M^m K = KM^m$, $\forall m \in \mathbb{Z}$

(ii)
$$K^2 = \begin{bmatrix} 8 & 0 \\ 0 & 8 \end{bmatrix} = 8I$$
 and $\begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a & b \\ c & d \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 8c & 8d \\ a & b \end{bmatrix}$.

Theorem 5.3

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} Q_{2mi+k} + \right.$$
$$\left. \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i P_m^{2i+1} P_{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

and

$$\begin{split} P_{2mn+k} &= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i} P_{2mi+k} \, + \right. \\ &\left. \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i \, P_m^{\ 2i+1} Q_{2mi+m+k} \right\} \end{split}$$

Proof:

From (5.4), it follows that

$$M^{2m} = KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I$$

Therefore,
$$M^{2mn+k} = (KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I)^n M^k$$

$$= \left[\sum_{i=o}^n \binom{n}{i} ((-1)^m I)^{n-i} (KP_m M^m)^i\right] M^k$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \sum_{i=o}^n \binom{n}{i} (-1)^{mi} K^i P_m^{\ i} M^{mi+k}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{\sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} K^{2i} P_m^{\ 2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} K^{2i+1} P_m^{\ 2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{\sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} 8^i P_m^{\ 2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i K P_m^{\ 2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

The required results are accomplished by trading the matrices K and M on both sides and equating the same entries.

Corollary 5.3.1

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} Q_k \pmod{P_m} \tag{5.8}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} P_k \pmod{P_m}$$
 (5.9)

5.2 Divisibility Properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas Numbers

To begin, it is established two well-known theorems in a novel manner by exploiting the congruences postulated in Corollaries 5.2.1 and 5.3.1. Regarding the divisibility of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers, readers will investigate the formulae and learn how to use them efficiently to resolve problems. Thus, this section explains the fundamental divisibility for Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers.

Remark:

From the identity $2(-1)^n = Q_n P_{n-1} - Q_{n-1} P_n$, it can be seen that $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 1$ or $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 2$. Furthermore,

$$Q_n^2 - 8P_n^2 = 4(-1)^n (5.10)$$

From equation (5.8), it is seen that $Q_{8q+r} \equiv Q_r(mod12)$ and therefore $12 \nmid Q_n$, for every natural number n.

Now, some Pell-Lucas numbers identities that will be needed in the sequel are deliberated below.

$$Q_{2n} = Q_n^2 - 2(-1)^n (5.11)$$

$$Q_{3n} = Q_n (Q_n^2 - 3(-1)^n)$$
(5.12)

Theorem 5.4

The necessary and sufficient conditions for $Q_m|Q_n$ are

- (i) $m \mid n$ and
- (ii) $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer

for all $m, n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m \geq 2$.

Proof:

Presume that $Q_m|Q_n$

Suppose $m \nmid n$, then by fundamental property of divisibility, n can be expressed as $n = mq + r, 0 \le r < m$.

If q is an even integer, then q = 2s for some $s \in \mathcal{Z}$.

From (5.6), it tracks that

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_r \pmod{Q_m}$$

Since $Q_m|Q_n$, $Q_m|Q_r$. This is a contradiction since $Q_r < Q_m$ as r < m. Hence, q is an odd integer. Sustain q = 2s + 1 for some $s \in \mathcal{Z}$. So,

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Also, since $Q_m|Q_n, Q_m|Q_{m+r}$.

To prove: r = 0

Suppose r > 0. By the identity $Q_{m+r} = Q_m P_{r-1} + P_r Q_{m+1}$, the above implies that $Q_m | P_r Q_{m+1}$.

Since $(Q_m, Q_{m+1}) = 1$, it follows that $Q_m | P_r$. This is a contradiction to the fact that if r < m, then $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. As a result, it is determined that r = 0.

Thus, n = mq, with q being an odd integer.

Conversely, suppose that m|n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer,

That is, n = m(2s + 1), for some integer s. Then it is procured that,

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_m \ (mod \ Q_m)$$

This is true only when $Q_m|Q_n$.

Hence, the theorem.

Theorem 5.5

Let $m, n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m \ge 2$. Then $Q_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an even integer.

Proof:

Suppose that $Q_m|P_n$ and $m \nmid n$.

This assumption means that $n = mq + r, 0 \le r < m$ where $m \ge 2$.

If q is an odd integer, it may phrase q = 2s + 1 for some integer s.

From (5.7), it is distinguished that

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Then, $Q_m|P_{m+r}$ and hence $Q_m|8P_{m+r}$.

Then, from the identity that $8P_{m+r} = Q_mQ_{r-1} + Q_rQ_{m+1}$ then $Q_m|Q_rQ_{m+1}$. Since Q_m and Q_{m+1} are relatively prime, the only possibility is $Q_m|Q_r$. But r < m delivers $Q_r < Q_m$. So, $Q_m \nmid Q_r$. This conflict befalls as a result of our erroneous assumption about q being an odd number. Therefore, q is an even integer. Thus, it may have q = 2s for some integer s.

Now, (5.7) condenses to $P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_r \pmod{Q_m}$

Since $Q_m|P_n, Q_m|P_r$.

However, this cannot be true since r < m and hence $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. This contributes that r = 0. So, it can be concluded that n = mq, q is an even integer.

Conversely, suppose that m|n and n=2ms for some $s \in \mathcal{Z}$. Then, it is acquired from (5.7) that

$$P_n = P_{2ms} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_0 \pmod{Q_m}$$

It follows that $Q_m|P_n$.

Theorem 5.6

For all $m, n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m \geq 3$, $P_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n.

Proof:

Initially consider that $P_m|P_n$ but $m \nmid n$. Then n = mq + r with $0 \le r < m$. Now, suppose that q is an even integer, then this may be taken as q = 2s for any integer s.

Hence, (5.9) provides the succeeding identity

$$P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_r \pmod{P_m}$$

Since $P_m|P_n$, by applying the above identity, $P_m|P_r$. Since, if $0 \le r < m$ and $m \ge 3$, it leads to $P_r < P_m$. Hence, q must be an odd integer. Then q = 2s + 1, for some $s \in \mathcal{Z}$. Thus, (5.9) becomes

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_{m+r} \pmod{P_m}$$

Since $P_m|P_n$, it follows that $P_m|P_{m+r}$. By the identity, $P_{m+r}=P_{m+1}P_r+P_mP_{r-1}$, it is noted that $P_m|P_{m+1}P_r$. Due to the fact that $(P_m,P_{m+1})=1$, it is received that $P_m|P_r$

which is a contradiction. This emerges as a consequence of $P_r < P_m$ as r < m and $m \ge 3$. As a result, r = 0 and subsequently n = mq, resulting in $m \mid n$.

Conversely, pretend that m|n. Then, the conclusion is n=mq for some natural number q. As an outcome,

$$P_n = P_{mq} = \sum_{i=0}^{q} {q \choose i} P_m{}^i P_{m-1}{}^{q-i} P_i$$

Hence, it is realized that $P_m|P_n$.

Theorem 5.7

Let $r \ge 1$, be an odd number and m > 1. Then, there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$ and r is an odd number. Then $Q_{2r}|Q_n$ and $Q_m|Q_n$. Then, n=2rt and n=mk for some odd natural number t & k by theorem 5.4, this implies that $2|n \Rightarrow n=mk \Rightarrow 2|m$. It is thus obvious that m=2v, for some odd $v \in \mathcal{N}$. Since 2|n and $\frac{n}{2}$ is an odd natural number, it can be written as n=8q+s with s=2,6 and $q \ge 0$. Hence,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv Q_2, Q_6 \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$$

Similarly, it can be seen that $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$.

Since, r is an odd natural number, it is attained that $Q_{2r} \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. Then it follows that

$$Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_m x^2 \equiv 6Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$$

Moreover, $6x^2 \equiv 0.6 \pmod{12}$ and $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$, $Q_n \equiv 0 \pmod{12}$ which contradicts the fact that $Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. This concludes the proof.

Theorem 5.8

 $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$ for every $k \geq 2$ and for every odd natural number t.

Proof:

Assume that t is an odd natural number, then $t \equiv \pm 1, \pm 3, \pm 5, \pm 7 \pmod{8}$.

Moreover, it can be proved by induction that $2^k \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$ for $k \geq 2$ and $2^k t \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$.

Therefore, $2^k t = 8q$ or $2^k t = 8q \pm 4$ for $q \ge 0$. Then it seeks that

$$Q_{2^kt} = Q_{8q} \equiv Q_0 \; (mod \; P_4)$$

Or

$$Q_{2^k t} = Q_{8q \pm 4} \equiv Q_{\pm 4} \ (mod \ P_4)$$

Thus, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \; (mod \; 12), k \geq 2.$

Now, it is possible to generalize theorem as follows:

Theorem 5.9

Let m > 1, $k \ge 2$ and t be an odd natural number. Then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2$ and t is an odd natural number. Since $Q_{2^k t} | Q_n$ and $Q_m | Q_n$, there exist two odd natural numbers u and v such that $n = 2^k tu$ and n = mv by theorem (5.4). Thus, $m = 2^k r$, for some $r \in \mathcal{N}$ because $n = 2^k tu = mv$ and t, u, v are odd natural numbers. Then, it is pursued that 4 divides both m and n by the fact that $k \geq 2$. Hence, n = 8q + s with s = 0,4,8,12. Thus,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

Since $s \in \{0,4,8,12\}$, it follows that

$$Q_n \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$$

It may be showed in a similar manner that

$$Q_m \equiv 2.10 \pmod{12}$$

On the other hand, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$ by theorem (5.8).

If
$$Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2 \pmod{12}$$
, then $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 2 Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$.

Since $2x^2 \equiv 0.2.6.8 \mod (12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$, $Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \pmod {12}$, which is a contradiction to the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$.

Therefore, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 10 \; (mod \; 12)$. Then $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 10 Q_m x^2 \; (mod \; 12)$.

Since $10x^2 \equiv 0.4.6.10 \ mod(12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \ (mod\ 12),\ Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \ (mod\ 12),$ which denies the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \ (mod\ 12)$. Hence the proof.

Theorem 5.10

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for m > 1 and r > 1 and are odd numbers. Since $Q_m | Q_n$ and $Q_r | Q_n$, there exists two odd natural numbers u and v such that n = mu and n = rv.

Hence, $u = 4k \pm 1$ for some $k \ge 1$.

Therefore, $n = mu = m(4k \pm 1) = 4km \pm m$.

$$Q_n = Q_{4km\pm m} \equiv (-1)^k Q_{\pm m} \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$

i.e.,
$$Q_r Q_m \equiv \pm Q_m \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$
 (5.13)

Similarly, it is conquered that

$$Q_m Q_r \equiv \pm Q_r \pmod{Q_{2r}} \tag{5.14}$$

Suppose that $Q_m|Q_{2r}$ then $\frac{2r}{m}=$ an odd integer which is not possible. Hence $Q_m \nmid Q_{2r}$ which implies that $gcd(Q_m,Q_{2r})=2$. Then (5.13) and (5.14) yields that

$$Q_r \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2m}}{2}}$$
 and $Q_m \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2r}}{2}}$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} \le 2Q_r \pm 2$$
 and $Q_{2r} \le 2Q_m \pm 2$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} + Q_{2r} \le 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

Also, from (5.11) the inequalities derived are

$${Q_m}^2 \pm 2 + {Q_r}^2 \pm 2 \le 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

$$Q_m(Q_m-2) + Q_r(Q_r-2) \le 0,$$

which is a contradiction. This completes the proof of the theorem.

Corollary 5.10.1

There is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for any m > 1 and r > 1.

Proof:

If r > 1 and even, then ther proof follows from theorems (5.7) and (5.9).

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then it is proved in theorem (5.10).

Chapter - VI

Quadratic Diophantine Equations with Solutions as Familiar Numbers

CHAPTER - VI

Quadratic Diophantine Equations with Solutions as Familiar Numbers

This chapter consists of two sections 6.1 and 6.2.

In Section 6.1, the widespread solutions in rapports with Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers for restricted number of an unambiguous polynomial equations of degree two in two variables are exposed.

Section 6.2 unveils patterns of positive integer solutions for limited number of explicit binary quadratic equations encompassing Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers by means of the pertinent features connecting these two numbers and the notions of divisibility.

6.1 Assessment of solutions in Pell and Pell – Lucas numbers to Disparate Polynomial Equations of degree two

Needed Theorems:

Theorem [I]

If $\omega = 1 + \sqrt{2}$. Then the numbers $\pm \omega^n$, $\pm \omega^{-n}$ are the only unities of $k(\sqrt{2})$ where $k(\sqrt{2})$ is a quadratic field. See [66]

Theorem [II]

If positive integers x, y, k and the integer m with gcd(x, m) = 1 satisfy the equations $x^2 - kxy + y^2 \mp mx = 0$, then $x = u^2$ and y = uv for some positive integers u and v. If positive integers x, y, k and the integer m with gcd(y, m) = 1 satisfy the equations $x^2 - kxy - y^2 \mp my = 0$, then $y = u^2$ and x = uv for some positive integers u and v. See [82]

Theorem [III] Fundamental theorem of arithmetic

For each integer n>1, there exists primes $p_1\leq p_2\leq \cdots \leq p_r$ such that $n=p_1p_2\dots p_r$, this factorization is unique.

Theorem [IV]

If positive integers x, y, a, b, c with gcd(x, c) = 1 satisfying the equations $x^2 - axy - by^2 \pm cx = 0$, then $x = u^2$ and y = uv for some positive integers u and v.

If positive integers x, y, p, q, r with gcd(y, r) = 1 satisfying the equations $x^2 - axy - by^2 \pm cy = 0$, then $y = u^2$ and x = uv for some positive integers u and v.

Primary Results:

The n^{th} Pell number labelled by P_n is demarcated by $P_0 = 0, P_1 = 1$ and $P_n = 2P_{n-1} + P_{n-2}$ for $n \ge 2$. If α, β be the roots of the equation $x^2 - 2x - 1 = 0$, then $\alpha = 1 + \sqrt{2}, \beta = 1 - \sqrt{2}$ where $\alpha\beta = -1$ and $\alpha + \beta = 2$. In addition, it is well-known and simple to demonstrate the identities that $\alpha^n = \alpha P_n + P_{n-1}$ and $\beta^n = \beta P_n + P_{n-1}$ for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$, the set of all integers. In the other hand, it could be perceived by induction that

$$P_n^2 - 2P_n P_{n-1} - P_{n-1}^2 = (-1)^{n+1} \ \forall n \in \mathcal{Z}.$$
 (6.1)

The n^{th} Pell-Lucas number Q_n is characterized as $Q_0=Q_1=2$ and $Q_n=2Q_{n-1}+Q_{n-2}$ for $n\geq 2$. The associations between Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are agreed as follows

(i)
$$Q_n = P_n + P_{n+1}$$
 for every $n \in \mathcal{Z}$

(ii)
$$Q_n^2 - 2Q_nQ_{n-1} - Q_{n-1}^2 = 8(-1)^n$$
 for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$ (6.2)

Theorem 6.1

The necessary and sufficient condition for all non-negative integer solutions to the second-degree equation in two variables $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = (-1)^{n+1}$ is $(X,Y) = (P_n, P_{n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

If $(X,Y) = (P_n,P_{n-1})$, then from identity (6.1), it seeks that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = (-1)^{n+1}.$

Conversely suppose that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = \mp 1$ for some positive integers X and Y.

Then by theorem (I), $(Y + \alpha X)(Y + \beta X) = \pm 1 \Rightarrow (Y + \alpha X) \in k(\sqrt{2})$.

Thus, $Y + \alpha X = \alpha^n = \alpha P_n + P_{n-1}$ and hence $(X, Y) = (P_n, P_{n-1}), n \ge 1$.

Corollary 6.1.1

The feasible solutions of the quadratic polynomial equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = 1$ are specified by $(X,Y) = (P_{2m+1}, P_{2m})$ with $m \ge 0$.

Proof:

If n is odd such that n=2m+1 in theorem 6.1, then the apt integer solutions to $X^2-2XY-Y^2=1$ is obtained as $(X,Y)=(P_{2m+1},P_{2m}), m \ge 0$.

Corollary 6.1.2

Every possible solution in Pell numbers of the quadratic equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = -1$ are stated by $(X,Y) = (P_{2m}, P_{2m-1})$ with $m \ge 1$.

Proof:

If n is even such that $n=2m, m \ge 1$ in theorem 6.1, then the appropriate solutions to the equation $X^2-2XY-Y^2=-1$ are $(X,Y)=(P_{2m},P_{2m-1})$.

Theorem 6.2

The probable integer solutions to the second-degree polynomial equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$ are attained by $(X, Y) = (P_{2n+2}, P_{2n})$ with $n \ge 0$.

Proof:

Assume that $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$ for some positive integers X and Y.

Without loss of generality, suppose that X > Y.

Then,
$$\left(\frac{X-Y}{2}\right)^2 - 2\left(\frac{X-Y}{2}\right)Y - Y^2 = 1 \Rightarrow X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$$
. By corollary 6.1.1, it should have $\frac{X-Y}{2} = P_{2n+1}$ and $Y = P_{2n}$ and therefore $(X - Y, Y) = (2P_{2n+1}, P_{2n})$

Consequently, $X = P_{2n+2}$ and $Y = P_{2n}$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.3

The positive integer roots of the binary quadratic equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = -4$ are conquered by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

The proof is equivalent to Theorem 6.2.

Theorem 6.4

Let \mathcal{N} be the set of all-natural numbers and $X, Y \in \mathcal{N}$ sustaining the particular equation of the form $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 \pm X = 0$, then $X = A^2$ and Y = AB where $A, B \in \mathcal{N}$.

Proof:

If $X, Y \in \mathbb{N}$ are satisfying the corresponding equation in the statement, then it follows that $X|Y^2$ and hence $Y^2 = XZ$ for some $Z \in \mathcal{N}$.

Suppose that p|X and p|Z for some prime number p.

Then, p|Y which leads the implicit equation to $X - 2Y - Z \pm 1 = 0$

This ensure that $p \mid 1$ which is absurd.

In what follows that gcd(X, Z) = 1.

Then by theorem [III], $X = A^2$ and $Z = B^2$ for some positive integers A and B where gcd(A,B) = 1.

Hence, $Y^2 = XZ = A^2B^2 \Rightarrow Y = AB$.

Theorem 6.5

If two positive integers X, Y be such that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 \pm Y = 0$, then X = AB and $Y = A^2$ for some positive integers A and B with gcd(A, B) = 1.

Proof:

The proof is analogous to Theorem 6.4.

Corollary 6.5.1

The conceivable Pell values of X, Y in the equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + Y = 0$ are achieved by $(X, Y) = (P_{2n} P_{2n-1}, P_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$.

Corollary 6.5.2

The plausible solutions in Pell numbers to the equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 - Y = 0$ are specified by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n+1} P_{2n}, P_{2n}^2)$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.6

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$. Then $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0$ if and only if $(X, Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

Assume that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0$ where $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$

Then by theorem [II], $X = A^2$ and Y = AB for some $A, B \in \mathcal{Z}^+$

Subsequently $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + 1 = 0$

Again, by corollary 6.1.2, it is noticed that $(A, B) = (P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$

This implies that $(X,Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Conversely, if $(X,Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$, then

$$X^{2} - 2XY - Y^{2} + X = P_{2n}^{4} - 2P_{2n}^{3} P_{2n-1} - P_{2n}^{2} P_{2n-1}^{2} + P_{2n}^{2}$$
$$= P_{2n}^{2} \left\{ P_{2n}^{2} - 2P_{2n} P_{2n-1} - P_{2n-1}^{2} + 1 \right\}$$

By corollary 6.1.2, it is pursued that

$$X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0$$
.

Theorem 6.7

The sequence of several positive integer solutions for the quadradic equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 + 4X = 0$ are epitomized by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n-1}^2, P_{2n-1}P_{2n+1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

Let $X, Y \in \mathcal{Z}^+$ be such that $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 + 4X = 0$.

Then $X|Y^2$ and hence $Y^2 = XZ$ for some $Z \in \mathcal{Z}^+$.

If p|X and p|Z for some prime number p, then p|Y and also the relation X - 6Y + Z + 4 = 0 is true for all $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

Thus, p divides 4.

It is evident that, the possibility of such p is p = 2.

This condition offers that $X = 2X_1, Y = 2Y_1$ for some $X_1, Y_1 \in \mathcal{Z}^+$ and obviously the projected quadratic equation becomes $X_1^2 - 6X_1Y_1 + Y_1^2 + 2X_1 = 0$. Then $X_1|Y_1^2$ and hence $Y_1^2 = X_1Z_1$ for some $Z_1 \in \mathcal{Z}^+$.

Again, if $p|X_1$ and $p|Z_1$ for some prime number p, then $p|Y_1$ and the relation $X_1 - 6Y_1 + Z_1 + 2 = 0$ is true for all $X_1, Y_1 \in \mathcal{Z}^+$.

Clearly, the chance of such p is p = 2. This diagnosis provides that $X_1 = 2X_2$, $Y = 2Y_2$ implying that $X = 4X_1$, $Y = 4Y_1$.

These contributions state that $X_2^2 - 6X_2Y_2 + Y_2^2 + X_2 = 0$, which has no positive integer solution [98]. Hence, our assumption that X and Z have common divisors is wrong. This proposes that gcd(X,Z) = 1. Thus, by the fact that the product two coprime numbers should be a perfect square if and only if each of them is a perfect square, $X = R^2$ and $Z = S^2$ for some positive integers R and S a

By theorem 6.3, $(R,S) = (P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$ and hence $(X,Y) = (P_{2n+1}^2, P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$.

Theorem 6.8

Every solution in Pell-Lucas numbers for two dissimilar quadratic equations $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = 8$ and $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = -8$ are offered by $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n}, Q_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$ and $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n})$, $n \ge 0$ respectively.

Theorem 6.9

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{N}$, the set of natural numbers.

(i) If
$$X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 32$$
, then $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$.

(ii) If
$$X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = -32$$
, then $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n+2}, Q_{2n})$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.10

If *X*, *Y* be any two positive integers such that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + 8X = 0$, then either $(X,Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$ or $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n}), n \ge 0$.

Proof:

Consider that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + 8X = 0$ for some positive integers X and Y.

If 8|X, then $8|Y \Rightarrow X = 8A$ and Y = 8B for some A and B belong to the set of all positive integers Therefore, the original equation in two variables X and Y is converted into $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + A = 0$.

By theorem 6.5,
$$(A, B) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}P_{2n-1}) \Rightarrow (X, Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}).$$

If $8 \nmid X$, then by theorem [II], $X = A^2$ and Y = AB.

Then, the original equation becomes $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + 8 = 0$.

By applying theorem 6.8, it is concluded that

$$(A,B) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n}) \implies (X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n}) \text{ with } n \ge 0.$$

Conversely, if $(X,Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1})$, then

$$X^{2} - 2XY - Y^{2} + 8X = (8P_{2n}^{2})^{2} - 2(8P_{2n}^{2})(8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}) - (8P_{2n}P_{2n-1})^{2} + 8(8P_{2n}^{2})$$
$$= 64P_{2n}^{2}\{P_{2n}^{2} - 2P_{2n}P_{2n-1} - P_{2n-1}^{2} + 1\} = 0,$$

by the implementation of corollary 6.1.2.

Similarly, the same equation could be satisfied for $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n})$.

Theorem 6.11

Let *X* , *Y* be any two positive integers.

- (i) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 8X = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n+1}^2, 8P_{2n+1}P_{2n})$, $n \ge 0$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}^2, Q_{2n}Q_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$.
- (ii) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 + 8Y = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}, 8P_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n+1}^2)$, $n \ge 0$.
- (iii) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 8Y = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n+1}P_{2n}, 8P_{2n}^2)$, $n \ge 0$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}Q_{2n-1}, Q_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$.

Theorem 6.12

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$, the set of all positive integer. Then

(i) The positive integer solutions to the equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 + 32X = 0$ are either $(X,Y) = (8P_{2n+1}^2, 8P_{2n+1}P_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$ or $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+2}^2, Q_{2n+2}Q_{2n}), n \ge 0$

(ii) The complete solutions in Pell numbers and Pell-Lucas numbers of the equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 - 32X = 0$ are either $(X,Y) = \left(8P_{2n+2}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n+2}\right), n \ge 0 \text{ or }$ $(X,Y) = \left(Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n-1}\right), n \ge 1$

6.2. Conception of positive integer solutions relating Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal – Lucas numbers to restricted number of quadratic equations with double variables

Primary Consequences:

The n^{th} Jacobsthal number designated by J_n is delineated by $J_n = J_{n-1} + 2J_{n-2}$ for $n \geq 2$ where $J_0 = 0$, $J_1 = 1$. If α , β are two roots of the equation $x^2 - x - 2 = 0$, then $\alpha = -1$, $\beta = 2$ such that $\alpha\beta = -2$ and $\alpha + \beta = 2$. Furthermore, it is well-recognized and modest to reveal the characteristics that $\alpha^{n-1} = J_n - \beta J_{n-1}$ and $\beta^{n-1} = J_n - \alpha J_{n-1}$ for every $n \in \mathcal{Z}$, the set of all integers. Also, it might be declared by Mathematical induction that

$$J_n^2 - J_n J_{n-1} - 2J_{n-1}^2 = (-2)^{n-1} \ \forall n \in \mathbb{Z}$$
 (6.3)

Similarly, the n^{th} Jacobsthal-Lucas number j_n is described as $j_n = j_{n-1} + 2j_{n-2}$ for $n \ge 2$ and $j_0 = 2, j_1 = 1$. The interrelation between Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers are approved as follows

(i)
$$j_n = J_{n+1} + 2J_{n-1}$$
 for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$
(ii) ${j_n}^2 - {j_n}{j_{n-1}} - 2{j_{n-1}}^2 = -9(-2)^{n-1}$ for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$ (6.4)

Theorem 6.13

The constitutive criterion for all non-negative integer solutions to the specific seconddegree equation involving two variables $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = C(-1)^{n-1}$ is $(X, Y, C) = (J_n, J_{n-1}, 2^{n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

If $(X, Y, C) = (J_n, J_{n-1}, 2^{n-1})$, then it follows from identity (6.4) that

$$X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = C(-1)^{n-1}$$
.

Conversely suppose that $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = C(-1)^{n-1}$ for some positive integers X, Y and $C = 2^{n-1}$.

Then,

$$(X - \alpha Y)(X - \beta Y) = (\alpha \beta)^{n-1}$$

$$\Rightarrow (X - \alpha Y)(X - \beta Y) = (J_n - \beta J_{n-1})(J_n - \alpha J_{n-1}).$$

Thus, $X - \alpha Y = J_n - \alpha J_{n-1}$ and hence $(X, Y, C) = (J_n, J_{n-1}, 2^{n-1}), n \ge 1$.

Corollary 6.13.1

The viable solutions to the certain quadratic equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = C$ are enumerated by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2m+1}, J_{2m}, 2^{2m})$, $m \ge 0$.

Corollary 6.13.2

Every conceivable solution in Jacobsthal numbers of the equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = -C$ are quantified by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2m}, J_{2m-1}, 2^{2m-1})$ with $m \ge 1$.

Theorem 6.14

The trustworthy integer solutions to the exact equation $X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = C$ are conquered by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+2}, J_{2n}, 2^{2n})$ with $n \ge 0$.

Proof:

For our convenience, let us choose X > 2Y

Then,
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = C \Rightarrow (X - 2Y)^2 - (X - 2Y)Y - Y^2 = C$$

By corollary 6.13.1, it should be $X - 2Y = J_{2n+1}$, $Y = J_{2n}$ and $C = 2^{2n}$

The first two of the above equations yields the value of X as $X = J_{2n+2}$

Hence, the solutions to the required equation are mentioned by

$$(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+2}, J_{2n}, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0.$$

Corollary 6.14.1

The infinitely many positive integer solutions to the equation $X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = -C$ are attained by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+1}, J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Theorem 6.15

Let X, Y be any two natural numbers sustaining the equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 \pm CX = 0$. Then $X = U^2$ and Y = UV where $U, V \in N$.

Proof:

Modify the original equation as $X(X - Y \pm C) = 2Y^2$

It is easy to see that $\frac{X}{Y^2}$ and hence $Y^2 = XZ$ for some natural number Z.

If p is any prime number such that p|X and p|Z, then p|Y

This affords the expression $X - Y - 2Z \pm C = 0$ which guarantees that p|C.

Here, the only possible value of p is p = 2 which implies that $X = 2X_1$, $Y = 2Y_1$

Again, it grasps that $X_1^2 - X_1 Y_1 - 2Y_1^2 \pm C_1 X_1 = 0$ where $C_1 = \frac{c}{2}$.

Enduring the same method as enlightened above till the constant C vanishes, it is found

that
$$X_n^2 - X_n Y_n - 2Y_n^2 \pm X_n = 0$$

It follows that $X_n | Y_n|^2$ and hence $Y_n|^2 = X_n Z_n$ for some positive integer Z_n

If a prime number p satisfying the conditions $p|X_n$ and $p|Z_n$, then $p|Y_n$

Then, it is detected that $X_n - Y_n - 2Z_n \pm 1 = 0$.

This equation infers that p|1 which is not possible.

Therefore, gcd(X, Z) = 1.

By the needed theorem [III] stated above, it is noted that $X = U^2$ and $Z = V^2$ for some positive integers U and V where gcd(U,V) = 1.

Hence, it is concluded that $Y^2 = XZ = U^2V^2 \Rightarrow Y = UV$.

Corollary 6.15.1

The probable values of X, Y in the equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 + CX = 0$ are given by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n}^2, J_{2n}, J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1.$

Corollary 6.15.2

The realistic solutions in Jacobsthal numbers to the equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 - CX = 0$ are computed by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+1}^2, J_{2n+1}, J_{2n}, 2^{2n})$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.16

If X, Y be any two positive integers such that $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 \pm CY = 0$, then X = UV and $Y = U^2$ for some positive integers U and V with gcd(U, V) = 1.

Proof:

The proof is analogous to Theorem 6.15.

Corollary 6.16.1

The convincing integer values of X, Y in the equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 + CY = 0$ are resolved by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n} J_{2n-1}, J_{2n-1}^2, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.

Corollary 6.16.2

The conventional solutions to the quadratic equation $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 - CY = 0$ are particularized by $(X,Y,C) = (J_{2n+1}J_{2n},J_{2n}^2,2^{2n}), n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.17

The patterns of non-negative integer solutions to the equation $X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 + CX = 0 \qquad \text{are} \qquad \text{exemplified} \qquad \text{by}$ $(X,Y,C) = \left(J_{2n+1}^2, J_{2n-1}J_{2n+1}, 2^{2n-1}\right) \text{ where } n \geq 1.$

Proof:

Let X, Y be two non-negative integers such that $X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 + CX = 0$.

The alteration of the above equation $4Y^2 = X(5Y - X - C)$ ensures that X divides Y^2 and henceforth $Y^2 = XZ$ for some non-negative integer Z.

Suppose that a certain prime number p divides both X and Z.

Then p|Y and also the relation X - 6Y + 4Z + C = 0 holds for all $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$, the set of all positive integers.

Thus, p divides C and the chance of such p is p = 2.

This condition confirms that $X = 2X_1, Y = 2Y_1$ for some $X_1, Y_1 \in \mathcal{Z}^+$ and perceptibly the equation in which solutions to be evaluated is converted into

$$X_1^2 - 5X_1Y_1 + 4Y_1^2 + C_1X_1 = 0$$
 where $C_1 = \frac{c}{2}$.

By the argument as explained above, $X_1|{Y_1}^2$ and hence ${Y_1}^2=X_1Z_1$ for some $Z_1\in\mathcal{Z}^+$. Again, if $p|X_1$ and $p|Z_1$, then $p|Y_1$ and the precise relation $X_1-5Y_1+4Z_1+C_1=0$ is also true for all $X_1,Y_1\in\mathcal{Z}^+$.

Carrying on this procedure till the equation $X_n^2 - 5X_nY_n + 4Y_n^2 + X_n = 0$ is reached. Further if $p|X_n$ and $p|Z_n$, then $p|Y_n$ and the accurate equation $X_n - 5Y_n + 4Z_n + 1 = 0$ is detected for all $X_n, Y_n \in \mathcal{Z}^+$.

Finally, p divides 1 which is impossible.

As a result, our supposition that X and Z have common divisors is erroneous. This shows that that gcd(X,Z) = 1.

Thus, by the necessary and sufficient condition that the product two coprime numbers should be a perfect square if and only if each of them is a perfect square, $X = P^2$ and $Z = Q^2$ where $P, Q \in \mathbb{Z}^+$ and gcd(P, Q) = 1.

These adoptions of X and Z provides that Y = PQ and subsequently the essential equation can be developed into $P^2 - 5PQ + 4R^2 + C = 0$.

By Corollary 6.14.1, the values of P,Q and C are searched by $(P,Q,C)=(J_{2n+1},J_{2n-1},2^{2n-1}).$

Therefore $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+1}^2, J_{2n-1}J_{2n+1}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1.$

Corollary 6.17.1

The non-negative integer solutions for the equation $X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 - CX = 0$ are symbolized by $(X, Y, C) = (J_{2n+2}^2, J_{2n+2}J_{2n}, 2^{2n})$ where $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.18

- (i) The patterns of positive integer solutions to the equation $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 + CY = 0 \text{ are incarnated by the Jacobsthal numbers}$ $(X, Y, C) = \left(J_{2n-1}J_{2n+1}, J_{2n-1}^2, 2^{2n-1}\right) \text{ where } n \ge 1.$
- (ii) The infinitely several positive integer solutions to the equation $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 CY = 0 \text{ are signified by } (X,Y,C) = \left(J_{2n+2}J_{2n},J_{2n}^2,2^{2n}\right)$ where $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.19

The feasible solution in Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers for two unlike binary quadratic equations $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = 9C$ and $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 = -9C$ are presented by $(X,Y,C) = (j_{2n},\ j_{2n-1},2^{2n-1}), \quad n \ge 1$ and $(X,Y,C) = (j_{2n+1},\ j_{2n},2^{2n}), n \ge 0$ respectively.

Theorem 6.20

Let *X*, *Y* be two distinct natural numbers.

(i) If
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = 9C$$
, then $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n+1}, j_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$.

(ii) If
$$X^2 - 5XY + 4Y^2 = -9C$$
, then $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n+2}, j_{2n}, 2^{2n})$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem 6.21

If X, Y be any two non-negative integers such that $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 + 9CX = 0$, then either

$$(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n}^{2}, 9J_{2n}J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n}), n \ge 1 \text{ or}$$

$$(X,Y,C) = (j_{2n+1}^2, j_{2n+1}, j_{2n}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 0.$$

Proof:

Assume that $X^2 - XY - 2Y^2 + 9CX = 0$ for some non-negative integers X and Y.

If
$$9|X$$
, then $9|Y \Rightarrow X = 9U$ and $Y = 9V$ for some $U, V \in \mathcal{Z}^+$

Therefore, the needed equation in two unknowns X and Y is enhanced in terms of U and V as $U^2 - UV - 2V^2 + CU = 0$.

By corollary 6.15.1,

$$(U, V, C) = (J_{2n}^2, J_{2n}, J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}) \Rightarrow (X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n}^2, 9J_{2n}, J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}).$$

If $9 \nmid X$, then by theorem [IV], $X = U^2$ and Y = UV.

These choices of U and V simplifies the considered equation into the following one $U^2 - UV - 2V^2 + 9C = 0$.

By theorem 6.19, it is resolved that

$$(U, V, C) = (j_{2n+1}, j_{2n}, 2^{2n}) \implies (X, Y, C) = (j_{2n+1}^2, j_{2n+1}j_{2n}, 2^{2n})$$
 where $n \ge 0$.

Conversely if $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n}^2, 9J_{2n}J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n})$, then by the implementation of corollary 6.13.2

$$X^{2} - XY - 2Y^{2} + 9CX = (9J_{2n}^{2})^{2} - (9J_{2n}^{2})(9J_{2n}J_{2n-1}) - 2(9J_{2n}J_{2n-1})^{2} + 9C(9J_{2n}^{2})$$
$$= 81J_{2n}^{2} \{J_{2n}^{2} - J_{2n}J_{2n-1} - 2J_{2n-1}^{2} + C\} = 0,$$

Likewise, the very same equation might well be fulfilled for $(X,Y,C) = (j_{2n+1}^2, j_{2n+1}, j_{2n}, 2^{2n}).$

Theorem 6.22

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$, the set of all positive integers.

- (i) If $X^2 XY 2Y^2 9CX = 0$, then the solution is either of the form $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n+1}^2, 9J_{2n+1}J_{2n}, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0$ or of the form $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n}^2, j_{2n}j_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.
- (ii) If $X^2 XY 2Y^2 + 9CY = 0$, then the solution in Jacobsthal sequence is $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n}J_{2n-1}, 9J_{2n-1}^2, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1$ or in Jacobsthal-Lucas sequence is $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n}j_{2n+1}, j_{2n+1}^2, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0$.
- (iii) If $X^2 XY 2Y^2 9CY = 0$, then the solution of the equation is either in Jacobsthal numbers $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n+1}J_{2n}, 9J_{2n}^2, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0$ or in Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n}j_{2n-1}, j_{2n-1}^2, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.

Theorem 6.23

Let *X*, *Y* be two distinct non-negative integers. Then

- (i) The two different sets of non-negative integer solutions to the equation $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 + 9CX = 0 \text{ are discovered by Jacobsthal numbers}$ $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n+1}^2, 9J_{2n+1}J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1 \text{ and by Jacobsthal-Lucas}$ numbers $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n+2}^2, j_{2n+2}, j_{2n}, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0.$
- (ii) All possible solutions in Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers to the equation $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 9CX = 0$ are determined by

$$(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n+2}^2, 9J_{2n}J_{2n+2}, 2^{2n}), n \ge 0$$
 and
 $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n+1}^2, j_{2n+1}J_{2n-1}, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1.$

- (iii) If $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 + 9CY = 0$, then two sequences of solutions in integers are presented by $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n-1}J_{2n+1}, 9J_{2n-1}^{2,2^{2n-1}}), n \ge 0$ and $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n}j_{2n+2}, j_{2n}^2, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.
- (iv) If $X^2 5XY + 4Y^2 9CY = 0$, then one of the following two solutions exists: $(X, Y, C) = (9J_{2n}J_{2n+2}, 9J_{2n}^2, 2^{2n}), n \ge 1$ or $(X, Y, C) = (j_{2n-1}j_{2n+1}, j_{2n-1}^2, 2^{2n-1}), n \ge 0$

Chapter – VII

Mordell Type Diophantine Equations

CHAPTER - VII

Mordell Type Diophantine Equations

Chapter VII entails of two sections 7.1 and 7.2.

In Section 7.1, three unrivalled forms of Mordell's Diophantine equations $B^2 = A^3 + K$, $K = U^3 - V^2$, $U^3 - 2V^2$, $U^2 + U^3$ where U, V are integers together with some prime number p satisfying certain congruence relations are examined and proved that all such equations have no solution in integer.

In Section 7.2, four types of Mordell equations $Y^2 = X^3 + C$, $C = \pm 9, -16,36$ are considered and showed that two of the equations $Y^2 = X^3 - 9, Y^2 = X^3 - 16$ have no integer solutions and the remaining two equations $Y^2 = X^3 + 9, Y^2 = X^3 + 36$ have restricted number of integer solutions by mainly using the perceptions of properties of congruences.

7.1 Methodology of Proving no Solutions to three Categories of Mordell Type Diophantine Equations

Definition

The Legendre symbols are well-defined by

(i)
$$\left(\frac{-1}{p}\right) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{if } p \equiv 1 \pmod{4} \\ -1 & \text{if } p \equiv 3 \pmod{4} \end{cases}$$

(ii)
$$\left(\frac{-2}{p}\right) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{if } p \equiv 1 \text{ or } 3 \pmod{8} \\ -1 & \text{if } p \equiv 7 \text{ or } 5 \pmod{8} \end{cases}$$

In this section, three different Mordell kind Diophantine Equations $B^2 = A^3 + K$, $K = U^3 - V^2$, $U^3 - 2V^2$, $2V^2 + U^3$, $U, V \in \mathcal{Z}$ are considered and proved that all these equations have no solutions by the following theorems.

Theorem 7.1

Let U and V be integers such that $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and for any prime number p divides V implies that $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$. Then, the equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ where $K = U^3 - V^2$ has no integer solution (A, B).

Proof:

Suppose that it happens a solution (A, B) in integers to an explored equation.

Since
$$K = U^3 - V^2 \equiv -1 \pmod{4}$$
, it is noticed that $B^2 \equiv A^3 - 1 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$ and $A \not\equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and so $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Now, the deliberated equation for the preferred choice of K can be adapted into

$$B^{2} + V^{2} = A^{3} + U^{3} = (A + U)(A^{2} - AU + U^{2})$$
(7.1)

As $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it must be

$$(A^2 - AU + U^2) \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$

Hence, $(A^2 - AU + U^2)$ is odd and by (7.1) it has a prime factor p_1 , $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_1}$.

By our assertion, $p_1 \nmid V$. Hence,

$$\left(-\frac{1}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{-V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1$$

which is true only when $p_1 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ denies the fact that $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Therefore, our assumption is wrong.

This proves that the examined equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ with the considered K has no solution.

Theorem 7.2

Let U and V be integers sustaining the conditions $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 0, 2 \pmod{4}$. If a prime number p divides V/2 implies that $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ where $K = U^3 - V^2$ has no solution (A, B) in integers.

Proof:

Suppose that (A, B) is an integer solution of the inventive equation with an apt K.

Since, $U^3 - V^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, it is achieved by $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Now, the original equation is reformed for the prescribed value of K as

$$B^{2} + V^{2} = A^{3} + U^{3} = (A + U) (A^{2} - AU + U^{2})$$
(7.2)

Since $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, it is found that

$$A^2 - AU + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$

Hence, $A^2 - AU + U^2$ is odd and by (7.2) it has a prime factor p_2 , $p_2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_2}$.

By our assumption, $p_2 \nmid \left(\frac{V}{2}\right)$ and hence $p_2 \nmid V$

But,
$$\left(\frac{-1}{p_2}\right) = \left(\frac{-V^2}{p_2}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_2}\right) = 1$$
.

This is correct only for $p_2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ contradicts the chance that $p_2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ for the selected K has no solution.

Theorem 7.3

Let U and V be integers nourishing with the conditions $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{2}$. If p is a prime such that $p \equiv 1, 3 \pmod{8}$ and p divides V, then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ where $K = U^3 - 2V^2$ has no integral solution.

Proof:

For the choice $K = U^3 - 2V^2 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it must be

$$B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{4}$$

Therefore, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and consequently $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

Moreover, $K \equiv -2 \pmod{8}$

So that $A \not\equiv 7 \pmod{8} \Rightarrow A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Now,
$$B^2 + 2V^2 = A^3 + U^3 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

As $A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, it is seen that $A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$ and $A + U \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$

 $\therefore B^2 + 2V^2$ has a prime factor p_3 such that $p_3 \equiv 5$ or 7 (mod 8)

By our hypothesis, $p_3 \nmid V$ and $B^2 \equiv -2V^2 \pmod{p_3}$

Also,
$$\left(-\frac{2}{p_3}\right) = \left(-\frac{2V^2}{p_3}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_3}\right) = 1$$
 contrasting $p_3 \equiv 5$ or 7 (mod p)

Hence, it is resolved that there exists no solution for the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$ when $K = U^3 - 2V^2$.

Theorem 7.4

Assume $U, V \in Z$ and $U \equiv 6 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$. Let p be a prime number such that $p \mid V$ and $p \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{8}$. Then, the equation $B^2 = A^3 + K$, where $K = 2V^2 + U^3$ does not embrace any integer solution.

Proof:

Since,
$$K = 2V^2 + U^3 \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$$
, it is detected that $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{8}$

Then, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and subsequently $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

If $A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$, then $B^2 \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$ which is not possible.

Thus, $A \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$.

Now,
$$B^2 - 2V^2 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

$$\Rightarrow A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$$

Therefore A^2-UA+U^2 is odd and is divisible by an odd prime p_4 with $p_4\equiv 3\ (mod\ 8)$

$$\Rightarrow B^2 \equiv 2V^2 \pmod{p_4}$$
.

By our postulation, $p_4 \nmid V$

$$\therefore \left(\frac{2}{p_4}\right) = \left(\frac{2V^2}{p_4}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_4}\right) = 1$$

disagreeing $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Hence the proof.

7.2 Attesting Finite Number of Integer Solutions or No Integer Solutions to Four Mordell Kind Equations

The intention of each phase is to treasure comprehensive solutions for Mordell type Diophantine equations of the form $Y^2 = X^3 + C$ where $C = \pm 9, -16, 36$.

Applicable Theorem I

In [136], "Let p denote a prime. Then $x^2 = -1 \pmod{p}$ has solutions if and only if $p \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$ or $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ "

Theorem 7.5

If $X, Y \in \mathcal{Z}$, then there is no solution to $Y^2 = X^3 - 9$.

Proof:

Initially let us assume that $Y^2 = X^3 - 9$ has an integer solution (X, Y).

If $X \equiv 0 \pmod{2}$ and $X \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, then $Y^2 \equiv -1 \pmod{4}$ and $Y^2 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$ respectively. But, both of them are impossible.

Hence, it is possible that $X \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ because it leads to $Y^2 \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$.

Now, the implicit equation can be considered as

$$Y^2 + 1 = X^3 - 8 = (X - 2)(X^2 + 2X + 4).$$

As $X \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, $X^2 + 2X + 4 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

This implies that $Y^2 + 1$ is divisible by a prime number p such that $p \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

That is, $Y^2 \equiv -1 \pmod{p}$ where $p \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

This is a contradiction to theorem I.

Hence, $Y^2 = X^3 - 9$ has no integer solution.

Theorem 7.6

The feasible integral solutions to the particular Mordell equation $Y^2 = X^3 + 9$ are $(X,Y) = \{(0,\pm 3), (3,\pm 6), (6,\pm 15), (40,\pm 253), (-2,\pm 1)\}.$

Proof:

Rewrite the proposed equation as $X^3 = Y^2 - 9 = (Y+3)(Y-3)$ (7.3)

If X is even, then Y is odd. If X is odd, then Y is even. If d is the common divisor of (Y+3) and (Y-3), then d also divides their difference (Y+3)-(Y-3)=6. Therefore, d must be any one of the values 1,2,3,6.

Case 1: Suppose *Y* is even

Then, (Y + 3) and (Y - 3) are both odd. So, gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3) is either 1 or 3.

If gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3) = 1, then they are relatively prime. Since their product is a cube, they both are cube.

That is
$$(Y + 3) = a^3$$
 and $(Y - 3) = b^3$
 $\Rightarrow a^3 - b^3 = 6$

However, no two odd cubes produce a difference 6.

Hence,
$$gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3) = 3$$

Since Y is even, $Y \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$ or $Y \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$

Subcase 1.1: Suppose $Y \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$

Then, $Y + 3 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and $Y - 3 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Dividing (7.3) by 27, it is emblazoned as

$$\left(\frac{X}{3}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{Y+3}{3}\right)\left(\frac{Y-3}{9}\right)$$

Due to the fact that division of each component by a multiple of 3 = gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3), the right-hand side of the preceding equation comprehends relatively prime factors and therefore each factor is a cube.

That is,
$$\frac{Y+3}{3} = a^3$$
 and $\frac{Y-3}{9} = b^3$
 $\Rightarrow 3a^3 - 3 = 9b^3 + 3$
 $\Rightarrow a^3 - 3b^3 = 2$

This is factual only for a = -1, b = -1

If a = -1 or b = -1, then Y = -6 and X = 3.

Therefore, an integral solution to 7.3 is (X, Y) = (3, -6)

Subcase 1.2: Suppose $Y \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$

However, $Y + 3 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $Y - 3 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

By dividing (7.3) by 27, it is converted into

$$\left(\frac{X}{3}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{Y+3}{9}\right)\left(\frac{Y-3}{3}\right)$$

As the description specified in subcase 1.1, it is possible to designate the components on the right-hand side of the previous equation as

$$\frac{Y+3}{9} = a^3$$
 and $\frac{Y-3}{3} = b^3$

$$\Rightarrow 9a^3 - 3 = 3b^3 + 3$$

$$\Rightarrow 3a^3 - b^3 = 2$$

The only possibility of the above equation is a = 1, b = 1.

Either of the above choices of a and b delivers Y = 6 and X = 3.

Therefore, in this circumstance the comprehensive solution is (X, Y) = (3,6)

As an effect, this case grants two integral solutions $(X, Y) = (3, \pm 6)$.

Case 2: Presume *Y* is odd

Then, both the factors in the right-hand side of (7.3) are even and gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3) is either 2 or 6.

Also, $Y \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ or $Y \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Subcase 2.1:

If gcd(Y+3, Y-3) = 2 and $Y \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, then $Y+3 \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$ and $Y-3 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$.

Divide both sides of (7.3) by 8, it is received that

$$\left(\frac{X}{2}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{Y+3}{4}\right)\left(\frac{Y-3}{2}\right)$$

As in case 1, it is taken as

$$\frac{Y+3}{4} = a^3$$
 and $\frac{Y-3}{2} = b^3$

$$\Rightarrow 4a^3 - 3 = 2b^3 + 3$$

$$\Rightarrow 2a^3 - b^3 = 3$$

The preparable chances of a and b are declared by

$$a = 1, b = -1$$
 and $a = 4, b = 5$

If a = 1 or b = -1, then Y = 1 and X = -2.

If a = 4 or b = 5, then Y = 253 and X = 40.

Therefore, the two integral solutions to (7.3) achieved in this instance are $(X,Y) = \{(-2,1), (40,253)\}.$

Subcase 2.2:

If $Y \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, then $Y + 3 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$ and $Y - 3 \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$ and proceeding as in case 1, it is concluded that $(X,Y) = \{(-2,-1),(40,-253),\}$.

Similarly, if gcd(Y + 3, Y - 3) = 6, then integer solutions $(X, Y) = (0, \pm 3)$ of (7.3) are accomplished for both selections of $Y \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $Y \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ by means of the same methodology in case 1.

Case 3:

In all the above two cases, the fact about the unique factorization domain in the ring of integers is considered. But one of the factors in the right-hand side of (7.3) divided by d^2 can be stretched to a fractional number.

That is, $\frac{Y+3}{d^2}$ or $\frac{Y-3}{d^2}$ may be a fractional number. The product of an integer and a fractional number is a cube of an integer means that it fulfils the following conditions.

$$\frac{Y+3}{d^2} = \frac{a}{b}$$
 and $\frac{Y-3}{d} = a^2b$ or $\frac{Y+3}{d^2} = \frac{a^2}{b}$ and $\frac{Y-3}{d} = ab$

These choices afford the succeeding equations

$$a^{2}b^{2} - da - b = 0$$
 or $ab^{2} - da^{2} - b = 0$

Solving them for b, it is acquired that

$$b = \frac{1 \pm \sqrt{1 + 4a^2d}}{2a^2}$$
 or $b = \frac{1 \pm \sqrt{1 + 4a^2d}}{2a}$

In these two equations, the discriminant is a positive integer if and only if a = 1, d = 6.

Implementing this condition, a diverse solution is obtained as follows:

$$\frac{Y+3}{36} = \frac{1}{b} \text{ and } \frac{Y-3}{6} = b$$

$$\Rightarrow \frac{36}{b} - 3 = 6b + 3$$

$$\Rightarrow b^2 + b - 6 = 0$$

$$\Rightarrow b = 2 \text{ or } -3$$

$$\Rightarrow Y = \pm 15 \text{ and hence } X = 6.$$

So, all the solutions assimilated for the preferred equation are

$$(X,Y) = \{(0,\pm 3), (3,\pm 6), (6,\pm 15), (40,\pm 253), (-2,\pm 1)\}$$

Theorem 7.7

If $X, Y \in \mathcal{Z}$, then the equation $Y^2 = X^3 - 16$ has no solution.

Proof:

Redraft the suggested equation as

$$X^{3} = Y^{2} + 16 = (Y + 4i)(Y - 4i)$$
(7.4)

Since $Y^2 \equiv X^3 \pmod{4}$, either X and Y are both even or they are both odd.

Case 1: Suppose X and Y are both odd

If a is a common divisor of (Y + 4i) and (Y - 4i), then a divides their difference

$$(Y + 4i) - (Y - 4i) = 8i.$$

Hence, there exists some $b \in Z[i]$ such that $a = b \times 8i$.

Since norm is multiplicative in Z[i], the norm of 'a' denoted by N(a) is provided by

$$N(a) = N(b \times 8i) = N(b)N(8i)$$

This implies that N(a) divides N(8i) = 64 where $N(x + iy) = x^2 + y^2$ is the norm of the Gaussian integer x + iy.

As well as N(a) divides $N(Y + 4i) = Y^2 + 16 = X^3$ which is odd.

Then, N(a) = 1 and thus a is a unit in Z[i]. It is well known that every unit is a cube in Z[i].

This means that (Y + 4i) and (Y - 4i) are relatively prime.

From (7.4), both (Y + 4i) and (Y - 4i) are cubes.

Contemplate

$$Y + 4i = (M + Ni)^3$$

 $\Rightarrow Y = M(M^2 - 3N^2) \text{ and } 4 = N(3M^2 - N^2)$

From the second of the above equations, N must be ± 1 or ± 2 or ± 4 . None of these values of N gives an integer value for M.

Hence, the projected equation has no solution when *X* and *Y* are both odd.

Case 2: Suppose *X* and *Y* are both even.

Transcribe X = 2X' and Y = 2Y'

Then, (7.4) can be swotted into the following equation

$$Y'^2 = 2X'^3 - 4 (7.5)$$

 \Rightarrow Y' is even

If X' is odd, then $Y'^2 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$. This is not possible, since even squares are always congruent to 0 modulo 4.

Hence, X' is even.

Now, designate X' = 2X'' and Y' = 2Y''.

Engaging these two alternations in (7.5), it can be extolled by

$$Y''^2 = 4X''^3 - 1$$
 implies that Y'' is odd

If X'' is odd or even, then $Y''^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ which is impossible because $Y''^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, this case offers no solution to the predictable equation.

Theorem 7.8

The limited number of integral solutions to the definite type of Mordell equation $Y^2 = X^3 + 36$ are $(X, Y) = \{(0, \pm 6), (4, \pm 10), (12, \pm 42), (-3, \pm 3)\}.$

Proof:

The considered equation can be rephrased as

$$X^3 = Y^2 - 36 = (Y+6)(Y-6)$$
(7.6)

Here both X and Y are either even or odd. If (Y + 6) and (Y - 6) have a common divisor d', then their difference (Y + 6) - (Y - 6) = 12 is also divided by d'. Therefore, d' essentially be any one of the values 1,2,3,4,6,12.

Case 1: Suppose *X* and *Y* are even

Then, (Y+6) and (Y-6) are together even and also gcd(Y+6,Y-6)=2 or 4 or 6 or 12.

If gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 2, then by dividing (7.6) by 8, the following conjectures can be made

$$\left(\frac{x}{2}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{y+6}{2}\right)\left(\frac{y-6}{4}\right) = a^3b^3 \text{ or } \left(\frac{x}{2}\right)^3 = \left(\frac{y+6}{4}\right)\left(\frac{y-6}{2}\right) = a^3b^3$$

$$\Rightarrow a^3 - 2b^3 = 6 \text{ or } 2a^3 - b^3 = 6$$

It is scrutinized that both equations do not have solution in integers.

When gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 4, then dividing (7.6) by 64 and utilizing the prior technique as revealed earlier, the subsequent equations are grasped

$$a^3 - 4b^3 = 3$$
 or $4a^3 - b^3 = 3$

$$\Rightarrow a = -1, b = -1 \text{ or } a = 1, b = 1$$

If
$$a = -1$$
 and $b = -1$, then $(X, Y) = (4, -10)$.

If
$$a = 1$$
 and $b = 1$, then $(X, Y) = (4,10)$

Hence, the needed solution is $(X, Y) = (4, \pm 10)$

If gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 6, then dividing (7.6) by 6^3 and using the identical method as acknowledged in earlier theorems, it is scrutinized that the ensuing equations

$$a^3 - 6b^3 = 2$$
 or $6a^3 - b^3 = 2$

procure no integer values for both a and b.

If gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 12, then dividing (7.6) by 12^3 and by the similar procedures as given above, the succeeding equations are detected

$$a^3 - 12b^3 = 1$$
 or $12a^3 - b^3 = 1$

$$\Rightarrow a = 1, b = 0 \text{ or } a = 0, b = -1$$

If a = 1 and b = 0, then (X, Y) = (0.6).

If
$$a = 0$$
 and $b = -1$, then $(X, Y) = (0, -6)$.

Hence, the necessary solution is $(X, Y) = (0, \pm 6)$

This scenario thus provides the ideal solutions $(X,Y) = \{(4,\pm 10), (0,\pm 6)\}.$

Case 2: Suppose X and Y are odd

Then both the factors on the right-hand side of (7.6) are odd and gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) is either 1 or 3.

If gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 1, then it is evidenced that

$$Y + 6 = a^3$$
 and $Y - 6 = b^3$

$$\Rightarrow a^3 - b^3 = 12$$

But the difference is not 12 between any two odd cubes.

Hence, gcd(Y + 6, Y - 6) = 3. Then for both selections $Y \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and

 $Y \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and by utilizing the undistinguishable approach, it is noted that

$$a^3 - 3b^3 = 4$$
 or $3a^3 - b^3 = 4$

$$\Rightarrow a = 1, b = -1$$

$$\Rightarrow Y = +3.X = -3$$

Henceforth, the outcome in this case, is $(X, Y) = (-3, \pm 3)$.

Case 3:

Appeal the concept of case 3 in theorem 7.5, an exclusive solution is perceived when

$$a = 1$$
, $d = 12$ as follows

$$\frac{Y+6}{144} = \frac{1}{b}$$
 and $\frac{Y-6}{12} = b$

$$\Rightarrow \frac{144}{b} - 6 = 12b + 6$$

$$\Rightarrow b^2 + b - 12 = 0$$

$$\Rightarrow b = -4 \text{ or } 3 \Rightarrow Y = \pm 42 \text{ and hence } x = 12.$$

The solution obtained in this case is $(X, Y) = (12, \pm 42)$.

Chapter – VIII

Exponential Diophantine Equations

CHAPTER - VIII

Exponential Diophantine Equations

This chapter is composed of three sections, 8.1 to 8.3.

In Section 8.1, an exclusive exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ such that the sum of integer powers x and y of two consecutive prime numbers engrosses a square is examined for estimating enormous integer solutions by exploiting the fundamental notions of Mathematics and the speculation of divisibility for all possibilities of x + y = 1, 2, 3, 4.

In Section 8.2, an inimitable Diophantine equation with variables as exponents $n^x + (n+1)^y = z^2$, $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the collection of all-natural numbers in order to estimate immense non-negative integer solutions by implementing ultimate moralities of Mathematics and the formulae for solutions of acquainted Pell equations is investigated for whole categories of two exponents x and y such that x + y = 1, 2, 3, 4.

In Section 8.3, a particular kind of an exponential Diophantine equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ where (p_1, p_2, p_3) is a prime triplet of the forms (p, p + 2, p + 6) = (4n + 1, 4n + 3, 4n + 7) or (4n + 3, 4n + 5, 4n + 9) and (p, p + 4, p + 6) = (4n + 1, 4n + 5, 4n + 7) or (4n + 3, 4n + 7, 4n + 9) for certain $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the combination of x, y, z takes the values either 1 or 2 is investigated with the help of MATLAB program and basic concepts of Mathematics.

8.1 Exploration of Solutions for an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$

In this section, the possible integer solutions to an exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ are explored in the following theorem.

Theorem 8.1

If p is any prime and x, y and z are integers persuading the condition that x + y = 1,2,3,4, then all feasible integer solutions to an exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ are given by

$$(p, x, y, z) = \{(2,0,1,2), (3,1,0,2), (3,2,2,5)\}$$
 when $p = 2,3$ and

$$(p, x, y, z) = (4n^2 + 4n - 1, 0, 1, 2n + 1)$$
 where $n \in \mathcal{N}$ for $p > 3$

Proof:

The equation for performing solutions in integer is taken as

$$p^{x} + (p+1)^{y} = z^{2}$$
(8.1)

All doable predilection of the supposition x + y = 1,2,3,4 is carried out by eight cases for assessing solutions in integers.

Case 1: x = 0, y = 1

The equation (8.1) to explore solutions in integers trims down by

$$p + 2 = z^2 (8.2)$$

If p = 2, then z = 2

Hence, the one and only one integer solution is communicated as (p, x, y, z) = (2,0,1,2)

If p is an odd prime, then p + 2 is an odd number.

This means that z^2 is an odd number and consequently z is also an odd number.

If z = 1, then p + 2 = 1 which is impossible.

As a result, $z \ge 3$.

Describe
$$z = 2n + 1, n \in \mathcal{N}$$
 (8.3)

The square of the selection of z in (8.3) can be characterized by

$$z^2 = 4n^2 + 4n + 1, n \in \mathcal{N}$$

Insight of (8.2), the promising value of an odd prime complied with the specified equation is distinguished by

$$p = 4n^2 + 4n - 1, n \in \mathcal{N}$$

Hence, the enormous solutions to (8.1) is $(p, x, y, z) = (4n^2 + 4n - 1, 0, 1, 2n + 1)$ where $n \in \mathcal{N}$

Case 2:
$$x = 1, y = 0$$

The inventive equation (8.1) is diminished as

$$p + 1 = z^2 (8.4)$$

If p = 2, then $z^2 = 3$ which is not possible for the integer value of z.

If p is an odd prime, then p + 1 is an even number which can be articulated by

$$p+1=2n, n \in \mathcal{N}$$

Match up the above equation with (8.4), 2n is a perfect square only if $n=2m^2$ where $m \in \mathcal{N}$.

Thus,
$$p = (2m)^2 - 1$$
.

If
$$m = 1$$
, then $p = 3$

Therefore, the solution belongs to the set Z of integers is (p, x, y, z) = (3,1,0,2)

If
$$m \neq 1$$
, then $p = (2m - 1)(2m + 1)$

If p divides (2m-1), then 2m-1=ap and as a consequence 2m+1=ap+2

Thus, p = ap(ap + 2) and leads to the ensuing equation

$$1 = a(a+2)$$

But the above equation is not true for any integer value of a.

If p divides (2m + 1), then 2m + 1 = bp and from now 2m - 1 = bp - 2

Therefore, p = bp(bp - 2) and consequently 1 = b(b + 2) which is not factual for any integer options for b.

Hence, in this case there exists a unique solution to (8.1) given by (p, x, y, z) = (3,1,0,2).

Case 3:
$$x = 1$$
, $y = 1$

The creative equation (8.1) is adjusted by

$$2p + 1 = z^2$$

Since z^2 is an odd number for all selections of p, it follows that

$$z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$$

$$\Rightarrow$$
 2 p + 1 \equiv 1 (mod 4)

$$\Rightarrow 2p \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$$

Capture that 2p = 4k which means that p = 2k for some positive integer k

This declaration is possible only when k = 1

Then p = 2, and 2p + 1 = 5 which is not a perfect square of an integer.

Hence, in this case, there is no integer solution to the presupposed equation.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 2$$

The resourceful equation (8.1) is reconstructed as

$$p^{2} + 3p = z^{2} - 1$$

$$\Rightarrow p(p+3) = (z-1)(z+1)$$
(8.5)

If
$$p|(z-1)$$
, then $z-1 = kp$, and $z+1 = kp + 2$

Executions of these two equations in (8.5) go along with the subsequent quadratic equation in k

$$pk^2 + 2k - (p+3) = 0$$

which consent the value of $k = \frac{-1 \pm \sqrt{p(p+3)+1}}{p}$

It is deeply monitored that no prime number p provides an integer value for k.

An alternative vision of p|(z+1) reveals that z+1=lp and z-1=lp-2

By making use of these two equations in (8.5) espouse the second-degree equation in l as

$$pl^2 - 2l - (p+3) = 0$$

which yields
$$l = \frac{1 \pm \sqrt{1 - p(p+3)}}{p}$$
.

The above value of l is a complex number for any prime p.

Hence, the ultimate result is no integer solutions to the most wanted equation (8.1).

Case 5 :
$$x = 2, y = 1$$

The quick-witted equation (8.1) is restructured as

$$p^{2} + p = z^{2} - 1$$

$$\Rightarrow p(p+1) = (z-1)(z+1) \tag{8.6}$$

It follows from equation (8.6) that p must divide any one of the values (z-1) or (z+1).

If p|(z-1), then z-1=mp and z+1=mp+2 for some integer m.

Then, equation (8.6) makes available with the value of p as

$$p = \frac{1 - 2m}{m^2 - 1} \tag{8.7}$$

Accordingly, one can easily notice that the right-hand side of (8.7) can never be a prime number for $m \in \mathbb{Z}$.

This circumstance offers that $p \nmid (z-1)$.

If p|(z+1), then z+1=np and z-1=np-2 for some integer n.

Then, equation (8.6) endows with the value of p as

$$p = \frac{1+2n}{n^2-1} \tag{8.8}$$

None of the value of $n \in \mathcal{Z}$ in the right-hand side of (8.8) supplies the prime number establish that

$$p \nmid (z + 1)$$
.

Hence, this case does not grant an integer solution for equation (8.1).

Case 6 :
$$x = 1, y = 3$$

For these choices of x and y, the well-groomed equation (8.1) be converted into

$$(p+1)^3 + p = z^2 (8.9)$$

If p = 2, $z^2 = 29$ which make sure that z cannot be an integer.

If p is any odd prime, then p takes any one of the forms 4N + 1 or 4N + 3.

If p = 4N + 1 and the perception that z^2 must be odd reduces (8.9) to

$$64N^3 + 96N^2 + 52N + 9 = (2T - 1)^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 16N^3 + 24N^2 + 13N + 8 = T(T - 1) \tag{8.10}$$

It is perceived that none of the values of N ensures that the left-hand side of (8.10) as the product of two consecutive integers.

Similarly, the chance of p = 4N + 3, and the discernment that z^2 is an odd integer reduces (8.9) to

$$64N^3 + 192N^2 + 196N + 67 = (2T - 1)^2$$

$$\Rightarrow$$
 2(32 N^3 + 96 N^2 + 94 N + 33) = 4 $T(T - 1)$

The above equality does not hold since the left-hand side is twice an odd number and the right-hand side is a multiple of 4.

Hence, in this case there does not exist an integer solution.

Case 7:
$$x = 2, y = 2$$

These preferences of x and y altered the well-designed equation (8.1) into

$$p^{2} + (p+1)^{2} = z^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 2p (p+1) + 1 = z^{2}$$
(8.11)

Since z^2 is an odd number, $z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$

Then, $2p(p+1) \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$

Hence, either p or p + 1 is a multiple of 2.

If p is a multiple of 2, then p must be 2.

Implementation of this value of p in (8.7) furnishes $z^2 = 13$ which does not enable as an integer for z.

If p + 1 is a multiple of 2, then p + 1 = 2A for some $A \in \mathcal{Z}$.

The only odd prime satisfying all the above conditions is 3 and the corresponding value of z = 3

Consequently, the only integer solution to (8.1) is (p, x, y, z) = (3, 2, 2, 5)

Case 8: x = 3, y = 1

The original equation (8.1) can be written as

$$p^3 + p + 1 = z^2$$

If p = 2, then $z^2 = 11$ which cannot acquiesce an integer for z.

Also, $z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod 4$ and $p(p^2+1) \equiv 0 \pmod 4$ which implies that either 4|p| or $4|(p^2+1)$

For the reason that p is an odd prime, $4 \nmid p$ and so $p^2 + 1 = 4n$

This is not possible since p can take either of the forms 4N + 1, $N \ge 1$ or 4N + 3,

 $N \ge 0$.

Hence, the conclusion of this case is there cannot discover an integer solution to (8.1).

8.2 Tactics of achieving Non-Negative Integer Solutions to an Exponential Equation with the base as Natural Numbers

Theorem: 8.2

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the set of all-natural numbers and x, y and z are integers such that x + y = 1,2,3,4, then all viable non-negative integer solutions to an exponential Diophantine equation $n^x + (n+1)^y = z^2$ are prearranged by

$$(n, x, y, z) = \{(4m^2 + 4m - 1,0,1,2m + 1), (4m^2 - 2,0,1,2m), (4m^2 - 1,1,0,2m),$$

$$(4m(m+1),1,0,2m+1), (2m(m+1),1,1,2m+1), (1,0,3,3),$$

$$(2,3,0,3), (1,1,3,3), (12,1,3,47), (n_{m+1},2,2,z_{m+1}), (72,3,1,611)\}$$

where $n_{m+1} = \frac{1}{2}(3X_m + 4z_m - 1)$, $z_{m+1} = 2X_m + 3z_m$, m = 0,1,2... with $X_0 = 7$, $z_0 = 5$.

Proof:

The equation for executing integer solutions is measured as

$$n^{x} + (n+1)^{y} = z^{2}, n \in \mathcal{N}$$
 (8.12)

The succeeding categories are analyzed for receiving non-negative integer solutions for all effective inclinations of the estimations x + y = 1,2,3,4.

Case 1: x = 0, y = 1

The equation (8.12) for looking solutions in integers is curtailed by

$$n + 2 = z^2 (8.13)$$

If n is an odd number, then z^2 and hence z is also an odd number.

Presume that $z = 2m + 1, m \in \mathcal{N}$

In the vision of (8.13), the choice of n is then led by

$$n = 4m^2 + 4m - 1$$

Foremost if n is an even number, then z^2 also ensures that z is an even number.

Adopt that $z = 2m, m \in \mathcal{N}$

Then, (8.13) leads to the already mentioned value of n as

$$n = 4m^2 - 2$$

Hence, the massive solutions to (8.12) is embodied by

$$(n, x, y, z) = (4m^2 + 4m - 1, 0, 1, 2m + 1)$$
 and $(n, x, y, z) = (4m^2 - 2, 0, 1, 2m)$
where $m \in \mathcal{N}$.

Case 2:
$$x = 1, y = 0$$

The desirable equation (8.12) to discover integer solutions is revised by

$$n + 1 = z^2 (8.14)$$

If n is an odd number, then z^2 and also z are even numbers.

Let us select $z = 2m, m \in \mathcal{N}$

Replacing this choice of z in (8.14), the equivalent option for the selected natural number n is given by

$$n = 4m^2 - 1$$

On the other hand, if n is an even number then z^2 as well as z is an odd number.

For easy accessibility, it is denoted by z = 2m + 1 where $m \in \mathcal{N}$

Exchanging the precise value of z in (8.14), the corresponding possibility of n is attained by

$$n = 4m(m+1)$$

Hence, in this case all probable solutions to (8.12) are decided by

$$(n, x, y, z) = (4m^2 - 1, 1, 0, 2m)$$
 and $(n, x, y, z) = (4m(m + 1), 1, 0, 2m + 1)$ where $m \in \mathcal{N}$

Case 3:
$$x = 0$$
, $y = 2$

The above chosen values of x and y diminished (8.12) to the successive equation

$$n^2 + 1 = z^2$$

Since any square of an integer added with one can never be a square of an integer, z and subsequently n cannot be an integer.

Case 4:
$$x = 2, y = 0$$

These selections of x and y shortened (8.12) to

$$n^2 = z^2 - 1$$

Since any square of an integer reduced by one is not at all a square of an integer, z and then n are not integers.

Hence, for Case 3 and Case 4, it is impossible to treasure an integer value for all necessary variables.

Case 5: x = 1, y = 1

The structure of an inventive equation (8.12) is symbolized by

$$2n + 1 = z^2$$

Since the left-hand side is an odd number for all $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the value of z^2 implying that z is also an odd number.

Perceive that z = 2m + 1 for all $m \in \mathcal{N}$. Clearly, n = 2m(m + 1).

As a result, the solution is detected by (n, x, y, z) = (2m(m + 1), 1, 1, 2m + 1) where $m \in \mathcal{N}$.

Case 6: x = 0, y = 3

The ingenious equation (8.12) is revamped as

$$(n+1)^3 + 1 = z^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (n+2)(n^2+n+1) = z^2 \tag{8.15}$$

If z is odd, then (n + 2) = z and $(n^2 + n + 1) = z$ implying that $n = \pm 1$

Our presumption cannot acknowledge n = -1.

As an effect, n = 1 and thus z = 3

If z is even, then $(n+2)(n^2+n+1) = 2z(\frac{z}{2})$.

Obviously, $2z = n^2 + n + 1$ and $\frac{z}{2} = n + 2$ together gives $n^2 - 3n - 7 = 0$

But, the roots of this quadratic equation do not belong to \mathcal{Z} , the set of all integers.

Thus, $z \notin \mathcal{Z}$.

As a consequence, the end outcome is (n, x, y, z) = (1,0,3,3).

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2$$

The original equation (8.12) is renovated as

$$n + (n+1)^2 = z^2$$

$$\Rightarrow n = (z + (n+1))(z - (n+1))$$
(8.16)

Then, both (z + (n + 1)) and (z - (n + 1)) are factors of n.

This is feasible for no integer value of z.

Hence, no integer solution exists for the scheme of x = 1 and y = 2.

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 1$$

The shrewd equation (8.12) is reorganized as

$$n^{2} + n + 1 = z^{2}$$

 $\Rightarrow n + 1 = (z + n)(z - n)$ (8.17)

This equation is not achievable irrespective of z.

Eventually, this case does not contribute an integer solution for equation (8.12).

Case 9:
$$x = 3, y = 0$$

The proficient equation (8.12) is reassembled as

$$n^3 = z^2 - 1$$

 $\Rightarrow n^3 = (z - 1)(z + 1)$ (8.18)

If (z-1) and (z+1) are both odd, then they are coprime.

Thus, $z-1=r^3$ and $z+1=s^3$ where $r,s\in\mathcal{N}$ and gcd(r,s)=1 which stretches (8.18) as

$$s^3 - r^3 = 2$$

But no two natural numbers please this condition.

If (z-1) and (z+1) are both even, then (8.18) becomes $n^3=2k(2k+2), k \in \mathcal{N}$

That is,
$$n^3 = 2^2 k(k+1)$$
 (8.19)

If either k or k+1 is an even number, then they are relatively prime. Using the well-known fact that the factors of a cubic number are always a cubic number, equation (8.19) is valid only for k=1. None other values of k confirm the above statement which suggests that n=2 and z=3.

Hence, the imminent result is (n, x, y, z) = (2,3,0,3).

Case 10: x = 0, y = 4

The well-made equation (8.12) be transmuted into

$$(n+1)^4 = z^2 - 1$$

$$\Rightarrow (n+1)(n+1)^3 = (z-1)(z+1)$$
(8.20)

Suppose that from equation (8.20), (n + 1) = (z - 1) and $(n + 1)^3 = (z + 1)$

A simple analysis of these assumptions produces the equation $n^3 + 3n^2 + 2n - 2 = 0$

It is examined that none of the integer values of n assures the preceding third-degree equation.

Hence, for this case, there does not occur an integer solution.

Case 11: x = 1, y = 3

These espousals of x and y convert equation (8.12) into

$$n + (n+1)^3 = z^2 (8.21)$$

It is analyzed that, the prereferral equation (8.21) is satisfied only for two couples (n, z) = (1,3) and (n, z) = (12,47).

This can be established by the subsequent MATLAB Program:

clear all;

clc;

 $n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ to\ check\ the\ condition$

$$n + (n + 1)^3 = z^2 (n');$$

$$z2 = n + (n + 1).^3$$
;

z = sqrt(z2);

if (mod(z, 1) == 0)

 $fprintf(' \setminus nn = \%d, \setminus tz = \%d', n, z)$

else

 $fprintf('The\ given\ natural\ number\ n=$

%d is not satisfying the condition', n)

end

Hence, the anticipated solutions are $(n, x, y, z) = \{(1,1,3,3), (12,1,3,47)\}$

Case 12: x = 2, y = 2

These appropriate picks of x and y reformed the well-framed equation (8.12) into the standard equation

$$X^2 - 2z^2 = -1 (8.22)$$

where
$$X = 2n + 1$$
 (8.23)

The primary values obeying (8.22) are $X_0 = 7$, $Z_0 = 5$.

The recurrence relations to the equation (8.22) are specified by

$$X_{m+1} = 3X_m + 4Z_m (8.24)$$

$$z_{m+1} = 2X_m + 3z_m, m = 0,1,2,... (8.25)$$

From (8.23) and (8.24), the sequence of necessary values of n is noted by

$$n_{m+1} = \frac{1}{2}(3X_m + 4z_m - 1), m = 0,1,2,....$$
 (8.26)

Consequently, the patterns of positive integer solutions to (8.12) are executed by

$$(n, x, y, z) = (n_{m+1}, 2, 2, z_{m+1})$$
 with $n_0 = 3, z_0 = 5$ and $m = 0, 1, 2, ...$

The successive values of n and z can be evaluated by (8.25) and (8.26).

Case 13: x = 3, y = 1

The equation (8.12) can be scratched as

$$n^3 + n + 1 = z^2$$

This is satisfied only for the pair (n, z) = (72, 611).

This can be done through the following MATLAB Program:

clear all;

clc;

 $n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ to\ check\ the\ condition$

$$n^3 + n + 1 = z^2 \langle n' \rangle;$$

$$z2 = n.^3 + (n + 1);$$

$$z = sqrt(z2);$$

$$if (mod(z, 1) == 0)$$

$$fprintf(' \setminus nn = \%d, \setminus tz = \%d', n, z)$$

else

 $fprintf('The\ given\ natural\ number\ n=$

%d is not satisfying the condition', n)

end

Therefore, the essential non-negative integer solution is (n, x, y, z) = (72,3,1,611).

Case 14:
$$x = 4, y = 0$$

The equation (8.12) can be engraved as

$$n^4 + 1 = z^2$$

$$\Rightarrow n^4 = (z+1)(z-1)$$

Proceeding similarly as in case 10, it is not predicted integer solutions to (8.12).

Hence, the theorem.

8.3 Investigation of Solutions to an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$

The 3-tuples consisting three distinct prime numbers such that the difference between the biggest and smallest prime numbers is six, then the 3-tuple is called a prime triplet. For example, the 3-tuple (p, p + 2, p + 6) or (p, p + 4, p + 6) where p is neither 2 nor 3 are prime triplets.

The approach of existence of integer solutions to an equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ where (p_1, p_2, p_3) is a prime triplet of the forms

$$(p, p + 2, p + 6) = (4n + 1, 4n + 3, 4n + 7)$$
 or $(4n + 3, 4n + 5, 4n + 9)$

and
$$(p, p + 4, p + 6) = (4n + 1, 4n + 5, 4n + 7)$$
 or $(4n + 3, 4n + 7, 4n + 9)$

for certain $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the collection of x, y, z are either 1 or 2 is analyzed in the following theorems.

Theorem 8.3

If $x, y, z \in \{1,2\}$ and (p, p+2, p+6) is a prime triplet of the form (4n+1,4n+3,4n+7) for fixed $n \in \mathcal{N}$, then an equation $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ has no solution.

Proof:

The theorem is proved by considering the following eight cases.

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then,

$$p^{x} + (p+2)^{y} + (p+6)^{z} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 4n + 1 + 4n + 3 + 4n + 7 = M^{2}$$
$$\Rightarrow 12n + 11 = M^{2}$$

It is scrutinized that the expression 12n + 11 is not a perfect square for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$.

The following MATLAB Program demonstrates the statement given above.

clc; clear all;

 $n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ n');$

for i = 1:n

$$p1 = 4 * i + 1$$
; $p2 = 4 * i + 3$; $p3 = 4 * i + 7$;

if(isprime(p1) == 1 & isprime(p2) == 1 & isprime(p3) == 1)

MS = 12 * n + 11;

M = sqrt(MS);

if(rem(M,1) == 0)

fprintf('p1 = %d, p2 = %d, p3 = %d, M = %d', p1, p2, p3, M)

end

end

end

Case 2:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 1$$

The equation to analyze solutions in integers can be written as

$$(4n+1)^{2} + (4n+3) + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 16n + 11 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+2)^{2} + 7 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+2)^{2} = 7$$

This is possible only when M=4 and 4n+2=3. But no such $n \in \mathcal{N}$ satisfies the equation 4n+2=3.

Case 3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

For these choices of x, y, z, the original equation is reduced into

$$(4n+1) + (4n+3)^{2} + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 32n + 17 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+4)^{2} + 1 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+4)^{2} = 1$$

It is well-known that the difference of two square numbers cannot be 1.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

The selected values of the variables convert the given equation as follows

$$(4n + 1) + (4n + 3) + (4n + 7)^{2} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 64n + 53 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - 11 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - M^{2} = 11$$

This is true only if M = 5 and 4n + 8 = 6. But for any $n \in N$, 4n + 8 = 6 is not valid.

Case 5:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

The desired equation becomes

$$(4n+1)^2 + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7) = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 36n + 17 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2$$
, $y = 1$, $z = 2$

The considered equation becomes

$$(4n+1)^2 + (4n+3) + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 68n + 53 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

Then,
$$p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+1) + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 84n + 59 = M^2$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

The given equation can be written as

$$(4n+1)^2 + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 48n^2 + 88n + 59 = M^2$$

It is a well-known fact that if $b^2 = 4ac$, the quadratic polynomial $ax^2 + bx + c$ is a perfect square.

But, the quadratic equation in n mentioned above from case 5 to case 8 does not meet this criterion.

Consequently, none of the choices of x, y, z considered from case 5 to case 8 provides solutions to an equation.

As a conclusion, all the cases are not providing possible solutions to the equation.

Theorem 8.4

A solution to the equation $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ where $x, y, z \in \{1,2\}$ is inconceivable if (p, p+2, p+6) is a prime triplet of the form (4n+3, 4n+5, 4n+9) for suitable $n \in \mathcal{N}$.

Proof:

This theorem is showed by the succeeding eight cases as in theorem 8.3.

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then, $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 4n + 3 + 4n + 5 + 4n + 9 = M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 12n + 17 = M^2$

This is not true for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$. This statement is confirmed by the succeeding MATLAB Program.

```
clc; clear \ all; n = input('Enter \ a \ natural \ number \ n'); for \ i = 1:n
```

$$p1 = 4 * i + 3; p2 = 4 * i + 5; p3 = 4 * i + 9;$$
 $if(isprime(p1) == 1 \& isprime(p2) == 1 \& isprime(p3) == 1)$
 $MS = 12 * n + 11;$
 $M = sqrt(MS);$
 $if(rem(M,1) == 0)$
 $fprintf('p1 = %d, p2 = %d, p3 = %d, M = %d', p1, p2, p3, M)$
 end
 end
 end
 end
 $Case 2: x = 2, y = 1, z = 1$

The required equation to be solved becomes

$$(4n+3)^{2} + (4n+5) + (4n+9) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 32n + 23 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+4)^{2} + 7 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+4)^{2} = 7$$

This declaration is true only when M=4 and 4n+4=3. But there is no $n \in \mathcal{N}$ sustaining the condition 4n+4=3.

Case 3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

The developed equation can be modified into

$$(4n + 3) + (4n + 5)^{2} + (4n + 9) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 48n + 37 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 6)^{2} + 1 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n + 6)^{2} = 1$$

As is case 2 of theorem 2.1, this is impossible.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

The given equation can be rewritten as

$$(4n+3) + (4n+5) + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^2 + 80n + 89 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+10)^2 - 11 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+10)^2 - M^2 = 11$$

$$\Rightarrow M = 5 \text{ and } 4n + 10 = 6$$

But for any $n \in N$, 4n + 10 = 6 is not possible.

Case 5 :
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

The stated equation becomes

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5)^2 + (4n+9) = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 68n + 43 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 2$$

The considered equation is converted into

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5) + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$
$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 100n + 95 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

These options of the variables reduce the scrutinized equation into

$$(4n + 3) + (4n + 5)^{2} + (4n + 9)^{2} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^{2} + 116n + 109 = M^{2}$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

The equation in which solutions to be discovered becomes

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5)^2 + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 48n^2 + 136n + 115 = M^2$$

As in theorem 8.3, in this theorem also case 5 to case 8 does not yield the solution to an equation. Hence, there exists no solution in the integer to the given equation.

Theorem 8.5

There are infinitely many solutions to the equation $p^x + (p+4)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ if (p, p+4, p+6) is a prime triplet the form (4n+1, 4n+5, 4n+7) for selected $n \in \mathcal{N}$, x, y, z are either of 1 or 2.

Proof:

The theorem is proved as in previous two theorems.

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then, $p^x + (p+4)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 4n + 1 + 4n + 5 + 4n + 7 == M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 12n + 13 = M^2$

It is observed from the following MATLAB Program, there are enormous prime triplets can be extracted. For instance, if n = 3, 9, 69, 153 provides the prime triplets (13, 17, 19), (31, 41, 43), (277, 281, 283), (613, 617, 619) as solutions to the designated equation.

clc; clear all;
n = input('Enter a natural number n');

$$for i = 1:n$$
 $p1 = 4 * i + 1; p2 = 4 * i + 5; p3 = 4 * i + 7;$
 $if (isprime(p1) == 1 \& isprime(p2) == 1 \& isprime(p3) == 1)$
 $MS = 12 * n + 13;$
 $M = sqrt(MS);$
 $if (rem(M,1) == 0)$
 $fprintf ('p1 = %d, p2 = %d, p3 = %d, M = %d', p1, p2, p3, M)$
 end
 end
 end

The assumed equation becomes

Case 2: x = 2, y = 1, z = 1

$$(4n+1)^{2} + (4n+5) + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 16n + 13 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+2)^{2} + 9 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+2)^{2} = 9$$

This is achievable only when M=5 and 4n+2=4. However, for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the equation 4n+2=4 is invalid.

Case 3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

The elected choices of x, y, z minimizes the given equation as

$$(4n + 1) + (4n + 5)^2 + (4n + 7) = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 6n^2 + 48n + 33 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+6)^2 - 3 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+6)^2 - M^2 = 3$$

Therefore, 4n + 6 = 2 and M = 1 are the only values that enable the above equation to be accomplished. But 4n + 6 = 2 is not conceivable for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

For these options of x, y, z, the equation to be resolved is

$$(4n + 1) + (4n + 5) + (4n + 7)^{2} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 64n + 55 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - 9 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - M^{2} = 9$$

The only values which attain the above condition are 4n + 8 = 5 and M = 4.

But for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$, 4n + 8 = 5 is not possible.

Case 5:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

Therefore, the original equation is converted into the quadratic equation as follows

$$32n^2 + 52n + 33 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 2$$

Then, the equation is altered into the quadratic equation in n as given below.

$$32n^2 + 68n + 55 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

The similar form of the given equation is

$$32n^2 + 100n + 75 = M^2$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

The identical from of the considered equation is

$$48n^2 + 104n + 75 = M^2$$

As the explanation given in theorem 8.3, there is no solution in integers for the cases listed above from 5 to 8.

Hence, the combinations of all the cases of x, y, z are not solutions to an equation.

Theorem 8.6

Any $n \in \mathcal{N}$ such that p = 4n + 3 is a prime number and (p, p + 4, p + 6) is a prime triplet, then $p^x + (p + 4)^y + (p + 6)^z = M^2$ has no solution when x, y, z are either 1 or 2.

Proof:

The proof is analogous to theorem 8.3

Remarks:

- (i) If $(p_1, p_2, p_3) = (2, 3, 5)$, then the possible solutions of $2^x + 3^y + 5^z = M^2$ are (x, y, z, M) = (1, 2, 1, 4) and (1, 2, 2, 6).
- (ii) If $(p_1, p_2, p_3) = (3, 5, 7)$, then there is no solution to the proposed equation $3^x + 5^y + 7^z = M^2$.

Chapter-IX

Application of Linear Diophantine Equation in Chemistry

CHAPTER - IX

Application of Linear Diophantine Equation in Chemistry

In Section 9.1, it is exhibited with few examples of how to use the linear Diophantine equation to contract the molecular formulae of organic or inorganic chemical compounds in order to determine their structure.

9.1 Usage of Linear Diophantine Equation in the Resolution of Molecular Formulae for Various Chemical Substances

Needed Theorem [1]

The linear Diophantine equation ax + by = c has a solution if and only if d divides c where d = gcd(a, b). Furthermore, if (x_0, y_0) is a solution of this equation, then the set of solutions of the equation consists of all pairs (x, y) where $x = x_0 + t \frac{b}{d}$ and $y = y_0 - t \frac{a}{d}$, $t \in \mathcal{Z}$.

9.1.1 Determination of Chemical Molecular Formulae

Enabling the possibility that a chemical substance with a molecular weight W encompasses elements A_1 , A_2 and A_3 with atomic weights a_1 , a_2 and a_3 respectively and that the numbers X, Y and Z represent the number of atoms of elements A_1 , A_2 and A_3 visible in each of the elements' molecules. Then, it is obtained that

$$a_1X + a_2Y + a_3Z = W (9.1)$$

Let α_1 , α_2 and α_3 constitutes the integers closest to the values a_1 , a_2 and a_3 and let w signify the integer closest to the value W.

Then the similar form of linear Diophantine equation (9.1) to be solved is represented by

$$\alpha_1 X + \alpha_2 Y + \alpha_3 Z = w \tag{9.2}$$

If a limit is imposed on the integers X, Y and Z in (9.1), then (9.2) can be solved under a restriction

$$|(a_1 - \alpha_1)X + (a_2 - \alpha_2)Y + (a_3 - \alpha_3)Z| < |W - w|$$
(9.3)

If more solutions of (9.2) are retrieved, then the genuine values can be found by substituting them in (9.1) and assessing which satisfies (9.2) with the least significant deviation from W.

The process of finding molecular formulae for three chemical substances using the linear Diophantine equation is enlightened as follows.

9.1.2 Molecular Formula for Substance 1

Consider substance 1 as the chemical compound comprising Carbon, Hydrogen, and Oxygen has a molecular weight of 342.2965 g/mol.

Let *X*, *Y* and *Z* stand for the number of atoms of Carbon, Hydrogen and Oxygen respectively. Consider the first-degree Diophantine equation as

$$12.0107X + 1.00784Y + 15.999Z = 342.2965$$
 (9.4)

where 12.0107u, 1.00784u and 15.999u are the atomic weights of Carbon, Hydrogen and Oxygen respectively.

Next, it is clear that $\alpha_1 = 12$, $\alpha_2 = 1$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and w = 342.

Furthermore, the corresponding linear form of (9.4) to discover molecular formula is converted into

$$12X + Y + 16Z = 34 \tag{9.5}$$

subject to the constraint

$$|0.0107X + 0.00784Y - 0.001Z| < 0.2965$$

which provides that $X \le 12, Y \le 23, Z \le 13$

Modify (9.5) as in the following form

$$12X + Y = 342 + 16T$$
 where $Z = -T$

Then, its common solution is given by

$$X = 28 + K$$

$$Y = 6 + 16T - 12K, K, T \in \mathcal{Z}.$$

It is assured that the values of X, Y, Z must be greater than 0. Hence, it is enabled to discover the ranges for T and K.

Now,

$$X > 0 \Rightarrow 28 + K > 0 \Rightarrow K > -28$$

$$Y > 0 \Rightarrow 6 + 16T - 12K > 0 \Rightarrow 8T - 6K > -3$$

$$Z > 0 \Rightarrow -T > 0 \Rightarrow T < 0$$

In particular, if T = -1, then 8T - 6K > -3 leads to K < 1.

Thus, the range for K should be -28 < K < 1.

Continuing the process for T = -2, T = -3, ..., T = -21, it is received that K < 1.

But for T = -22, K < -29 contradicting -28 < K < 1.

Thus, the range for T should be $-22 < T \le -1$.

Therefore, there exist 588 solutions in combinations of *T* and *K*.

Eliminate the solutions which violating the conditions that 0 < X < 13, 0 < Y < 24 and 0 < Z < 14 by the succeeding MATLAB Program:

clear all; clc;

for
$$t = -21:-1$$

for
$$k = -27:0$$

$$x = 28 + k$$
;

$$y = 6 + 16 * t - 12 * k;$$

$$z = -t$$
;

$$if \ (x < 13 \&\& \ y < 24 \&\& \ z < 14)$$

$$fprintf('x = \%d, y = \%d, z = \%d \backslash n', x, y, z)$$
 end
$$end$$
 end

The residual solutions which satisfy the necessary conditions are listed in table 9.1.

Table 9.1

X	Y	Z
10	14	13
11	2	13
11	18	12
12	6	12
12	22	11

Note that the last two solutions represent the compounds $C_{12}H_6O_{12}$ (Mellitic acid) and $C_{12}H_{22}O_{11}$ (Sucrose or Table Sugar) with molar mass 342.16 g/mol and 342.2965 g/mol respectively.

Therefore, the exact solution is $C_{12}H_{22}O_{11}$.

9.1.3 Molecular Formula for Substance 2

Let us choose substance 2 as the chemical compound with a molecular weight of 98.079 g/mol and a mixture of Hydrogen, Sulphur, and Oxygen.

Let X, Y and Z be the number of atoms of Hydrogen, Sulphur, and Oxygen with respective atomic mass 1.00784u, 32.065u and 15.999u respectively.

As in Section 9.1.2, choose the linear Diophantine equation in three variables as

$$1.00784X + 32.065Y + 15.999Z = 98.079$$

Clearly, $\alpha_1 = 1$, $\alpha_2 = 32$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and w = 98.

Consequently, let us solve the ensuing linear Diophantine equation

$$X + 32Y + 16Z = 98 \tag{9.6}$$

subject to the restriction

$$|0.0078X + 0.065Y - 0.001Z| < 0.079$$

The upper limit for the choices of X, Y and Z are noted by

$$X \le 3, Y \le 1, Z \le 4 \tag{9.7}$$

From (9.6),
$$X = 98 - 32Y - 16Z > 0$$
, $Y > 0$ and $Z > 0$. (9.8)

All the possibilities of X, Y and Z supporting (9.8) are evaluated by $\{(50,1,1), (18,2,1), (34,1,2), (2,2,2), (18,1,3), (2,1,4)\}$

The only choice of (X, Y, Z) that satisfies (9.7) is (2,1,4).

Hence, the component is H_2SO_4 , which is Sulphuric Acid with a molar mass 98.079 g/mol.

9.1.4 Molecular Formula for Substance 3

Consider Substance 3 is a combination of Zinc, Sulphur, and Oxygen having a molecular weight of 161.47 g/mol.

Let X, Y and Z be the number of atoms of Zinc, Sulphur, and Oxygen with respective atomic mass 65.38u, 32.065u and 15.999u respectively.

As in the previous two sections, the equation to be resolved is

$$65.38 X + 32.065 Y + 15.999 Z = 161.47 (9.9)$$

With the same notations as in section 9.1.2, $\alpha_1 = 65$, $\alpha_2 = 32$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and $\omega = 161$.

Then, an equivalent form of (9.9) to be solved is taken as

$$65X + 32Y + 16Z = 161 \tag{9.10}$$

together with the condition that

$$|0.38X + 0.065Y - 0.001Z| < 0.47$$

The options of such X, Y and Z in (9.10) are viewed by

$$X \le 1, Y \le 1, Z \le 444$$

Since X, Y and Z are positive, the only possibility of X and Y are pointed out by

$$X = 1, Y = 1$$

Now, rearrange (9.10) in the form as given below

$$65X + 16U = 161 \tag{9.11}$$

where
$$U = 2Y + Z$$
 (9.12)

In (9.11), gcd(65,16) = 1 and 1 divide 161.

Also, the least solution to (9.11) is taken as $X_0 = 161$ and $U_0 = -644$

Hence by theorem [I], there exists infinitely many integer solutions to (9.11) which are represented by

$$X = 161 + 16T \tag{9.13}$$

$$U = -644 - 65T \tag{9.14}$$

where $T \in \mathcal{Z}$

Since X = 1, the chance of T is evaluated from (9.13) as

$$T = -10$$

Note that (9.12) is satisfied by $Y_0 = U$ and $Z_0 = -U$. Also, gcd(2,1) = 1

Again, by Theorem [I] the infinitely many solutions to (9.12) are received by

$$Y = U + K = -644 - 65T + K \tag{9.15}$$

$$Z = -U - 2K = 644 - 65T - 2K, K \in \mathcal{Z}$$
(9.16)

Since Y = 1, the value of K is calculated from (9.15) by

$$K = -5$$

Substituting the values of T and K in (9.16), it is determined that

$$Z = 4$$

The only solution that satisfies (9.10) is (X, Y, Z) = (1,1,4).

Hence, the component is $ZnSO_4$, which is Zinc Sulphate with a molar mass 161.47 g/mol.



CONCLUSION

In this dissertation, peculiar patterns of numbers baptized as Cheldhiya, Cheldhiya Companion, Pan-San, Pan-San Comrade, Pan-San Buddy, and Pan-San Mate sequences are being emphasized by assigning specific values for a square free integer d in the worldwide recognized Pell equation $y^2 = dx^2 \pm 1$ and topographies of all these sequences are investigated by utilizing the normalizing technique in Matrices.

Variety of triples which comprise all the above consequent sequences sustaining numerous characteristics are explored. Conclusions have also been made for integer quadruples and quintuples that have exclusive properties.

The congruence relationship and divisibility properties between Pell and Pell Lucas numbers has also been illustrated. Certain theorems have been successfully proved by employing these congruence relations.

In addition to this, procedures for acquiring an infinitely large number of non-zero integer solutions in terms of Pell numbers, Pell-Lucas numbers, Jacobsthal as well as Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers for various second-degree Diophantine equations consisting two variables are assessed.

Some Mordell-type Diophantine equations of the form $y^2 = x^3 + k$ for selected values of k have been displayed and proved that some of them have limited number of integer solutions, few of them have no solutions.

Analyses for equations having finite number of integer solutions are also being done on exponential Diophantine equations that embrace natural numbers and prime numbers with the assistance of elementary concepts of Mathematics.

Investigations are being carried out on the possibility of applications of linear Diophantine equations subject to certain restrictions in Chemistry especially for determining the molecular formulae of chemical compounds.



Bibliography

- [1] Aggarwal, Sudhanshu, and Sanjay Kumar, "On the Exponential Diophantine Equation $19^{2m} + (6\gamma + 1)^n = \rho^2$ ", (2021).
- [2] Alaca, Saban, and Kenneth S. Williams, "Introductory algebraic number theory." Cambridge Univ. Press, (2003).
- [3] Andreescu, Titu, and Dorin Andrica, "Why Quadratic Diophantine Equations?", *Quadratic Diophantine Equations. Springer, New York*, (2015): 1-8.
- [4] Andreescu, Titu, Dorin Andrica, and Ion Cucurezeanu, "An introduction to Diophantine equations: a problem-based approach", *New York: Birkhäuser*, (2010).
- [5] Andrews, George E., "Number theory", Courier Corporation, (1994).
- [6] Bach, Eric, et al., "Algorithmic number theory: Efficient algorithms", Vol. 1. *MIT press*, (1996).
- [7] Banyut Sroysang, "On the Diophantine equation $7^x + 8^y = z^2$ ", International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 84.1 (2013), 111-114.
- [8] Bashmakova, I. G., "Diophantus of Alexandria, Arithmetics and the Book of Polygonal Numbers", (1974): 85-86.
- [9] Beardon, Alan F., and M. N. Deshpande., "Diophantine triples", *The Mathematical Gazette* 86.506 (2002): 258-261.
- [10] Bender, Edward A., and Norman P. Herzberg, "Some Diophantine equations related to the quadratic form $ax^2 + by^2$ ", *American Mathematical Society* 81.1 (1975).

- [11] Bennett, Michael A., and Amir Ghadermarzi., "Mordell's equation: a classical Approach", *LMS Journal of Computation and Mathematics* 18.1 (2015): 633-646.
- [12] Boeyens, Jan CA, and Demetrius C. Levendis., "Number theory and the periodicity of matter", *Springer Science & Business Media*, (2007).
- [13] Borosh, I., "A sharp bound for positive solutions of homogeneous linear Diophantine equations", *Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society* 60.1 (1976): 19-21.
- [14] Brenner, J. L., and Lorraine Foster., "Exponential diophantine equations", Pacific Journal of Mathematics 101.2 (1982): 263-301.
- [15] Bueno, A. C. F., "A Note on (k, h)-Jacobsthal Sequence", *International Journal* of Mathematics and Scientific Computing 3.2 (2013)
- [16] Bugeaud, Yann, Andrej Dujella, and Maurice Mignotte, "On the family of Diophantine triples $\{k-1,k+1,16k\ 3-4k\}$ ", *Glasgow Mathematical Journal* 49.2 (2007): 333-344.
- [17] Burshtein, Nechemia., "A note on the Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 19.1 (2019): 19-20.
- [18] Burshtein, Nechemia., "A note on the Diophantine equation $p^3 + q^2 = z^4$ when p is prime", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 14.3 (2017): 509-511.
- [19] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the solutions of the Diophantine equations $(p+1)^x p^y = z^2$ and $p^y (p+1)^x = z^2$ when p is prime and x + y = 2, 3, 4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 19.1 (2019): 53-57.

- [20] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the Solutions of the Diophantine Equation $p^x + p^y = z^4$ when $p \ge 2$ is Prime and x, y, z are Positive Integers", *Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics* 21.2 (2020): 125-128.
- [21] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the Solutions of the Diophantine Equations $p^x + (p+1)^y + (p+2)^z = M^3$ when p is Prime and $1 \le x, y, z \le 2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 23.1 (2021): 7-15.
- [22] Burshtein, Nechemia., "Solutions of the Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+6)^y = z^2$ when p, (p+6) are primes and x + y = 2, 3, 4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 17.1 (2018): 101-106.
- [23] Burshtein, Nechemia., "Solutions of the Diophantine Equations $p^x + (p+1)^y + (p+2)^z = M^2$ for Primes $p \ge 2$ when $1 \le x, y, z \le 2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 22.1 (2020): 41-49.
- [24] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the solutions of the Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p+4)^y = z^2$ when p, (p+4) are Primes and x+y=2, 3, 4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 16.1 (2018): 241 -244.
- [25] Burshtein, Nechemia., "Solutions of the Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+6)^y = z^2$ when p, (p+6) are primes and x + y = 2, 3, 4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 17.1 (2018): 101 106.
- [26] Campos, H., P. Catarino, A. P. Aires, P. Vasco, and A. Borges., "On some identities of *k*-Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers", *Int. Journal of Math. Analysis* 8.10 (2014): 489-494.
- [27] Carmichael, Robert Daniel. "The Theory of Numbers, and Diophantine Analysis". Vol. 1. *Dover Publications*, (1959).

- [28] Catarino, Paula., "On some identities and generating functions for *k*-Pell numbers", *International Journal of Mathematical Analysis* 7.38 (2013): 1877-1884.
- [29] Chan, Stephanie, et al., "On the negative Pell equation", arXiv preprint arXiv:1908.01752 (2019).
- [30] Chevalley, Claude., "Introduction to the theory of algebraic functions of one variable", No.6. *American Mathematical Soc.*, (1951).
- [31] Clausen, Michael, and Albrecht Fortenbacher., "Efficient solution of linear Diophantine equations", *Journal of Symbolic Computation* 8.1-2 (1989): 201-216.
- [32] Cohen, Henri, S. Axler, and K. A. Ribet., "Number theory: Volume I: Tools and Diophantine equations", Vol. 560. *Springer New York*, (2007).
- [33] Cohn, J. H. E., "Lucas and Fibonacci numbers and some Diophantine equations", *Glasgow Mathematical Journal* 7.1 (1965): 24-28.
- [34] Contejean, Evelyne, and Hervé Devie., "An efficient incremental algorithm for solving systems of linear diophantine equations", *Information and computation* 113.1 (1994): 143-172.
- [35] Conway, John H., and Richard Guy., "The book of numbers", *Springer Science & Business Media*, (1998).
- [36] Crocker, Roger., "Application of Diophantine equations to problems in chemistry", *Journal of Chemical Education* 45.11 (1968): 731-733.
- [37] Dasdemir, Ahmet., "On the Pell, Pell-Lucas and modified Pell numbers by matrix method", *Applied Mathematical Sciences* 5.64 (2011): 3173-3181.

- [38] Davenport, Harold., "Multiplicative number theory", Vol. 74. Springer Science & Business Media, (2013).
- [39] Demirtürk, Bahar, and Refik Keskin., "Integer solutions of some Diophantine equations via Fibonacci and Lucas numbers", *J. Integer Seq* 12.8 (2009): 8.
- [40] Deshpande, M. N., "Families of Diophantine triplets", *Bulletin of the Marathwada mathematical society* 4 (2003): 19-21.
- [41] Deshpande, M. N., "One interesting family of Diophantine triplets", *International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology* 33.2 (2002): 253-256.
- [42] Dickson, L. E., "Sum of cubes of numbers in arithmetical progression a square", *Ch. XXI in History of the Theory of Numbers, vol. 2: Diophantine Analysis*. Dover New York, (2005): 585-588.
- [43] Dickson, Leonard Eugene., "History of the Theory of Numbers: Quadratic and Higher Forms," Vol. 3. *Courier Corporation*, (2012).
- [44] Dokchan, Rakporn, and Apisit Pakapongpun., "On the Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p+20)^y = z^2$, where p and p+20 are primes", *International Journal of Mathematics and Computer Science* 16 (2021): 179-183.
- [45] Dujella, Andrej, and Vinko Petričcević., "Strong Diophantine triples", *Experimental Mathematics* 17.1 (2008): 83-89.
- [46] Dujella, Andrej., "Diophantine quadruples for squares of Fibonacci and Lucas numbers", *Portugaliae Mathematica* 52.3 (1995): 305-318.
- [47] Dujella, Andrej., "There are only finitely many Diophantine quintuples", (2004): 183-214.

- [48] Ellison, W. J., et al, "The Diophantine equation $y^2 + k = x^3$ ", *Journal of Number Theory* 4, 107-117 (1972).
- [49] Elsholtz, Christian, Alan Filipin, and Yasutsugu Fujita., "On Diophantine quintuples and D (-1)-quadruples", *Monatshefte für Mathematik* 175.2 (2014): 227-239.
- [50] Esmaeili, Hamid., "How can we solve a linear Diophantine equation by the basis reduction algorithm", *International Journal of Computer Mathematics* 82.10 (2005): 1227-1234.
- [51] Fouvry, Étienne, and Jürgen Klüners., "On the negative Pell equation", *Annals of mathematics* (2010): 2035-2104.
- [52] Fröhlich, Albrecht, Martin J. Taylor, and Martin J. Taylor, "Algebraic number theory", No. 27. *Cambridge University Press*, (1991).
- [53] Fuchs, Clemens, Florian Luca, and Laszlo Szalay., "Diophantine triples with values in binary recurrences", *Annali della Scuola normale superiore di Pisa-Classe di scienze* 7.4 (2008): 579-608.
- [54] Fujita, Yasutsugu., "The number of Diophantine quintuples", *Glasnik matematički* 45.1 (2010): 15-29.
- [55] Gayo Jr, William Sobredo, and Jerico Bravo Bacani., "On the Diophantine Equation $M_p^x + (M_q + 1)^y = z^2$ ", European Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 14.2 (2021): 396-403.
- [56] Gebel, Josef, Attila Pethö, and Horst G. Zimmer., "On Mordell's Equation", *Compositio Mathematica* 110.3 (1998): 335-367.
- [57] Gómez Ruiz, Carlos Alexis, and Florian Luca., "Tribonacci Diophantine quadruples", *Glasnik matematički* 50.1 (2015): 17-24.

- [58] Gopalan, M. A., and V. Geetha., "Sequences of Diophantine triples", *JP Journal of Mathematical Sciences* 14.1 (2015): 27-39.
- [59] Gopalan, M. A., K. Geetha, and Manju Somanath., "Special Dio 3-tuples", *Bulletin of Society for Mathematical Services & Standards* 3.2 (2014): 41-45.
- [60] Gopalan, M. A., Manju Somanath and N. Vanitha, "On Ternary Cubic Diophantine Equation $X^2 + Y^2 = 2Z^3$ ", *Advances in Theoretical and Applied Mathematics* 53.1 (2006): 227-231.
- [61] Gopalan, M. A., V. Geetha, and V. Kiruthika., "On Two Special Integer Triples in Arithmetic Progression", *Open Journal of Applied & Theoretical Mathematics (OJATM)* 2.1 (2016): 01-07.
- [62] Gopalan, M. A., V. Sangeetha, and Manju Somanath., "Construction of the Diophantine Triple involving polygonal numbers", Sch. *J. Eng. Tech* 2.1 (2014): 19-22.
- [63] Guo, Yongdong, and Mao Hua Le., "A note on the exponential Diophantine equation $x^2 2^m = y^n$ ", *Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society* 123.12 (1995): 3627-3629.
- [64] Gupta, Hansraj, and K. Singh., "On k-traid sequences", *International journal of mathematics and mathematical sciences* 8.4 (1985): 799-804.
- [65] Gupta, Sani, Rajiv Kumar, and Satish Kumar., "On the Non-Linear Diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 2)^y = z^2$ ", Ilkogretim Online 19.1 (2020): 472-47.
- [66] Hardy, Godfrey Harold, and Edward Maitland Wright., "An introduction to the theory of numbers", *Oxford university press*, (1979).

- [67] Hasse, Helmut, and Horst Günter Zimmer, "Number theory", *Berlin: Springer*, (1980).
- [68] Heath, Thomas L., "Diophantus of Alexandria: A study in the history of Greek algebra", *CUP Archive*, (1910).
- [69] He, Bo, Florian Luca, and Alain Togbé., "Diophantine triples of Fibonacci numbers", *Acta Arith* 175 (2016): 57-70.
- [70] Hoggatt, V. E., and Marjorie Bcknell Johnson., "Divisibility by Fibonacci and Lucas squares", (1977).
- [71] Imomov, Azam, and Yorqin T. Khodjaev., "On Some Methods for Solution of Linear Diophantine Equations", *Universal Journal of Mathematics and Applications* 3.2: 86-92.
- [72] Jacobson, Michael J., and Hugh C. Williams, "Solving the Pell equation", *New York: Springer*, (2009).
- [73] Jafari-Petroudia, Seyyed Hossein, and Behzad Pirouzb., "On some properties of (k,h)-Pell sequence and (k,h)-Pell-Lucas ssequence", *Int. J. Adv. Appl. Math.* and Mech 3.1 (2015): 98-101.
- [74] James Matteson, M. D., "A Collection of Diophantine Problems with Solutions", *Washington, Arte mas Martin*, (1888).
- [75] Jhala, Deepika, Kiran Sisodiya, and G. P. S. Rathore., "On some identities for *k*-Jacobsthal numbers", *Int. J. Math. Anal. (Ruse)* 7.12 (2013): 551-556.
- [76] Kalman, Dan, and Robert Mena., "The Fibonacci numbers—exposed", *Mathematics magazine* 76.3 (2003): 167-181.

- [77] Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk Bitim., "Fibonacci and Lucas congruences and their applications", *Acta Mathematica Sinica, English Series* 27.4 (2011): 725-736.
- [78] Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk., "Solutions of Some Diophantine Equations Using Generalized Fibonacci and Lucas Sequences", *Ars Comb.* 111 (2013): 161-179.
- [79] Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk., "Some new Fibonacci and Lucas identities by matrix methods", *International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology* 41.3 (2010): 379-387.
- [80] Keskin, Refik, and Zafer Şiar., "Positive integer solutions of some Diophantine equations in terms of integer sequences", *Afrika Matematika* 30.1 (2019): 181-194.
- [81] Keskin, Refik, Olcay Karaatlı, and Zafer Yosma., "On the Diophantine equation $x^2 kxy + y^2 + 2^n = 0$ ", *Miskolc Mathematical Notes* 13.2 (2012): 375-388.
- [82] Keskin, Refik., "Solutions of some quadratic Diophantine equations", *Computers & Mathematics with Applications* 60.8 (2010): 2225-2230.
- [83] Klaska, J., "Real-world Applications of Number Theory", *South Bohemia Mathematical letters* 25.1 (2017): 39-47.
- [84] Koblitz, Neal., "A course in number theory and cryptography", Vol. 114. Springer Science & Business Media, (1994).
- [85] Koken, Fikri, and Durmus Bozkurt., "On the Jacobsthal-Lucas numbers by matrix methods", *Int. J. Contemp. Math. Sciences* 3.33 (2008): 1629-1633.

- [86] Koparal, S., and N. Ömür., "Some congruences involving Catalan, Pell and Fibonacci numbers", *Mathematica Montisnigri* 48 (2020): 10-18.
- [87] Koshy, Thomas, "Elementary number theory with applications", *Academic press*, (2002).
- [88] Koshy, Thomas., "Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications" *Volume 2. John Wiley & Sons*, (2019).
- [89] Koshy, Thomas., "Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers with applications", *New York: Springer*, (2014).
- [90] Kumar, Satish, Sani Gupta, and Hari Kishan., "On the Non-Linear Diophantine Equation $61^x + 67^y = z^2$ and $67^x + 73^y = z^2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 18.1 (2018): 91-94.
- [91] Lan, Li, and László Szalay., "On the exponential diophantine equation $(a^n 1)(b^n 1) = x^2$ ", Publ. Math. Debrecen 77.3-4 (2010): 465-470.
- [92] Lawther Jr, H. P., "An application of number theory to the splicing of telephone cables", *The American Mathematical Monthly* 42.2 (1935): 81-91.
- [93] Le, Maohua, Reese Scott, and Robert Styer., "A Survey on the Ternary Purely Exponential Diophantine Equation $a^x + b^y = c^z$ ", arXiv preprint arXiv:1808.06557 (2018).
- [94] Le, Maohua., "Some exponential Diophantine equations. I. The equation $D_1 x^2 D_2 y^2 = \lambda k^z$ ", Journal of Number Theory 55.2 (1995): 209-221.
- [95] Lenstra Jr, Hendrik W., "Solving the Pell equation", *Notices of the AMS* 49.2 (2002): 182-192.
- [96] Luca, Florian, and László Szalay., "Fibonacci diophantine triples", *Glasnik matematički* 43.2 (2008): 253-264.

- [97] Luca, Florian, and Roger Oyono., "An exponential Diophantine equation related to powers of two consecutive Fibonacci numbers", *Proceedings of the Japan Academy, Series A, Mathematical Sciences* 87.4 (2011): 45-50.
- [98] Marlewski, A., and Piotr Zarzycki., "Infinitely many positive solutions of the Diophantine equation $x^2 kxy + y^2 + x = 0$ ", Computers & Mathematics with Applications 47.1 (2004): 115-121.
- [99] Matteson, James., "A collection of Diophantine problems with solutions", (2010).
- [100] Matthews K., "The Diophantine Equation $x^2 Dy^2 = N, D > 0$ ", Expositiones Math. 18 (2000): 323–331.
- [101] McDaniel, Wayne, L., "Diophantine representation of Lucas sequences", *The Fibonacci Quarterly* 33 (1995): 58–63.
- [102] Meena, K., Vidhyalakshmi, S., Gopalan, M. A., AarthyThangam, S., "Special Integer Quadruple in Arithmetic Progression", *International Journal of Recent Trends in Engineering and* Research 3.5 (2017).
- [103] Melham, R., "Sums involving Fibonacci and Pell numbers", *Portugaliae Mathematica* 56.3 (1999): 309-318.
- [104] Melham, Ray., "Conics which characterize certain Lucas sequences", *Fibonacci Quarterly* (1997).
- [105] Mignotte, Maurice, and Benjamin MM de Weger., "On the diophantine equations $x^2 + 74 = y^5$ and $x^2 + 86 = y^5$ ", Glasgow Mathematical Journal 38.1 (1996): 77-85.
- [106] Miyazaki, Takafumi, and Nobuhiro Terai., "On the exponential Diophantine equation", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society* 90.1 (2014): 9-19.

- [107] Mollin, Richard A., "Quadratic Diophantine Equations $x^2 Dy^2 = c^n$ ", Bulletin of the Irish Mathematical Society 58 (2006).
- [108] Mordell, Louis Joel, "A Statement by Fermat", *Proceedings of the London Math. Soc.* 18 (1920).
- [109] Mordell, Louis Joel, "Diophantine equations", Academic press, (1969).
- [110] Nagell, Trygve., "Introduction to number theory", Vol. 163. American Mathematical Soc., (2021).
- [111] Niven, Ivan, Herbert S. Zuckerman, and Hugh L. Montgomery, "An introduction to the theory of numbers", *John Wiley & Sons*, (1991).
- [112] Niven, Ivan., "Quadratic Diophantine equations in the rational and quadratic fields", *Transactions of the American Mathematical Society* 52.1 (1942): 1-11.
- [113] Ore, Oystein, "Number theory and its history", Courier Corporation, (1988).
- [114] Panda, G. K., and Asim Patra., "Exact divisibility by powers of the Pell and Associated Pell numbers", *Proceedings-Mathematical Sciences* 131.2 (2021): 1-9.
- [115] Pandichelvi, V., "Construction of the Diophantine triple involving polygonal numbers", *Impact J. Sci. Tech* 5.1 (2011): 07-11.
- [116] Pandichelvi, V., and Sivakamasundari, P., Gopalan, M. A., "On the negative Pell equation $y^2 = 54x^2 5$ ", *International Journal of Mathematics Trends and Technology* 21.1, (2015): 16-20.
- [117] Pandichelvi, V., and Sivakamasundari, P., "The Sequence of Diophantine Triples involving Half Compaion Sequence and Pell Numbers", *International Journal of Recent Scientific Research* 8.7, (2017): 18482-18484.

- [118] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "Evaluation of an attractive integer triple", *Asian Journal of Science and Technology* 8.11 (2017): 6534-6540.
- [119] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "Formation of triples consist some special numbers with interesting property", *International Research Journal of Engineering and Technology* 4.7 (2017): 10-13.
- [120] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "Integral solutions of the binary quadratic equation $12(x + y) + 6xy = 7x^2 3y^2$ ", *Jamal Academic Research Journal* (2016): 313-316.
- [121] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "Integral solutions of the bi-quadratic Diophantine equation $13(x^2 y^2) + x + y = 128z^4$ ", Open Journal of Applied ad Theoritical Mathematis 2.2 (2016): 58-64.
- [122] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "Matrix Representation of K-Fibonacci Sequence", *International Journal of Engineering Science and Computing* 6.10 (2016): 2981-2985.
- [123] Pandichelvi, V., Sivakamasundari, P., "On the extendibility of the sequences of Diophantine triples into quadruples involving Pell numbers", *International Journal of Current Advanced Research* 6.11 (2017): 7197-7202.
- [124] Papp, Dávid, and Béla Vizvári., "Effective solution of linear Diophantine equation systems with an application in chemistry," *Journal of Mathematical Chemistry* 39.1 (2006): 15-31.
- [125] Pell's Equation from Wikipedia, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pell%27s_equation
- [126] Poonen, Bjorn., "Some diophantine equations of the form $x^n + y^n = z^m$ ", Acta Arithmetica 86.3 (1998): 193-205.

- [127] Rabago, Julius Fergy T., "A note on two Diophantine equations $17^x + 19^y = z^2$ and $71^x + 73^y = z^2$ ", Mathematical Journal of Interdisciplinary Sciences 2.1 (2013): 19-24.
- [128] Rabinowitz, Stanley., "Algorithmic manipulation of third-order linear recurrences", *Fibonacci Quarterly* 34 (1996): 447-463.
- [129] Ribenboim, Paulo., "My numbers, my friends: Popular lectures on number theory", *Springer Science & Business Media*, (2006).
- [130] Rihane, Salah Eddine, et al., "On the exponential Diophantine equation $P_n^x + P_{n+1}^x = P_m$ ", Turkish Journal of Mathematics 43.3 (2019): 1640-1649.
- [131] Schmidt, Wolfgang M., "Diophantine approximations and Diophantine equations." *Springer*, (2006).
- [132] Shapiro, Harold N, "Introduction to the Theory of Numbers", *Courier Corporation*, (2008).
- [133] Silverman, Joseph H., "Advanced topics in the arithmetic of elliptic curves", Vol. 151. Springer Science & Business Media, (1994).
- [134] Sroysang, B., "On the diophantine equation $5^x + 7^y = z^2$ ", Int. J. Pure Appl.

 Math. 89 (2013): 115 118.
- [135] Sroysang, Banyat, "More on the Diophantine Equation $8^x + 19^y = z^2$ ", International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 81.4 (2012): 601-604.
- [136] Stark H. M., "An Introduction to Number Theory", *MIT Press*, Cambridge, 1978.
- [137] Steiner, Ray P, "On Mordell's equation $y^2 k = x^3$: a problem of Stolarsky", *Mathematics of computation* 46.174 (1986): 703-714.

- [138] Su, Juanli, and Xiaoxue Li., "The exponential Diophantine equation." *Abstract and Applied Analysis*. Vol. 2014. Hindawi, (2014).
- [139] Suvarnamani, A., "On the Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ " International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 94.5 (2014): 689-692.
- [140] Suvarnamani, Alongkot., "Solution of the Diophantine Equation $p^x + q^y = z^2$ ", International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 94.4 (2014): 457-460.
- [141] Tatong, M., and A. Suvarnamani., "On the Diophantine Equation $(p+1)^{2x}+q^y=z^2$ ", International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 103.2 (2015): 155-158.
- [142] Tekcan, A. H. M. E. T., "Pell Equation $x^2 Dy^2 = 2$, II", *Bulletin of the Irish Mathematical Society* 54 (2004): 73-89.
- [143] Tekcan, Ahmet., "The Pell Equation $x^2 Dy^2 = \pm 4$ ", Applied Mathematical Sciences 1.8 (2007): 363-369.
- [144] Terai, N., "The Diophantine Equation $a^x + b^y = c^z$ ", Proceedings of Japan Academy 70 (A) (1994) 22 26.
- [145] Terai, Nobuhiro, and T. Hibino., "On the exponential Diophantine equation $(4m^2 + 1)^x + (5m^2 1)^y = (3m)^z$ ", International Journal of Algebra 6.23 (2012): 1135-1146.
- [146] Terai, Nobuhiro, and Takeshi Hibino., "On the exponential Diophantine equation $(12m^2 + 1)^x + (13m^2 1)^y = (5m)^z$ ", International Journal of Algebra 9.6 (2015): 261-272.

- [147] Tzanakis, Nikos, and John Wolfskill., "The Diophantine equation $x^2 = 4q^{a/2} + 4q + 1$, with an application to coding theory", *Journal of Number Theory* 26.1 (1987): 96-116.
- [148] Vajda, Steven., "Fibonacci and Lucas numbers, and the golden section: theory and applications", *Courier Corporation*, (2008).
- [149] Vidhyalakshmi, S., Kavitha, A., Gopalan, M.A., "Diophantine Problem on Integer Triple in Arithmetic Progression", *Transactions on Mathematics TM* 2.2 (2016): 36-42.
- [150] Weil, André., "Number Theory: An approach through history from Hammurapi to Legendre", *Springer Science & Business Media*, (2006).
- [151] Weil, André., "Number theory for beginners", Springer Science & Business Media, (2012).
- [152] Weil, André., "Basic number theory", Springer Science & Business Media, 144 (2013).
- [153] Whitford, E. E., "Some Solutions of the Pellian Equations $x^2 Ay^2 = \pm 4$ ", The Annals of Mathematics 15.1/4 (1913): 157-160.
- [154] Yoshinaga, Takashi., "On the solutions of quadratic Diophantine equations", *Documenta Mathematica* 15 (2010): 347-385.
- [155] Yuan, Pingzhi, and Yongzhong Hu., "On the Diophantine equation $x^2 kxy + y^2 + lx = 0, l \in \{1, 2, 4\}$ ", Computers & Mathematics with Applications 61.3 (2011): 573-577.



UGC-CARE List

Vous googabad	for "mathematics"	Total Iaumala i 00
You searched	tor mathematics	Total Journals : 98

			Search:		
Sr.No.	Journal Title	Publisher	ISSN	E- ISSN	Action
81	Sarajevo Journal of Mathematics	Department of Natural Sciences and Mathematics, Academy of Sciences and Arts of Bosnia and Herzegovina	1840- 0655	2233- 1964	View
82	Scientific Studies and Research, Series Mathematics and Informatics	Vasile Alecsandri University of Bacau	2457- 497X	2067- 3566	Discontinu from July 2021
83	Sema Journal	Springer	2254- 3902	2281- 7875	Indexed in Scopus
84	Serdica Mathematical Journal	Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, Institute of Mathematics and Informatics	1310- 6600	NA	View
85	South East Asian Journal of Mathematics and Mathematical Sciences	Ramanujan Society of Mathematics and Mathematical Sciences	0972- 7752	NA	View
86	Southeast Asian Bulletin of Mathematics	Department of Mathematics, Yunnan University	0129- 2021	0219- 175X	View
87	Statistica	Department of Statistical Sciences Paolo Fortunato, University of Bologna	0390- 590X	1973- 2201	View
88	Statistics and Applications	Society of Statistics, Computer and Applications	NA	2454- 7395	View
89	Stochastic Modeling and Applications	MUK Publications and Distributions	0972- 3641	NA	View
90	The Electronic International Journal Advanced Modeling and Optimization	Research Institute for Informatics	NA	1841- 4311	Discontinu from Oct 2020

Received: 5th January 2022

Revised: 19th January 2022

Accepted: 10th February 2022

ISSN: 0972-3641

MORDELL'S EQUATION WHICH HAS NO SOLUTION FOR CERTAIN SELECTION OF K

P. SANDHYA AND V. PANDICHELVI

ABSTRACT

This article examines an incomparable Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C \in \mathbb{Z}$, the set of all integers and demonstrates for which values of C, no solution in integer has been provided in the suggested equation

Keywords: Diophantine equation, integer solutions, Mordell's equation, Bacht's equation.

I. INTRODUCTION

The equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$, for $k \in \mathbb{Z}$, is alluded to as Mordell's equation due to Mordell's deep passion in it. Mordell [4] established in 1920 that the equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$ has an infinite number of integral solutions for any $k \in \mathbb{Z}$. Michael A. Bennett and Amir Ghadermarzi [2] cast-off the traditional link between Mordell and cubic Thue equations to solve the Diophantine problem $y^2 = x^3 + k$ for all non-zero integers k with $|k| \le 10^7$.

In this artefact, an unrivalled Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C \in \mathbb{Z}$, the set of all integers is studied and it is exposed that, for which values of C in the professed equation, no integer solution was supplied by using some classical congruence relations and Legendre symbols.

II. MAIN RESULTS

Congruence relations and Legendre symbols are exploited to demonstrate that $B^2 = A^3 + C$ does not have an integer solution for certain values of C.

Theorem: 2.1

Let U & V be integers such that $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and Let $p \mid V$ and $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, where p is a prime number. Then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, where $C = U^3 - V^2$ has no integer solution (A, B).

Proof:

Suppose that there exists a solution (A, B) in integers.

As
$$C = U^3 - V^2 \equiv -1 \pmod{4}$$
 we have $B^2 \equiv A^3 - 1 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$ and $A \not\equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and so $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Now,
$$B^2 + V^2 = A^3 + U^3 = (A + U)(A^2 - AU + U^2)$$
 (1)

As $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it should be

$$(A^2 - AU + U^2) \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$
.

Hence, $(X^2 - XU + U^2)$ is odd and by (1) it has a prime factor p_1 , $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$. Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_1}$.

By our assertion, $p_1 \nmid V$. Hence,

$$\left(-\frac{1}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{-N^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{Y^2}{p_1}\right) = 1,$$

denying to $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

This proves that the Diophantine equation $Y^2 = X^3 + K$ has no solution.

Theorem: 2.2

Let U and V be integers satisfying $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 0, 2 \pmod{4}$. If a prime number p divides V/2 and $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, then the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$ where $C = U^3 - V^2$ has no solution (A, B) in integers.

Proof:

Suppose that (A, B) is an integer solution of the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C = U^3 - V^2$

Since, $U^3 - V^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, it is attained by $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Now, the original equation is converted for the prescribe value of C as

$$B^{2} + V^{2} = A^{3} + U^{3} = (A + U)(A^{2} - AU + U^{2})$$
(2)

Since $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ & $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$,

$$A^2 - AU + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$

Hence, $A^2 - AU + U^2$ is odd and by (2) it has a prime factor p_1 , $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$. Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_1}$.

By our assertion, $p_1 \nmid V/2$. Hence, $p_1 \nmid V$.

$$\left(\frac{-1}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{-V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1,$$

denying $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$ has no solution.

Theorem: 2.3

Let U and V be integers nourishing with the conditions $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{2}$. If p is a prime such that $p \equiv 1, 3 \pmod{8}$ and p divides V, then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, where $C = U^3 - 2V^2$ has no integral solution.

Proof:

Since, $C = U^3 - 2V^2 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it must be

$$B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{4}$$

Therefore, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and consequently $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

Moreover, $C \equiv -2 \pmod{8}$.

So that $A \not\equiv 7 \pmod{8} \Rightarrow A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Now,
$$B^2 + 2V^2 = A^3 + U^3 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

As $A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, it is seen that $A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$ and $A + U \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$

 $\therefore B^2 + 2V^2$ has a prime factor p_1 such that $p_1 \equiv 5 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

By our assumption, $p_1 \nmid V$ and $B^2 \equiv -2V^2 \pmod{p_1}$

$$\left(-\frac{2}{p_1}\right) = \left(-\frac{2V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1$$

contrasting $p_1 \equiv 5 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{p}$

Hence no solution for the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, if $C = U^3 - 2V^2$.

Theorem: 2.4

Assume $U, V \in \mathcal{Z}$ and $U \equiv 6 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$. Let $p = 1 \pmod{8}$ be a prime number such that $p \mid V$ and $p \equiv 1 \pmod{8}$. Then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, where $C = 2V^2 + U^3$ does not embrace any integer solution.

Proof

Since, $C = 2V^2 + U^3 \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, then $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{8}$

 $\Rightarrow A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and hence $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

If $\equiv 3 \pmod{8}$, then $B^2 \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$ which is not possible.

Thus, $A \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$.

Now,
$$B^2 - 2V^2 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

$$\Rightarrow A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$$
.

Therefore $A^2 - UA + U^2$ is odd and is divisible by an odd prime p_1 with $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

$$\Rightarrow B^2 \equiv 2V^2 \pmod{p_1}$$
.

By our postulation, $p_1 \nmid V$

$$\therefore \left(\frac{2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{2V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1$$

 $disagreeing p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Hence the proof.

III. CONCLUSION

As a result, using certain traditional mathematical tools like as congruence and Legendre symbols, it is sensed that the hypothesized equation does not have a solution in integers for some specific integer values of C. Thus, one may ascertain the values of C for which the Mordell's equation has no integer solution by following the steps described above.

REFERENCES

- [1] Alaca, Saban, and Kenneth S. Williams. Introductory algebraic number theory. Cambridge Univ. Press, 2003.
- [2] Bennett, Michael A., and Amir Ghadermarzi. "Mordell's equation: a classical approach." LMS Journal of Computation and Mathematics 18.1 (2015): 633-646.
- [3] Gebel, Josef, Attila Pethö, and Horst G. Zimmer. "On Mordell's Equation." Compositio Mathematica 110.3 (1998): 335-367.
- [4] L. J. Mordell, A Statement by Fermat, Proceedings of the London Math. Soc. 18 (1920), v-vi.
- [5] Steiner, Ray P. "On Mordell's equation $y^2-k=x^3$: a problem of Stolarsky." Mathematics of computation 46.174 (1986): 703-714.

AUTHOR DETAILS:

P. SANDHYA¹ AND V. PANDICHELVI²

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy, (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

UGC-CARE List

Vous googabad	for "mathematics"	Total Iaumala i 00
You searched	tor mathematics	Total Journals : 98

			Search:		
Sr.No.	Journal Title	Publisher	ISSN	E- ISSN	Action
81	Sarajevo Journal of Mathematics	Department of Natural Sciences and Mathematics, Academy of Sciences and Arts of Bosnia and Herzegovina	1840- 0655	2233- 1964	View
82	Scientific Studies and Research, Series Mathematics and Informatics	Vasile Alecsandri University of Bacau	2457- 497X	2067- 3566	Discontinu from July 2021
83	Sema Journal	Springer	2254- 3902	2281- 7875	Indexed in Scopus
84	Serdica Mathematical Journal	Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, Institute of Mathematics and Informatics	1310- 6600	NA	View
85	South East Asian Journal of Mathematics and Mathematical Sciences	Ramanujan Society of Mathematics and Mathematical Sciences	0972- 7752	NA	View
86	Southeast Asian Bulletin of Mathematics	Department of Mathematics, Yunnan University	0129- 2021	0219- 175X	View
87	Statistica	Department of Statistical Sciences Paolo Fortunato, University of Bologna	0390- 590X	1973- 2201	View
88	Statistics and Applications	Society of Statistics, Computer and Applications	NA	2454- 7395	View
89	Stochastic Modeling and Applications	MUK Publications and Distributions	0972- 3641	NA	View
90	The Electronic International Journal Advanced Modeling and Optimization	Research Institute for Informatics	NA	1841- 4311	Discontinu from Oct 2020

Received: 5th January 2022

Revised: 19th January 2022

Accepted: 10th February 2022

ISSN: 0972-3641

A STATE OF THE-ART OF SUMS, CONGRUENCE RELATIONS AND DIVISIBILITY PROPERTIES OF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS

P. SANDHYA AND V. PANDICHELVI

ABSTRACT

In this document, several new-fangled identities regarding Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers enable to provide certain congruence relations for those numbers are deliberated. Also, divisibility properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are revealed by means of these derived congruence relations.

Keywords: Pell numbers, Pell-Lucas numbers, congruence relations

I. INTRODUCTION

 $P_0=0$, $P_1=1$, and $P_n=2P_{n-1}+P_{n-2}$ for $n\geq 2$ establish the Pell sequence $\{P_n\}$. P_n is referenced to the n^{th} Pell number. The Pell-Lucas sequence Q_n is defined as $Q_n=P_{n-1}+P_{n+1}$. For each $n\in Z$, $Q_n=2Q_{n-1}+Q_{n-2}$ for $n\geq 2$ and $Q_{n-1}+Q_{n+1}=8P_n$. For more information on the Pell and Pell-Lucas sequences, see [1]. Numerous well-known relationships exist among the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers. Typically, these relations are achieved using Binet's formula, which is signified by $P_n=\frac{\alpha^n-\beta^n}{2\sqrt{2}}$ and $Q_n=\alpha^n+\beta^n$, for any $n\in Z$, where $\alpha=1+\sqrt{2}$ and $\beta=1-\sqrt{2}$. Additionally, the most well-known formulas for Pell numbers are $\alpha^n=\alpha P_n+P_{n-1}$ and $\beta^n=\beta P_n+P_{n-1}$, for $n\in Z$.

Numerous sums incorporating Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are provided in this study. Following that, certain congruences relating Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are elaborated. These congruences enable one to establish a number of previously known characteristics. Additionally, with the use these congruences, many additional theorems are acclaimed.

II. SUMS AND CONGRUENCESOF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS Theorem: 2.1

If X is a square matrix with $X^2 = 2X + I$, then $X^n = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$ for every integer n.

Proof:

Let
$$Z[\alpha] = \{A\alpha + B; A, B \in Z\}$$
 and $Z[X] = \{AX + BI; A, B \in Z\}$

Define a function
$$f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[X]$$
 by $f(A\alpha + B) = AX + BI$.

Then f is a ring isomorphism. Moreover, it is clear that $f(\alpha) = X$ and $f(Q_m) = Q_m I$.

Therefore,
$$X^n = (f(\alpha))^n = f(\alpha^n) = f(P_n\alpha + P_{n-1}) = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$$

Corollary: 1.1

If
$$M = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 4 \\ 1/2 & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
, then $M^n = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_n}{2} & 4P_n \\ \frac{P_n}{2} & \frac{Q_n}{2} \end{bmatrix}$.

Proof:

Since, $M^2 = 2M + I$, it follows from theorem (1) that

$$M^n = P_n M + P_{n-1} I$$

$$M^{n} = \begin{bmatrix} P_{n} + P_{n-1} & 4Pn \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & P_{n} + P_{n-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_{n}}{2} & 4P_{n} \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & \frac{Q_{n}}{2} \end{bmatrix}.$$

Remark:

From the fact that $f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[M]$, defined by $f(A\alpha + B) = AM + BI$ is a ring isomorphism, it is observed that

$$\alpha^{2m} - Q_m \alpha^m + (-1)^m = 0$$
and
$$\alpha^{2m} - 2\sqrt{2}P_m \alpha^m - (-1)^m = 0$$
(1)

(4)

Vol. 26 No. 1 (January - June, Special Issue 2022 Part - 1)

Applying the function f on each side of (1) and (2), the relations discovered are pointed out by:

$$M^{2m} - Q_m M^m + (-1)^m I = 0$$
and
$$M^{2m} - K P_m M^m - (-1)^m I = 0$$
(3)

where $K = f(2\sqrt{2}) = f(2\alpha - 2) = 2M - 2I = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$

Theorem: 2.2

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m{}^i Q_{mi+k}$$

and $P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i P_{mi+k}$

Proof:

From (3), it is noted that

$$M^{2m} = Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I (5)$$

Raising n^{th} power on both sides of (5).

Then,
$$M^{2mn} = (Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I)^n = (Q_m M^m + (-1)^{m+1} I)^n$$

$$= \sum_{i=0}^n \binom{n}{i} ((-1)^{m+1} I)^{n-i} (Q_m M^m)^i$$

$$= (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m{}^i M^{mi}$$

Therefore

$$M^{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{i} M^{mi+k}$$

It comprehends from corollary 1.1 that

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{\ i} Q_{mi+k}$$

and

$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{i} P_{mi+k}$$

Corollary 2.2.1:

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} Q_k (mod \ Q_m)$$
and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} P_k (mod \ Q_m)$$
(6)

for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$.

Remark:

i. Since
$$K = 2M - 2I = M + M^{-1}$$
, $M^m K = KM^m$, $\forall m \in Z$

$$\mathrm{ii}.K^2 = \begin{bmatrix} 8 & 0 \\ 0 & 8 \end{bmatrix} = 8I \text{ and } \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a & b \\ c & d \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 8c & 8d \\ a & b \end{bmatrix}.$$

Theorem2.3:

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} Q_{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i P_m^{2i+1} P_{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

 $M^{2mn+k} = (KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I)^n M^k$

ISSN: 0972-3641

and

$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} P_{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i P_m^{2i+1} Q_{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

Proof:

From (4), it follows that

$$M^{2m} = KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I$$

Therefore,

$$= \left[\sum_{i=0}^{n} \binom{n}{i} ((-1)^{m} I)^{n-i} (K P_{m} M^{m})^{i} \right] M^{k}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \sum_{i=0}^{n} \binom{n}{i} (-1)^{mi} K^{i} P_{m}^{i} M^{mi+k}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} K^{2i} P_m^{2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} K^{2i+1} P_m^{2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i K P_m^{2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

We will get the results by trading the matrices K and M on both sides and equating the same entries.

Corollary 2.3.1:

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} Q_k \pmod{P_m} \tag{8}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} P_k (mod P_m) \tag{9}$$

III. DIVISIBILITY PROPERTIES OF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS

To begin, it is established two well-known theorems in a novel manner by exploiting the congruences postulated in Corollaries 2.2.1 and 2.3.1. Regarding the divisibility of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers, readers will investigate the formulae and learn how to use them efficiently to resolve problems. Thus, this article explains the fundamental divisibility for Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers.

Theorem 3.1:

The necessary and sufficient conditions for $Q_m|Q_n$ are

i. $m \mid n$ and

ii. $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer

for all $m, n \in N$ and $m \ge 2$.

Proof:

Presume that $Q_m | Q_n$

Suppose $m \nmid n$, then by fundamental property of divisibility, n can be expressed as n = mq + r, $0 \le r < m$.

If q is an even integer, then q = 2s for some $s \in Z$.

From (6), it follows that

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_r \pmod{Q_m}$$

Since $Q_m|Q_n$, $Q_m|Q_r$. This is a contradiction since $Q_r < Q_m$ as r < m. Hence, q is an odd integer. Sustain q = 2s + 1 for some $s \in Z$. So,

Vol. 26 No. 1 (January - June, Special Issue 2022 Part - 1)

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Also, since $Q_m|Q_n, Q_m|Q_{m+r}$.

To prove:r = 0

Suppose r > 0. By the identity $Q_{m+r} = Q_m P_{r-1} + P_r Q_{m+1}$, the above implies that $Q_m | P_r Q_{m+1}$.

Since $(Q_m, Q_{m+1}) = 1$, it follows that $Q_m | P_r$. This is a contradiction to the fact that if r < m, then $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. As a result, it is resolved that r = 0.

Thus, that n = mq, with q being an odd integer.

Conversely, suppose that m|n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer,

That is, n = m(2s + 1), for some integer s. Then it is procured that,

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_m \pmod{Q_m}$$

 $\Rightarrow Q_m | Q_n$.

Hence, the result.

Theorem 3.2:

Let $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \ge 2$. Then $Q_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an even integer.

Proof:

Suppose that $Q_m | P_n$ and $m \nmid n$. This assumption means that n = mq + r, $0 \le r < m$ where $m \ge 2$.

If q is an odd integer, it may phrase q = 2s + 1 for some integer s.

From (7), it is pointed out that

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Then, $Q_m|P_{m+r}$ and hence $Q_m|8P_{m+r}$. It is well-known that $8P_{m+r} = Q_mQ_{r-1} + Q_rQ_{m+1}$, then $Q_m|Q_rQ_{m+1}$. Since Q_m and Q_{m+1} are relatively prime, the only possibility is $Q_m|Q_r$. But r < m delivers $Q_r < Q_m$. So, $Q_m \nmid Q_r$. This conflict befalls as a result of our erroneous assumption about q being an odd number. Therefore, q is an even integer. Thus, it may have q = 2s for some integer s. Hence,

Form (7),
$$P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_r \pmod{Q_m}$$

Since $Q_m|P_n$, $Q_m|P_r$. However, this cannot be true since r < m and hence $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. This contributes that r = 0. So, it can be concluded that n = mq, q is an even integer.

Conversely, suppose that m|n and n=2ms for some $s \in Z$. Then, it is acquired from (7) that

$$P_n = P_{2ms} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_0 \pmod{Q_m}$$

It follows that $Q_m|P_n$.

Theorem3.3:

For all $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \geq 3$, $P_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n.

Proof:

Initially consider that $P_m | P_n$ but $m \nmid n$. Then n = mq + r with $0 \le r < m$. Now, suppose that q is an even integer, then this may be taken as q = 2s for any integer s.

Hence, (9) provides the succeeding identity

$$P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_r (mod P_m)$$

Since $P_m | P_n$, by applying the above identity, $P_m | P_r$. Since, if $0 \le r < m$ and $m \ge 3$, it leads to

 $P_r < P_m$. Hence, q must be an odd integer. Then q = 2s + 1, for some $s \in \mathbb{Z}$. Thus, (9) becomes

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_{m+r} \pmod{P_m}$$

Since $P_m|P_n$, it follows that $P_m|P_{m+r}$. By the identity, $P_{m+r} = P_{m+1}P_r + P_mP_{r-1}$, it is noted that $P_m|P_{m+1}P_r$. Due to the fact that $(P_m, P_{m+1}) = 1$, it is received that $P_m|P_r$, which is a contradiction. This emerges as a consequence of $P_r < P_m$ as r < m and $m \ge 3$. As a result, r = 0 and subsequently n = mq, resulting in $m \mid n$.

Conversely, pretend that m|n. Then, the conclusion is n = mq for some natural number q. As an outcome,

$$P_{n} = P_{mq} = \sum_{i=0}^{q} {q \choose i} P_{m}{}^{i} P_{m-1}{}^{q-i} P_{i}$$

Hence, it is realized that $P_m|P_n$.

IV. MAIN THEOREMS

From the identity $2(-1)^n = Q_n P_{n-1} - Q_{n-1} P_n$, it can be seen that $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 1$ or $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 2$. Furthermore,

$$Q_n^2 - 8P_n^2 = 4(-1)^n (10)$$

From equation (8), it is seen that $Q_{8q+r} \equiv Q_r(mod 12)$ and therefore $12 \nmid Q_n$, for every natural number n.

Now, we'll go over some Pell-Lucas numbers identities that will be necessary in the sequel:

$$Q_{2n} = Q_n^2 - 2(-1)^n (11)$$

$$Q_{3n} = Q_n (Q_n^2 - 3(-1)^n)$$
(12)

Theorem4.1:

Let $r \ge 1$, be an odd number and m > 1. Then, there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$ and r is an odd number. Then $Q_{2r}|Q_n$ and $Q_m|Q_n$. Then, n = 2rt and n = mk for some odd natural number t & k by theorem $2.4, \Rightarrow 2|n \Rightarrow n = mk \Rightarrow 2|m$. It is thus obvious that m = 2v, for some odd $v \in \mathcal{N}$. Since 2|n and $\frac{n}{2}$ is an odd natural number, it can be written as n = 8q + s with s = 2,6 and $q \ge 0$. Hence,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv Q_2, Q_6 \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$$

Similarly, it can be seen that $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$.

Since, r is an odd natural number, it is obtained that $Q_{2r} \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. Then it follows that

$$Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_m x^2 \equiv 6Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$$

Moreover, $6x^2 \equiv 0.6 \pmod{12}$ and $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$,

 $Q_n \equiv 0 \pmod{12}$ which contradicts the fact that $Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. This concludes the proof.

Theorem4.2:

 $Q_{2^kt} \equiv 2,10 \; (mod \; 12)$ for every $k \geq 2$ and for every odd natural number t.

Proof:

Assume that t is an odd natural number, then $t \equiv \pm 1, \pm 3, \pm 5, \pm 7 \pmod{8}$. Moreover, it can be proved by induction that $2^k \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$ for $k \ge 2$. $2^k t \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$.

Therefore, $\Rightarrow 2^k t = 8q$ or $2^k t = 8q \pm 4$ for $q \ge 0$. Then it seeks that

$$Q_{2^k t} = Q_{8q} \equiv Q_0 \pmod{P_4}$$

Or

$$Q_{2^k t} = Q_{8q \pm 4} \equiv Q_{\pm 4} \pmod{P_4}$$

Thus, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \; (mod \; 12), k \geq 2.$

Now, it is possible to generalize theorem as follows:

Theorem4.3:

Let m > 1, $k \ge 2$ and t be an odd natural number. Then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2$ and t is an odd natural number. Since $Q_{2^k t} | Q_n$ and $Q_m | Q_n$, there exist two odd natural numbers u and v such that $n = 2^k tu$ and n = mv by theorem 3.1. Thus, we have $m = 2^k r$, for some $r \in N$, because $n = 2^k tu = mv$ and t, u, v are odd natural numbers. Then, we have 4 divides both m & n, by the fact that $k \ge 2$. Hence, n = 8q + s with s = 0.4,8,12. Thus,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

Since $s \in \{0,4,8,12\}$, it follows that

$$Q_n \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$$

It may be observed in a similar manner that

$$Q_m \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$$

On the other hand, $Q_{2^kt} \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$ by theorem (8).

If
$$Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2 \pmod{12}$$
, then $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 2 Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$.

Since $2x^2 \equiv 0.2.6.8 \mod (12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$, $Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \pmod {12}$, which is a contradiction to the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$.

Therefore, $Q_{2^{k_t}} \equiv 10 \pmod{12}$. Then

$$Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 10 Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}.$$

Since $10x^2 \equiv 0.4.6.10 \ mod(12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \ (mod\ 12)$, $Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \ (mod\ 12)$, which denies the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \ (mod\ 12)$. Hence the proof.

Theorem4.4:

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for m > 1 and r > 1 and are odd numbers. Since $Q_m | Q_n$ and $Q_r | Q_n$, there exist two odd natural numbers u and v such that n = mu and n = rv.

Hence, we have $u = 4k \pm 1$ for some $k \ge 1$. Therefore, we get $n = mu = m(4k \pm 1) = 4km \pm m$.

$$Q_n = Q_{4km+m} \equiv (-1)^k Q_{+m} \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$

i.e.,
$$Q_r Q_m \equiv \pm Q_m \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$
 (13)

Similarly, it can be obtained that

$$Q_m Q_r \equiv \pm Q_r \pmod{Q_{2r}} \tag{14}$$

Suppose that $Q_m|Q_{2r}$ then $\frac{2r}{m}$ =an odd integer which is not possible. Hence $Q_m \nmid Q_{2r}$ which implies that $gcd(Q_m,Q_{2r})=2$. Then by equations (13) and (14),

$$Q_r \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2m}}{2}}$$
 and $Q_m \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2r}}{2}}$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} \le 2Q_r \pm 2$$
 and $Q_{2r} \le 2Q_m \pm 2$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} + Q_{2r} \leq 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

By equation (11),

$$Q_m^2 \pm 2 + Q_r^2 \pm 2 \le 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

$$Q_m(Q_m-2) + Q_r(Q_r-2) \le 0$$
,

which is a contradiction. This completes the proof of the theorem.

Corollary 4.4.1:

There is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for any m > 1 and r > 1.

Proof:

If r > 1 and even, then ther proof follows from theorems (7) and (9).

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then it is proved in theorem (10).

V. CONCLUSION

In this research, various quantities by means of the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are presented. Then, some specific congruences concerning the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers have been provided. These analogues allowed to govern a number of previously known features. These congruences have also been utilized to prove many other theorems.

VI. REFERENCES

- [1]. Koshy, Thomas. Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers with applications. New York: Springer, 2014
- [2]. Hoggatt, V. E., and Marjorie Bcknell Johnson. "Divisibility by Fibonacci and Lucas squares." (1977).
- [3]. Keskin, Refik, and Bahar DemirtürkBitim. "Fibonacci and Lucas congruences and their applications." Acta Mathematica Sinica, English Series 27.4 (2011): 725-736.
- [4]. Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk. "Some new Fibonacci and Lucas identities by matrix methods." International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology 41.3 (2010): 379-387.
- [5].Koparal, S., and N. Ömür. "Some Congruences Involving Catalan, Pell and Fibonacci Numbers." Mathematica Montisnigri 48 (2020): 10-18.
- [6]. Panda, G. K., and Asim Patra. "Exact divisibility by powers of the Pell and Associated Pell numbers." Proceedings-Mathematical Sciences 131.2 (2021): 1-9.

AUTHOR DETAILS:

P. SANDHYA¹ AND V. PANDICHELVI²

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhana lakshmi College, Trichy. (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

10th & 11th January 2019

Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences

V. Pandichelvi¹, P. Sandhya² Department of Mathematics 1,2 UrumuDhanalakshmi College, Trichy AIMAN college of Arts and Science for Women pandichelvi75@yahoo.com¹, sandhyasatheesh3@gmail.com²

Abstract- In this paper, two peculiar sequences named as Cheldhiya sequence and Cheldhiya Companion sequence are discovered. The general formula for Cheldhiya sequence is enumerated by using the special property called as normalization of the matrix. Also, few theorems involving these sequences are elucidated.

Index Terms-Cheldhiya sequence; Cheldhiya Companion sequence; eigenvalues; eigenvectors.

1. INTRODUCTION

The Pell Equation is a quadratic Diophantine equation of the form $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ where d is a positive square-free integer. The equation $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ has infinitely many solutions whereas the negative Pellequation $x^2 - dy^2 = -1$ does not always have a solution. In this communication the sequences of the solution to the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$, for certain d, are developed as Cheldhiya sequence and Cheldhiya Companion sequence. Also, a few theorems are proved based on these sequences.

2. MAIN RESULTS

The y values of the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer d can be $x_n = 2kx_{n-1} + x_{n-2},$ $k = 1, 2, 3, ..., n \ge 1$

with initial values $x_0 = 1$, $x_1 = k$.

Here k and d can be related as $d = k^2 + 1$ where k indicates the order of the sequence while n indicates the number of terms in the k^{th} order sequence.

Define the Cheldhiya sequence matrix as

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathbf{y} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_1 \\ \mathbf{y}_0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 1 \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_2 \\ \mathbf{y}_1 \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

generally sequenced as $0, 1, 2k, 4k^2 + 1, 8k^3 + 4k, ...$ called as Cheldhiya sequence. The nth term of this sequence is generalized by the recurrence relation

$$y_n = 2ky_{n-1} + y_{n-2}, \qquad k = 1,2,3,...,n \ge 1.$$

with initial values $y_0 = 0$, $y_1 = 1$.

The x values of the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer d can be generally sequenced as $1, k, 2k^2 + 1, 4k^3 + 3k, ...$ called as Cheldhiya Companion Sequence. The nth term of this sequence is generalized by the recurrence relation

$$\mathbf{y} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_2 \\ \mathbf{y}_1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2k \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 4k^2 + 1 \\ 2k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_3 \\ \mathbf{y}_2 \end{pmatrix}$$

In general,

$$y \begin{pmatrix} y_n \\ y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} \\ y_n \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem:2.1

If $y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Cheldhiya sequence matrix, then

(ii)
$$\mathbb{y}^n \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+n} \\ y_{k+n-1} \end{pmatrix}$$
 for all $n, k \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

Proof: Her

This theorem can be proved by using the principle of mathematical induction on n.

(i) Since $y_0 = 0$, $y_1 = 1$, $y_2 = 2k$, the excelusive Cheldhiya sequence matrix is interpreted by

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} y_2 & y_1 \\ y_1 & y_0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Therefore, the theorem is valid for n = 1.

Assume that the result is true for n = k.

That is

$$\mathbf{y}^k = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} & y_k \\ y_k & y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now.

$$\mathbf{y}^{k+1} = \mathbf{y}^{k} \mathbf{y} = \begin{pmatrix} 2ky_{k+1} + y_{k} & y_{k+1} \\ 2ky_{k} + y_{k-1} & y_{k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+2} & y_{k+1} \\ y_{k+1} & y_{k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Thus, the theorem is valid for n = k + 1.

Hence, the conclusion of the theorem is perceived by $y^n = \begin{pmatrix} y_{n+1} & y_n \\ y_n & y_{n-1} \end{pmatrix}$

(ii) Since,
$$y \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} \\ y_k \end{pmatrix}$$

the theorem is valid for n = 1.

Assume that the theorem is true for n = t.

That is,

$$\mathbf{y}^t \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_k \\ \mathbf{y}_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{y}_{k+t} \\ \mathbf{y}_{k+t-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now, consider

$$\begin{aligned} & \mathbf{y}^{t+1} \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \mathbf{y}. \, \mathbf{y}^t \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} \\ & = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_{t+1} & y_t \\ y_t & y_{t-1} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+1} \\ y_k \end{pmatrix} \\ & = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+t+1} \\ y_{k+t} \end{pmatrix} \end{aligned}$$

Hence,

$$y^n \begin{pmatrix} y_k \\ y_{k-1} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} y_{k+n} \\ y_{k+n-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem: 2.2 Generalization of Cheldhiya sequence

If $y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Cheldhiya sequence matrix, then the n^{th} term of the Cheldhiya Sequence is generalized by

$$y_n = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2 + 1}} \left[\left(k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n - \left(k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n \right], \text{ where } n = 0, 1, 2, 3, \dots$$

Proof:

Given

$$y = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

The two eigenvalues of the above matrix can be derived from the characteristic equation

$$|\nabla - \lambda I| = 0$$

as $\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$ and $\lambda_2 = k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$.

The eigenvectors of y are given by

$$(\nabla - \lambda I)V = 0$$

which implies that

Case1: If $\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$, then one of the eigen vector of y is performed from Eq. (1) by

$$V_1 = \binom{\lambda_1}{1}$$

Case 2: If $\lambda_2 = k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$, then the other eigen vector of y is computed from Eq. (1) by

$$V_2 = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_2 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix}$$

If the Diagonal matrix of y is given by,

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

10th & 11th January 2019

$$D = \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1 & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_2 \end{pmatrix}, \text{ then } D^n = \begin{pmatrix} {\lambda_1}^n & 0 \\ 0 & {\lambda_2}^n \end{pmatrix}$$

Let the Normalized eigenvector matrix be

$$N = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_1}^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_2}^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_1}^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + {\lambda_2}^2}} \end{pmatrix}$$

Now, by applying theorem (1) the orthogonal transformation of the symmetric matrices

$$y^n = ND^nN^T$$

can be established by

$$= \begin{pmatrix} \frac{y_{n+1} & y_n}{y_n & y_{n-1}} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_1^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_2^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_1^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_2^2}} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \lambda_1^n & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_2^n \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\lambda_1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_1^2}} & \frac{\lambda_2}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_2^2}} \\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_1^2}} & \frac{1}{\sqrt{1 + \lambda_2^2}} \end{pmatrix}^T$$

Simplifying the right-hand side of the equation and equating the (1,2)th entry on both sides, the generalized form of Cheldhiya sequence is estimated by

$$y_n = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+1}} \left[\left(k + \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n - \left(k - \sqrt{k^2+1} \right)^n \right]$$

where $n = 0,1,2,3,...$

Remark:

The above identity can also be written as $y_n = \frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$ where n = 0, 1, 2, 3, ...

Theorem: 2.3

If $\{y_n\}$ is the Cheldhiya sequence, then the sum of its first n terms is given by

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

Proof:

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \sum_{m=0}^{n-1} \left(\frac{\lambda_1^m - \lambda_2^m}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \sum_{m=0}^{n-1} (\lambda_1^m - \lambda_2^m)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\frac{1 - \lambda_1^n}{1 - \lambda_1} - \frac{1 - \lambda_2^n}{1 - \lambda_2} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\frac{-(\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n) - (\lambda_1 \lambda_2^n - \lambda_1^n \lambda_2) + (\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}{(1 - \lambda_1)(1 - \lambda_2)} \right)$$

$$= \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

Hence,

$$\sum_{m=0}^{n-1} y_m = \frac{y_n + y_{n-1} - 1}{2k}$$

If $G(x) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} y_n x^n$ is the Generating function, then the corresponding function for Cheldhiya Sequence is $G(x) = \frac{x}{1-2kx-x^2}$

Proof:

$$G(x) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} y_n x^n$$

$$= y_0 x^0 + y_1 x + \sum_{n=2}^{\infty} y_n x^n$$

$$= x + \sum_{n=2}^{\infty} (2ky_{n-1} + y_{n-2})x^n$$

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

10th & 11th January 2019

$$= x + 2kx G(x) + x^2G(x)$$

Hence,

$$G(x) = \frac{x}{1 - 2kx - x^2}$$

Theorem: 2.5

If y_n is the nth term of the Cheldhiya sequence, then $y_n^2 - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = (-1)^{n-r}y_r^2$

Proof:

$$y_{n}^{2} - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right)^{2}$$

$$-\left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n-r} - \lambda_{2}^{n-r}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right) \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n+r} - \lambda_{2}^{n+r}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(-2(\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2}}\right)^{r} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{2}}{\lambda_{1}}\right)^{r}\right)$$

$$= \frac{(-1)^{n}}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(-2 + \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2}}\right)^{r} + \left(\frac{\lambda_{2}}{\lambda_{1}}\right)^{r}\right)$$

$$= \frac{(-1)^{n}}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left[\frac{(\lambda_{1}^{r} - \lambda_{2}^{r})^{2}}{(\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{r}}\right]$$

$$= (-1)^{n-r}y_{r}^{2}$$

Hence,

$$y_n^2 - y_{n-r}y_{n+r} = (-1)^{n-r}y_r^2$$

Theorem: 2.6

If $\{x_n\}$ and $\{y_n\}$ are CheldhiyaCompanion sequence and Cheldhiya sequence respectively, then

[1]
$$x_n = y_{n-1} + ky_n, n \ge 1$$

[1]
$$x_n = y_{n-1} + ky_n, n \ge 1$$

[2] $x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2(k^2 + 1)} (x_{2n-1} + kx_{2n})$
[3] $\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{x_n}{y_n} = \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$

[3]
$$\lim_{n\to\infty} \frac{x_n}{y_n} = \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$$

$$[4] x_n + ky_n = y_{n+1}$$

$$[5] y_{n+1} + y_{n-1} = 2x_n$$

[5]
$$y_{n+1} + y_{n-1} = 2x_n$$

[6] $\frac{1}{k^2+1}(x_{n+1} + x_{n-1}) = 2y_n$

Proof:

Define the Cheldhiya Companion sequence [1]

$$\mathbf{x} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k & 1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Then, the characteristic roots of x are determined by $\lambda_1 = k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1}$, $\lambda_2 = k - 1$

Note that, $\lambda_1 \lambda_2 = -1$.

The closed form the Cheldhiya Companion sequence is given by

$$x_n = c_1 \lambda_1^n + c_2 \lambda_2^n \tag{2}$$

By applying the initial values $x_0 = 1, x_1 = k$, the linear system of equations are evaluated $byc_1 + c_2 = 1$ and $c_1\lambda_1 + c_2\lambda_2 = k$.

Thus,
$$c_1 = \frac{\lambda_2 - k}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1}$$
 and $c_2 = \frac{k - \lambda_1}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1}$

Then, Eq. (2) becomes

$$x_{n} = \frac{\lambda_{2} - k}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \lambda_{1}^{n} + \frac{k - \lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \lambda_{2}^{n}$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1}} \left[\lambda_{1} \lambda_{2} (\lambda_{1}^{n-1} - \lambda_{2}^{n-1}) - k(\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}) \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}} \left[(\lambda_{1}^{n-1} - \lambda_{2}^{n-1}) + k(\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}) \right]$$

$$\therefore x_n = y_{n-1} + ky_n$$

[2]
$$x_{n}y_{n} = (y_{n-1} + ky_{n})y_{n}$$

$$= y_{n-1}y_{n} + ky_{n}^{2}$$

$$= \frac{\lambda_{1}^{n-1} - \lambda_{2}^{n-1}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}} \cdot \frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}$$

$$+ k \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}}{\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2}}\right)^{2}$$

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

10th & 11th January 2019

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2n-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2n-1} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \left(\frac{1}{\lambda_{1}} + \frac{1}{\lambda_{2}} \right) \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2n-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2n-1} + (\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2})^{n} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{(\lambda_{1} - \lambda_{2})^{2}} \left(2x_{2n-1} - 2k(-1)^{n} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4(k^{2} + 1)} \left(2x_{2n-1} + 2kx_{2n} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4(k^{2} + 1)} \left(2x_{2n-1} + 2kx_{2n} \right)$$

$$\therefore x_{n}y_{n} = \frac{1}{2(k^{2} + 1)} \left(x_{2n-1} + kx_{2n} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(k^{2} + 1)} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2n+1} - \lambda_{2}^{2n+1} + \lambda_{1}^{2n-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2n-1} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(k^{2} + 1)} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2n+1} - \lambda_{2}^{2n+1} + \lambda_{1}^{2n-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2n-1} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(k^{2} + 1)} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2n+1} - \lambda_{2}^{2n+1} + \lambda_{1}^{2n-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2n-1} \right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(k^{2} + 1)} \left[\lambda_{1}^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{1}^{2} + 1}{\lambda_{1}} \right) + \lambda_{2}^{n} \left(\frac{\lambda_{2}^{2} + 1}{\lambda_{2}} \right) \right]$$

$$= \frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} - \lambda_{2}^{n}}{\sqrt{k^{2} + 1}}$$

$$= \frac{\lambda_{1}^{n$$

Hence,

$$\lim_{n\to\infty}\frac{x_n}{y_n}=\sqrt{k^2+1}$$

[4]
$$x_n + ky_n = \frac{\lambda_1^{n} + \lambda_2^{n}}{2} + k \frac{\lambda_1^{n} - \lambda_2^{n}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$$
$$= \frac{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)(\lambda_1^{n} + \lambda_2^{n}) + 2k(\lambda_1^{n} - \lambda_2^{n})}{2(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}$$
$$= \frac{(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1})}{(\lambda_1 - \lambda_2)}$$

$$\therefore x_n + ky_n = y_{n+1}$$

[5]
$$y_{n+1} + y_{n-1}$$

$$= \frac{\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} + \frac{\lambda_1^{n-1} - \lambda_2^{n-1}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} + \lambda_1^{n-1} - \lambda_2^{n-1}\right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2} \left(\lambda_1^{n+1} - \lambda_2^{n+1} + \frac{\lambda_1^{n} \lambda_2 - \lambda_2^{n} \lambda_1}{\lambda_1 \lambda_2}\right)$$

Hence,

$$\frac{1}{k^2+1}(x_{n+1}+x_{n-1})=2y_n$$

Remark:

In the above result, it is observed that

$$c_1 = \frac{\lambda_2 - k}{\lambda_2 - \lambda_1} = \frac{-\sqrt{k^2 + 1}}{-2\sqrt{k^2 + 1}} = \frac{1}{2}$$

$$c_2 = 1 - c_1 = \frac{1}{2}$$

Hence,

$$x_n = \frac{1}{2}(\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n)$$

[2]
$$x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2} (\lambda_1^n + \lambda_2^n) \cdot \left(\frac{\lambda_1^n - \lambda_2^n}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}\right)$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\lambda_1^{2n} - \lambda_2^{2n}}{\lambda_1 - \lambda_2}\right)$$
$$x_n y_n = \frac{1}{2} y_{2n}$$

International Journal of Research in Advent Technology (IJRAT) Special Issue, January 2019 E-ISSN: 2321-9637

Available online at www.ijrat.org

International Conference on Applied Mathematics and Bio-Inspired Computations

10th & 11th January 2019

Theorem: 2.7

If $\{x_n\}$ is a Cheldhiya Companion sequence, then for

[1]
$$x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m})^2$$

[2] $x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m+1})^2$

[2]
$$x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m+1})^2$$

Proof:

$$[1] \qquad x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^{2} + 1) = \frac{\left(\lambda_{1}^{2m-1} + \lambda_{2}^{2m-1}\right)}{2} \frac{\left(\lambda_{1}^{2m+1} + \lambda_{2}^{2m+1}\right)}{2} + (k^{2} + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4}\left(\lambda_{1}^{4m} + \frac{\lambda_{1}}{\lambda_{2}} + \frac{\lambda_{2}}{\lambda_{1}} + \lambda_{2}^{4m}\right) + (k^{2} + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4}\left(\lambda_{1}^{4m} - \left(\lambda_{1}^{2} + \lambda_{2}^{2}\right) + \lambda_{2}^{4m}\right) + (k^{2} + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4}\left(\lambda_{1}^{4m} + 2 + \lambda_{2}^{4m}\right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4}\left(\lambda_{1}^{2m} + \lambda_{2}^{2m}\right)^{2}$$

Hence,

$$x_{2m-1}x_{2m+1} + (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m})^2$$

$$[2] x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{\left(\lambda_1^{2m} + \lambda_2^{2m}\right)}{2} \frac{\left(\lambda_1^{2m+2} + \lambda_2^{2m+2}\right)}{2} - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{4m+2} + \left(\lambda_1^2 + \lambda_2^2\right) + \lambda_2^{4m+2}\right) - (k^2 + 1)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{4m+2} - 2 + \lambda_2^{4m+2}\right)$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \left(\lambda_1^{2m+1} + \lambda_2^{2m+1}\right)^2$$

Hence,

$$x_{2m}x_{2m+2} - (k^2 + 1) = (x_{2m+1})^2$$

3. CONCLUSION

In this paper, the general solution to the Pell equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$ for some particular positive values of d are developed as Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion sequences. Based on these sequences some interesting results are provided. In this manner, one can develop various sequences for any other values of d and investigate some other results.

REFERENCES

- [1] Bueno, A.C.F. (2013): "A Note on (k,h)-Jacobsthal Sequence", international journal of mathematics and scientific computing, Vol. 3, No. 2.
- [2] Campos, .H;Catarino, .P; Aires, .A. P; Vasco, .P; and Borges, A. (2014): "On Some Identities of kJacobsthal-Lucas Numbers", Int. Journal of Math. Analysis, Vol. 8, No. 10, 489 -494.
- [3] DeepikaJhala; Kiran Sisodiya and Rathore, G. P. S. (2013): "On Some Identities for k-Jacobsthal Numbers", Int. Journal of Math. Analysis, Vol. 7, No. 12, 551-556.
- [4] Pandichelvi, V.; Sivakamasundari, P.(2016): "Matrix Representation of K-Fibonacci Sequence", International Journal of Engineering Science and Computing, Vol. 6, No. 10.
 - [5] Pell's Equation from Wikipedia, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pell%27s_equati
 - Jafari-Petroudia: [6] Seyyed Hossein BehzadPirouz (2015):"On some properties of (k,h)-Pell sequence and (k,h)-Pell-Lucas Sequence", Int. J. Adv. Appl. Math. AndMech. 3(1)98 - 101

INVENTION OF FOUR NOVEL SEQUENCES AND THEIR PROPERTIES

P. Sandhya¹, V. Pandichelvi²

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics,
Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy.

(Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

Abstract- In this paper, four novel sequences named as Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are discovered. Also, the recurrence relations, the general formulae for all sequences and some theorems are invented by exploiting basic concepts of matrices.

Keywords- Pan-San sequence, Pan-San Buddy sequence, Pan-San Comrade sequence and Pan-San Mate sequence, characteristic equation, eigenvalues.

1. INTRODUCTION

Assume that $d \neq 1$ is any positive square free integer. Then the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ is called as the classical Pell equation. There are numerous integer solutions (x_n, y_n) for $n \geq 0$, for this Pell equation. Many authors such as Lenstra [4], Matthews [5], Techan [9] and others take some certain Pell equations and solutions into account. Pandichelvi .V, Sandhya .P [7] discovered two tremendous sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya companion sequences by taking $d = k^2 + 1$ in the Pell equation $x^2 - dy^2 = \pm 1$. The Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are

formed in this communication for the solution to the equation $x^2 - dy^2 = 1$ for some specific d. A few theorems are also supported using these sequences.

ISSN: 1673-064X

2. PAN-SAN AND PAN-SAN BUDDY SEQUENCES

The C and D values in the universal equation $D^2 - dC^2 = 1$ for certain non-zero square-free integer $d = k^2 + 2, k \in N - \{1\}$ propagates two novel sequences $0, k, 2k(k^2 + 1), 4k(k^2 + 1)^2 - k, 8k^2(k^2 + 1)^3 - 4k(k^2 + 1)^2, \dots$ and $1, k^2 + 1, 2(k^2 + 1)^2 - 1, 4(k^2 + 1)^3 - 3(k^2 + 1), \dots$ and named as Pan-San sequence and Pan-San Buddy sequence respectively. The nth term of the first sequence is interpreted by the recurrence relation

$$C_{n,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)C_{n-1,k} - C_{n-2,k}, \quad k, n \in \mathbb{N} - \{1\}$$

where $C_{0,k} = 0$, $C_{1,k} = k$.

The nth term of the second sequence is standardized by the recurrence relation

$$D_{n,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)D_{n-1,k} - D_{n-2,k}, \quad k, n \in N - \{1\}$$

where
$$D_{0,k} = 1$$
, $D_{1,k} = k^2 + 1$.

Define the Pan-San sequence matrix as

$$\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 + 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{1,k} \\ C_{0,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} k \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2k(k^2+1) \\ k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{2,k} \\ C_{1,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

Journal of Xi'an Shiyou University, Natural Science Edition

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{2,k} \\ C_{1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2k(k^2+1) \\ k \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 4k(k^2+1)^2 - k \\ 2k(k^2+1) \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{3,k} \\ C_{2,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

More generally,

$$\mathcal{M}\begin{pmatrix} C_{n,k} \\ C_{n-1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} C_{n+1,k} \\ C_{n,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Theorem: 2.1

If $\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2+1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Pan-San sequence matrix, then the nth term of the Pan-San sequence is generalized by

ISSN: 1673-064X

$$C_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+2}} \Big[\Big((k^2+1) + k\sqrt{k^2+2} \Big)^n - \Big((k^2+1) - k\sqrt{k^2+2} \Big)^n \Big], \text{ where } n \in W, \text{ the set of all whole numbers.}$$

Proof:

Given

$$\mathcal{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 + 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

The characteristic equation $\lambda^2 - 2(k^2 + 1)\lambda + 1 = 0$ of \mathcal{M} reveals two distinct eigen values $\sigma = (k^2 + 1) + k\sqrt{k^2 + 2}$ and $\tau = (k^2 + 1) - k\sqrt{k^2 + 2}$.

Also,
$$\lambda^2 = 2(k^2 + 1)\lambda - 1$$

$$\lambda^3 = \lambda^2 \cdot \lambda$$

$$= (4(k^2 + 1)^2 - 1)\lambda - 2(k^2 + 1) = \frac{1}{k} (C_{3,k}\lambda - C_{2,k})$$

Journal of Xi'an Shiyou University, Natural Science Edition

$$k\lambda^3 = C_{3,k}\lambda - C_{2,k}$$

$$\lambda^4 = \left[8(k^2+1)^3 - 4(k^2+1)\right]\lambda - \left[4(k^2+1) - 1\right] = \frac{1}{k} \left(C_{4,k}\lambda - C_{3,k}\right)$$

$$k\lambda^4 = C_{4,k}\lambda - C_{3,k}$$

In general,
$$k\lambda^n = C_{n,k}\lambda - C_{n-1,k}$$
 (1)

Since both σ and τ are the characteristic values, they must satisfy (1), hence

$$k\sigma^n = (C_{n,k}\sigma - C_{n-1,k})$$
 and $k\tau^n = (C_{n,k}\tau - C_{n-1,k})$

$$\Rightarrow k(\sigma^n - \tau^n) = C_{n,k}(\sigma - \tau)$$

Therefore,
$$C_{n,k} = \frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)}$$

$$C_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2+2}} \Big[\Big((k^2+1) + k\sqrt{k^2+2} \Big)^n - \Big((k^2+1) - k\sqrt{k^2+2} \Big)^n \Big], \text{ where } n \in W, \text{ the set of all whole numbers.}$$

Theorem: 2.2

If $\{D_{n,k}\}$ and $\{C_{n,k}\}$ are Pan-San Buddy sequence and Pan-San sequence respectively, then

i.
$$kD_{n,k} = (k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k}$$

ii.
$$D_{n,k}C_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2}C_{2n,k}$$

iii.
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

iv.
$$(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k})^2 + 1 = D_{2n-1,k}$$

v.
$$C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2kD_{n,k}$$

ISSN: 1673-064X

vi.
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

Proof:

i. By using the characteristic values of the Pan-San sequence as explained in theorem 2.1, their product is given by $\sigma\tau=1$.

ISSN: 1673-064X

The closed form the Pan-San Buddy sequence is specified by

$$D_{n,k} = A\sigma^n + B\tau^n \tag{2}$$

The fundamental values $D_{0,k}=1$, $D_{1,k}=k^2+1$ provides the subsequence system of linear equations A+B=1

$$A\sigma + B\tau = k^2 + 1.$$

Precisely,
$$A = \frac{(k^2+1)-\tau}{\sigma-\tau}$$
 and $B = \frac{\sigma-(k^2+1)}{\sigma-\tau}$

Consequently, the specific value of $D_{n,k}$ is pointed out by

$$\begin{split} D_{n,k} &= \frac{(k^2+1)-\tau}{\sigma-\tau} \ \sigma^n + \frac{\sigma-(k^2+1)}{\sigma-\tau} \tau^n \\ &= \frac{1}{\sigma-\tau} [(k^2+1)(\sigma^n - \tau^n) + \sigma\tau(\tau^{n-1} - \sigma^{n-1})] \\ &= \frac{(k^2+1)}{k} C_{n,k} - \frac{1}{k} C_{n-1,k} \end{split}$$

$$\therefore kD_{n,k} = (k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k}$$

ii. The alternative forms of the above values of A and B are epitomized by

$$A = \frac{(k^2+1)-\tau}{\sigma-\tau} = \frac{k\sqrt{k^2+2}}{2k\sqrt{k^2+2}} = \frac{1}{2}$$

$$B = 1 - A = \frac{1}{2}$$

The equivalent values of the general term of the Pan-San Buddy sequence is noted as

ISSN: 1673-064X

$$D_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2}(\sigma^n + \tau^n)$$

Hence,

$$\begin{split} D_{n,k}C_{n,k} &= \left(\frac{\sigma^n + \tau^n}{2}\right) \left(\frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)}\right) \\ &= \frac{k}{2(\sigma - \tau)} (\sigma^{2n} - \tau^{2n}) \end{split}$$

$$D_{n,k}C_{n,k}=\frac{1}{2}C_{2n,k}$$

iii.
$$\frac{D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k}}{C_{n,k}} = \frac{\frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1}) - \frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n-1} + \tau^{n-1})}{\frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)}}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma - \tau)}{2k} \frac{(\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1} - \sigma^{n-1} - \tau^{n-1})}{(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma - \tau)}{2k} \frac{(\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1} - \sigma^n \tau - \sigma \tau^n)}{(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}$$
$$= \frac{(\sigma - \tau)}{2k} (\sigma - \tau)$$
$$= 2k(k^2 + 2)$$

$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

iv.
$$\left(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k}\right)^2 + 1 = \left[\frac{k(\sigma^n - \tau^n)}{(\sigma - \tau)} + \frac{k(\sigma^{n-1} - \tau^{n-1})}{(\sigma - \tau)}\right]^2 + 1$$

$$\begin{split} &= \left\{ \frac{k}{(\sigma - \tau)} [\sigma^n - \tau^n + \sigma^n \tau - \sigma \tau^n] \right\}^2 + 1 \\ &= \left\{ \frac{k}{(\sigma - \tau)} [\sigma^n (1 + \tau) - \tau^n (1 + \sigma)] \right\}^2 + 1 \\ &= \frac{k^2}{(\sigma - \tau)^2} [\sigma^{2n} (1 + \tau)^2 + \tau^{2n} (1 + \sigma)^2 - 2\sigma^n \tau^n (1 + \tau) (1 + \sigma)] + 1 \\ &= \frac{k^2}{(\sigma - \tau)^2} [\sigma^{2n} + \tau^{2n} + \sigma^2 \tau^2 (\sigma^{2n - 2} + \tau^{2n - 2}) + 2\sigma \tau (\sigma^{2n - 1} + \tau^{2n - 1}) - 4(k^2 + 2)] + 1 \\ &= \frac{k^2}{(\sigma - \tau)^2} [(\sigma^{2n} + \tau^{2n}) + \sigma^2 \tau^2 (\sigma^{2n - 2} + \tau^{2n - 2}) + 2\sigma \tau (\sigma^{2n - 1} + \tau^{2n - 1}) - 4(k^2 + 2)] + 1 \\ &= \frac{1}{4(k^2 + 2)} [2D_{2n,k} + 2D_{2n - 2,k} + 4D_{2n - 1,k}] \\ &= \frac{1}{4(k^2 + 2)} 4(k^2 + 2)D_{2n - 1,k} \end{split}$$

ISSN: 1673-064X

$$(C_{n,k} + C_{n-1,k})^2 + 1 = D_{2n-1,k}$$

v.
$$C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2(k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - C_{n-1,k} - C_{n-1,k}$$

= $2(k^2 + 1)C_{n,k} - 2C_{n-1,k}$

$$C_{n+1,k} - C_{n-1,k} = 2kD_{n,k}$$

vi.
$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = \frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1}) - \frac{1}{2} (\sigma^{n-1} + \tau^{n-1})$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [\sigma^{n+1} + \tau^{n+1} - \sigma^n \tau - \sigma \tau^n]$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [\sigma^n (\sigma - \tau) - \tau^n (\sigma - \tau)]$$
$$= \frac{1}{2} [(\sigma^n - \tau^n)(\sigma - \tau)]$$

$$=\frac{\left(2k\sqrt{k^2+2}\right)^2}{2k}C_{n,k}$$

$$D_{n+1,k} - D_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 + 2)C_{n,k}$$

3. PAN-SAN COMRADE AND PAN-SAN MATE SEQUENCES

The values of R and S in the world-wide equation $S^2 - dR^2 = 1$ for a firm non-zero square-free integer $d = k^2 - 2$, $k \in N - \{1\}$ creates two handsome sequences $0, k, 2k(k^2 - 1), 4k(k^2 - 1)^2 - k, 8k(k^2 - 1)^3 - 4k(k^2 - 1), ...$ and $1, k^2 - 1, 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1, 4(k^2 - 1)^3 - 3(k^2 - 1), ...$ And Called As Pan-San Comrade And Pan-San Mate Sequences. The nth term of the earlier sequence is construed by the relation

ISSN: 1673-064X

 $R_{n,k} = 2(k^2 - 1)R_{n-1,k} - R_{n-2,k}$, where $R_{0,k} = 0$, $R_{1,k} = k$, $k \in N - \{1\}$ and N is the set of all-natural numbers.

The nth term of the later sequence is inferred by the recurrence relation

 $S_{n,k} = 2(k^2 - 1)S_{n-1,k} - S_{n-2,k}$, where $S_{0,k} = 1$, $S_{1,k} = k^2 - 1$, $k \in N - \{1\}$ and $n \in W$, the set of whole numbers.

Define the Pan-San Comrade sequence matrix as

$$\mathfrak{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Now,

$$\mathfrak{M} \begin{pmatrix} R_{1,k} \\ R_{0,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} k^2 - 1 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \\ k^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} R_{2,k} \\ R_{1,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

Also,

Journal of Xi'an Shiyou University, Natural Science Edition

$$\mathfrak{M} \begin{pmatrix} R_{2,k} \\ R_{1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \\ k^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} 4(k^2 - 1)^3 - 3(k^2 - 1) \\ 2(k^2 - 1)^2 - 1 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} R_{3,k} \\ R_{2,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

ISSN: 1673-064X

In general,
$$\mathfrak{M}\begin{pmatrix} R_{n,k} \\ R_{n-1,k} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} R_{n+1,k} \\ R_{n,k} \end{pmatrix}$$

As to section, it is possible to prove the following theorem.

Theorem: 3.1

If $\mathfrak{M} = \begin{pmatrix} 2(k^2 - 1) & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$ is a Pan-San Comrade sequence matrix, then the nth term of the Pan-San

Comrade Sequence is hypothesized by

$$R_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2\sqrt{k^2 - 2}} \left[\left((k^2 - 1) + k\sqrt{k^2 - 2} \right)^n - \left((k^2 - 1) - k\sqrt{k^2 - 2} \right)^n \right], \text{ where } n = 0,1,2,3,\dots$$

Theorem: 3.2

If $\{R_{n,k}\}$ and $\{S_{n,k}\}$ are Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences respectively, then

i.
$$kS_{n,k} = (k^2 - 1)R_{n,k} - R_{n-1,k}$$

ii.
$$S_{n,k}R_{n,k} = \frac{1}{2}R_{2n,k}$$

iii.
$$S_{n+1,k} - S_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 - 2)R_{n,k}$$

iv.
$$(R_{n,k} - R_{n-1,k})^2 - 1 = S_{2n-1,k}$$

v.
$$R_{n+1,k} - R_{n-1,k} = 2kS_{n,k}$$

vi.
$$S_{n+1,k} - S_{n-1,k} = 2k(k^2 - 2)R_{n,k}$$

4. CONCLUSION

In this paper, four disparate sequences and their recurrence relations named as Pan-San, Pan-San Buddy, Pan-San Comrade and Pan-San Mate sequences are established by utilizing the generalized

solutions (x,y) to the universal equation called as Pell equation for two non-zero square-free integers $d = k^2 + 2$, $d = k^2 - 2$ where $k \in N - \{1\}$. Also, the general formulae and few theorems are proved involving such sequences for distinct values of d and can analyze the corresponding results.

ISSN: 1673-064X

REFERENCES

- [1] Bueno. A.C.F, "A Note on (k,h)-Jacobsthal Sequence", International Journal of Mathematics and scientific computing, Vol. 3, No. 2, 2013.
- [2] Campos .H, Catarino. P, Aires. A. P, Vasco.P, and Borges. A, "On Some Identities of *k*Jacobsthal-Lucas Numbers", Int. Journal of Math. Analysis, Vol. 8, No. 10, 489 494, 2014.
- [3] Deepika Jhala, Kiran Sisodiya and Rathore G. P. S., "On Some Identities for k-Jacobsthal Numbers", Int. Journal of Math. Analysis, Vol. 7, No. 12, 551 556, 2013.
- [4] Lenstra H.W., "Solving the Pell Equation", Notices of the AMS. 49(2), 182–192, 2002.
- [5] Matthews K., "The Diophantine Equation $x^2 Dy^2 = N$, D > 0", Expositiones Math., 18, 323–331, 2000.
- [6] Pandichelvi. V, Sivakamasundari. P, "Matrix Representation of K-Fibonacci Sequence", International Journal of Engineering Science and Computing, Vol. 6, No. 10, 2016.
- [7] Pandichelvi, V., Sandhya, P., "Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences", International Journal of Research in Advent Technology, Special Issue, 175 – 180, 2019.
- [8] Seyyed Hossein Jafari-Petroudia, Behzad Pirouz, "On some properties of (k,h)-Pell sequence and (k,h)-Pell-Lucas Sequence", Int. J. Adv. Appl. Math. And Mech. 3(1) 98 101, 2015.
- [9] Tekcan A, Pell Equation x2 Dy2 = 2 II, Bulletin of the Irish Mathematical Society 54, 73–89, 2004.

THE PATTERNS OF DIOPHANTINE TRIPLES ENGROSS CHELDHIYA COMPANION SEQUENCE WITH INSPIRING PROPERTIES

V. Pandichelvi¹

P. Sandhya²

¹Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics

Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy, India

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics

SRM Trichy Arts & Science College, Trichy, India

Email: pandichelvi75@yahoo.com¹, sandhyasatheesh3@gmail.com²

I. Abstract:

In this manuscript, the patterns of Diophantine triples $\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \{a_2, a_3, a_4\}, \{a_3, a_4, a_5\}, \dots$ reside in Cheldhiya companion sequence with splendid properties $D(\pm(k^2+1)), k \in \mathbb{N}$ are investigated.

Keywords: Cheldhiya companion sequence, Diophantine triples, Pellian equation.

II. Introduction:

A Diophantine m-tuple with property D(n) is a set of m positive integers $\{a_1, a_2, ..., a_m\}$ such that $a_i a_j + n$ is a perfect square for all $i \neq j$ in $\{1,2,...m\}$. Diophantus has already researched how to locate these and he found the rational quadruple $\{1/16,33/16,68/16,105/16\}$ with the property D(1) (see[1]). Fermat has discovered the first integer quadruple $\{1,3,8,120\}$ with the same property. Euler gave the solution $\{a,b,a+b+2r,4r(r+a)(r+b)\}$, where $ab+1=r^2$ (see[2]). For all-embracing review of a variety of articles one may refer [3-14]. In this communication, the patterns enclosing three elements each of which is a Cheldhiya companion sequence $\{a_1,a_2,a_3\},\{a_2,a_3,a_4\},\{a_3,a_4,a_5\},...$ with impressive properties $D(\pm(k^2+1)),k\in N$ are examined.

III. Method of Analysis:

Presume that

$$a_1 = x_{2m}, a_2 = x_{2m+2}, m \in \mathbb{N} \text{ where } x_n = \frac{1}{2} \left(\left(k + \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n + \left(k - \sqrt{k^2 + 1} \right)^n \right), k \in \mathbb{N}$$

be any two integers such that $a_1a_2 - (k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square.

Let a_3 be another positive integer which satisfy the consequent provision

$$a_1 a_3 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi^2 \tag{1}$$

ISSN NO: 1301-2746

$$a_2 a_3 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi^2 \tag{2}$$

Resolving (1) and (2), the value of a_3 is attained by

$$a_3 = \frac{\phi^2 - \psi^2}{a_1 - a_2} \tag{3}$$

By utilizing (3) in (2), the relation to be perceived is

$$a_2\phi^2 - a_1\psi^2 = (k^2 + 1)(a_1 - a_2) \tag{4}$$

Create the succeeding linear alterations

$$\phi = X + a_1 T \tag{5}$$

$$\psi = X + a_2 T \tag{6}$$

Restoring the above values of ϕ and ψ in (4), the quadratic equation with two unknowns is estimated by

$$X^{2} - (a_{1}a_{2})T^{2} = -(k^{2} + 1)$$
(7)

Selecting the least solution to (7) as

$$X_0 = x_{2m+1}, T_0 = 1$$

and the implementation this solution in (5) and (6) endow with the relations that

$$\phi = x_{2m+1} + a_1$$

$$\psi = x_{2m+1} + a_2$$

Exchanging the above said suitable modifications in (3), the third element in the essential patterns which assure the postulation is specified by

$$a_3 = x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}$$

Hence,

$$\{x_{2m}, x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\}\$$
 is a Diophantine triple with the property $D(-(k^2+1)), k \in \mathbb{N}$

Let a_4 be a new-fangled positive integer such that

$$a_2 a_4 - (k^2 + 1) = {\phi_1}^2 \tag{8}$$

$$a_3 a_4 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_1^2 \tag{9}$$

Subtracting (9) from (8) and make a simple computation, the significant value of a_4 is determined by

$$a_4 = \frac{{\phi_1}^2 - {\psi_1}^2}{a_2 - a_3} \tag{10}$$

ISSN NO: 1301-2746

Now, choose a_5 be a positive integer which satisfies the conditions that

$$a_3 a_5 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi_2^2 \tag{11}$$

$$a_4 a_5 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_2^2 \tag{12}$$

By exploiting a plain numerical calculation in (11) and (12), it is to be noticed that

$$a_5 = \frac{\phi_2^2 - \psi_2^2}{a_3 - a_4} \tag{13}$$

Suppose that

$$a_4 a_6 - (k^2 + 1) = \phi_3^2 \tag{14}$$

$$a_5 a_6 - (k^2 + 1) = \psi_3^2 \tag{15}$$

where $a_6 \in Z - \{0\}$

Following the prior process in (14) and (15), the equivalent value of the factor a_4 in the sequence is established by

$$a_6 = \frac{\phi_3^2 - \psi_3^2}{a_4 - a_5} \tag{16}$$

Since the objective is to accomplish the appropriate integer values for the parameters in the crucial patterns, make use of the subsequent transformations

$$\phi_1 = P_{k+1} x_{2m+1} + x_{2m} + a_2$$

$$\psi_1 = P_{k+1} x_{2m+1} + x_{2m} + a_3$$

$$\phi_2 = x_{2m} + 3x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2} + a_3$$

$$\psi_2 = x_{2m} + 3x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2} + a_4$$

$$\phi_3 = 2x_{2m} + 7x_{2m+1} + 6x_{2m+2} + a_4$$

$$\psi_3 = 2x_{2m} + 7x_{2m+1} + 6x_{2m+2} + a_5$$

where $\{P_n\} = \{2n-1\}, n \in \mathbb{N}$ is the sequence of odd numbers from (8) to (16) and proceeding the same mechanism as explained above, the elements in the necessary patterns with the suitable property are studied by

$$a_4 = 3x_{2m} + (2 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}$$

$$a_5 = 6x_{2m} + (10 + 2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 7x_{2m+2}$$

$$a_6 = 13x_{2m} + (26 + 4P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 21x_{2m+2}$$

Thus,

$$\{x_{2m}, x_{2m+2}, x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},\$$

$$\{x_{2m+2}, \ x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, \ 3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m} + 2x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}, 3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, 6x_{2m} + (10+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + x_{2m+2}\},$$

$$\{3x_{2m} + (2+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 2x_{2m+2}, \quad 6x_{2m} + (10+2P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 7x_{2m+2}, 13x_{2m} + (26+4P_{k+1})x_{2m+1} + 21x_{2m+2}\} \dots$$

are patterns of Diophantine triples concerning Cheldhiya companion sequence such that the product of any two of them decreased by $(k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square where k is a natural number.

Hence, the patterns of Diophantine triples $\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \{a_2, a_3, a_4\}, \{a_3, a_4, a_5\}, ...$ in which the factors are Cheldhiya companion sequence with the property $D(-(k^2+1))$ where $k \in N$ are evaluated.

Examples for the numerical replacement of the above patterns of Diophantine triples with the property $D\left(-(k^2+1)\right)$ are specified in the tabular form as follows.

k	m	$k^2 + 1$	$\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}$	$\{a_2, a_3, a_4\}$	$\{a_3, a_4, a_5\}$	$\{a_4, a_5, a_6\}$
1	1	2	{3,17,34}	{17,34,99}	{34,99,249}	{99,249,662}
2	1	5	{9,161,246}	{161,246,805}	{246,805,1941}	{805,1941,5246}
3	3 10 { ^{27379, 1039681,} 1404494}		 	{1039681, 1404494,} 4860971	{1404494, 4860971,} 11491249	{\delta 60971, 11491249, \\ 31299946

Remark:

Applying the similar procedure as enlightened above, it is pointed out the consequent patterns of Diophantine triples in which every element is a Cheldhiya companion sequence such that the product of any two of them increased by $(k^2 + 1)$ is a perfect square.

$$\{x_{2m-1}, x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}\}, \ \{x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m-1} + 2x_{2m} + x_{2m+1}, x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}\},$$

$$\{x_{2m-1} + 4x_{2m} + 4x_{2m+1}, 4x_{2m-1} + 12x_{2m} + 9x_{2m+1}, 9x_{2m-1} + 30x_{2m} + 25x_{2m+1}\}, \dots$$

A small number of numerical cases for the above sequences of Diophantine triples with the property $D(k^2+1)$ are stated below

k	m	$k^2 + 1$	$\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}$	$\{a_2,a_3,a_4\}$	$\{a_3, a_4, a_5\}$	$\{a_4, a_5, a_6\}$
1	1	2	{1,7,14}	{7,14,41}	{14,41,103}	{41,103,274}
2	1	5	{2,38,58}	{38,58,190}	{58,190,458}	{190,458,1238}
3	2	10	{117,4443,6002}	{4443,6002,20773}	{6002,20773,49107}	{20773,49107,133758}

ISSN NO: 1301-2746

Verification of the numerical examples is displayed by the ensuing C program.

```
#include<stdio.h>
 #include<conio.h>
 #include<math.h>
 void main()
int m,ca,k,n,p;
char ch;
long long int x(int n,int k),a,b,c,d,e,f,A;
clrscr();
 do
printf("\nEnter the value of k and m \setminus n");
 scanf("%d%d",& k,& m);
 printf("\nEnter your choice 1 or 2 for D(-(k^2 + 1)) or D(k^2 + 1)\n");
 scanf("%d",&ca);
 switch (ca)
case 1:
 a = x(2 * m, k);
 b = x(2*m+2,k);
A = x(2*m+1,k);
p = 2 * k + 1;
 c = a + 2 * A + b;
 d = 3 * a + (2 + 2 * p) * A + 2 * b;
 e = 6 * a + (10 + 2 * p) * A + 7 * b;
 f = 13 * a + (26 + 4 * p) * A + 21 * b;
break;
case 2:
a = x(2 * m - 1, k);
b = x(2 * m + 1, k);
A = x(2 * m, k);
c = a + 2 * A + b;
 d = a + 4 * A + 4 * b;
 e = 4 * a + 12 * A + 9 * b;
 f = 9 * a + 30 * A + 25 * b;
 break;
 }
 printf("\n(% lld, % lld
printf("\nDo you want to continue for different m and k (y/n)?\n");
ch=getche();
 } while (ch=='y'||ch=='Y');
 getch();
 long long int x(int n,int k)
long long int x[50], y;
x[0] = 1;
x[1] = k;
int i;
for (i = 2; i \le n; i + +)
x[i] = 2 * k * x[i-1] + x[i-2];
```

y = x[i-1];return y;} IV. Conclusion:

In this article, the patterns of Diophantine triples comprising the Cheldhiya companion sequence satisfying certain intriguing characteristics are created. In this manner, different patterns of Diophantine triples, quadruples, quintuples, etc. can be look into the research with some other characteristics.

References:

- 1. I. G. Bashmakova (ed.), Diophantus of Alexandria, Arithmetic's and the Book of Polygonal Numbers, Nauka, Moscow, 1974.
- 2. L. E. Dickson, History of the theory of Numbers, Vol.2, Diophantine Analysis, New York, Dover publications, 2005.
- 3. A. F. Beardon, and M.N. Deshpande, (2002), Diophantine Triplets, the Mathematical Gazette, 86, 258-260.
- 4. Bo He, F. Luca and A. Togbe, (2016), Diophantine Triples of Fibonacci Numbers, Acta Arithmetica, Volume 175.
- 5. M. N. Deshpande, (2002), One Interesting Family of Diophantine Triplets, Internet. J. Math ed. Sci. Tech., 33, 253-256
- 6. M. N. Deshpande, (2003), Families of Diophantine Triplets, Bulletin of the Marathwada Mathematical Society, 4, 19-21.
- 7. H. Gupta, and K. Singh, (1985), On Triad Sequences, Internet. J. Math. Sci., 5, 700-804.
- 8. M. A. Gopalan and V. Pandichelvi (2011), Construction of the Diophantine Triple Involving Polygonal Numbers, Impact J. Sci. Tech., 5(1), 7-11.
- 9. M. A. Gopalan, V. Sangeetha and Manju Somanath (2014), Construction of the Diophantine Polygonal Numbers, Sch. J. Eng. Tech.2,19-22.
- M. A. Gopalan, V. Sangeetha and Manju Somanath (2014), Construction of the Diophantine Polygonal Numbers, Sch. J. Eng. Tech.2,19-22.
- 11. M. A. Gopalan, K. Geetha and Manju Somanathe (2014), Special Dio-3 Tuples, Bulletin of Society of Mathematical Services and Standards, 3(2), 41-45.
- 12. James Matteson, M. D., "A Collection of Diophantine Problems with Solutions". Washington, Arte mas Martin, 1888.
- 13. V. Pandichelvi and P. Sivakamasundari (2017), The Sequence of Diophantine Triples involving Half Compaion Sequence and Pell Numbers, 8(7),18482-18484.
- 14. V. Pandichelvi and P. Sandhya (2019), Manifestation of Two Tremendous Sequences Cheldhiya and Cheldhiya Companion Sequences, International Journal of Research in Advent Technology, ICAMBC, 175-180.

ISSN NO: 1301-2746

Fabrication of Gorgeous Integer Quadruple

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

V. Pandichelvi¹

P. Sandhya²

¹Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics
Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy, India.

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics
SRM Trichy Arts & Science College, Trichy, India.

Abstract: In this paper, an elegant non-zero distinct integer quadruple (a, b, c, d) in which addition of any three of them is a cubical integer is determined by exploiting the general solutions to a meticulous cubic Diophantine equation.

Keywords: Diophantine triples, Ternary quadratic Diophantine equation.

1.Introduction

Diophantus of Alexandria noted that the numbers $\frac{1}{16}$, $\frac{33}{16}$, $\frac{68}{16}$, $\frac{105}{16}$ had the property that the product of either of these two numbers increased by 1 is the square of a rational number. Sets of integers with a comparable property have been of concern for many years, and a sequence of non-negative integers, is verbalized to be a Diophantine m-tuple $\{a_1, a_2, ..., a_m\}$ with property D(n) if each $a_i a_j + n(i \neq j)$ is the square of an integer [1-7.10]. A variety of integer solutions to different Diophantine equations are analysed in [8,9]. In this communication, the Diophantine quadruple consisting of non-zero distinct integers where the sum of any three elements is a cubic of an integer is discovered.

2. Method of Analysis

Let a, b, c, d be four non-zero distinct integers such that the addition of any three of them is a perfect cube.

Consider

$$a+b+c=p^3 (1)$$

$$a+b+d=q^3 (2)$$

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 115

$$b + c + d = s^3 \tag{4}$$

together with the following condition

$$3(a+b+c+d) = (p+q+r+s)z^{3}$$
(5)

Solving the system of equations from (1) to (4), the corresponding values of a, b, c, d are pointed out by

$$a = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + q^3 + r^3 - 2s^3) \tag{6}$$

$$b = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + q^3 + s^3 - 2r^3) \tag{7}$$

$$c = \frac{1}{3}(p^3 + r^3 + s^3 - 2q^3) \tag{8}$$

$$d = \frac{1}{3}(q^3 + r^3 + s^3 - 2p^3) \tag{9}$$

Adding (6), (7), (8) and (9), an interesting combination is enumerated by

$$3(a+b+c+d) = p^3 + q^3 + r^3 + s^3$$
 (10)

Comparison of (5) & (10) provides that

$$(p+q+r+s)z^3 = p^3 + q^3 + r^3 + s^3$$
(11)

Employing the following linear transformations

p = x + 2y, q = 2x + y, r = 2y - x, s = y - 2x, where x and y are non-zero integers

from (6) to (9) gives

$$a = 8x^3 + 6xy^2 + 5y^3 \tag{12}$$

$$b = x^3 + 6x^2y + 12xy^2 - 2y^3 \tag{13}$$

$$c = -8x^3 - 6xy^2 + 5y^3 (14)$$

$$d = -x^3 + 6x^2y - 12xy^2 - 2y^3 (15)$$

Substitution of the same transformations reduce (11) to the quadratic equation with three unknowns as

$$6x^2 + 3y^2 = z^3 \tag{16}$$

Applying four different procedures of solving (16), the evaluation of an attractive integer quadruple satisfying the condition that the sum of any three quantities is a cubical integer is explained as follows.

Procedure (i):

The choice of $z = 6m^2 + 3n^2$, where $m, n \in \mathbb{Z} - \{0\}$, leads (16) to

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

$$(\sqrt{6}x)^2 + (\sqrt{3}y)^2 = ((\sqrt{6}m)^2 + (\sqrt{3}n)^2)^3$$

which implies that

$$(\sqrt{6}x + i\sqrt{3}y)(\sqrt{6}x - i\sqrt{3}y) = ((\sqrt{6}m + i\sqrt{3}n)(\sqrt{6}m - i\sqrt{3}n))^3$$

Escalating the right hand side of the above equation and equating real and imaginary parts on both the sides, it is to be noted that

$$x = 6m^3 - 9mn^2$$
$$y = 18m^2n - 3n^3$$
$$z = 6m^2 + 3n^2$$

Substituting the above values of x, y, z in (12), (13), (14) and (15), the values of a, b, c, d satisfying our assumption are deliberated by

$$a = 8(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2}(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})$$

$$+5(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$b = (6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{2}(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})$$

$$+12(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2}) \times (18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2} - 2(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$c = -8(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} - 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2}$$

$$+5(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

$$d = -(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{3} + 6(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2})^{2}(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})$$

$$-12(6m^{3} - 9mn^{2}) \times (18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{2} - 2(18m^{2}n - 3n^{3})^{3}$$

Some numerical examples satisfying the hypothesis are specified below

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	1	12609	-14067	21141	2187	27^{3}	9^{3}	33^{3}	21^{3}
2	1	2715525	1456542	569565	-2025378	168 ³	129^{3}	108^{3}	9^{3}
3	2	165419721	9726264	104580288	-107228664	654 ³	408^{3}	546 ³	192^{3}

Procedure (ii):

Treating (16) as

$$6x^2 + 3y^2 = 1^2 \cdot z^3 \tag{17}$$

Assuming that

$$z = \left(\sqrt{6}m\right)^2 + \left(\sqrt{3}n\right)^2$$

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 117

and re-establish 1 by

$$1 = \frac{(\sqrt{6} + i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6} - i\sqrt{3})}{9}$$

in (17), it becomes

$$(\sqrt{6}x)^{2} + (\sqrt{3}y)^{2} = \left(\frac{(\sqrt{6} + i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6} - i\sqrt{3})}{9}\right)^{2} \cdot \left((\sqrt{6}m)^{2} + (\sqrt{3}n)^{2}\right)^{3}$$

which is equivalent to

$$\left(\sqrt{6}x + i\sqrt{3}y\right)\left(\sqrt{6}x - i\sqrt{3}y\right) = \left(\frac{(\sqrt{6}+i\sqrt{3})(\sqrt{6}-i\sqrt{3})}{9}\right)^{2} \cdot \left(\left(\sqrt{6}m + i\sqrt{3}n\right)\left(\sqrt{6}m - i\sqrt{3}n\right)\right)^{3}$$

$$(18)$$

Equating the positive parts on both sides of (18) and comparing the like terms, it is examined that

$$x = 2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3$$
$$y = 8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3$$

In view of (12), (13), (14) and (15), the options of a, b, c, d are estimated by

$$a = 8(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 + 5(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$$

$$b = (2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^2 \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3) + 12(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 - 2(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$$

$$c = -8(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 - 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 + 5(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$$

$$d = -(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^3 + 6(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3)^2 \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3) - 12(2m^3 - 12m^2n - 3mn^2 + 2n^3) \times (8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^2 - 2(8m^3 + 6m^2n - 12mn^2 - n^3)^3$$

Some numerical examples satisfying the propositions are specified below

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	1	-10709	- 739	10719	2187	$(-9)^3$	$(-21)^3$	13^{3}	23^{3}
2	1	19683	-1771470	2480787	1751058	90^{3}	$(-9)^3$	162^{3}	135^{3}
3	2	-55002032	-46632952	105976512	94647096	162^{3}	$(-192)^3$	526^{3}	536^{3}

Procedure (iii):

Consider an alternative solutions to (16) as

$$x = \frac{1}{\sqrt{6}}(k^3 + kl^2)$$

$$y = \frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}(l^3 + lk^2)$$

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020

$$z = k^2 + l^2$$

Case (i):

Since the target is to evaluate integral values for the variables, it is observed that the subsequent two parametric choices of $k = \sqrt{6}m$ and $l = \sqrt{3}n$ provides the values of x and y in integers.

Then, the integral solutions to (16) are calculated by

$$x = 6m3 + 3mn2$$
$$y = 3n3 + 6nm2$$
$$z = 6m2 + 3n2$$

Substituting the above quantities in (12), (13), (14) and (15), the appropriate values of a, b, c, d are discovered by

$$a = 1728m^{9} + 3888m^{7}n^{2} + 1080m^{6}n^{3} + 3240m^{5}n^{4} + 1620m^{4}n^{5} + 1188m^{3}n^{6} + 810m^{2}n^{7} + 162mn^{8} + 135n^{9}$$

$$b = 216m^{9} + 1296m^{8}n + 2916m^{7}n^{2} + 1512m^{6}n^{3} + 4050m^{5}n^{4} + 324m^{4}n^{5} + 1971m^{3}n^{6} - 162m^{2}n^{7} + 324mn^{8} - 54n^{9}$$

$$c = -1728m^{9} - 3888m^{7}n^{2} + 1080m^{6}n^{3} - 3240m^{5}n^{4} + 1620m^{4}n^{5} - 1188m^{3}n^{6} + 810m^{2}n^{7} - 162mn^{8} + 135n^{9}$$

$$d = -216m^{9} + 1296m^{8}n - 2916m^{7}n^{2} + 1512m^{6}n^{3} - 4050m^{5}n^{4} + 324m^{4}n^{5} - 1971m^{3}n^{6} - 162m^{2}n^{7} - 324mn^{8} - 54n^{9}$$

Some numerical examples satisfying our assumption are precised below

m	n	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a + c + d	b+c+d
1	1	13851	12393	- 6561	- 6561	27^{3}	27^{3}	9^{3}	9^{3}
2	1	1594323	1062882	-1397493	-196830	108^{3}	135^{3}	0^3	$(-81)^3$
3	2	94298688	75611448	-71299008	- 22712184	462^{3}	528 ³	66^{3}	$(-264)^3$

Case (ii):

As in case (i), the single parametric choices of $k = \sqrt{6}t$ and $l = \sqrt{3}t$ offers the values of x and y in integers.

Thus,

$$x = 9t^{3}$$

$$v = 9t^3$$

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

Substituting the above magnitudes in (12), (13), (14) and (15), it is determined by

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

```
a = 13851 t^{9}
b = 12393 t^{9}
c = -6561 t^{9}
d = -6561 t^{9}
```

Some numerical examples satisfying the hypothesis are exemplified below

k	а	b	С	d	a+b+c	a+b+d	a+c+d	b+c+d
1	13851	12393	-6561	-6561	27^{3}	27^{3}	9^{3}	$(-9)^3$
2	7091712	6345216	-3359232	-3359232	216^{3}	216^{3}	72^{3}	$(-72)^3$
3	272629233	243931419	-129140163	-129140163	729^{3}	729^{3}	243 ³	$(-243)^3$

The C Program for numerical examples satisfying our hypotheses are illustrated below.

```
#include<stdio.h>
#include<conio.h>
#include<math.h>
void main()
char ch;
intm,n,ca;
signed long int x,y,a,b,c,d,cup,cuq,cur,cus,cup1,cuq1,cur1,cus1,p,q,r,s;
clrscr();
do
printf("\nEnter m and n values\n");
scanf("%d%d",&m,&n);
printf("\nEnter your choice case 1 or 2 or 3 or 4\n");
scanf("%d",&ca);
switch(ca)
case 1:
x=(6*m*m*m)-(9*m*n*n);
y=(18*m*m*n)-(3*n*n*n);
break;
case 2:
x=(2*m*m*m)-(12*m*m*n)-(3*m*n*n)+(2*n*n*n);
y=(8*m*m*m)+(6*m*m*n)-(12*m*n*n)-(n*n*n);
break:
case 3:
x=(6*m*m*m)+(3*m*n*n);
y=(3*n*n*n)+(6*n*m*m);
break;
case 4:
x=9*m*m*m;
```

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 120

```
y=9*m*m*m;
break;
a=(8*x*x*x)+(6*x*y*y)+(5*y*y*y);
b=(x*x*x)+(6*x*x*y)+(12*x*y*y)-(2*y*y*y);
c = (-8 \cdot x \cdot x \cdot x) - (6 \cdot x \cdot y \cdot y) + (5 \cdot y \cdot y \cdot y);
d=-(x^*x^*x)+(6^*x^*x^*y)-(12^*x^*y^*y)-(2^*y^*y^*y);
cup=a+b+c;
cuq=a+b+d;
cur=a+c+d;
cus=b+c+d;
if(cup<0)
{
cup1=-1*cup;
p=pow(cup1,1.0/3.0);
else
p=pow(cup, 1.0/3.0);
If(p==0)
p=0;
else
p++;
if(cup<0)
p=-p;
if(cuq<0)
cuq1=-1*cuq;
q=pow(cuq1,1.0/3.0);
else
q = pow(cuq, 1.0/3.0);
If(q==0)
q=0;
else
q++;
if(cuq<0)
q=-q;
if(cur<0)
cur1=-1*cur;
p=pow(cur1,1.0/3.0);
else
r=pow(cur, 1.0/3.0);
```

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 121

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

```
If(r==0)
r=0;
else
r++:
if(cur<0)
r=-r;
if(cus<0)
cus1=-1*cus;
s=pow(cus1, 1.0/3.0);
else
s=pow(cus, 1.0/3.0);
if(s==0)
s=0:
else
s++;
if(cus<0)
S=-S:
printf("\nm=\%d,n=\%d,a=\%ld,b=\%ld,b=\%ld,c=\%ld,d=\%ld\n\",m,n,a,b,c,d);
printf("\na+b+c=(\%ld)^3,a+b+d=(\%ld)^3,a+c+d=(\%ld)^3,b+c+d=(\%ld)^3",p,q,r,s);
printf("Do you want to continue (y/n)?");
ch=getche();
}while (ch=='Y' || ch=='y');
getch();
}
```

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

3. Conclusion

In this communication, the quadruple (a, b, c, d) so that the sum of any three of them is a cubical integer is scrutinized. To conclude, one can search for different quintuples, sextuples, septuples etc satisfying some other properties.

REFERENCES:

- 1. A. F. Beardon, and M.N. Deshpande, (2002), Diophantine Triplets, the Mathematical Gazette, 86, 258-260.
- 2. M. N. Deshpande, (2002), One Interesting Family of Diophantine Triplets, Internet. J. Math ed. Sci. Tech., 33, 253-256
- 3. M. N. Deshpande, (2003), Families of Diophantine Triplets, Bulletin of the Marathwada Mathematical Society, 4, 19-21.
- 4. H. Gupta, and K. Singh, (1985), On Triad Sequences, Internet. J. Math. Sci., 5, 700-804.

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 122

5. M. A. Gopalan and V. Pandichelvi (2011), Construction of the Diophantine Triple Involving Polygonal Numbers, Impact J. Sci. Tech., 5(1), 7-11.

ISSN NO: 1934-7197

- 6. M. A. Gopalan, V. Sangeetha and Manju Somanath (2014), Construction of the Diophantine Polygonal Numbers, Sch. J. Eng. Tech.2,19-22.
- 7. M. A. Gopalan, K. Geetha and Manju Somanath (2014), Special Dio-3 Tuples, Bulletin of Society of Mathematical Services and Standards, 3(2), 41-45.
- 8. M. A. Gopalan, Manju Somanath and N. Vanitha (2006), "On Ternary Cubiv Diophantine Equation $X^2 + Y^2 = 2Z^3$ ", Advances in Theoretical and Applied Mathematics, Vol.1(53):227-231.
- 9. James Matteson, M. D., "A Collection of Diophantine Problems with Solutions". Washington, Arte mas Martin, 1888.
- 10. K.Meena, S.Vidhyalakshmi, M.A.Gopalan, S. AarthyThangam, "Special Integer Quadruple In Arithmetic Progression", International Journal of Recent Trends in Engineering and Research, Volume 03, Issue 05; May 2017.

Volume 10, Issue 4, 2020 Page No: 123



Incomparable integer quintuple in arithmetic progression with prominent condition

P. Sandhya^{1*} and V. Pandichelvi²

Abstract

In this document, the incomparable integer quintuple (p,q,r,s,t) in such a way that the components with the renowned property in algebra named as arithmetic progression with the postulation that the addition of three consecutive terms shows a perfect square is established.

Keywords

Diophantine *m*-tuple, quintuple in arithmetic progression.

Article History: Received 27 December 2020; Accepted 10 February 2021

©2021 MJM

Contents

1	Introduction 608
2	Course of action for survey608
2.1	Logical postulation is checked for certain values of U and V as tabulated below 609
2.2	Presumption is verified for definite values of U and V in the table given below 610
2.3	Supposition is authenticated for specific values of U and V in the following table 610
3	Conclusion
	References

1. Introduction

Let n be an integer. A set of positive integers $(a_1,a_2,a_3,\ldots a_m)$ is said to have the property D(n) if a_ia_j+n is a perfect square for all $1 \le i < j \le m$; such a set is called a Diophantine m- tuple $[1-6] \cdot \text{In}$ [7], the authors were evaluated the triplesin Arithmetic Progression (a-d,a,a+d) such that $2a-d=\alpha^2,2a+d=\beta^2,2a=\chi^3$ and $2a-d=\alpha^2,2a+d=\beta^2,2a=\chi^4$ where a and d be two non-zero distinct integer.In [8], triples were procured in Arithmetic Progression such that the sum of any two is a perfect square. In [9], the authors found the triples in Arithmetic Progression (a-d,a,a+d) such that each of the expression $a^2-ad,2a+d,2a$ is a perfect square. In [10], the authors found the quadruples of the form (x,y,z,w) where the elements arein Arithmetic Progression satisfying the conditions $x+y=\alpha^2z+w=\beta^2$ and $x+y+z+w=\gamma^3$.

In this manuscript, three unlike integer quintuples with the elements in Arithmetic Progression rewarding the condition that that the sum of three consecutive integers indicates a perfect square is acquired.

2. Course of action for survey

Presume that p,q,r,s,t be five non-zero separate integers such that the elements in the quintuple (p,q,r,s,t) materialize in Arithmetic Progression.

To symbolize this proclamation, let a and d be two non-zero integers such that p = a - 2d, q = a - d, r = a, s = a + d, t = a + 2d.

For the exploration of the perception of the manuscript, imagine the sum of three consecutive elements in the already assumed quintuple is a square of an integer. The above declaration is replicated by the subsequent equations

$$p + q + r = 3a - 3d = \varphi^2 \tag{2.1}$$

$$q + r + s = 3a = \eta^2 \tag{2.2}$$

$$r + s + t = 3a + 3d = \chi^2 \tag{2.3}$$

Addition of (2.1) and (2.3) endow with the proportion that

$$a = \frac{\varphi^2 + \chi^2}{6} \tag{2.4}$$

Similarly, subtraction of (2.1) from (2.3) bestow as in the succeeding fraction

$$d = \frac{\chi^2 - \varphi^2}{6} \tag{2.5}$$

¹ Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy-621105, Tamil Nadu, India.

² PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy-620019, Tamil Nadu, India.

^{*}Corresponding author: 1 sandhyaprasad2684@gmail.com

Elucidation of (2.2) and (2.4) yields the following equation

$$\eta^2 = \frac{\varphi^2 + \chi^2}{2} \tag{2.6}$$

To convert the above said value of η as in integer, launch the novel conversions

$$\eta = 3\lambda, \varphi = 6\mu, \chi = 6\omega \tag{2.7}$$

These translations imitate (2.5) and (2.6) as follows

$$d = 6\left(\omega^2 - \mu^2\right) \tag{2.8}$$

$$\lambda^2 = 2\left(\mu^2 + \omega^2\right) \tag{2.9}$$

The elements in the required quintuple are making into integers with the property looking for is portrayed by the three procedures as below.

Procedure 1: Decode the parameter λ as

$$\lambda = u^2 + v^2$$

Then, the equation (2.9) can be altered by

$$(u^2 + v^2)^2 = 2(\mu^2 + \omega^2)$$

$$\Rightarrow (u + iv)^2 (u - iv)^2 = (1 + i)(1 - i)(\mu + i\omega)(\mu - i\omega)$$

By escalating and balancing positive terms and then equating real and imaginary parts on both sides, the resulting equations are revealed by

$$\mu - \omega = u^2 - v^2$$
$$\mu + \omega = 2uv$$

Resolving the above equations the most plausible values of μ and ω are demonstrated by

$$\mu = \frac{1}{2} (u^2 - v^2 + 2uv)$$

$$\omega = \frac{1}{2} (v^2 - u^2 + 2uv)$$

The parametric values of λ , μ and ω in integers are created by selecting the options of u = 2U and and v = 2V as follows

$$\lambda = 4 (U^{2} + V^{2})$$

$$\mu = 2 (U^{2} - V^{2} + 2UV)$$

$$\omega = 2 (V^{2} - U^{2} + 2UV)$$

The replacement of the above value of λ in (2.7), endow with the value of η as

$$\eta = 12\left(U^2 + V^2\right)$$

According to (2.2) and (2.8), the components in the essential quintuple are offered by

$$a = 48 (U^2 + V^2)^2$$

 $d = 192UV (V^2 - U^2)$

Subsequently, the necessary guintuple in which the elements form an Arithmetic progression is discovered by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = \left\{ 48 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)^2 - 384UV \left(V^2 - U^2 \right) \right.$$

$$48 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)^2 - 192UV \left(V^2 - U^2 \right), 48 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)^2$$

$$48 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)^2 + 192UV \left(V^2 - U^2 \right), 48 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)^2$$

$$+384UV \left(V^2 - U^2 \right) \right\}$$

2.1 Logical postulation is checked for certain values of U and V as tabulated below

	Table 1.									
U	V	(p, q, r, s, t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t					
2	1	(3504,2352,1200,	84 ²	60^{2}	12^{2}					
		48,-1104)								
5	7	(-59712,101568,								
		262848,424128,	552^2	888^{2}	1128^2					
		585408)								
1	3	(-4416,192,4800,	24 ²	120^{2}	168 ²					
		9408,14016)								

Procedure 2:

The same conversion of $\lambda = u^2 + v^2$ supplies the alternative appearance of (2.9) as

$$(u+iv)^{2}(u-iv)^{2} = \frac{(7+i)(7-i)}{25}(\mu+i\omega)(\mu-i\omega)$$

Replicate the same course of action as mentioned in procedure (2.1), the corresponding values of μ and ω satisfying the double equations $7\mu - \omega = 5\left(u^2 - v^2\right), \mu + 7\omega = 10uv$ are appraised by

$$\mu = \frac{1}{10} (7 (u^2 - v^2) + 2uv)$$

$$\omega = \frac{1}{10} (v^2 - u^2 + 14uv)$$

The chances of λ , μ and ω in integers by picking u = 10U and v = 10V are produced by

$$\lambda = 100 (U^{2} + V^{2})$$

$$\mu = 10 (7U^{2} - 7V^{2} + 2UV)$$

$$\omega = 10 (V^{2} - U^{2} + 14UV)$$

Renovate the value of λ in (2.7), the value of η is calculated by

$$\eta = 300 \left(U^2 + V^2 \right)$$

In sight of (2.2) and (2.8), the equivalent choices of a and d are pointed out by

$$a = 30000 (U^{2} + V^{2})^{2}$$

$$d = -4800 (6U^{4} + 6V^{4} + 7U^{3}V - 7UV^{3} - 36U^{2}V^{2})$$



Hence, the needed quintuple with desired property is exposed by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = \left\{30000 \left(U^2 + V^2\right)^2 + 9600 (6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2), 30000 \left(U^2 + V^2\right)^2 + 4800 \left(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2\right) \\ 30000 \left(U^2 + V^2\right)^2, 30000 \left(U^2 + V^2\right)^2 - 4800 \left(6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2\right), \\ 30000 \left(U^2 + V^2\right)^2 - 9600 (6U^4 + 6V^4 + 7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2), \\ +7U^3V - 7UV^3 - 36U^2V^2)\right\}$$

2.2 Presumption is verified for definite values of ${\it U}$ and ${\it V}$ in the table given below

		Table 2.			
U	V	(p, q, r, s, t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t
0	1	(87600,58800,			
		30000,1200,	420^{2}	300^{2}	60^{2}
		-27600)			
1	2	(-56400,346800,			
		750000,1153200,	1020^2	1500^2	1860^{2}
		1556400)			
1	1	(-110400,4800,120000,	120 ²	600^2	840 ²
		235200,350400)			

Procedure 3:

Commencement of the fresh renovation $\lambda = 2 \operatorname{Ain}(9)$ declare the same equation as

$$2 A^{2} = \mu^{2} + \omega^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow A^{2} - \mu^{2} = \omega^{2} - A^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (A + \mu)(A - \mu) = (\omega + A)(\omega - A)$$

$$\Rightarrow \left(1 + \frac{\mu}{A}\right) \left(1 - \frac{\mu}{A}\right) = \left(\frac{\omega}{A} + 1\right) \left(\frac{\omega}{A} - 1\right)$$
(2.10)

Again, make use of the transformations $_A^{\mu} = \theta$, $\frac{\omega}{A} = \rho$ in (2.10) produces the proportion as

$$\frac{(1+\theta)}{(1+\rho)} = \frac{(\rho-1)}{(1-\theta)} = \frac{m}{n}, n \neq 0$$
 (2.11)

Hereafter, calculate the values of θ and ρ from (2.11) by the process of cross multiplication and then substituting these values in the ultimate transformation, it is determined by

$$A = m^{2} + n^{2} \Rightarrow \lambda = 2 \left(m^{2} + n^{2}\right)$$

$$\mu = m^{2} + 2mn - n^{2}$$

$$\omega = n^{2} + 2mn - m^{2}$$

$$(2.12)$$

Interpretation (2.2) and (2.7) offers the relevant values of a and d as presented in the equations scripted below.

$$a = 12 \left(m^2 + n^2\right)^2$$
$$d = 48mn \left(n^2 - m^2\right)$$

Hence, the essential quintuple in which the elements in Arithmetic progression is rendered by

$$(p,q,r,s,t) = \left\{ 12 (m^2 + n^2)^2 - 96mn (n^2 - m^2), 12 (m^2 + n^2)^2 - 48mn (n^2 - m^2), 12 (m^2 + n^2)^2, 12 (m^2 + n^2)^2 + 48mn (n^2 - m^2), 12 (m^2 + n^2)^2 + 96mn (n^2 - m^2) \right\}$$

2.3 Supposition is authenticated for specific values of U and V in the following table

	Table 3.										
m	n	(p, q, r, s, t)	p+q+r	q+r+s	r+s+t						
2	1	(-276,12,300,	6^{2}	30^{2}	42 ²						
		588,876)									
5	7	(-14928,25392,									
		65712,106032,	276^{2}	444^{2}	564 ²						
		146352)									
1	3	(-1104,48,1200,	12 ²	60^{2}	84 ²						
		2352,3504)									

The emerging C software shows verification of the numerical samples:

```
#include <stdio.h>
#include <conio.h>
#include <math.h>
void main()
char ch;
clrscr();
do {
long long int x,u,v,m,n;
long long int U,V,M,N,a,d,p,q,r,s,t,A,B,C,E,F,G;
printf("\n Enter the case 1 or 2 or 3\n");
scanf("%lld",&x);
switch(x)
{
case 1:
printf("\n Enter integer values for u and v \n");
scanf("%lld%lld",&u,&v);
U=u*u;
V=v*v;
a=48*(U+V)*(U+V);
d=192*u*v*(V-U);
p=a-2*d;
q=a-d;
r=a;
s=a+d:
t=a+2*d;
break;
```

printf("\n Enter integer values for u and v \n");

scanf("%lld%lld",&u,&v);



case 2:

U=u*u;

V=v*v;

```
a=30000*(U+V)*(U+V);
d=-4800*(6*U*U+6*V*V+7*U*u*v-7*u*v*V-36*U*V);
p=a-2*d;
q=a-d;
r=a;
s=a+d:
t=a+2*d;
break;
case 3:
printf("\n interger values for m and n \n");
scanf("%lld%lld",&m,&n);
M=m*m;
N=n*n;
a=12*(M+N)*(M+N);
d=48*m*n*(N-M);
p=a-2*d;
q=a-d;
r=a;
s=a+d;
t=a+2*d;
break;
A=p+q+r;
B=q+r+s;
C=r+s+t;
E=sqrt(A);
F=sqrt(B);
G=sqrt(C);
printf("\n p+q+r=%lld=%lld^2 \n q+r+s=%lld=%lld^2 \nr+s+t
=\%lld =\%lld<sup>2</sup>",A,E,B,F,C,G);
printf("\n Do you want to continue for different cases (y/n)?");
ch=getche();
while (ch=='y'——ch=='Y');
getch();
}
```

3. Conclusion

In this paper, an elegant integer quintuple (p,q,r,s,t) where the components make ensure in arithmetic progression with the conjecture that the sum of any three consecutive elements designates a perfect square is recognized. In this manner, one can search an integer quintuple (p,q,r,s,t) with elements in Geometric progression or Harmonic progression satisfying some other condition.

References

- [1] Andre Weil, *Number Theory: An Approach through History*, From Hammurapito to Legendre, Birkahsuser, Boston, 1987.
- [2] I.G.Bashmakova (ed.), *Diophantus of Alexandria*, Arithmetic's and the Book of Polygonal Numbers, Nauka, Moscow, 1974.

- [3] A.F. Beardon, and M.N.Deshpande, Diophantine Triplets, *The Mathematical Gazette*, 86(2002), 258-260.
- [4] L.E.Dickson, *History of the theory of Numbers*, Vol.2, Chelsea Publishing House, New York, 1966, 513-520.
- [5] M.N.Deshpande, Families of Diophantine Triplets, Bulletin of the Marathwada Mathematical Society, 4(2003), 19-21.
- [6] M.N.Deshpande, One Interesting Family of Diophantine Triplets, *Internet. J. Math. d.Sci.Tech.* 33(2002), 253-256.
- [7] M. A. Gopalan, V. Geetha, V. Kiruthika, On Two Special Integer Triples in Arithmetic Progression, *Open Jour*nal of Applied & Theoretical Mathematics (OJATM), 2(1)(2016), 01-07.
- [8] M. A. Gopalan, V. Sangeetha, An Interesting Diophantine Problem, *Open Journal of Applied & Theoretical Mathematics (OJATM)*, 2(2)(2016), 42-47.
- [9] K. Meena, S. Vidhyalakshmi, M. A. Gopalan, S. Aarthy Thangam, Special Integer Quadruple in Arithmetic Progression, *International Journal of Recent Trends in Engi*neering & Research, 3(5)(2017), 108-112.
- [10] S. Vidhyalakshmi, A. Kavitha. M. A. Gopalan, Diophantine Problem on Integer Triple in Arithmetic Progression, *Transactions on Mathematics TM*, 2(2)(2016), 36-42.

ISSN(P):2319 – 3786
Malaya Journal of Matematik
ISSN(O):2321 – 5666



Received: 5th January 2022

Revised: 19th January 2022

Accepted: 10th February 2022

ISSN: 0972-3641

A STATE OF THE-ART OF SUMS, CONGRUENCE RELATIONS AND DIVISIBILITY PROPERTIES OF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS

P. SANDHYA AND V. PANDICHELVI

ABSTRACT

In this document, several new-fangled identities regarding Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers enable to provide certain congruence relations for those numbers are deliberated. Also, divisibility properties of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are revealed by means of these derived congruence relations.

Keywords: Pell numbers, Pell-Lucas numbers, congruence relations

I. INTRODUCTION

 $P_0=0, P_1=1,$ and $P_n=2P_{n-1}+P_{n-2}$ for $n\geq 2$ establish the Pell sequence $\{P_n\}$. P_n is referenced to the n^{th} Pell number. The Pell-Lucas sequence Q_n is defined as $Q_n=P_{n-1}+P_{n+1}$. For each $n\in Z, Q_n=2Q_{n-1}+Q_{n-2}$ for $n\geq 2$ and $Q_{n-1}+Q_{n+1}=8P_n$. For more information on the Pell and Pell-Lucas sequences, see [1]. Numerous well-known relationships exist among the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers. Typically, these relations are achieved using Binet's formula, which is signified by $P_n=\frac{\alpha^n-\beta^n}{2\sqrt{2}}$ and $Q_n=\alpha^n+\beta^n$, for any $n\in Z$, where $\alpha=1+\sqrt{2}$ and $\beta=1-\sqrt{2}$. Additionally, the most well-known formulas for Pell numbers are $\alpha^n=\alpha P_n+P_{n-1}$ and $\beta^n=\beta P_n+P_{n-1}$, for $n\in Z$.

Numerous sums incorporating Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are provided in this study. Following that, certain congruences relating Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are elaborated. These congruences enable one to establish a number of previously known characteristics. Additionally, with the use these congruences, many additional theorems are acclaimed.

II. SUMS AND CONGRUENCESOF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS Theorem: 2.1

If X is a square matrix with $X^2 = 2X + I$, then $X^n = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$ for every integer n.

Proof:

Let
$$Z[\alpha] = \{A\alpha + B; A, B \in Z\}$$
 and $Z[X] = \{AX + BI; A, B \in Z\}$

Define a function $f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[X]$ by $f(A\alpha + B) = AX + BI$.

Then f is a ring isomorphism. Moreover, it is clear that $f(\alpha) = X$ and $f(Q_m) = Q_m I$.

Therefore,
$$X^n = (f(\alpha))^n = f(\alpha^n) = f(P_n\alpha + P_{n-1}) = P_nX + P_{n-1}I$$

Corollary: 1.1

If
$$M = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 4 \\ 1/2 & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
, then $M^n = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_n}{2} & 4P_n \\ \frac{P_n}{2} & \frac{Q_n}{2} \end{bmatrix}$.

Proof

Since, $M^2 = 2M + I$, it follows from theorem (1) that

$$M^n = P_n M + P_{n-1} I$$

$$M^{n} = \begin{bmatrix} P_{n} + P_{n-1} & 4Pn \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & P_{n} + P_{n-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Q_{n}}{2} & 4P_{n} \\ \frac{P_{n}}{2} & \frac{Q_{n}}{2} \end{bmatrix}.$$

Remark:

From the fact that $f: Z[\alpha] \to Z[M]$, defined by $f(A\alpha + B) = AM + BI$ is a ring isomorphism, it is observed that

$$\alpha^{2m} - Q_m \alpha^m + (-1)^m = 0 \tag{1}$$

and $\alpha^{2m} - 2\sqrt{2}P_m\alpha^m - (-1)^m = 0$ (2)

ISSN: 0972-3641

Applying the function f on each side of (1) and (2), the relations discovered are pointed out by:

$$M^{2m} - Q_m M^m + (-1)^m I = 0 (3)$$

and
$$M^{2m} - KP_m M^m - (-1)^m I = 0$$
 (4)

where
$$K = f(2\sqrt{2}) = f(2\alpha - 2) = 2M - 2I = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

Theorem: 2.2

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m{}^i Q_{mi+k}$$

and $P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^i P_{mi+k}$

Proof:

From (3), it is noted that

$$M^{2m} = Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I (5)$$

Raising n^{th} power on both sides of (5).

Then,
$$M^{2mn} = (Q_m M^m - (-1)^m I)^n = (Q_m M^m + (-1)^{m+1} I)^n$$

$$= \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} ((-1)^{m+1} I)^{n-i} (Q_m M^m)^i$$

$$= (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{i} M^{mi}$$

Therefore,

$$M^{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{i} M^{mi+k}$$

It comprehends from corollary 1.1 that

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m{}^i Q_{mi+k}$$

and

$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{(m+1)n} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{(m+1)i} Q_m^{\ i} P_{mi+k}$$

Corollary 2.2.1:

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} Q_k (mod \ Q_m) \tag{6}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)n} P_k \pmod{Q_m}$$
 (7)

for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$.

Remark:

i. Since
$$K = 2M - 2I = M + M^{-1}$$
, $\therefore M^m K = KM^m$, $\forall m \in Z$

ii.
$$K^2 = \begin{bmatrix} 8 & 0 \\ 0 & 8 \end{bmatrix} = 8I$$
 and $\begin{bmatrix} 0 & 8 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a & b \\ c & d \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 8c & 8d \\ a & b \end{bmatrix}$

Theorem2.3:

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} Q_{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i P_m^{2i+1} P_{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

 $M^{2mn+k} = (KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I)^n M^k$

ISSN: 0972-3641

and

$$P_{2mn+k} = (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} P_{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i P_m^{2i+1} Q_{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

Proof:

From (4), it follows that

$$M^{2m} = KP_m M^m + (-1)^m I$$

Therefore,

$$= \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} {n \choose i} ((-1)^m I)^{n-i} (K P_m M^m)^i \right] M^k$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \sum_{i=0}^{n} {n \choose i} (-1)^{mi} K^{i} P_{m}{}^{i} M^{mi+k}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i} K^{2i} P_m^{2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=0}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} \binom{n}{2i+1} (-1)^{mi} K^{2i+1} P_m^{2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

$$= (-1)^{mn} \left\{ \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor n/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i} 8^i P_m^{2i} M^{2mi+k} + \sum_{i=o}^{\lfloor (n-1)/2 \rfloor} {n \choose 2i+1} (-1)^{mi} 8^i K P_m^{2i+1} M^{2mi+m+k} \right\}$$

We will get the results by trading the matrices K and M on both sides and equating the same entries.

Corollary 2.3.1:

If $n \in \mathcal{N}$ and $m, k \in \mathcal{Z}$, then

$$Q_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} Q_k \pmod{P_m} \tag{8}$$

and
$$P_{2mn+k} \equiv (-1)^{mn} P_k \pmod{P_m}$$
 (9)

III. DIVISIBILITY PROPERTIES OF PELL AND PELL-LUCAS NUMBERS

To begin, it is established two well-known theorems in a novel manner by exploiting the congruences postulated in Corollaries 2.2.1 and 2.3.1. Regarding the divisibility of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers, readers will investigate the formulae and learn how to use them efficiently to resolve problems. Thus, this article explains the fundamental divisibility for Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers.

Theorem 3.1:

The necessary and sufficient conditions for $Q_m|Q_n$ are

- i. $m \mid n$ and
- ii. $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer

for all $m, n \in N$ and $m \ge 2$.

Proof:

Presume that $Q_m | Q_n$

Suppose $m \nmid n$, then by fundamental property of divisibility, n can be expressed as n = mq + r, $0 \le r < m$.

If q is an even integer, then q = 2s for some $s \in Z$.

From (6), it follows that

$$O_n = O_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} O_r \pmod{O_m}$$

Since $Q_m|Q_n$, $Q_m|Q_r$. This is a contradiction since $Q_r < Q_m$ as r < m. Hence, q is an odd integer. Sustain q = 2s + 1 for some $s \in Z$. So,

ISSN: 0972-3641

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Also, since $Q_m|Q_n,Q_m|Q_{m+r}$.

To prove:r = 0

Suppose r > 0. By the identity $Q_{m+r} = Q_m P_{r-1} + P_r Q_{m+1}$, the above implies that $Q_m | P_r Q_{m+1}$.

Since $(Q_m, Q_{m+1}) = 1$, it follows that $Q_m | P_r$. This is a contradiction to the fact that if r < m, then $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. As a result, it is resolved that r = 0.

Thus, that n = mq, with q being an odd integer.

Conversely, suppose that $m \mid n$ and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an odd integer,

That is, n = m(2s + 1), for some integer s. Then it is procured that,

$$Q_n = Q_{2ms+m} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} Q_m \pmod{Q_m}$$

 $\Rightarrow Q_m | Q_n$.

Hence, the result.

Theorem 3.2:

Let $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \ge 2$. Then $Q_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n and $\frac{n}{m}$ is an even integer.

Proof:

Suppose that $Q_m | P_n$ and $m \nmid n$. This assumption means that n = mq + r, $0 \le r < m$ where $m \ge 2$.

If q is an odd integer, it may phrase q = 2s + 1 for some integer s.

From (7), it is pointed out that

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_{m+r} \pmod{Q_m}$$

Then, $Q_m|P_{m+r}$ and hence $Q_m|8P_{m+r}$. It is well-known that $8P_{m+r}=Q_mQ_{r-1}+Q_rQ_{m+1}$, then $Q_m|Q_rQ_{m+1}$. Since Q_m and Q_{m+1} are relatively prime, the only possibility is $Q_m|Q_r$. But r < m delivers $Q_r < Q_m$. So, $Q_m \nmid Q_r$. This conflict befalls as a result of our erroneous assumption about q being an odd number. Therefore, q is an even integer. Thus, it may have q=2s for some integer s. Hence,

Form (7),
$$P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_r \pmod{Q_m}$$

Since $Q_m|P_n$, $Q_m|P_r$. However, this cannot be true since r < m and hence $P_r \le P_m < Q_m$. This contributes that r = 0. So, it can be concluded that n = mq, q is an even integer.

Conversely, suppose that m|n and n=2ms for some $s \in Z$. Then, it is acquired from (7) that

$$P_n = P_{2ms} \equiv (-1)^{(m+1)s} P_0 \pmod{Q_m}$$

It follows that $Q_m|P_n$.

Theorem3.3:

For all $m, n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $m \geq 3$, $P_m | P_n$ if and only if m | n.

Proof:

Initially consider that $P_m | P_n$ but $m \nmid n$. Then n = mq + r with $0 \le r < m$. Now, suppose that q is an even integer, then this may be taken as q = 2s for any integer s.

Hence, (9) provides the succeeding identity

$$P_n = P_{2ms+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_r \pmod{P_m}$$

Since $P_m|P_n$, by applying the above identity, $P_m|P_r$. Since, if $0 \le r < m$ and $m \ge 3$, it leads to

 $P_r < P_m$. Hence, q must be an odd integer. Then q = 2s + 1, for some $s \in \mathbb{Z}$. Thus, (9) becomes

$$P_n = P_{2ms+m+r} \equiv (-1)^{ms} P_{m+r} \pmod{P_m}$$

Since $P_m|P_n$, it follows that $P_m|P_{m+r}$. By the identity, $P_{m+r}=P_{m+1}P_r+P_mP_{r-1}$, it is noted that $P_m|P_{m+1}P_r$. Due to the fact that $(P_m,P_{m+1})=1$, it is received that $P_m|P_r$, which is a contradiction. This emerges as a consequence of $P_r < P_m$ as r < m and $m \ge 3$. As a result, r = 0 and subsequently n = mq, resulting in $m \mid n$.

Conversely, pretend that m|n. Then, the conclusion is n = mq for some natural number q. As an outcome,

$$P_{n} = P_{mq} = \sum_{i=0}^{q} {q \choose i} P_{m}{}^{i} P_{m-1}{}^{q-i} P_{i}$$

Hence, it is realized that $P_m|P_n$.

IV. MAIN THEOREMS

From the identity $2(-1)^n = Q_n P_{n-1} - Q_{n-1} P_n$, it can be seen that $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 1$ or $gcd(Q_n, P_n) = 2$. Furthermore,

$$Q_n^2 - 8P_n^2 = 4(-1)^n (10)$$

From equation (8), it is seen that $Q_{8q+r} \equiv Q_r(mod 12)$ and therefore $12 \nmid Q_n$, for every natural number n.

Now, we'll go over some Pell-Lucas numbers identities that will be necessary in the sequel:

$$Q_{2n} = Q_n^2 - 2(-1)^n \tag{11}$$

$$Q_{3n} = Q_n (Q_n^2 - 3(-1)^n)$$
(12)

Theorem4.1:

Let $r \ge 1$, be an odd number and m > 1. Then, there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_mx^2$ and r is an odd number. Then $Q_{2r}|Q_n$ and $Q_m|Q_n$. Then, n = 2rt and n = mk for some odd natural number t & k by theorem $2.4, \Rightarrow 2|n \Rightarrow n = mk \Rightarrow 2|m$. It is thus obvious that m = 2v, for some odd $v \in \mathcal{N}$. Since 2|n and $\frac{n}{2}$ is an odd natural number, it can be written as n = 8q + s with s = 2,6 and $q \ge 0$. Hence,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv Q_2, Q_6 \pmod{12}$$

$$\Rightarrow Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$$

Similarly, it can be seen that $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$.

Since, r is an odd natural number, it is obtained that $Q_{2r} \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. Then it follows that

$$Q_n = Q_{2r}Q_m x^2 \equiv 6Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$$

Moreover, $6x^2 \equiv 0.6 \pmod{12}$ and $Q_m \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$,

 $Q_n \equiv 0 \pmod{12}$ which contradicts the fact that $Q_n \equiv 6 \pmod{12}$. This concludes the proof.

Theorem4.2:

 $Q_{2^kt} \equiv$ 2,10 (mod 12) for every $k \geq$ 2 and for every odd natural number t.

Proof:

Assume that t is an odd natural number, then $t \equiv \pm 1, \pm 3, \pm 5, \pm 7 \pmod{8}$. Moreover, it can be proved by induction that $2^k \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$ for $k \ge 2$. $2^k t \equiv 0, \pm 4 \pmod{8}$.

Therefore, $\Rightarrow 2^k t = 8q \text{ or } 2^k t = 8q \pm 4 \text{ for } q \ge 0$. Then it seeks that

$$Q_{2^k t} = Q_{8q} \equiv Q_0 \pmod{P_4}$$

Or

$$Q_{2^k t} = Q_{8q \pm 4} \equiv Q_{\pm 4} \; (mod \; P_4)$$

Thus, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}, k \geq 2$.

Now, it is possible to generalize theorem as follows:

Theorem4.3:

Let m > 1, $k \ge 2$ and t be an odd natural number. Then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_{2k_t}Q_mx^2$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2$ and t is an odd natural number. Since $Q_{2^k t} | Q_n$ and $Q_m | Q_n$, there exist two odd natural numbers u and v such that $n = 2^k tu$ and n = mv by theorem 3.1. Thus, we have $m = 2^k r$, for some $r \in N$, because $n = 2^k tu = mv$ and t, u, v are odd natural numbers. Then, we have 4 divides both m & n, by the fact that $k \ge 2$. Hence, n = 8q + s with s = 0.4,8,12. Thus,

$$Q_n = Q_{8q+s} \equiv Q_s \pmod{12}$$

Since $s \in \{0,4,8,12\}$, it follows that

$$Q_n \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$$

It may be observed in a similar manner that

$$Q_m \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$$

On the other hand, $Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2,10 \pmod{12}$ by theorem (8).

If
$$Q_{2^k t} \equiv 2 \pmod{12}$$
, then $Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 2 Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$.

Since $2x^2 \equiv 0.2.6.8 \mod (12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$, $Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \pmod {12}$, which is a contradiction to the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$.

Therefore, $Q_{2^{k_t}} \equiv 10 \pmod{12}$. Then

$$Q_n = Q_{2^k t} Q_m x^2 \equiv 10 Q_m x^2 \pmod{12}$$
.

Since $10x^2 \equiv 0.4.6.10 \mod (12)$ and $Q_m \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$, $Q_n \equiv 0.4.8 \pmod {12}$, which denies the fact that $Q_n \equiv 2.10 \pmod {12}$. Hence the proof.

Theorem4.4:

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then there is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$.

Proof:

Assume that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for m > 1 and r > 1 and are odd numbers. Since $Q_m | Q_n$ and $Q_r | Q_n$, there exist two odd natural numbers u and v such that n = mu and n = rv.

Hence, we have $u = 4k \pm 1$ for some $k \ge 1$. Therefore, we get $n = mu = m(4k \pm 1) = 4km \pm m$.

$$Q_n = Q_{4km+m} \equiv (-1)^k Q_{+m} \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$

i.e.,
$$Q_r Q_m \equiv \pm Q_m \pmod{Q_{2m}}$$
 (13)

Similarly, it can be obtained that

$$Q_m Q_r \equiv \pm Q_r \pmod{Q_{2r}} \tag{14}$$

Suppose that $Q_m|Q_{2r}$ then $\frac{2r}{m}$ =an odd integer which is not possible. Hence $Q_m \nmid Q_{2r}$ which implies that $gcd(Q_m,Q_{2r})=2$. Then by equations (13) and (14),

$$Q_r \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2m}}{2}}$$
 and $Q_m \equiv \pm 1 \pmod{\frac{Q_{2r}}{2}}$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} \leq 2Q_r \pm 2$$
 and $Q_{2r} \leq 2Q_m \pm 2$

$$\Rightarrow Q_{2m} + Q_{2r} \leq 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

By equation (11),

$$Q_m^2 \pm 2 + Q_r^2 \pm 2 \le 2Q_r + 2Q_m \pm 4$$

$$Q_m(Q_m-2) + Q_r(Q_r-2) \le 0,$$

which is a contradiction. This completes the proof of the theorem.

Corollary 4.4.1:

There is no Pell-Lucas number Q_n such that $Q_n = Q_m Q_r$, for any m > 1 and r > 1.

Proof:

If r > 1 and even, then ther proof follows from theorems (7) and (9).

If m and r are odd natural numbers, then it is proved in theorem (10).

V. CONCLUSION

In this research, various quantities by means of the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are presented. Then, some specific congruences concerning the Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers have been provided. These analogues allowed to govern a number of previously known features. These congruences have also been utilized to prove many other theorems.

VI. REFERENCES

- [1]. Koshy, Thomas. Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers with applications. New York: Springer, 2014
- [2]. Hoggatt, V. E., and Marjorie Bcknell Johnson. "Divisibility by Fibonacci and Lucas squares." (1977).
- [3]. Keskin, Refik, and Bahar DemirtürkBitim. "Fibonacci and Lucas congruences and their applications." Acta Mathematica Sinica, English Series 27.4 (2011): 725-736.
- [4]. Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk. "Some new Fibonacci and Lucas identities by matrix methods." International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology 41.3 (2010): 379-387.
- [5].Koparal, S., and N. Ömür. "Some Congruences Involving Catalan, Pell and Fibonacci Numbers." Mathematica Montisnigri 48 (2020): 10-18.
- [6]. Panda, G. K., and Asim Patra. "Exact divisibility by powers of the Pell and Associated Pell numbers." Proceedings-Mathematical Sciences 131.2 (2021): 1-9.

AUTHOR DETAILS:

P. SANDHYA1 AND V. PANDICHELVI2

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhana lakshmi College, Trichy. (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

ASSESSMENT OF SOLUTIONS IN PELL AND PELL – LUCAS NUMBERS TO DISPARATE POLYNOMIAL EQUATIONS OF DEGREE TWO

P. Sandhya

Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

Email: sandhyaprasad2684@gmail.com

V. Pandichelvi

Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy. (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University) Email: mvpmahesh2017@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

In this paper, the widespread solutions in rapports with Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers for a restricted number of unambiguous polynomial equations of degree two in two variables are exposed. **KEYWORDS:** Binary quadratic Diophantine equations, Pell numbers, Pell-Lucas numbers.

Article History

*Received: 11/03/2021; Accepted: 19/03/2021

Corresponding author: V. Pandichelvi

INTRODUCTION:

In [3], Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk discovered the solutions of some Diophantine equations using generalized Fibonacci and Lucas sequences. In [8], A. Marlewski, P. Zarzycki studied the particular Diophantine equation $x^2 - kxy + y^2 + x = 0$. In [11], Pingzhi Yuan, Yongzhong discussed the Diophantine equation $x^2 - kxy + y^2 + lx = 0$, $l \in \{1, 2, 4\}$. For an all-embracing review, one can refer [1-2,4-7,9-10,12].

In this paper, the solutions in Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers for some explicit polynomial equations of degree two in two variables $x^2 - 2xy - y^2 = \pm k$ when $k = 1, 8, x^2 - 6xy + y^2 = \pm l$ when $l = 4, 32, x^2 - 2xy - y^2 \pm x = 0, x^2 - 2xy - y^2 \pm y = 0, x^2 - 2xy - y^2 \pm 8x = 0,$ $x^2 - 6xy + y^2 \pm 4x = 0$ and $x^2 - 6xy + y^2 \pm 32x = 0$ are investigated.

Needed Theorems:

Theorem: [I]

The numbers $\pm \omega^n$, $\pm \omega^{-n}$ where $\omega = 1 + \sqrt{2}$ are the only unities of $k(\sqrt{2})$, where $k(\sqrt{2})$ is a quadratic field. See [1]

Theorem: [II]

If positive integers x, y, k and the integer m with gcd(x, m) = 1 satisfy the equations $x^2 - kxy + y^2 \mp mx = 0$ then $x = u^2$ and y = uv for some positive integers u and v. If positive integers u and u and the integer u with gcd(y, m) = 1 satisfy the equations u and u are u for some positive integers u and u. See [4]

Theorem: [III] Fundamental theorem of arithmetic

For each integer n > 1, there exists primes $p_1 \le p_2 \le \cdots \le p_r$ such that $n = p_1 p_2 \dots p_r$, this factorization is unique.

MAIN RESULTS:

The n^{th} Pell number labelled by P_n is demarcated by $P_0 = 0$, $P_1 = 1$ and $P_n = 2P_{n-1} + P_{n-2}$, for $n \ge 2$. If α , β be the roots of the equation $x^2 - 2x - 1 = 0$, then $\alpha = 1 + \sqrt{2}$, $\beta = 1 - \sqrt{2}$ where $\alpha\beta = -1$ and $\alpha + \beta = 2$. In addition, it is well-known and simple to demonstrate the identities that $\alpha^n = \alpha P_n + P_{n-1}$ and $\beta^n = \beta P_n + P_{n-1}$ for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$, the set of all integers. In the other hand, it could be perceived by induction that $P_n^2 - 2P_nP_{n-1} + P_{n-1}^2 = (-1)^{n+1} \ \forall n \in \mathbb{Z}$.

(1)

The n^{th} Pell-Lucas number Q_n is characterized as $Q_0 = Q_1 = 2$ and $Q_n = 2Q_{n-1} + Q_{n-2}$ for $n \ge 2$. The associations between Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers are agreed as follows

1.
$$Q_n = P_n + P_{n+1}$$
 for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$.

2.
$$Q_n^2 - 2Q_nQ_{n-1} - Q_{n-1}^2 = 8(-1)^n$$
 for every $n \in \mathbb{Z}$

Theorem: 1

The necessary and sufficient condition for all non-negative integer solutions to the second-degree equation in two variables $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = (-1)^{n+1}$ is $(X, Y) = (P_n, P_{n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

If $(X,Y) = (P_n, P_{n-1})$, then from identity (1), it seeks that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = (-1)^{n+1}$.

Conversely suppose that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = \mp 1$ for some positive integers X and Y.

Then by theorem (I), $(Y + \alpha X)(Y + \beta X) = \pm 1 \Rightarrow (Y + \alpha X) \in k(\sqrt{2})$.

Thus, $Y + \alpha X = \alpha^n = \alpha P_n + P_{n-1}$ and hence $(X, Y) = (P_n, P_{n-1}), n \ge 1$.

Corollary: 1.1

The feasible solutions of the quadratic polynomial equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = 1$ are specified by $(X,Y) = (P_{2m+1}, P_{2m})$ with $m \ge 0$.

Proof:

If n is odd such that n=2m+1, then the apt integer solutions to $X^2-2XY-Y^2=1$ is obtained as $(X,Y)=(P_{2m+1},P_{2m}), m \ge 0$.

Corollary: 1.2

Every possible solution in Pell numbers of the quadratic equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = -1$ are stated by $(X,Y) = (P_{2m}, P_{2m-1})$ with $m \ge 1$.

Proof:

If *n* is even such that n = 2m, $m \ge 1$, then the appropriate solutions to $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = -1$ is $(X, Y) = (P_{2m}, P_{2m-1})$.

Theorem: 2

The probable integer solutions to the second-degree polynomial equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$ are attained by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n+2}, P_{2n})$ with $n \ge 0$.

Proof:

Assume that $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$ for some positive integers X and Y.

Without loss of generality, suppose that X > Y.

Then,
$$\left(\frac{X-Y}{2}\right)^2 - 2\left(\frac{X-Y}{2}\right)Y - Y^2 = 1 \Rightarrow X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = 4$$
. By corollary 1.1, it should have $\frac{X-Y}{2} = P_{2n+1}$ and $Y = P_{2n}$ and therefore $(X - Y, Y) = (2P_{2n+1}, P_{2n})$

Consequently, $X = P_{2n+2}$ and $Y = P_{2n}$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem: 3

The positive integer roots of the binary quadratic equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 = -4$ are conquered by $(X, Y) = (P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$ with $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

The proof is equivalent to Theorem 2.

Theorem: 4

Let \mathbb{N} be the set of all-natural numbers and $X, Y \in \mathbb{N}$ sustaining the particular equation of the form $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 \pm X = 0$, then $X = A^2$ and Y = AB where $A \in \mathbb{N}$.

Proof:

If $X, Y \in \mathbb{N}$ are satisfying the corresponding equation in the statement, then it follows that $X|Y^2$ and hence $Y^2 = XZ$ for some $Z \in \mathbb{N}$.

Suppose that p|X and p|Z for some prime number p.

Then, p|Y which leads the implicit equation to $X - 2Y - Z \pm 1 = 0$

This ensure that p|1 which is absurd.

In what follows that gcd(X, Z) = 1.

Then by fundamental theorem of arithmetic, $X = A^2$ and $Z = B^2$ for some positive integers A and B where gcd(A, B) = 1.

Then $Y^2 = XZ = A^2B^2 \Rightarrow Y = AB$.

Theorem: 5

If two positive integers X, Y be such that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 \pm Y = 0$, then X = AB and $Y = A^2$ for some positive integers A and B with gcd(A, B) = 1.

Proof:

The proof is analogous to Theorem 4.

Corollary: 5.1

The conceivable Pell values of X, Y in the equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + Y = 0$ are achieved by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n} P_{2n-1}, P_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$.

Corollary: 5.2

The plausible solutions in Pell numbers to the equation $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 - Y = 0$ are specified by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n+1} P_{2n}, P_{2n}^2)$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem: 6

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$. Then $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0$ if and only if $(X, Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Proof:

Assume that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0$ where $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$

Then by theorem II, $X = A^2$ and Y = AB for some $A, B \in \mathbb{Z}^+$

Subsequently $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + 1 = 0$

Again, by corollary 1.2 it is noticed that $(A, B) = (P_{2n}, P_{2n-1}) \Rightarrow (X, Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}, P_{2n-1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Conversely, if
$$(X,Y) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n} P_{2n-1})$$
 with $n \ge 1$, then
$$X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = P_{2n}^4 - 2P_{2n}^3 P_{2n-1} - P_{2n}^2 P_{2n-1}^2 + P_{2n}^2$$

$$= P_{2n}^2 \{ P_{2n}^2 - 2P_{2n} P_{2n-1} - P_{2n-1}^2 + 1 \}$$

By corollary 1.2 it is pursued that

$$X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + X = 0.$$

Theorem: 7

The sequence of several positive integer solutions for the equation $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 + 4X = 0$ are epitomized by $(X,Y) = (P_{2n-1}^2, P_{2n-1}P_{2n+1})$ where $n \ge 1$.

Proof.

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$ be such that $X^2 - 6XY + Y^2 + 4X = 0$.

Then $X|Y^2$ and hence $Y^2 = XZ$ for some $Z \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

If p|X and p|Z for some prime number p, then p|Y and also the relation X - 6Y + Z + 4 = 0 is true for all $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

Thus, p divides 4.

It is evident that, the possibility of such p is = 2.

This condition offers that $X = 2X_1$, $Y = 2Y_1$ for some X_1 , $Y_1 \in \mathbb{Z}^+$ and obviously the projected quadratic equation becomes ${X_1}^2 - 6X_1Y_1 + {Y_1}^2 + 2X_1 = 0$. Then $X_1|{Y_1}^2$ and hence ${Y_1}^2 = X_1Z_1$ for some $Z_1 \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

Again, if $p|X_1$ and $p|Z_1$ for some prime number p, then $p|Y_1$ and the relation $X_1 - 6Y_1 + Z_1 + 2 = 0$ is true for all $X_1, Y_1 \in \mathbb{Z}^+$.

Clearly, the chance of such p is p = 2. This diagnosis provides that $X_1 = 2X_2$, $Y = 2Y_2$ implying that $X = 4X_1$, $Y = 4Y_1$. These contributions state that $X_2^2 - 6X_2Y_2 + Y_2^2 + X_2 = 0$, which has no positive integer solution [8]. Hence, our assumption that X and Z have common divisors is wrong. This proposes that gcd(X,Z) = 1. Thus, by the fact that the product two coprime numbers should be a perfect square if and only if each of them is a perfect square, $X = R^2$ and $Z = S^2$ for some positive integers R and S an

afterward the desired equation can be modified into $R^2 - 6RS + S^2 + 4 = 0$.

By theorem 3, $(R, S) = (P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$ and hence $(X, Y) = (P_{2n+1}^2, P_{2n+1}, P_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$.

Theorem: 8

Every solution in Pell-Lucas numbers for two dissimilar quadratic equations $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = 8$ and $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 = -8$ are offered by $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n}, Q_{2n-1})$, $n \ge 1$ and $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n})$,

 $n \ge 0$ respectively.

Theorem: 9

Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{N}$, the set of natural numbers.

- (i) If $X^2 6XY + Y^2 = 32$, then $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.
- (ii) If $X^2 6XY + Y^2 = -32$, then $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n+2}, Q_{2n})$, $n \ge 0$.

Theorem: 10

If X, Y be any two positive integers such that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + 8X = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n}), n \ge 0$.

Proof:

Consider that $X^2 - 2XY - Y^2 + 8X = 0$ for some positive integers X and Y.

If 8|X, then $8|Y \Rightarrow X = 8A$ and Y = 8B for some A and B belong to the set of all positive integers. Therefore, the original equation in two variables X and Y is converted into $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + A = 0$.

By the theorem 5, $(A, B) = (P_{2n}^2, P_{2n}P_{2n-1}) \Rightarrow (X, Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}).$

If $8 \nmid X$, then by theorem [II], $X = A^2$ and Y = AB.

Then, $A^2 - 2AB - B^2 + 8 = 0$. By applying the theorem 8, it is concluded that

$$(A,B) = (Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n}) \implies (X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n}) \text{ with } n \ge 0.$$

Conversely, if $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n-1})$, then

$$X^{2} - 2XY - Y^{2} + 8X = (8P_{2n}^{2})^{2} - 2(8P_{2n}^{2})(8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}) - (8P_{2n}P_{2n-1})^{2} + 8(8P_{2n}^{2})$$

$$= 64P_{2n}^{2}\{P_{2n}^{2} - 2P_{2n}P_{2n-1} - P_{2n-1}^{2} + 1\} = 0, \text{ by the implementation}$$

of corollary 1.2.

Similarly, the same equation could be satisfied for $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n})$.

Theorem: 11

Let X, Y be any two positive integers.

- (i) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 8X = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n+1}^2, 8P_{2n+1}P_{2n}), n \ge 0$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}^2, Q_{2n}Q_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$.
- (ii) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 + 8Y = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n}P_{2n-1}, 8P_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}Q_{2n+1}, Q_{2n+1}^2)$, $n \ge 0$.
- (iii) If $X^2 2XY Y^2 8Y = 0$, then either $(X, Y) = (8P_{2n+1}P_{2n}, 8P_{2n}^2)$, $n \ge 0$ or $(X, Y) = (Q_{2n}Q_{2n-1}, Q_{2n-1}^2)$, $n \ge 1$.

Theorem: 12

- Let $X, Y \in \mathbb{Z}^+$, the set of all positive integer. Then
 - (i) The positive integer solutions to the equation $X^2 6XY + Y^2 + 32X = 0$ are either $(X,Y) = (8P_{2n+1}^2, 8P_{2n+1}P_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$ or $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+2}^2, Q_{2n+2}Q_{2n}), n \ge 0$
 - (ii) The complete solutions in Pell numbers and Pell-Lucas numbers of the equation $X^2 6XY + Y^2 32X = 0$ are either $(X,Y) = (8P_{2n}^2, 8P_{2n}P_{2n+2}), n \ge 0$ or $(X,Y) = (Q_{2n+1}^2, Q_{2n+1}Q_{2n-1}), n \ge 1$

CONCLUSION:

In this paper, the general solutions in terms of Pell and Pell-Lucas numbers for limited number of definite quadratic equations in two unknowns are discovered. In this way, one can gander for different quadratic or any higher degree Diophantine equations and pursuit solutions in any other renewed sequences of numbers.

REFERENCES:

- [1]. G.H. Hardy, E.M. Wright, An Introduction to the Theory of Numbers, Oxford University Press, USA.1980.
- [2]. D.Kalman, R.Mena, The Fibonacci numbers-exposed, Mathematics Magazine 76 (2003),167–181.
- [3]. Keskin, Refik, and Bahar Demirtürk. Solutions of Some Diophantine Equations Using Generalized Fibonacci and Lucas Sequences, Ars Comb. 111 (2013): 161-179.
- [4]. R. Keskin, Solutions of some quadratic Diophantine equations, Computers and Mathematics with

Applications 60 (2010), 2225–2230.

- [5]. Koshy, Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers with Applications, John Wiley and Sons, New York, Toronto, 2001, Proc.
- [6]. P. Ribenboim, My Numbers, My Friends, Springer-Verlag New York, Inc., 2000.
- [7]. S. Robinowitz, Algorithmic Manipulation of Fibonacci Identities, in: Applications of Fibonacci

Numbers, vol. 6, Kluwer Academic Pub., Dordrect, The Netherlands, 1996, pp. 389–408.

- [8]. A. Marlewski, P. Zarzycki, Infinitely many solutions of the Diophantine equation $x^2 kxy + y^2 + x = 0$, Computers and Mathematics with Applications 47 (2004) 115–121.
- [9]. W.L. McDaniel, Diophantine representation of Lucas sequences, The Fibonacci Quarterly 33 (1995) 58–63.
- [10]. R. Melham, Conics which characterize certain Lucas sequences, The Fibonacci Quarterly 35 (1997) 248–251.
- [11]. Pingzhi Yuan, Yongzhong H, On the Diophantine equation $x^2 kxy + y^2 + lx = 0$, $l \in \{1, 2, 4\}$, Computers and Mathematics with Applications 61 (2011) 573–577
- [12]. S. Vajda, Fibonacci and Lucas Numbers and the Golden Section, Ellis Horwood Limited Publ., England, 1989.

Wesleyan Journal of Research, Vol. 14 No. 05			
[135]			
[133]			

Received: 5th January 2022

Revised: 19th January 2022

Accepted: 10th February 2022

ISSN: 0972-3641

MORDELL'S EQUATION WHICH HAS NO SOLUTION FOR CERTAIN SELECTION OF K

P. SANDHYA AND V. PANDICHELVI

ABSTRACT

This article examines an incomparable Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C \in \mathbb{Z}$, the set of all integers and demonstrates for which values of C, no solution in integer has been provided in the suggested equation

Keywords: Diophantine equation, integer solutions, Mordell's equation, Bacht's equation.

I. INTRODUCTION

The equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$, for $k \in \mathbb{Z}$, is alluded to as Mordell's equation due to Mordell's deep passion in it. Mordell [4] established in 1920 that the equation $y^2 = x^3 + k$ has an infinite number of integral solutions for any $k \in \mathbb{Z}$. Michael A. Bennett and Amir Ghadermarzi [2] cast-off the traditional link between Mordell and cubic Thue equations to solve the Diophantine problem $y^2 = x^3 + k$ for all non-zero integers k with $|k| \le 10^7$.

In this artefact, an unrivalled Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C \in Z$, the set of all integers is studied and it is exposed that, for which values of C in the professed equation, no integer solution was supplied by using some classical congruence relations and Legendre symbols.

II. MAIN RESULTS

Congruence relations and Legendre symbols are exploited to demonstrate that $B^2 = A^3 + C$ does not have an integer solution for certain values of C.

Theorem: 2.1

Let U & V be integers such that $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, where $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ is a prime number. Then the equation $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, where $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ has no integer solution $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Proof:

Suppose that there exists a solution (A, B) in integers.

As
$$C = U^3 - V^2 \equiv -1 \pmod{4}$$
 we have $B^2 \equiv A^3 - 1 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$ and $A \not\equiv 3 \pmod{4}$ and so $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

$$Now_{,}B^{2} + V^{2} = A^{3} + U^{3} = (A + U)(A^{2} - AU + U^{2})$$
(1)

As $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it should be

$$(A^2 - AU + U^2) \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$
.

Hence, $(X^2 - XU + U^2)$ is odd and by (1) it has a prime factor p_1 , $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$. Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_1}$.

By our assertion, $p_1 \nmid V$. Hence,

$$\left(-\frac{1}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{-N^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{Y^2}{p_1}\right) = 1,$$

denying to $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

This proves that the Diophantine equation $Y^2 = X^3 + K$ has no solution.

Theorem: 2.2

Let U and V be integers satisfying $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, $V \equiv 0, 2 \pmod{4}$. If a prime number p divides V/2 and $p \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$, then the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$ where $C = U^3 - V^2$ has no solution (A, B) in integers.

Proof:

Suppose that (A, B) is an integer solution of the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, $C = U^3 - V^2$

Since, $U^3 - V^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$, it is attained by $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$.

Now, the original equation is converted for the prescribe value of C as

$$B^{2} + V^{2} = A^{3} + U^{3} = (A + U)(A^{2} - AU + U^{2})$$
(2)

Since $A \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ & $U \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$,

$$A^2 - AU + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$$

Hence, $A^2 - AU + U^2$ is odd and by (2) it has a prime factor p_1 , $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$. Thus, $B^2 \equiv -V^2 \pmod{p_1}$.

By our assertion, $p_1 \nmid V/2$. Hence, $p_1 \nmid V$.

$$\left(\frac{-1}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{-V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1,$$

denying $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$.

Hence, the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$ has no solution.

Theorem: 2.3

Let U and V be integers nourishing with the conditions $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{2}$. If p is a prime such that $p \equiv 1, 3 \pmod{8}$ and p divides V, then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, where $C = U^3 - 2V^2$ has no integral solution.

Proof:

Since, $C = U^3 - 2V^2 \equiv 2 \pmod{4}$, it must be

$$B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{4}$$

Therefore, $A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and consequently $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence, $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

Moreover, $C \equiv -2 \pmod{8}$.

So that $A \not\equiv 7 \pmod{8} \Rightarrow A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Now,
$$B^2 + 2V^2 = A^3 + U^3 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

As $A \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$ and $U \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, it is seen that $A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$ and $A + U \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$

 $B^2 + 2V^2$ has a prime factor p_1 such that $p_1 \equiv 5$ or 7 (mod 8)

By our assumption, $p_1 \nmid V$ and $B^2 \equiv -2V^2 \pmod{p_1}$

$$\left(-\frac{2}{p_1}\right) = \left(-\frac{2V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1$$

contrasting $p_1 \equiv 5 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{p}$

Hence no solution for the Diophantine equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, if $C = U^3 - 2V^2$.

Theorem: 2.4

Assume $U, V \in \mathcal{Z}$ and $U \equiv 6 \pmod{8}$, $V \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$. Let $p = 1 \pmod{9}$ be a prime number such that $p \mid V$ and $p \equiv 1 \pmod{8}$. Then the equation $B^2 = A^3 + C$, where $C = 2V^2 + U^3$ does not embrace any integer solution.

Proof:

Since, $C = 2V^2 + U^3 \equiv 2 \pmod{8}$, then $B^2 \equiv A^3 + 2 \pmod{8}$

 $\Rightarrow A \not\equiv 0 \pmod{2}$, $A \not\equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and hence $A \equiv 3 \pmod{4}$

Hence $A \equiv 3 \text{ or } 7 \pmod{8}$

If $\equiv 3 \pmod{8}$, then $B^2 \equiv 5 \pmod{8}$ which is not possible.

Thus, $A \equiv 7 \pmod{8}$.

Now,
$$B^2 - 2V^2 = (A + U)(A^2 - UA + U^2)$$

$$\Rightarrow A^2 - UA + U^2 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$$
.

Therefore $A^2 - UA + U^2$ is odd and is divisible by an odd prime p_1 with $p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

$$\Rightarrow B^2 \equiv 2V^2 \pmod{p_1}$$
.

By our postulation, $p_1 \nmid V$

$$\therefore \left(\frac{2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{2V^2}{p_1}\right) = \left(\frac{B^2}{p_1}\right) = 1$$

 $disagreeing p_1 \equiv 3 \pmod{8}$

Hence the proof.

III. CONCLUSION

As a result, using certain traditional mathematical tools like as congruence and Legendre symbols, it is sensed that the hypothesized equation does not have a solution in integers for some specific integer values of C. Thus, one may ascertain the values of C for which the Mordell's equation has no integer solution by following the steps described above.

REFERENCES

- [1] Alaca, Saban, and Kenneth S. Williams. Introductory algebraic number theory. Cambridge Univ. Press, 2003.
- [2] Bennett, Michael A., and Amir Ghadermarzi. "Mordell's equation: a classical approach." LMS Journal of Computation and Mathematics 18.1 (2015): 633-646.
- [3] Gebel, Josef, Attila Pethö, and Horst G. Zimmer. "On Mordell's Equation." Compositio Mathematica 110.3 (1998): 335-367.
- [4] L. J. Mordell, A Statement by Fermat, Proceedings of the London Math. Soc. 18 (1920), v-vi.
- [5] Steiner, Ray P. "On Mordell's equation $y^2-k=x^3$: a problem of Stolarsky." Mathematics of computation 46.174 (1986): 703-714.

AUTHOR DETAILS:

P. SANDHYA¹ AND V. PANDICHELVI²

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, Urumu Dhanalakshmi College, Trichy, (Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

Exploration of Solutions for an Exponential Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ P. Sandhya¹ & V. Pandichelvi²

¹Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College Affiliated to Bharathidasan University, Trichy, India, Email: sandhyaprasad2684@gmail.com ²Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics, UrumuDhanalakshmi College Affiliated to Bharathidasan University, Trichy, Email: mvpmahesh2017@gmail.com

Article History: Received: 11 January 2021; Accepted: 27 February 2021; Published online: 5 April 2021

Abstract: In this text, the exclusive exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ such that the sum of integer powers x and y of two consecutive prime numbers engrosses a square is examined or estimating enormous integer solutions by exploiting the fundamental notion of Mathematics and the speculation of divisibility or all possibilities of x + y = 1, 2, 3, 4.

Keywords: exponential Diophantine equation; integer solutions

1. INTRODUCTION

The study of an exponential Diophantine equations has stimulated the curiosity of plentiful Mathematicians since ancient times as can be seen from [2-6, 9]. BanyatSroysang [7] showed that $7^x + 8^y = z^2$ has a unique non-negative integer solution (x, y, z) as (0,1,3) in 2013 and he proposed an open problem where x, y and z are non-negative integers and p is a positive odd prime number. In 2014, Suvarnamani. A [8] proved that $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ has a unique solution (p, x, y, z) = (3, 1, 0, 2) and was disproved by Nechemia Burshtein [1] by few examples. In this text, the list of infinite numbers of integer solutions of the equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ where p is a prime number by using the basic concept of Mathematics and the theory of divisibility.

2. APPROACHOF RECEIVINGINTEGERSOLUTIONS

The approach of search out an integer solution to the equation under contemplation is proved by the following theorem. *Theorem:*

If p is any prime and x, y and z are integers persuading the condition that x + y = 1, 2, 3, 4,then all feasible integer solutions to the exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ are given by $(p, x, y, z) = \{(2,0,1,2), (3,1,0,2), (3,2,2,5)\}$ when p = 2, 3 and $(p, x, y, z) = (4n^2 + 4n - 1, 0, 1,2n + 1)$ where $n \in \mathbb{N}$ for p > 3.

Proof:

The equation for performing solutions in integer is taken as

$$p^{x} + (p+1)^{y} = z^{2}$$
 (1)

All doable predilection of the supposition x + y = 1,2,3,4 are carried out by eight cases for assessing solutions in integers.

Case 1: x = 0, y = 1

Equation (1)toexplore solutionsinintegertrimsdown by

$$p + 2 = z^2 \tag{2}$$

If p = 2, then z = 2. Hence, theoneandonly one integer solution is communicated as (p, x, y, z) = (2,0,1,2).

If p is an odd prime, then p + 2 is an odd number.

This means that z^2 is an odd number and consequently z is also an odd number.

If z = 1, then p + 2 = 1 which is impossible.

As are sult, $z \ge 3$.

Describe
$$z = 2n + 1, n \in \mathbb{N}$$
 (3)

The square of the selection of z in (3) can be characterized by $z^2 = 4n^2 + 4n + 1$, $n \in N$. In sight of (2), the promising value of anodd prime complied with the specified equation is distinguished by $p = 4n^2 + 4n - 1$, $n \in N$

Hence, the enormous solutions to (1) is $(p, x, y, z) = (4n^2 + 4n - 1, 0, 1, 2n + 1)$ where $n \in N$

Case 2: x = 1, y = 0

The inventive equation (1) is diminished as

$$p + 1 = z^2 \tag{4}$$

If p = 2, then $z^2 = 3$ which is not possible for integer value of z.

If p is an odd prime, then p + 1 is an even number which can be articulated by

$$p + 1 = 2n, n \in N$$

Match up the above equation with (4), 2n is a perfect square only if $n = m^2$ where $m \in N$.

Thus, $p = (2m)^2 - 1$.

If m = 1, then p = 3. Therefore, the solution belongs to the set Z of integers is (p, x, y, z) = (3,1,0,2).

If $m \ne 1$, then p = (2m - 1)(2m + 1)

If p divides (2m-1), then 2m-1 = ap and as a consequence 2m + 1 = ap + 2.

Thus, p = ap(ap + 2) and leads to the ensuing equation 1 = a(a + 2).

But the above equation is not true for any integer value of a.

If p(2m+1), then 2m+1=bp and from p(2m-1)=bp-2.

Therefore, p = bp(bp - 2) and consequently 1 = b(b + 2) which is not factual for any integer options for b.

Hence, in this case there exists a unique solution to (1) given by (p, x, y, z) = (3,1,0,2)

Case 3:
$$x = 1$$
, $y = 1$

The creative equation (1) is adjust by

$$2p + 1 = z^2$$

Since z^2 is an odd number for all selections of p, it follows that

 $z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$

$$\Rightarrow$$
2p + 1 \equiv 1 (mod 4)

$$\Rightarrow 2p \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$$

Capture that 2p = 4kwhich means that p = 2k for some positive integer k.

This declaration is possible only when k = 1.

Then p = 2, and 2p + 1 = 5 which is not a perfect square of an integer.

Hence, in this case there is no integer solution to the presupposed equation.

Case 4 : x = 1, y = 2

The resourceful equation (1) is reconstructed as

$$P^2 + 3p = z^2 - 1$$

$$\Rightarrow p (p+3) = (z-1) (z+1)$$
 (5)

If $p \mid (z-1)$, then z-1=kp, and z+1=kp+2. Executions of these two equations in (5) go along with the subsequent quadratic equation in k

$$pk^2 + 2k - (p + 3) = p$$
,

which consent the value of $k = (-1 \pm \sqrt{(p(p+3) + 1))} / p$. It is deeply monitored that no prime number p provides an integer value for k. An alternative vision of p|(z+1) reveals that z+1=lp and z-1=lp-2

By make use of these two equations in (5) espouse the second degree equation in 1 as

$$pl^2 - 2l - (p+3) = 0$$

which yields
$$1 = (1 \pm \sqrt{(1 - p(p + 3) 1)}) / p$$
.

The above value of is a complex number or any prime p.

Hence, the ultimate result is no integer solutions to the most wanted equation (1).

Case 5 :
$$x = 2$$
, $y = 1$

The quick-witted equation (1) is restructured $asp^2 + p = z^2 - 1$

$$\Rightarrow p(p+1) = (z-1)(z+1) \tag{6}$$

It follows from equation (6) that p must divide any one of the values (z-1) or (z+1)

If p|(z-1), then z-1 = mp and z+1 = mp + 2 for some integer m.

Then, (6) make available with the value of p as

$$p = (1 - 2m) / (m^2 - 1)$$
 (7)

Accordingly, one can easily notice that the right-hand side of (7) can never be a prime number for $m \in Z$.

```
This circumstance offers that p does not divide (z-1).
```

If
$$p|(z+1)$$
, then $z+1=np$ and $z-1=np-2$ for some integer n. Then, (6) endow with the value of pas $p=(1+2n)/(n^2-1)$ (8)

None of the value of $n \in Z$ in the right-hand side of (8) supplies the prime number establish that p does not divide(z + 1) Hence, this case does not grant an integer solution for (1).

Case 6 :x = 1, y = 3

For these choices ofx and y, the well-groomed equation (1) be converted into

$$(p+1)^3 + p = z^2 (9$$

If p = 2, $z^2 = 29$ which make sure that z cannot be an integer. If p is any odd prime, then p takes any one of the forms 4N + 1 or 4N + 3.

If p = 4N + 1 and the perception that z^2 must be odd reduces (9) to

$$64N^3 + 96N^2 + 52N + 9 = (2T - 1)^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 16N^3 + 24N^2 + 13N + 8 = T (T - 1)$$
 (10)

It is perceived that none of the values of N ensure that the left hand side of (10) as the product of two consecutive integers.

Similarly, the chance of p = 4N + 3, and the discernment that z^2 is an odd integer reduces (9) to

$$64N^3 + 192N^2 + 196N + 67 = (2T - 1)^2$$

$$\Rightarrow$$
2(32N³ + 96N² + 94N + 33)= 4T (T – 1)

The above equality does not hold since the left hand side is a twice an odd number and the right hand side is a multiple of 4. Hence, in this case there does not exist an integer solution.

Case 7: x = 2, y = 2

These preferences of x and y altered the well-designed equation (1) into

$$p^2 + (p + 1)^2 = z^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 2p (p + 1) + 1 = z^2$$
 (11)

Since z^2 is an odd number, $z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$

Then, $2p (p + 1) \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$

Hence, either p or p + 1 is a multiple of 2.

If p is a multiple of 2, then p must be 2.

Implementation of this value of p in (7) furnishes $z^2 = 13$ which does not enable as an integer for z.

If p + 1 is a multiple of 2, then p + 1 = 2A, for some $A \in Z$.

The only odd prime satisfying all the above conditions is 3 and the corresponding value of z = 3

Consequently, the only integer solution to (1) is

$$(p, x, y, z) = (3, 2, 2, 5)$$

Case 8: x = 3, y = 1

The original equation (1) can be written as

$$p^3 + p + 1 = z^2$$

If p = 2, then $z^2 = 11$ which cannot acquiesce an integer for z.

Also, $z^2 \equiv 1 \pmod{4}$ and $p(p^2 + 1) \equiv 0 \pmod{4}$ which implies that either $4|p \text{ or } 4|(p^2 + 1)$

For the reason that p is an odd prime, 4 does not divide pand so $p^2 + 1 = 4n$

This is not possible since p can take either of the form4N + 1, $N \ge 1$ or 4N + 3, $N \ge 0$.

Hence, the conclusion of this case is there cannot discover an integer solution to (1).

3. CONCLUSION

In this text, the special exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ where p is a prime number and x, y and z are integers is studied by developing the fundamental concept of Mathematics and the conjecture of divisibility for all possibilities of x + y = 1, 2, 3, 4. In this manner, one can find an integersolutions by using the property of congruence and other thoughts of Number theory.

REERENCES

- [1]Burshtein, Nechemia. "A note on the diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 19.1 (2019): 19-20.
- [2]Burshtein, Nechemia. "All the solutions of the Diophantine equations $(p + 1)^x p^y = z^2$ and $p^y (p + 1)^x = z^2$ when p is prime and x = y = 2, 3, 4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 19.1 (2019): 53-57.
- [3] Burshtein, Nechemia. "All the solutions of the Diophantine Equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ when p, (p + 4) are Primes and x + y = 2,3,4", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 241 -244.
- [4]N.Burshtein, "Solutions of the diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 6)^y = z^2$ when p, (p + 6) are primes and x + y = 2, 3, 4", Annals o Pure and Applied Mathematics, 17 (1) (2018) 101 106.
- [5]B.Poonen, "Some diophantine equations of the form $x^n + y^n = z^m$ ", Acta Arith., 86(1998) 193 205.
- [6]B.Sroysang, "On the diophantine equation $5^x + 7^y = z^2$ ", Int. J. Pure Appl. Math., 89 (2013) 115 118.
- [7]BanyutSroysang, "On the diophantine equation $7^x + 8^y = z^2$ ", International Journal of Pure nd Applied Mathematics, Vol. 84.1 (2013), 111-114.
- [8] A.Suvarnamani, "On the diophantine equation $p^x + (p + 1)^y = z^2$ ", Int. J. Pure Appl. Math., 94(5) (2014) 689 692.
- [9] N. Terai, "The Diophantine Equationa" $+ b^y = c^z$ ", Proceedings of Japan Academy, 70 (A) (1994) 22 26.

RESEARCH ARTICLE

OPEN ACCESS

INVESTIGATION OF SOLUTIONS TO AN EXPONENTIAL DIOPHANTINE EQUATION $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ FOR PRIME TRIPLETS (p_1, p_2, p_3)

V. Pandichelvi*, P. Sandhya**

*Assistant Professor, PG & Research Department of Mathematics,

UrumuDhanalakshmi College, Trichy.

(Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

Email: mvpmahesh2017@gmail.com

**Assistant Professor, Department of Mathematics, SRM Trichy Arts and Science College, Trichy

(Affiliated to Bharathidasan University)

Email: sandhyaprasad2684@gmail.com

Abstract:

In this article, the solutions to the Diophantine equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ where (p_1, p_2, p_3) is a prime triplet of the forms (p, p + 2, p + 6) and (p, p + 4, p + 6) for x, y, z are integers takes the values of 1 or 2 is investigated by applying the basic concepts of Mathematics. Also, few choices of x, y, z are not possible solutions of the equation is confirmed by MATLAB Program.

Keywords -- Diophantine equation, integer solutions

I. INTRODUCTION

Primeval and wide-ranging, the discipline of Diophantine equations lacks a standardised approach for determining if an equation has any solutions or how many solutions. Numerous variations of the well-known general equation $p^x + q^y = z^2$ emerge. It is possible to locate a substantial quantity of literature on non-linear equations using specific primes and powers of numerous kinds. With varied degrees of success, numerous writers [1,2,5,6,7] have revisited the above problem and tried many primes, such as the Mersenne prime, in an effort to solve it. In [3,4], Nechemia Burshteinprotracted the above equation as $p^x + (p+1)^y + (p+2)^z = M^2$ and $p^x + (p+1)^y + (p+2)^z = M^3$, for all primes p and for specific powers of x, y, z and the findings were supported by simple mathematical tools

Available at www.ijsred.com

If there are three prime numbers in the set and the smallest and biggest vary by six places, then the set is called a prime triplet. To be precise, the sets must be (p, p + 2, p + 6) or (p, p + 4, p + 6) in form. This is the closest conceivable collection of three prime numbers, with the exception of (2, 3, 5) and (3, 5, 7).

In this article, the Diophantine equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ is established and results are analyzed for the prime triplets where p is of the form 4n + 1 or 4n + 3 and the powers of primes are either 1 or 2.p

II. METHODOF EXTRACTING INTEGER SOLUTIONS

The approach of existence of integer solutions to an equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ where (p_1, p_2, p_3) is a prime 3-tuples is analyzed in the following theorems.

Theorem 2.1

ISSN: 2581-7175

If $x, y, z \in \{1,2\}$ and (p, p+2, p+6) is a prime triplet of the form $(4n+1,4n+3,4n+7), n \in \mathcal{N}$ then an equation $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ has no solution.

clc; clear all;

Proof:

The theorem is proved by considering the following eight cases.

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then, $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 4n + 1 + 4n + 3 + 4n + 7 = M^2$
 $\Rightarrow 12n + 11 = M^2$

It is scrutinized that the expression 12n + 11 is not a perfect square for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$.

The following MATLAB Programdemonstrates the statement given above.

$$n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ n');$$

$$for\ i = 1:n$$

$$p1 = 4*i+1;\ p2 = 4*i+3;\ p3 = 4*i+7;$$

$$if(isprime(p1) == 1\ \&\ isprime(p2) == 1\ \&\ isprime(p3) == 1)$$

$$MS = 12*n+11;$$

$$M = sqrt(MS);$$

$$if(rem(M,1) == 0)$$

$$fprintf('p1 = \%d, p2 = \%d, p3 = \%d, M = \%d', p1, p2, p3, M)$$
end

©IJSRED: All Rights are Reserved

Page 23

Available at www.ijsred.com

Page 24

end

end

Case2:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 1$$

The equation to analyze solutions in integers can be written as

$$(4n+1)^{2} + (4n+3) + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 16n + 11 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+2)^{2} + 7 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+2)^{2} = 7$$

This is possible only when M=4 and 4n+2=3. But no such $n \in \mathcal{N}$ satisfying the equation 4n+2=3.

Hence, there exists no integer solution.

Case3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

For these choices of x, y, z, the original equation is reduced into

$$(4n + 1) + (4n + 3)^{2} + (4n + 7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 32n + 17 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 4)^{2} + 1 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n + 4)^{2} = 1$$

It is well-known that, difference of two square number cannot be 1.

Therefore, this case does not yield a solution.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

The selected values of the variables convert the given equation as follows

$$(4n+1) + (4n+3) + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^2 + 64n + 53 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+8)^2 - 11 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+8)^2 - M^2 = 11$$

This is true only if M = 5 and 4n + 8 = 6. But for any $n \in \mathbb{N}$, 4n + 8 = 6 is not valid.

Consequently, there is no solution to an equation.

Case 5:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

The desired equation becomes

$$(4n+1)^2 + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7) = M^2$$

Available at www.ijsred.com

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 36n + 17 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 2$$

The considered equation becomes

$$(4n+1)^2 + (4n+3) + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 68n + 53 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

Then,
$$p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+1) + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 84n + 59 = M^2$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

Then
$$p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^Z = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+1)^2 + (4n+3)^2 + (4n+7)^2 = M^2$$
$$\Rightarrow 48n^2 + 88n + 59 = M^2$$

It is a well-known fact that if $b^2 = 4ac$, the quadratic polynomial $ax^2 + bx + c$ is a perfect square.

But, the quadratic equation in nmentioned above from case 5 to case 8does not meet this criterion. As a conclusion, none of these choices of x, y, z considered from case 5 to case 8 provides solutions to an equation.

Theorem 2.2

A solution to the equation $p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ is inconceivable if $x, y, z \in \{1,2\}$ and (p, p+2, p+6) is a prime triplet of the form (4n+3, 4n+5, 4n+9).

Proof:

This theorem is showed by the succeeding eight cases as in theorem 2.1

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then,
$$p^x + (p+2)^y + (p+6)^Z = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 4n + 3 + 4n + 5 + 4n + 9 = M^{2}$$
$$\Rightarrow 12n + 17 = M^{2}$$

This is not true for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$. This statement is confirmed by the succeeding MATLAB Program.

 $n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ n');$

for i = 1:n

ISSN: 2581-7175

Available at www.ijsred.com

Page 26

$$p1 = 4 * i + 3; p2 = 4 * i + 5; p3 = 4 * i + 9;$$
 $if(isprime(p1) == 1 \& isprime(p2) == 1 \& isprime(p3) == 1)$
 $MS = 12 * n + 11;$
 $M = sqrt(MS);$
 $if(rem(M,1) == 0)$
 $fprintf('p1 = \%d, p2 = \%d, p3 = \%d, M = \%d', p1, p2, p3, M)$
 end
 end
 end
 end

Case 2:x = 2, y = 1, z = 1

The required equation to be solved becomes

$$(4n+3)^{2} + (4n+5) + (4n+9) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 32n + 23 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+4)^{2} + 7 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+4)^{2} = 7$$

This declaration is true only when M=4 and 4n+4=3. But there is no $n \in \mathcal{N}$ sustaining the condition 4n+4=3.

Case 3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

The developed equation can be modified into

$$(4n+3) + (4n+5)^{2} + (4n+9) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 48n + 37 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+6)^{2} + 1 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+6)^{2} = 1$$

As is case 2 of theorem 2.1, this is impossible.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

The given equation can be rewritten as

$$(4n+3) + (4n+5) + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^2 + 80n + 89 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+10)^2 - 11 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+10)^2 - M^2 = 11$$

Available at www.ijsred.com

$$\Rightarrow M = 5 \text{ and } 4n + 10 = 6$$

But for any $n \in \mathbb{N}$, 4n + 10 = 6 is not possible.

Case 5:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

The stated equation becomes

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5)^2 + (4n+9) = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 68n + 43 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 2$$

The considered equation is

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5) + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 100n + 95 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

These options of the variables reduce the scrutinized equation into

$$(4n + 3) + (4n + 5)^2 + (4n + 9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 32n^2 + 116n + 109 = M^2$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

The equation in which solutions to be discovered becomes

$$(4n+3)^2 + (4n+5)^2 + (4n+9)^2 = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 48n^2 + 136n + 115 = M^2$$

As in theorem 2.1, in this theorem also case 5 to case 8 does not yield the solution to an equation. Hence, there exists no solution in integer to the given equation.

Theorem 2.3

There are infinitely many solutions to the equation $p^x + (p+4)^y + (p+6)^z = M^2$ if (p, p+4, p+6) is a prime triplet the form $(4n+1, 4n+5, 4n+7), n \in \mathcal{N}$ and if x, y, z are either of 1 or 2.

Proof:

The theorem is proved as in previous two theorems.

Case 1:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 1$$

Then,
$$p^x + (p+4)^y + (p+6)^Z = M^2$$

$$\Rightarrow 4n + 1 + 4n + 5 + 4n + 7 == M^{2}$$
$$\Rightarrow 12n + 13 = M^{2}$$

Available at www.ijsred.com

It is observed from the following MATLAB Program, there are enormous prime triplets can be extracted as a solution. For instance, if n = 3, 9, 69, 153 provides the prime triplets (13, 17, 19), (31, 41, 43), (277, 281, 283), (613, 617, 619) as solutions to the designated equation.

 $n = input('Enter\ a\ natural\ number\ n');$

$$for i = 1:n$$

$$p1 = 4 * i + 1; p2 = 4 * i + 5; p3 = 4 * i + 7;$$

$$if(isprime(p1) == 1 \& isprime(p2) == 1 \& isprime(p3) == 1)$$

$$MS = 12 * n + 13;$$

$$M = sqrt(MS);$$

$$if(rem(M, 1) == 0)$$

$$fprintf('p1 = \%d, p2 = \%d, p3 = \%d, M = \%d', p1, p2, p3, M)$$

$$end$$

$$end$$

end

Case 2:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 1$$

The given equation becomes

$$p^{x} + (p+4)^{y} + (p+6)^{z} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+1)^{2} + (4n+5) + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 16n + 13 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+2)^{2} + 9 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow M^{2} - (4n+2)^{2} = 9$$

This is achievable only when M=5 and 4n+2=4. However, for every $n \in \mathcal{N}$, the equation 4n+2=4 is not feasible.

Case 3:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 1$$

ISSN: 2581-7175

The elected choices of x, y, z minimizes the given equation as

$$(4n+1) + (4n+5)^{2} + (4n+7) = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 6n^{2} + 48n + 33 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+6)^{2} - 3 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n+6)^{2} - M^{2} = 3$$

Available at www.ijsred.com

 \Rightarrow 4n + 6 = 2 and M = 1 are the only values that enable the above equation to be accomplished.

But 4n + 6 = 2 is not conceivable for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$.

Case 4:
$$x = 1, y = 1, z = 2$$

For these options of x, y, z, the equation to be resolved is

$$(4n + 1) + (4n + 5) + (4n + 7)^{2} = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow 16n^{2} + 64n + 55 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - 9 = M^{2}$$

$$\Rightarrow (4n + 8)^{2} - M^{2} = 9$$

The only values which attain the above condition are 4n + 8 = 5 and M = 4.

But for any $n \in \mathcal{N}$, 4n + 8 = 5 is invalid.

Case 5:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 1$$

Therefore, the original equation is converted into the quadratic equation as follows

$$32n^2 + 52n + 33 = M^2$$

Case 6:
$$x = 2, y = 1, z = 2$$

Then, the original equation is altered into the quadratic equation in n as given below.

$$32n^2 + 68n + 55 = M^2$$

Case 7:
$$x = 1, y = 2, z = 2$$

The similar form of the given equation is

$$32n^2 + 100n + 75 = M^2$$

Case 8:
$$x = 2, y = 2, z = 2$$

The identical from of the considered equation is

$$48n^2 + 104n + 75 = M^2$$

As the explanation given in theorem 2.1, there is no solution in integers for the cases listed above from 5 to 8.

Theorem 2.4:

For any $n \in \mathcal{N}$, if p = 4n + 3 and (p, p + 4, p + 6) is a prime triplet, then $p^x + (p + 4)^y + (p + 6)^z = M^2$ has no solution when x, y, z are either 1 or 2.

Proof:

The proof is analogous to theorem 2.1

Exceptional Prime Triplets

Available at www.ijsred.com

- 1. If $(p_1, p_2, p_3) = (2, 3, 5)$, then the possible solution of $2^x + 3^y + 5^z = M^2 \text{are } (x, y, z, M) = (1, 2, 1, 4) \text{ and } (1, 2, 2, 6)$.
- 2. If $(p_1, p_2, p_3) = (3, 5, 7)$, then there is no solution to the proposed equation $3^x + 5^y + 7^z = M^2$

III. CONCLUSION

This text investigates the spectacular exponential Diophantine equation $p_1^x + p_2^y + p_3^z = M^2$ where (p_1, p_2, p_3) is a prime triplet either of the form (p, p + 2, p + 6) or (p, p + 4, p + 6) and x, y, z are either 1 or 2. One may derive integer solutions by considering the sum of the variables or the product of the variables is either 1 or 2.

IV.REFERENCES

- [1] Aggarwal, Sudhanshu, and Sanjay Kumar, "On the Exponential Diophantine Equation $19^{2m} + (6\gamma + 1)^n = \rho^2$ ", (2021).
- [2] Burshtein, Nechemia., "A note on the Diophantine equation $p^3 + q^2 = z^4$ when p is prime", *Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics* 14.3 (2017): 509-511.
- [3] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the Solutions of the Diophantine Equation $p^x + p^y = z^4$ when $p \ge 2$ is Prime and x, y, z are Positive Integers", *Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics* 21.2 (2020): 125-128.
- [4] Burshtein, Nechemia., "All the Solutions of the Diophantine Equations $p^x + (p + 1)^y + (p + 2)^z = M^3$ when p is Prime and $1 \le x, y, z \le 2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 23.1 (2021): 7-15.
- [5] Burshtein, Nechemia., "Solutions of the Diophantine Equations $p^x + (p+1)^y + (p+2)^z = M^2$ for Primes $p \ge 2$ when $1 \le x, y, z \le 2$ ", Annals of Pure and Applied Mathematics 22.1 (2020): 41-49.
- [6] Cohen, Henri, S. Axler, and K. A. Ribet., "Number theory: Volume I: Tools and Diophantine equations", Vol. 560. *Springer New York*, 2007.
- [7] Gayo Jr, William Sobredo, and Jerico Bravo Bacani., "On the Diophantine Equation $M_p^x + (M_a + 1)^y = z^2$ ", European Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics 14.2 (2021): 396-403.
- [8] Guo, Yongdong, and Mao Hua Le., "A note on the exponential Diophantine equation $x^2 2^m = y^n$ ", *Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society* 123.12 (1995): 3627-3629.
- [9] Le, Maohua, Reese Scott, and Robert Styer., "A Survey on the Ternary Purely Exponential Diophantine Equation $a^x + b^y = c^z$ ", arXiv preprint arXiv:1808.06557 (2018).

International Journal of Scientific Research and Engineering Development— Volume 5 Issue 2, Mar-Apr 2022 Available at www.ijsred.com

- [10] Miyazaki, Takafumi, and Nobuhiro Terai., "On the exponential Diophantine equation", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society* 90.1 (2014): 9-19.
- [11] Rabago, Julius Fergy T., "A note on two Diophantine equations $17^x + 19^y = z^2$ and $71^x + 73^y = z^2$ ", Mathematical Journal of Interdisciplinary Sciences 2.1 (2013): 19-24.
- [12] Sandhya, P., Pandichelvi, V., "Exploration of solutions for an exponential Diophantine equation $p^x + (p+1)^y = z^2$ ", Turkish Journal of Computer and Mathematics Education, 1(S) (2021): 659-662.
- [13] Schmidt, Wolfgang M., "Diophantine approximations and Diophantine equations." *Springer*, (2006).
- [14] Su, Juanli, and Xiaoxue Li., "The exponential Diophantine equation." *Abstract and Applied Analysis*. Vol. 2014. Hindawi, (2014).

ISSN NO: 2249-2976

Usage of Linear Diophantine Equation in the Resolution of Molecular Formulae for Various Chemical Substances

V. Pandichelvi¹, *P. Sandhya²

Abstract

In this article, it is exhibited few examples for how to use the linear Diophantine equation to contract the molecular formulae of organic or inorganic chemical compounds in order to determine their structure.

Keywords: linear Diophantine equation, integer solutions, molar mass, molecular formula.

I. Introduction

There is a widespread belief that Number theory is the purest field of pure Mathematics, and that it has few meaningful applicability to real-world issues as a result of this belief. The significance of Number theory is derived from its prominent position in Mathematics; its ideas and problems have played a crucial role in the development of many areas of Mathematics throughout history. A Diophantine equation is a multivariable equation that concedes only integer solutions. One of its particular instances is the linear Diophantine equation which has the general form $a_1x_1 + a_2x_2 + \cdots + a_nx_n = b$ where $a_1, a_2, \ldots, a_n, b \in \mathbb{Z}, n \ge 2$ and whose solutions must be integers. For instance, [5] proposes techniques based on Euclidean algorithm arguments. Furthermore, practical issues involving the splicing of telephone lines have been resolved by using techniques of basic number theory [9]. Many more fascinating applications may be found in the book Number Theory and the Periodicity of Matter [1], which has a large number of additional examples. Additionally, the reader is recommended to refer [2-4,7, 10-13] in this respect. It is common to perceive linear Diophantine equations in many disciplines, but they are particularly prevalent in chemistry [6,8,14], In this article, it is revealed the application of linear Diophantine equation in Chemistry specially how to find the molecular formulae of organic or inorganic chemical compounds in order to determine their structure with few specimens.

Pramana Research Journal ISSN NO: 2249-2976

Needed Theorem [1]

The linear Diophantine equation ax + by = c has a solution if and only if d divides c where d = gcd(a, b). Furthermore, if (x_0, y_0) is a solution of this equation, then the set of solution of the equation consists of all pairs (x, y) where $x = x_0 + t \frac{b}{d}$ and $y = y_0 - t \frac{a}{d}$, $t \in \mathbb{Z}$

II. Determination of chemical molecular formula

Enabling the possibility that a chemical substance with a molecular weight W encompasses elements A_1 , A_2 and A_3 with atomic weights a_1 , a_2 and a_3 respectively and that the numbers X, Y and Z represent the number of atoms of elements A_1 , A_2 and A_3 visible in each of the elements' molecules. Then, it is obtained that

$$a_1X + a_2Y + a_3Z = W \tag{1}$$

Let α_1 , α_2 and α_3 constitutes the integers closest to the values a_1 , a_2 and a_3 and let w signify the integer closest to the value W.

Then the similar form of linear Diophantine equation (1) to be solved is represented by

$$\alpha_1 X + \alpha_2 Y + \alpha_3 Z = w \tag{2}$$

If a limit is imposed on the integers X, Y and Z in (2), then it can be solved under a restriction

$$|(a_1 - \alpha_1)X + (a_2 - \alpha_2)Y + (a_3 - \alpha_3)Z| < |W - w|$$
(3)

If more solutions of (2) are retrieved, then the genuine values can be found by substituting them in (1) and assessing which of satisfies (2) with the least significant deviation from W.

The process of finding molecular formulae for three chemical substances using the linear Diophantine equation is enlightened as follows.

2.1. Molecular formula for substance 1

Consider the substance 1 as the chemical compound comprising Carbon, Hydrogen, and Oxygen having a molecular weight of 342.2965 g/mol.

Let *X*, *Y* and *Z* stand for the number of atoms of Carbon, Hydrogen and Oxygen respectively. Consider the first-degree Diophantine equation as

$$12.0107X + 1.00784Y + 15.999Z = 342.2965 \tag{4}$$

where 12.0107u, 1.00784u and 15.999u are the atomic weights of Carbon, Hydrogen and Oxygen respectively.

Next, it is clear that $\alpha_1 = 12$, $\alpha_2 = 1$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and $\omega = 342$.

Furthermore, the corresponding linear form of (4) to discover molecular formula is converted into

$$12X + Y + 16Z = 342 \tag{5}$$

subject to the constraint

$$|0.0107X + 0.00784Y - 0.001Z| < 0.2965$$

which provides that $X \le 12, Y \le 23, Z \le 13$

Modify (5) as in the following form

$$12X + Y = 342 + 16T$$
 where $Z = -T$

Then, its common solution is given by

Pramana Research Journal ISSN NO: 2249-2976

$$X = 28 + K$$

 $Y = 6 + 16T - 12K, K, T \in \mathbb{Z}.$

It is assured that the values of X, Y, Z must be greater than 0. Hence, it is enabled to discover the ranges for T and K.

Now,

$$X > 0 \Rightarrow 28 + K > 0 \Rightarrow K > -28$$

 $Y > 0 \Rightarrow 6 + 16T - 12K > 0 \Rightarrow 8T - 6K > -3$
 $Z > 0 \Rightarrow -T > 0 \Rightarrow T < 0$

In particular, if T = -1, then 8T - 6K > -3 leads to K < 1.

Thus, the range for K should be -28 < K < 1.

Continuing the process for T = -2, T = -3, ..., T = -21, it is received that K < 1. But for T = -22, K < -29 contradicting -28 < K < 1.

Thus, the range for T should be $-22 < T \le -1$.

Therefore, there exists 588 solutions in combinations of T and K.

Eliminate the solutions which violating the conditions that 0 < X < 13,0 < Y < 24 and 0 < Z < 14 by the succeeding MATLAB Program:

```
clear all; clc;

for t=-21:-1

for k=-27:0

x=28+k;

y=6+16*t-12*k;

z=-t;

if (x<13 && y<24 && z<14)

fprintf('x=\%d,y=\%d,z=\%d\n',x,y,z)

end

end

end
```

The residual solutions which satisfy the necessary conditions are listed in the table below.

X	Y	Z
10	14	13
11	2	13
11	18	12
12	6	12
12	22	11

Note that the last two solutions represent the compounds $C_{12}H_6O_{12}$ (Mellitic acid) and $C_{12}H_{22}O_{11}$ (Sucrose or Table Sugar) with molar mass 342.16 g/mol and 342.2965 g/mol respectively.

Pramana Research Journal ISSN NO: 2249-2976

Therefore, the exact solution is $C_{12}H_{22}O_{11}$.

2.2. Molecular formula for substance 2

Let us choose the substance 2 as the chemical compound with the molecular weight of 98.079 g/mol and a mixture of Hydrogen, Sulphur, and Oxygen.

Let *X*, *Y* and *Z* be the number of atoms of Hydrogen, Sulphur, and Oxygen with respective atomic mass 1.00784*u*, 32.065*u* and 15.999*u* respectively.

As in Section 2.1, choose the linear Diophantine equation in three variables as

$$1.00784X + 32.065Y + 15.999Z = 98.079$$

Clearly, $\alpha_1 = 1$, $\alpha_2 = 32$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and w = 98.

Consequently, let us solve the ensuing linear Diophantine equation

$$X + 32Y + 16Z = 98 \tag{6}$$

subject to the restriction

$$|0.0078X + 0.065Y - 0.001Z| < 0.079$$

The upper limit for the choices of X, Y and Z are noted by

$$X \le 3, Y \le 1, Z \le 4 \tag{7}$$

From (6),
$$X = 98 - 32Y - 16Z > 0$$
, $Y > 0$ and $Z > 0$. (8)

All the possibility of X, Y and Z supporting (8) are evaluated by $\{(50,1,1), (18,2,1), (34,1,2), (2,2,2), (18,1,3), (2,1,4)\}$

The only choice of (X, Y, Z) that satisfies (7) is (2,1,4).

Hence, the component is H_2SO_4 , That is Sulphuric Acid with molar mass 98.079 g/mol.

2.3. Molecular formula for substance 3

Consider Substance 3 is a combination of Zinc, Sulphur, and Oxygen having a molecular weight of 161.47 g/mol.

Let *X*, *Y* and *Z* be the number of atoms of Zinc, Sulphur, and Oxygen with respective atomic mass 65.38*u*, 32.065*u* and 15.999*u* respectively.

As in the previous two sections, the equation to be resolved is

$$65.38 X + 32.065 Y + 15.999 Z = 161.47 (9)$$

With the same notations as in section 2.1, $\alpha_1 = 65$, $\alpha_2 = 32$, $\alpha_3 = 16$ and w = 161.

Then, an equivalent form of (9) to be solved is taken as

$$65X + 32Y + 16Z = 161\tag{10}$$

together with the condition that

$$|0.38X + 0.065Y - 0.001Z| < 0.47$$

The options of such X, Y and Z in (10) are viewed by

$$X \leq 1, Y \leq 1, Z \leq 444$$

Since X, Y and Z are positive, the only possibility of X and Y are pointed out by

$$X = 1, Y = 1$$

Now, rearrange (10) the form as given below

$$65X + 16U = 161\tag{11}$$

where
$$U = 2Y + Z$$
 (12)

In (11), gcd(65,16) = 1 and 1 divide 161.

Also, the least solution to (11) is taken as $X_0 = 161$ and $U_0 = -644$

Hence by theorem [1], there exists infinitely many integer solutions to (11) which are represented by

$$X = 161 + 16T \tag{13}$$

$$U = -644 - 65T \tag{14}$$

where $T \in \mathcal{Z}$

Since X = 1, the chance of T is evaluated from (13) as

$$T = -10$$

Note that (12) is satisfied by $Y_0 = U$ and $Z_0 = -U$. Also, gcd(2,1) = 1

Again, by Theorem [1] the infinitely many solutions to (12) are received by

$$Y = U + K = -644 - 65T + K \tag{15}$$

$$Z = -U - 2K = 644 + 65T - 2K, K \in \mathcal{Z}$$
(16)

Since Y = 1, the value of K is calculated from (15) by

$$K = -5$$

Substituting the values of T and K in (16), it is determined that

$$Z = 4$$

The only solution that satisfies (9) is (X, Y, Z) = (1,1,4).

Hence, the component is $ZnSO_4$, that is Zinc Sulphate with molar mass 161.47 g/mol.

III. Conclusion

With the help of a few instances, the application of the linear Diophantine equation in finding the chemical molecular formula for three different substances are evaluated in this editorial. Finally, new and interesting applications of Number theory include cryptography, coding theory, and random number generation, among other things. These areas are developing at a breakneck pace as a result of the widespread use of computers, and their significance is growing all the time.

IV. References

- [1] Bach, Eric, et al., "Algorithmic number theory: Efficient algorithms." Vol. 1. MIT press, (1996).
- [2] Boeyens, Jan CA, and Demetrius C. Levendis., "Number theory and the periodicity of matter." Springer Science & Business Media, (2007).
- [3] Borosh, I. "A sharp bound for positive solutions of homogeneous linear diophantine equations." Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society, vol. 60, no. 1, (1976), pp. 19-21.
- [4] Carmichael, Robert Daniel., "The Theory of Numbers, and Diophantine Analysis", Vol. 1. Dover Publications, (1959).

[5] Contejean, Evelyne, and Hervé Devie., "An efficient incremental algorithm for solving systems of linear diophantine equations", Information and computation, vol. 113, no. 1, (1994), pp. 143-172.

- [6] Crocker, Roger., "Application of Diophantine equations to problems in chemistry", Journal of Chemical Education, vol. 45, no. 11, (1968), pp. 731-733.
- [7] Davenport, Harold., "Multiplicative number theory", Vol. 74, Springer Science & Business Media, (2013).
- [8] Esmaeili, Hamid., "How can we solve a linear Diophantine equation by the basis reduction algorithm", International Journal of Computer Mathematics, vol. 82, no. 10, (2005), pp. 1227-1234.
- [9] Imomov, Azam, and Yorqin T. Khodjaev., "On Some Methods for Solution of Linear Diophantine Equations", Universal Journal of Mathematics and Applications, vol.3, no. 2, pp. 86-92.
- [10] Klaska, J., "Real-world Applications of Number Theory", South Bohemia Mathematical letters, vol. 25, no. 1, (2017), pp. 39-47
- [11] Koblitz, Neal., "A course in number theory and cryptography", vol. 114, Springer Science & Business Media, (1994).
- [12] Koshy, Thomas., "Elementary number theory with applications", Academic press, (2002).
- [13] Lawther Jr, H. P., "An application of number theory to the splicing of telephone cables", The American Mathematical Monthly, vol. 42, no. 2, (1935), pp 81-91.
- [14] Papp, Dávid, and Béla Vizvári., "Effective solution of linear Diophantine equation systems with an application in chemistry", Journal of Mathematical Chemistry, vol. 39, no. 1, (2006), pp. 15-31.

PAPERS ACCEPTED FOR PUBLICATION:

- 1. Attesting finite number of integer solutions or no integer solutions to four Mordell kinds equations $Y^2 = X^3 + C$, $C = \pm 9,36,-16$, Advances and Applications in Mathematical Sciences, Mili Publications.
- 2. Demonstration of two disparate structures of integer triples concerning Pan-San and Pan-San Comrade numbers, *Advances and Applications in Mathematical Sciences, Mili Publications*.
- 3. Conception of positive integer solutions relating Jacobsthal and Jacobsthal Lucas numbers to restricted number of quadratic equations with double variables, *International Journal of Nonlinear Analysis and Applications, Semnan Universitys*.